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China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited (stock code: 3320) is a leading
integrated pharmaceutical company in China. Our business spans across
manufacturing, distribution and retail of pharmaceutical and healthcare
products. Since the establishment in 2007, the Group has developed into one
of the fifth largest pharmaceutical manufacturers and the one of the third
largest pharmaceutical distributors (by revenue) in China. In October 2016, the
Company successfully completed its global offering in Hong Kong. Since its
listing.

Our manufacturing business encompasses the research and development,
manufacturing and sale of pharmaceutical products. We manufacture more
than 560 products comprising chemical drugs, Chinese medicines and
biopharmaceutical drugs as well as nutritional and healthcare products,
covering a wide range of therapeutic areas including cardiovascular, alimentary
tract and metabolism, large-volume IV infusion, pediatrics, respiratory system
etc.. Besides, we own a series of strong, well-known brands including “999",
“Dong-E-E-Jiao (BEFAIFAIAE) ”, “Double-Crane (2€%8) ", “Zizhu (£517) ", and
“Jiangzhong GCIH) “. We regard R&D and product innovation as important
drivers for long-term growth and consistently increases the investment in
R&D activities. We operate 3 State-certified engineering technology research
centers and 3 State-certified enterprise technology centers with a R&D team
comprising over 1,200 staff members.

Leveraging our comprehensive product portfolio and wide distribution
networks, we directly distribute products to hospitals and other medical
institutions across the country. We operate a national distribution network
comprising 176 logistics centers strategically across 28 provinces, municipalities
and autonomous regions in China, with over 110,000 clients, including
8,003 second- and third-class hospitals and around 70,000 primary medical
institutional clients. In addition, we operate one of the largest retail pharmacy
networks in China, comprising 862 pharmacies under national or regional
premium brands — CR Care (%) ", and “Teck Soon Hong (F&151T) "
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chairman and non-executive Director
Mr. Wang Chuncheng

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Han Yuewei

Executive Director and Vice Chairman
Mr. Li Xiangming

Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer and Vice President
Mdm. Weng Jingwen

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yu Zhongliang
Mdm. Guo Wei
Mr. Wang Shouye
(resigned on 26 March 2021)
Mr. Lyu Ruizhi
(resigned on 26 March 2021)
Mr. Hou Bo
(appointed on 26 March 2021)
Mr. Qing Mei Ping Cuo
(appointed on 26 March 2021)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mdm. Shing Mo Han Yvonne

Mr. Kwok Kin Fun

Mr. Fu Tingmei

Mr. Zhang Kejian

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mdm. Shing Mo Han Yvonne (Chairman)
Mdm. Guo Wei
Mr. Lyu Ruizhi
(resigned on 26 March 2021
Mr. Qing Mei Ping Cuo
(appointed on 26 March 2021)
Mr. Kwok Kin Fun
Mr. Fu Tingmei
Mr. Zhang Kejian
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Wang Chuncheng (Chairman)
Mdm. Shing Mo Han Yvonne

Mr. Kwok Kin Fun

Mr. Fu Tingmei

Mr. Zhang Kejian

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Kwok Kin Fun (Chairman)
Mdm. Guo Wei

Mdm. Shing Mo Han Yvonne
Mr. Fu Tingmei

Mr. Zhang Kejian

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Mr. Fu Tingmei (Chairman)
Mr. Han Yuewei

Mdm. Weng Jingwen

Mdm. Shing Mo Han Yvonne
Mr. Kwok Kin Fun

Mr. Zhang Kejian

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Mr. Han Yuewei (Chairman)
Mr. Li Xiangming
Mdm. Weng Jingwen

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Han Yuewei
Mdm. Weng Jingwen

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Lo Chi Lik Peter

LEGAL ADVISORS

Clifford Chance
Jia Yuan Law Offices

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

REGISTERED OFFICE

41/F, China Resources Building
26 Harbour Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong
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SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen's Road East

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China Ltd., Hong Kong Branch
Agricultural Bank of China Beisanhuan Sub-Branch Beijing
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch
China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited

China Construction Bank Beijing Railway Branch

China Merchants Bank Chang'an Street Sub-Branch Beijing
Credit Agricole CIB, Hong Kong Branch

China Everbright Bank Co., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Wangfujing Branch
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

ING Bank N.V.

Mizuho Bank, Ltd., Hong Kong Branch

MUFG Bank, Ltd., Hong Kong Branch

Natixis Hong Kong Branch

Overseas-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited

Postal Savings Bank of China, Beijing Weigoncun Sub-branch
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONSULTANT
Wonderful Sky Financial Group Limited

COMPANY'S WEBSITE

http:/Avww.crpharm.com

STOCK CODE
3320
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MeRBEKRE
"“AGM"

MEMERRAAN

"

“Articles of Association”

=8|
“Board”
MERBEE A
“BSCcomMmcC”
rEERTAL

"“CG Code”

THRE
“China” or “PRC"

INSIECSHN
“Companies Ordinance”

I NGRS
“"Company” or “CR Pharmaceutical”

FEEHIR1T)

“CR Bank”
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In this annual report, the following expressions shall have the following
meanings unless the context indicates otherwise:

RABIRRBERE
annual general meeting of the Company

RABR ZE—RERAZTHKFIARZERMNAASERMEA (&
REFEET)

the articles of association of the Company (as amended from time to
time), adopted by Special Resolution passed on 20 June 2016

sy
board of Directors

TREEEARKEEEEFR L —KPNFPEGFMEINEE RE > BEM
NEERE

Beijing State-Owned Capital Operation And Management Center (35 2 E
BERKEEEIERL), a state-owned enterprise incorporated in the PRC
and our substantial Shareholder

EHRANSRT SN EEE AT REEERRS
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

REARENE iAERMS > FEESHB CRPIFINITHRE RS E
People’s Republic of China, excluding, for the purposes of this annual
report only, Hong Kong, Macau SAR and Taiwan

NEMER (BB EDIF6225) (B REFIES])
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (as
amended from time to time)

EHBEERBRAA
China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited

KBERBITROABRAE —RPAPBERINEDBERAR LA —XK
MEUN OB MIRIT NAFRBAA EHRMNDFEHEFLN70.28%
e

China Resources Bank of Zhuhai Co., Ltd. GR:BEBIETRMBEREAD
7)), a company limited by shares established in the PRC and a municipal
bank headquartered in Zhuhai, in which CRI holds approximately 70.28%

interest as at the date of this annual report
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MERHeEs)

“CR Double-Crane”

MR R

“CR Health”

Mg MEm)

“CR Holdings”

MR

“CRI”

MERIRER)

“CR Jiangzhong Group”

rEBHEE)

“CR Leasing”

EHEREERMERAT —XREBEPBEUZEZMA LN HE
PIELBRSFRZM LM BRH RS 1 600062) @ i B AAT ZIFREM
BAF

China Resources Double-Crane Pharmaceutical Company Limited (Z74
A IS{H A E/AF)), a company incorporated under the laws of the
PRC, the shares of which are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: 600062) and a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

EHRRERERAB ABAEIEREREARAS  —RNE BT
MR ERABD L AEBHERNZERBERF

China Resources Healthcare Group Limited (ZEBBEREEBBR AT,
formerly known as ZEHEEEBABRAE), a company incorporated
in Hong Kong with limited liability and a wholly-owned subsidiary of CR
Holdings as at the date of this annual report

E=H (&R BRRAR —RNREEBZMMIINERAR AEBERNE
RABLEMEBE AR REPZERR

China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited, a company incorporated
in Hong Kong with limited liability, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
CRI and our controlling Shareholder

EHRHABRAT > —KIHREI YRS A RA B I & PR A
3

China Resources Inc., a joint stock limited liability company established in
the PRC and our controlling Shareholder

ERIPREEREREELNE —RINABININAT > B LREEE
NERKRR TAERRTRZIEZENRBAR

China Resources Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd. (=B T A&
BEERBRSEAT), a company established in the PRC, the controlling
Shareholder of Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical and a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company

EHMEMEARLAB AIMEBEERREAR —XNXPEXRINE
[REFRQE NAFREE E=HRGOBETEH0%ER

China Resources Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. CEHMEHEEERAT),
formerly known as China Resources Leasing Co., Ltd. GEHIEEAREA
7)), a limited liability company established in the PRC, in which CRI holds
60% indirect interest as at the date of this annual report

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited Annual Report 2020 7
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“CR Medical”

MERBEFE

“CR Pharmaceutical Commercial”

MERMBEER)

“CR Pharmaceutical Holdings”

MgEH=H,

“CR Sanjiu”

M=

“CR Trust”

===

“Director(s)”
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EHBRRERERAS —XIXHERESETMRINBRAE  HRMH
TEEEAZPr £ (R AESE 1 1515) » ERERERRAFERBBFHEE
36.58% 1 m

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited, a company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability, the share of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
1515), in which CR Holdings holds 36.58% interest as at the date of this
annual report

EHEREREEEERAT ABIERBERNHBRAT — XN ZE
ZEF+ _BZ+EtHARBPRBEEEEMRIINAT  BAEATL2EH
PN

China Resources Pharmaceutical Commercial Group Company Limited (%
HBHEEEEBRAFRAT), formerly known as Beijing Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. Ut REERDAFE/AT), a company incorporated under the
laws of the PRC on 27 December 2000 and a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company

EHEBREZIRARLS AW =ZNEZEREBRLAE —RBHEREEE
HEMRIINAT BREATEENEBE AT
China Resources Pharmaceutical Holdings Company Limited (3% &8 2%z
B A BRAF]), formerly known as New Sanjiu Holdings Co., Ltd (31 = A%
B BR/AT]), a company incorporated under the laws of the PRC and a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

EH-NBERNDERRF AB=ZNEZRNDERLT > —KIRE
HREDE MR AT EROGERINEZSZZ LT (BRMH A :
000999) » WA XA ZIF2ENBE AT

China Resources Sanjiu Medical & Pharmaceutical Company Limited (%74
ZHEBERMHAERAT), formerly known as Sanjiu Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd. (ZH B ERIDEPR/AT]), a company incorporated under the laws of
the PRC, the shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code:000999) and a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company

ERHRBEKRELEERRE —RINPBEMRIINEREELE  REFER
HER EHROBOEBEEREERASBBERFEEPS1%ER
China Resources SZITIC Trust Co., Ltd. GEHZHEEEERLAT), a
limited liability company established in the PRC, in which CRI indirectly
holds 51% interest through China Resources Capital Holdings Investment
Co., Ltd. FEHSIZEKEBMRAF) as at the date of this annual report

KABEF

director(s) of the Company
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TERFa e 2

“Dong-E-E-Jiao”

I &EE)

"GI’OUP"

r&#8)
“Hong Kong”

DIREEE

“Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical”

rEmRAL

“Listing Rules”

MEAEFA
“Model Code”

ERER
“Prospectus”

MR & B
“Reporting Period”

MERITEE ]
"SAR”

RETFRIBRMDBERAE > AL SRR R LRERMARE (EE) &
PRERRABEIRWUREMRERBRDERAS  —XIBREBERBEEE ML
HAB ERGERIESFRZZE Em (BRDMASE 1 000423) » M AARA
BZEEENBRE

Dong-E-E-Jiao Company Limited (ERf[f BB BRAE), formerly
known as Shandong Dong-E-E-Jiao Factory (LLIERER P BT B2 BR) , Shandong
Dong-E-E-Jiao (Group) Co., Ltd. (LUEREK MM E (EE) RHBBERLE)
and Shandong Dong-E-E-Jiao Co., Ltd. (LU EHMMABERNERAT), a
company incorporated under the laws of the PRC, the shares of which are
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000423) and a non—
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

KRB REWERE
the Company and its subsidiaries

FREEBERIITHE
the Hong Kong SAR of the PRC

IHREERMNERAE —KIKABILIINAB HRHE L BES
P L™ (RMH R 1 600750) U RAEMIRERZIFLERB AR
Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. CIHZEXRMHAERAT), a
company established in the PRC, the shares of which are listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600750) and a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of CR Jiangzhong Group

B PrsE s E MR A (B AREHERT)
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (as
amended from time to time)

LEHRAIES A& EMETAETETRESXZNRETA
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

ARBIHBAZZ—R"F+A+tENBRER
the prospectus of the Company dated 17 October 2016

BHE_Z_EFT_A=1+—HLHHEE
the financial year ended 31 December 2020

FENFRITERE
Special Administrative Region, PRC

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited Annual Report 2020 9
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“SFO"

TR 151
“Share(s)”

TR ER
“Shareholder(s)”

THSk 32 P

"Stock Exchange”

MBI A
"HK$" or "HKD"

TAR#)
“RMB”

o
"US$" or "USD"

M% |

o
KERAN > NRERINABHERE  ERR
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BEREOETERFRBERD (EREFEET)
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (as amended from time to time)

/NN V)
share(s) of the Company

EN/NSIEEZVEST= DN
holder(s) of Shares of the Company

EBMEXZERASE
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

B BEEEEEE
Hong Kong Dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

ARET AEEEER

Renminbi Yuan, the lawful currency of China

Ei EZEEAERE
United States Dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of America

Bt

per cent

In the event of any inconsistency in the Chinese and English versions of the
names of the PRC established companies or entities, laws or regulations in this
annual report, the Chinese version shall prevail.
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Dear Shareholders,

I would like to extend my sincere appreciation to all Shareholders and
stakeholders for their continuing support of CR Pharmaceutical. As Chairman
of the Board, | hereby present the annual results of CR Pharmaceutical for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

Year 2020 has been an extremely challenging one, as the COVID-19 ravaged
the world and brought an unprecedented serious hit to the development of the
open world economy and globalisation process. Against the backdrop of risks
and challenges at home as well as abroad, the economy of China progressed
against the headwind and forged ahead in stability, achieving quarter-on-
quarter improvements in steady recovery as it reported annual GDP over
RMB100 trillion for the first time, which is a solid testimony to the economic
potential, resilience and sustainability of the nation.

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited ~Annual Report 2020 11
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While the pandemic has affected the economy in the short term, it has also
led to further improvements in China's anti-pandemic health system. Since the
commencement of the “13th Five-Year Plan”, medical reforms underpinned
by the three sectors of “pharmaceutical, medical care and medical insurance”
have evolved into the development of systematic institutions, while the
normalisation of pandemic prevention and control measures coupled with
the accelerated medical reforms have given rise to intensive changes in the
pharmaceutical industry. The procurement of drugs and consumables in
specified volumes has become an increasingly normalised practice, while the
approval for innovative drugs has sped up in the domestic sector. Developments
in reasonable drug use and hierarchical diagnosis in the medical care system
have shown steady progress. Diverse means have been employed to implement
medical insurance cost control, while the reform in medical insurance payments
has also commenced on a trial basis. Meanwhile, Internet medical healthcare
has emerged in thriving development. As medical reform is arriving at the
critical stage of qualitative improvement, institutional development and general
regulation, the pharmaceutical industry will undergo deepened adjustment and
optimisation, characterised by prominent opportunities arising from structural
developments and profound changes in the competitive landscape.

Year 2020 was the concluding year for the implementation of the Group's
“13th Five-Year Plan”. Persisting in a model of development driven by both
organic growth and external expansion, the Group has made efforts to deepen
reform and innovation, increase R&D investment, accelerate the development
of its biopharmaceutical business, enhance its presence in untapped sectors,
explore new business models, embark on active international cooperation,
pursue ongoing optimisation in product mix and business structure, advance
business synergy and integration of resources, bolster quality control and risk
management and improve operational and management efficiency, in order
to solidify its leading position in the industry on a continuous basis. In the
meantime, during the pandemic the Group has made active arrangements for
the resumption of work and production, while undertaking tasks of urgent
procurement, designated storage and assured distribution of pharmaceutical
supplies thanks to its efficient response mechanism and professional service
teams, as the commercial and industrial segment supplied more than RMB12
billion-worth of anti-pandemic drugs and medical devices to pandemic-stricken
areas in various provinces and cities across the nation, in fulfilment of the
commitment and social responsibility of a state-owned enterprise.
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Against the austere and challenging conditions of a complicated and volatile
industry environment, the Group actively responded to policy changes and
market challenges and achieved total revenue of HK$200,423.0 million,
and profit attributable to owners of the Company of HK$3,297.1 million,
representing a year-on-year growth of 3.8% in terms of RMB (or stable year-
on-year growth of 18.9% in terms of RMB in profit attributable to owners
of the Company if excluding the impact of one-off items such as disposal
of subsidiaries and goodwill impairment) for the Reporting Period. During
the Reporting Period, the Group further increased its investment in R&D and
reported R&D expenditure of HK$1,497.9 million for 2020, increasing by 3.9%
in terms of RMB.

Looking to 2021, while favourable factors of China’s positive economic
recovery are apparent, uncertainties will continue to prevail in the external
environment, and we cannot afford to ignore risks derived from the
impact of the pandemic. During the “14th Five-Year Plan” period, China’s
pharmaceutical industry will enter a critical stage of transformation, upgrade,
phasing-out and innovation. In the new context of domestic and international
dual circulation and with the implementation of the “Health China” strategy,
medical reforms will continue to advance in the vertical as well as horizontal
dimensions. In the pharmaceutical sector, regulation will be strengthened and
innovation will be encouraged to enhance the standardisation and accessibility
of medical care and increase the ability and efficiency of medical insurance
payment. While the stage of industry-wide rapid growth is unlikely to recur
under the impact of medical insurance cost control, stable market growth
driven by aging population, consumption upgrade and epidemiological
transition will sustain, complemented by the intelligent upgrade of the industry
aided by new technologies and platforms. In view of the above, the Group is
firmly optimistic about the long-term development of China’s pharmaceutical
industry.

The Group will continue to uphold its mission and vision of “Protecting Human
Health and Improving Quiality of Life” and position itself upon opportunities
presented by the development and reform of China’s pharmaceutical
and healthcare industries. In tandem with policy directions and taking full
advantage of the important window period of industry consolidation, we will
seize opportunities, establish ourselves in advantageous positions, solidify our
strengths and make up shortfalls in an attempt to open up new frontiers amidst
changes, on the back of R&D innovation and merger and acquisition and aided
by informatisation and international development. The Group will continue to
drive business realignment and industry upgrade and optimise the allocation
of resources. In connection with business structure, we will solidify our existing
competitive advantages by expediting our effort in reinforcing, strengthening
and complementing our business chains. We will enhance development of the
biopharmaceutical segment and actively establish our presence in untapped
sectors such as vaccines, blood products and medical devices. We will enhance
our core competitiveness and realise sustainable healthy development with high
standards, high efficiency and high quality, aspiring to become an innovator,
integrator, and leader in the pharmaceutical and health industries.

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited Annual Report 2020 13
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Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to once again express sincere
gratitude to all Shareholders, customers and strategic partners for their
continued trust in and unfailing support of the Group, as well as to the
management team and all staff for their hard work and dedication amidst the
extremely challenging business environment of the past year.

WANG Chuncheng
Chairman

26 March 2021
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(2 January), CR Sanjiu acquired 100% equity interest in
Aonuo (China) Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. GEREE (Fh[E) BL%%
BFE/AT)). The acquisition has facilitated CR Sanjiu’s rapid
building of a leading brand and major product lines for
pediatrics, thereby contributing to further improvements in
our deployment in the consumer healthcare (CHC) category.

(—A=+—R) EFHLBEERARLRAREBENARE
300B TV EMY BR A E R ENMILER  BZERE
REEHBERNNEEEERYE -

(31 January) China Resources Hubei Pharmaceutical
Company Limited (2841168 225 BR/A 7)) dispatched
approximately RMB3 million worth of pharmaceutical
supplies and medical devices to Huoshenshan Hospital
in Wuhan to provide the first batch of anti-epidemic
medical supplies received by the hospital after the
completion of its construction.
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(5 February) NIP292, a Class | innovative drug of the
Group, was granted orphan drug status for treatment of
idiopathic pulmonary fibrosis (IPF) by the U.S. Food and Drug
Administration (FDA).

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited Annual Report 2020 15
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(29 March) The first batch of anti-epidemic supplies
shipped to Ireland by CR Pharmaceutical Commercial
arrived at Dublin on 29 March, local time. In the 14
weeks that followed, CR Pharmaceutical Commercial
continued to ship 4,000 tonnes or 86 million pieces of
personal protective supplies to support Ireland’s fight
against the epidemic.
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(22 April) Double-Crane conducted the nationwide online
launch of “Fetoca®”, a new product in the field of pediatrics.
Currently the only caffeine citrate injection product in China
that has passed the drug consistency evaluation, “Fetoca®” is
used for the treatment of premature newborn primary apnea.
The launch of this drug will provide more options for clinical
applications for the benefit of a broader population of child
patients.

(MAZ+MB) REEBHE B FRIFER NERHE
BB#n] o 3 5 & A B M | %0 B M Bl —ERVBD (B
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(24 April), Dong-E-
E-Jiao launched its
proprietary innovative
product “Little Gold Bar
Dong-E-E-Jiao Powder”.
- This new product
: features two core
patent technologies,
low-temperature VBD
(vacuum belt drying) and E-Jiao original powder preparation,
which have both won the Patent Excellence Award of China.
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(9 May) CR Jiangzhong Group launched a new product
“Jiangzhong Lihuo Probiotics” in the field of daily
gastrointestinal medication. This product has the effects of
improving the stability of intestinal flora, preventing and
treating constipation and diarrhea, regulating the balance
of intestinal flora and stabilising the intestinal tract, and is
effective for procuring intestinal health.
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(13 July) China Resources Biopharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (&
T Y B B BR/A B)) received the notice of approval for
clinical trial of drugs for “Ruitongli” to extend its scope of
treatment to the new indication of deep vein thrombosis.
As the first third-generation heterogeneous thrombolytic
medicine launched in China, “Ruitongli” has been included
in the National Reimbursement Drug List. Research of new
indications of acute stroke and acute pulmonary embolism are
currently in the clinical phase Il stage.

(EA+ImR) #FHREBX N IREEEARNARAR
PRGN ERBEMRERATD =Z A HAREBERER
BREREREEHESIFRE > SIFRR (B X R+ EE+E)
BREMSHMER -

(14 July) CR Pharmaceutical Commercial, Zhejiang Int’l Group
Co., ltd. G T HAFER RS E B2 R and Zhejiang Yibao
Pharmaceutical Technology Co., Ltd G T {E{REe &R &
A R/AE)) entered into a strategic agreement for national
centralised procurement for commercial health insurance in a
joint exploration of the new model of “commercial insurance
+ drug + store” cross-sector integration.

AAA
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(15 July) CR Sanjiu and NOVO Nordisk (China) Pharmaceuticals
Co., Ltd. announced co-promotion of the Recombinant
Human Somatropin Injection (RHSI), Norditropin® (5572
®), by way of contract sales in Mainland China, effective
from 1 August 2020. The cooperation was aimed at further
enhancing the accessibility of Norditropin® in China for the
benefit of more Chinese patients.
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(22 August) Dong-E-E-Jiao and CR Sanjiu jointly launched the
dual-branded E-Jiao Zhu TCM decoction pieces to drive sales
of the new product through the aggregation of production
resources, marketing capability and brand advantage offered
by the two companies.
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(24 August) CR Double-Crane's four generic drugs won
bids in the third batch of national centralised procurement
announced, including Metformin HCL sustained release tablet
(0.5g), Valsartan capsule (80mg), Finasteride tablet (5mg) and
Vildagliptin tablet (50mg). This was conducive to the further
expansion of CR Double-Crane’s market share for relevant
products and the optimisation of its marketing model.
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(29 August) The “Second Forum on New Retail Trends for
Pharmaceutical Products and Sanjiu Commercial Digitalisation
Empowerment Platform Customer Ceremony” was
successfully held in Xiamen. CR Sanijiu joined CR Jiangzhong,
Dong-E-E-Jiao and CR Zizhu Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd (“CR
Zizhu") in organizing the forum, as the industrial brands
under the Group voiced their views in a joint action to
materialise digital joint empowerment for famous brands in
the pharmaceutical manufacturing segment.
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(5 September) The commencement ceremony for the China
Resources Health Village Welfare Project under the theme of
"Caring for Health of Grassroot and Building a Healthy China”
jointly promoted by China Women's Development Foundation
and the Group was held in in Beijing. The project was aimed
at promoting the allocation of premium healthcare resources
downwards to the primary markets and forging an exemplary
system for the development of primary medical care capacity
and services with full efforts to improve the level of primary
medical services and contribute to the building of a healthy
China.

NE+LB) AERETEREMSEEENBEERNER
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(15 September) The Group's industrial brands showcased
together in the “15th September” activity of CR Pharma
e-Store and jointly hosted the China Resources Pharmaceutical
Brands Day"” at CR Pharma e-Store, generating transaction
amounts of over RMB100 million, representing a year-on-year
growth of more than 20%.
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(30 September) The Group announced that CR
Pharmaceutical Holdings entered into relevant transaction
documents with Shenzhen Gaotejia Investment Group Co.,
Ltd. and Boya Bio-pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd (“Boya Bio-
pharmaceutical”). Upon completion of the transaction, CR
Pharmaceutical Holdings is expected to hold 30.00% shares
in Boya Bio-pharmaceutical and voting rights for 10.97% of
its shares to become its controlling shareholder. By investing
in Boya Bio-pharmaceutical, the Group would make a
breakthrough and fill up its void in the blood product sector.
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(6 November) Shenzhen China Resources Gosun
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. CRIINIZFEBHIEERFRE L
@l), a wholly-owned subsidiary of CR Sanijiu, received the
Drug Registration Certificate for Ceftobiprole Medocaril
Sodium for Injection issued by the National Medical Products
Administration (NMPA), making the product the first fifth-
generation cephalosporin approved for registration in China.

(+—B=1H) £HBEFXERAMBERRRARE
MINZRA > HESEBEHERNEHEBRNESET
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HEREHFCAR HBERESH SE - BENBER
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(30 November) CR Pharmaceutical Commercial Group entered
into an agreement with WeDoctor Group Company Limited

(2= EEAR/AT)in Hangzhou to jointly promote a
joint venture platform for pharmaceutical supply chain and
Internet medical healthcare for the digital-driven integration
of medical care, pharmaceutics and medical insurance service
and digitalised upgrade of the pharmaceutical circulation
and supply chain, in a bid to provide patients with efficient,
economic and premium pharmaceutical and healthcare
services.

AAA
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(9 December) China Pharmaceutical R&D Center Co., Ltd., a
platform for the R&D of innovative drugs under the Group,
received the notice of approval for clinical trial of drugs issued
by NMPA for NIP046, a Class | small molecule innovative
drug developed by the platform on a proprietary basis,
giving approval to the commencement of clinical trial of the
rheumatoid arthritis indication.
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(22 December) CR Double-Crane announced the acquisition
of 38.75% equity interests in Dongying Tiandong
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. ((RERXEHEFRAF).
Earlier in January 2020, China Resources Pharmaceutical
Industrial Investment Fund LLP (FEBHBHEEXKEEE
BB M¥E (BEAE)) acquired 31.25% equity interest
in Dongying Tiandong Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. by way of
capital injection. The series of acquisitions have enabled the
Group to further diversify its portfolio of cardiovascular and
cerebrovascular anticoagulant products and secure a platform
for anticoagulant technologies.
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(10 January) On 10 January 2020, the “Modernisation of
Chinese Medicine Manufacturing — Research and Application
of Key Technologies for Industrialisation of Solid Preparations”
project submitted by CR Jiangzhong Group received the
National Science and Technology Progress Award (Second
Class), underlying recognition for CR Jiangzhong's persistent
effort over the years in scientific research for innovation and
assurance of product quality, and its firm belief in “making
products with excellence”.
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(19 August) In the 2019-2020 assessment of information
disclosure by listed companies of Shanghai Stock Exchange
(SHSE) announced by SHSE, CR Double-Crane and Jiangzhong
Pharmaceutical received the honour of Grade A rating, for
their solid foundation of business results, comprehensive
information disclosure mechanism and normative corporate
operation standard. For CR Double-Crane, it was the fifth
consecutive year of receiving such rating. The honour of the
Grade A rating is testimony to the comprehensiveness of
the corporate governance compliance regime and rigor of
information disclosure, as well as the strong recognition of the
regulatory authorities for the regulated operation, information
disclosure and investors’ relations management of CR Double-
Crane and Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical.

WNBZ+RH) ZE2ZZ2HNBZ+AB  EH=8
ERRNCEEE HENATRAE - BEFNKREER
FREREENETHESRREBENFYIRE40F
FESEHIOR EH AR KA FERE SR TR
STEWAOR FH AR BR AR EH=Z N HERS
MAERAG (TEHBEM) (BT L BRGMRSE:
1109) ~EHEL—E AE(E—MEBER) FE s
I BT R T 405400 ) B IE o I T TR T BT
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(26 August) On 26 August 2020, CR Sanjiu was named
among the list of “40 Most Respected Listed Companies and
Personalities” for the 40th Anniversary of Shenzhen Special
Economic Zone sponsored by Securities Times and awarded
the honorary title of “40 Most Respected Listed Companies”
for its comprehensive strengths in stable operating results,
normative corporate governance and outstanding investors'’
relations. Meanwhile, CR Sanijiu, alongside China Resources
Land Limited (“CR Land”) (listed on the Stock Exchange, stock
code 1109) and CR Trust, was selected for the list of honour
entitled “40 Best in 40 Years of the SEZ” sponsored by China
Business News. The inclusion among “40 Most Respected
Listed Companies” and “40 Best in 40 Years of the SEZ"
has underscored market recognition for the comprehensive
strengths of CR Sanjiu.
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(28 August) On 28 August 2020, the list of the “14th League
Table of PRC Listed Companies by Value” hosted by Securities
Times under the direction of the People’s Daily Financial Media
Group was unveiled. CR Sanjiu and CR Double-Crane received
the title of “Top 100 Mainboard-listed PRC Companies by
Value” again for their stable operational development and
outstanding corporate governance standards. The list was
aimed at selecting industry leaders with a sound reputation
in the capital market, brand recognition in the consumer
market, ongoing profitability in financial performance and
regulated information disclosure, in order to form a group
of listed companies with benchmarking significance in the
capital market and promote the idea of value investment
in contribution to the healthy development of a multi-level
capital market. The re-election to the list has indicated the
capital market's recognition for the general competitive
strengths and investment value of CR Sanjiu and CR Double-
Crane.
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(31 August) CR Pharmaceutical was included in the list of
“Top 100 PRC Pharmaceutical Companies 2019" announced
by the China Pharmaceutical Industry Information Centre
under the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology
(MIIT) with a 4th ranking. CR Double-Crane ranked 15th in
the Top 100 PRC Chemical Drug Enterprises 2019, while CR
Sanjiu ranked 3rd in the Top 100 PRC TCM Enterprises 2019,
followed by Dong-E-E-Jiao and CR Jiangzhong Group which
ranked 22nd and 25th, respectively. The awards indicated
approval for CR Pharmaceutical’s general strengths as well
as recognition for the various enterprise’s persistent effort in
quality assurance, innovation and transformation over the
decades.
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(13 October) At the 2020 Annual Summit of the PRC
Chemical Drug Manufacturing Industry, CR Pharmaceutical
ranked 3 among “PRC Pharmaceutical Business Groups
2020". The summit also announced the list of “Outstanding
Enterprises and Outstanding Brands in the PRC Chemical
Drug Manufacturing Industry 2020”. CR Double-Crane,
China Resources Saike Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd and CR Zizhu
ranked 13th, 57th and 79th, respectively, among the “Top
100 PRC Chemical Drug Manufacturing Industrial Enterprises
by Comprehensive Strengths 2020”.
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(21 October) CR Sanjiu was included again among the “Top
100 Most Valuable PRC Brand” named by BrandZ2020,
with a 13% improvement in brand value over last year. The
list is currently the most authoritative and comprehensive
league table of PRC brands in the industry. The inclusion in
this authoritative league table of brands signified the strong
approval and recognition of the public and the consumers for
the brand value of CR Sanjiu and its product quality.
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(29 October) On 29 October 2020, MIIT issued the Notice
on the Announcement of the List of the Fifth Batch of Green
Manufacturers, in which CR Double-Crane and CR Sanjiu
were included.
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(6 November) The “Research and Application of Key
Technology for Improving Energy Management Quality in
Chinese Medicine Manufacturing” project submitted by
CR Jiangzhong Group received a second-class award of
the Technology for Quality Award announced by China
Association for Quality, being the highest honour received by
projects submitted by pharmaceutical enterprises during the
year. The “Research and Application of Total Quality Control
for Gelatin-based Chinese Medicine Based on Key Special
Peptide Testing Technology” project submitted by Dong-E-E-
Jiao and the “Methodology and Application for End-to-end
Quiality Control in Chinese Medicine Manufacturing Based on
the Integration of Advanced Manufacturing and Information
Technologies” project submitted by Liaoning China Resources
Benxi Sanyao Co., Ltd. received outstanding awards.
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(13 November) CR Pharmaceutical received the title of “2020
PRC Corporate Social Responsibility Index —=Top 3 among
the Pharmaceutical and Biological Manufacturing Sector”
awarded by the Subject Team of the “Blue Book of Corporate
Social Responsibility 2020” published by Chinese Academy
of Social Sciences. The index report is currently the most
authoritative and influential research report on corporate
social responsibility in China, and the award indicated public
approval for CR Pharmaceutical’s current status of social
responsibility management and standard of responsible
information disclosure. In 2020, the social responsibility report
of CR Pharmaceutical received a five-star rating.
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(17 November) CR Pharmaceutical

won the “Listed Enterprise of the Year Award” for the third
consecutive year at the fifth “Listed Enterprises of the Year
2020" hosted by Bloomberg Businessweek (Chinese Version).
This award highlighted capital market’s recognition for CR
Pharmaceutical’s outstanding performance and potential for
future development.
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(26 November) The 2020 Intelligent Manufacturing
Conference released the list of benchmark enterprises in
intelligent manufacturing, and CR Sanjiu was selected as the
only pharmaceutical company.
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(30 November) CR Pharmaceutical received the “Top 100
PRC Enterprises 2020 Award” at the 20th Summit Forum of
Top 100 PRC Listed Companies and 20th Anniversary Prize-
awarding Ceremony for Top 100 PRC Companies 2020.
The “Top 100 PRC Enterprises 2020 Award” was awarded
to companies listed on the Top 100 PRC Listed Companies
League Table 2020 (including sub-tables). The award of this
honour to CR Pharmaceutical was solid testimony to market’s
approval and recognition for the Group’s outstanding
performance.
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(4 December) CR Sanjiu participated in the “Construction
and Application of Chinese Nucleic Acid Testing Technology
Regime” project and won the first-class prize of the Chinese
Association of Integrative Medicine Science and Technology
Award.
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(14 December) At the Prize-awarding Ceremony for Best
Employers in China 2020 and International HR Management
Forum of China, CR Sanjiu was named among the “Top
100 Best Employers in China 2020” out of 58,658 global
enterprises registered.
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(31 December) CR Pharmaceutical was awarded “Award of
Excellence for the Pharmaceutical Industry” in the “Top 100
Hong Kong Stocks”, an activity aimed at commending listed
enterprises with sound development and investment value
among companies listed on the Main Board of Hong Kong.



MEHE

Financial Highlights

FEBNBERLEMBRFEZEBFAEE
BESBUARTIEUBLEIBERIITNMT !

A summary of the Group's audited results, assets and liabilities and the key
financial ratios for the last five financial years is set out as follows:

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
&5
(restated)
FE (HHHT) For the year (in HKS million)
it Revenue
T# Manufacturing 29,290 30,693 31,940 26,362 22,375
Dariz] Distribution 164,441 167,094 152,151 141,826 130,313
TE Retail 6,467 6,463 5,455 4,244 3914
Hth Others 225 204 143 100 103
ne Total 200,423 204,454 189,689 172,532 156,705
el Gross profit 32,294 34,018 34,930 28,276 24,109
DEREE Segment earnings
I Manufacturing 8,104 6,765 8,690 7,666 7,446
axi:] Distribution 7,931 7736 7,715 6,564 5,529
TE Retail (14) 73 106 116 118
Hth Others 149 143 78 60 68
ne Total 16,170 14,717 16,589 14,407 13,161
ERFE Profit for the year 5,324 5,098 7,572 6,367 5,968
NEEB NEWERE  Profit attributable to owners of the Company 3,297 3,286 3,978 3,483 2,821
128318 (BE#7T) As at 31 December (in HK$ million)
ERBEE Non-current assets 62,263 57,082 48,918 47,556 40,183
TEEE Current assets 147,109 132,943 127,266 113,199 93,802
BEE Total assets 209,372 190,025 176,184 160,755 133,985
ErEas Non-current liabilities 6,723 13,772 12,357 5,833 8,699
nHaE Current liabilities 122,620 106,672 103,358 91,734 70,985
BEHy Total debt 53,332 52,134 53,951 36,875 25,711
=L Total liabilities 129,343 120,444 115,715 97,617 79,684
B Total equity 80,029 69,582 60,469 63,137 54,301
nES Ratios
BT RS Gross margin 16.1% 16.6% 18.4% 16.4% 15.4%
R bEES Net profit margin 1.6% 1.6% 2.1% 2.0% 1.8%
FEE /R Net debt to total equity @ 52.6% 56.9% 61.7% 36.0% 21.6%
MENLLE Current ratio 12 12 12 12 13
HfaE Notes:
(1) AREFEBISIRITIE  F B & 25  JE(T 1B 55 (1) Total debt refers to the sum of bank borrowings, short-term debentures, bonds
518 BT B i 7 BB M fE 1T A TBHIAR A o payable, and other payables bearing interests due to related parties.
2) SREEZ A ER R I B 2) Net debt equals to total debt less cash and cash equivalents.
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INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

In 2020, despite the austere and challenging situations at home and abroad
coupled with the severe impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, China became the
only major economy in the world that reported positive economic growth with
a 2.3% year-on-year increase in annual gross domestic product (GDP), as its
economy showed signs of recouping growth and stable recovery in a further
manifestation of the nation’s resilience and vigour in development.

According to data released by the National Bureau of Statistics, the revenue
of the pharmaceutical manufacturing industry grew by 4.5% on an annual
basis in 2020. Such positive growth was driven primarily by the sub-sectors of
biopharmaceutical drugs, active pharmaceutical ingredients (APIs) and medical
device.

Since the establishment of National Healthcare Security Administration in
2018, the payers have gradually become the most crucial policymaker in
respect of the medical market in China, and China’s medical system reforms
have been brought forward to an advanced stage. Centralised procurement of
pharmaceuticals has become an increasingly normalised practice conducted in
a larger scale than before, as the State organised three batches of centralised
procurements from 2018 to 2020 covering 112 pharmaceuticals with prices
being reduced by an average of 54%. In addition, the market was concerned
with the substantial decline in the centralised procurement prices for high-
value consumables, the rapid progress of the pilot reform for medical insurance
payment methods and the national pharmaceutical negotiations, which
presented challenges to the growth rate of medical industry chain and the
profitability of pharmaceutical industry as a whole, while compelling enterprises
to adopt proactive adjustments to their business strategies to step up with
innovation and transformation.

In terms of the development trend of the industry, enterprises were strategically
focused on enhancing their competitiveness in generic drug market and
expediting the research and development (R&D) of innovative drugs. The
rapid development of biotechnology was driving the capacity expansion of
the biopharmaceutical drugs sector, while the medical device sector grew at
a compound rate of over 20% for the past five years, as these two sectors
became the golden racetracks where leading enterprises sought to layout.
The publication of the “Opinions of the CPC Central Committee and State
Council on Promoting the Inheritance, Innovation, and Development of
Traditional Chinese Medicine” provided a turning point for the development
of traditional Chinese medicines, while healthcare consumer goods, including
over-the-counter (OTC) drugs, were holding out broad prospects in the
wake of upgraded retail consumption. Moreover, the online development
of the "medical + drug + insurance” chain provided consumers with further
diversified choices in medical treatment, drug purchase, and payment
scenarios, while setting out new requirements for enterprises’ capabilities in
digital operation and business model innovation.
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China’s ultra-large market affords a distinctive advantage. The pharmaceutical
market enjoys a strong endogenous driving force, and the weak cycle
characteristic of pharmaceutical industry and status as a sunrise industry has
been further ascertained. Driven by demand, policy, technology, capital, and
other factors, the pharmaceutical and health industry will embrace broad
prospects for development in the post-pandemic era with a significantly
stronger appeal. The reshaping of the industry chain and market landscape
will occur at an accelerated pace, while enterprises will experience a rapid
evolution in business model. Meanwhile, a clearer trend of industry division will
emerge: the exit of small and medium pharmaceutical enterprises lacking core
competitiveness will happen at a faster pace, resulting in increasing industry
concentration. On the other hand, the competitive advantage of premium large
enterprises with capabilities in business integration and innovation will become
more prominent.

GROUP RESULTS

In 2020, the Group made vigorous efforts to promote innovation in R&D,
expedite development in emerging new sectors, advance external acquisition
and third-party cooperation in a steady manner, continuously optimise
business and product mixes, enhance coordination, integration and synergy
of resources and improve operational quality and efficiency, in proactive
response to policy changes and market challenges. During the Reporting
Period, the Group's total revenue was HK$200,423.0 million, representing a
2.0% decrease from HK$204,453.9 million recorded for 2019 (representing
a year-on-year decrease of 1.2% in terms of RMB), reflecting primarily the
impact of the pandemic. In 2020, the revenue of the three major business
segments, namely pharmaceutical manufacturing, pharmaceutical distribution
and pharmaceutical retail businesses, accounted for 14.6%, 82.0% and 3.2%
of the total revenue, respectively, as compared to 15.0%, 81.7% and 3.2%,
respectively, for 2019.

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded a gross profit of HK$32,293.9
million, representing a 5.1% decrease from the HK$34,017.7 million in 2019
(representing a year-on-year decrease of 4.2% in terms of RMB). The overall
gross profit margin was 16.1%, representing a decrease of 0.5 percentage
points over 16.6% in 2019. This reflected mainly the decline in the average
gross profit margin for the pharmaceutical manufacturing business coupled
with the decrease, as a percentage of overall revenue, in revenue from the
pharmaceutical manufacturing business with higher margin.

For 2020, the Group recorded profit attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$3,297.1 million, representing a 0.3% increase compared to HK$3,286.4
million in 2019 (representing a year-on-year increase of 3.8% in terms of
RMB). Excluding the effect of one-off items including gains from the disposal
of subsidiaries and goodwill impairment, profit attributable to owners of the
Group would have increased by 16.0% (representing a year-on-year increase
of 18.9% in terms of RMB). Basic earnings per share was HK$0.52 for 2020
(HK$0.52 for 2019). The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK$0.12 per share for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Business

The Group's pharmaceutical manufacturing business continued to
advance the development of biopharmaceutical drugs and filled
up voids, while accelerating the introduction and launch of new
products. Ongoing efforts were made to optimise product mix and
quality, advance industrial transformation and upgrade, foster cost
advantages and actively engage in international cooperation. In the
meantime, we promoted our transformation towards digital marketing,
strengthened our ability of promoting our products in the professional
and academic sectors. Through the integration of resources, co-branding
empowerment was achieved in a bid to consolidate and increase its
market share on a continuous basis.

For the Reporting Period, the Group’s pharmaceutical manufacturing
business generated segment revenue of HK$32,206.8 million,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 4.7% compared with 2019
and a decrease of 3.5% on a year-on-year basis in terms of RMB. This
reflected mainly the decline in revenue from the Group's prescription
drug business as a result of the combined effect of the pandemic and
centralised procurement.
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The Group owns the most comprehensive portfolio of pharmaceutical
products with the widest coverage of therapeutic areas, including
chemical drugs (prescription and OTC drugs), biopharmaceutical
drugs, Traditional Chinese Medicines (TCM) (prescription and OTC
drugs) and nutritional and healthcare products. These fully cover all
major therapeutic and disease areas that hold out sound potential for
business growth, such as cardiovascular and cerebrovascular diseases,
alimentary tract, metabolism and endocrine diseases, respiratory
diseases, orthopedics, hematology, oncology, medical nutrition,
gastroenterology, pediatrics, genitourinary system, cough and cold, anti-
infection, dermatology, and therapeutic infusion solutions, etc. In 2020,
the Group manufactured over 560 products, of which approximately
300 were included the National Reimbursement Drug List and 131
were included in the National Essential Drug List. All of the Group’s
pharmaceutical manufacturing subsidiaries have formed professional
sales and marketing teams, which have established close and long-term
business partnership with more than 100,000 medical institutions.

During the Reporting Period, the gross profit margin of the Group's
pharmaceutical manufacturing business was 60.5%, representing a year-
on-year decrease of 2.7 percentage points as compared to the same
period last year, mainly due to the reduced share of the revenue from
prescription drug products which have higher gross profit margin.
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In terms of product categories, the revenue from sales of prescription
drugs was HK$15,709.9 million during the Reporting Period,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 13.8% as compared to the
same period last year (year-on-year decrease of 12.9% in terms of
RMB), mainly due to the decline in revenue from medical end-sales as
a result of the pandemic, including notable decline in revenue from
the anti-infective, infusion and cardiovascular businesses. The Group's
consumer healthcare (CHC) business (mainly comprising OTC medicines
and healthcare products) recorded revenue of HK$14,646.3 million,
an increase of 10.6% compared to the same period last year (year-on-
year increase of 11.7% in terms of RMB), mainly due to the significant
year-on-year increase in revenue from the Dong-E-E-Jiao product line;
the biopharmaceutical business reported revenue of HK$158.5 million.
During the Reporting Period, the Group reported year-on-year growth
in varying degrees in revenue from the Group's prescription drugs for
psychiatric/neurological disorders, renal diseases, glucose reduction and
TCM formula granules, as well as OTC products for such as pediatric,
gastrointestinal, cardiovascular and dermatology. For 2020, the
percentage of pharmaceutical sales revenue contributed by chemical
drugs, TCM, biopharmaceutical drugs, and other products were 45.9%,
45.0%, 0.5%, and 8.6%, respectively.

The Group has rich experience in its mergers and acquisitions and strong
integration capabilities with a good track record. During the Reporting
Period, the Group actively advanced the implementation of high-quality
mergers and acquisitions in flexible ways, including vigorous drive of
investments in and acquisitions of innovative businesses, expanded
its business footprint and enriched product portfolio, while applying
advanced management concepts and business models to facilitate the
integration of resources in respect of acquired companies.
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In September 2020, CR Pharmaceutical Holdings entered into the
transaction documents with Shenzhen Gaotejia Investment Group Co.,
Lid. CRUIT R EREERARRAE) ("Gaotejia”) and Boya Bio-
pharmaceutical, pursuant to which Gaotejia shall transfer its partial stake
in Boya Bio-pharmaceutical to CR Pharmaceutical Holdings and entrust
the voting rights attached to its remaining shares to CR Pharmaceutical
Holdings. In addition, CR Pharmaceutical Holdings proposed to
subscribe for 20% equity interests in the total share capital of Boya Bio-
pharmaceutical prior to the issuance. Following the completion of the
transaction, CR Pharmaceutical Holdings is expected to hold 30.00% of
equity shares in Boya Bio-pharmaceutical and voting rights corresponding
to 10.97% of its shares, thereby becoming the controlling shareholder
of Boya Bio-pharmaceutical. The Group places a strong emphasis on
the development of the biopharmaceutical drug business and seeks to
expand its presence in the innovative biopharmaceutical drug sector.
In recent years, we have been stepping up with our investment and
extensive deployment in original biologics, improved innovative drug
and biosimilars. With sound growth potential and profitability and broad
prospects for development, the blood product industry represents one
of the Group's key focuses on business development in recent years.
By investing in Boya Bio-pharmaceutical, the Group would make a
breakthrough and fill up its void in the blood product sector, thereby
further accelerating its development in the pharmaceutical drug
segment. As at the date of this annual report, the closing of the aforesaid
proposed transaction has not yet completed.

In January 2020, CR Sanjiu completed the acquisition of the 100%
equity interest in Aonuo (China) Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (B& ()
Rz E [R/AF) (the “Aonuo Pharmaceutical’) at a consideration of
RMB1.42 billion. The core products of Aonuo Pharmaceutical are calcium
and zinc gluconates oral solution, vitamin C chewable tablets, and
ginseng granules. The calcium and zinc gluconates oral solution under
the brands Aonuo and Jinxinjingaite is a major calcium supplement for
children in China with a sizeable market and sound growth potential.
The acquisition facilitated organic combination with the advantages of
CR Sanjiu in consumer insights, brand operation, and end-sales coverage
and could give rise to sound synergy. It would also facilitate the rapid
building of a leading brand and major product lines for child health,
thereby contributing to further improvements in the Group's deployment
in the CHC category.
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In January 2020, China Resources Pharmaceutical Industrial Investment
Fund LLP CEHBZEXKREEST OB X (BIREGR)) (the "CR
Pharmaceutical Industrial Investment Fund”) made a capital
injection of RMB250 million to Dongying Tiandong Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd. GREREBREEAFR/AF) for the acquisition of 31.25% equity
interests. Products of Dongying Tiandong Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
include heparin sodium, Enoch heparin sodium, natch heparin sodium,
and other APIs and Enoch heparin sodium injection in the cardiovascular
and cerebrovascular anticoagulant category. In December 2020, CR
Double-Crane announced the acquisition of 38.75% equity interests
in Dongying Tiandong Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. for an acquisition
consideration of RMB341 million. The series of acquisitions have
enabled the Group to further diversify its portfolio of cardiovascular
and cerebrovascular anticoagulant products and secure a platform
for anticoagulant technologies to facilitate business expansion into
premium, high-end generic drugs such as biochemical pharmaceuticals.

In February 2021, CR Double-Crane announced the acquisition of
33.33% equity interests in Zhejiang Peptites Biotech Co., Ltd. GIT7 L
BKEMEBRAE) (“Zhejiang Peptites”) by way of capital injection
with a capital contribution of approximately RMB260 million funded by
internal resources. Peptide, the principal product of Zhejiang Peptites, is
known for its high bioactivity, good therapeutic effect and low toxicity.
The acquisition is conducive to CR Double-Crane establishing its presence
in the biopharmaceutical sector to accelerate its transformation and
upgrade.

Furthermore, during the Reporting Period, CR Sanjiu, CR Pharmaceutical
Industrial Investment Fund and China Resources Innovation Fund
jointly made a capital injection to a respiratory medicine R&D and
manufacturing company, Runsheng Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., (B4
EEEBR/AF) to obtain the exclusive rights to market its asthma
medicine in China after its launch. Following the capital increase, the
parties held 18.09% equity interests in the company. Through the
investment, CR Sanjiu obtained the sales rights in China for Runsheng’s
product salmeterol fluticasone inhalation powder inhaler, effectively
filling the void of CR Sanjiu in inhalation dosage products.

During the Reporting Period, the Group launched a number of new
products by actively mobilising the resources afforded by its range of
famous brands, in a bid to drive long-term sustainable growth of the
manufacturing segment.
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China Resources Double-Crane Liming Pharmaceutical (Jinan) Co., Ltd.

(FEHEBETREZE (K BRAHR), a subsidiary of CR Double-
Crane, launched a new product in the field of pediatrics — “Fetoca®” in
April 2020, which is currently the only domestic product that has passed
the drug consistency evaluation of caffeine citrate injection, and is used
for the treatment of premature newborn primary apnea. The launch of
this drug will provide more options for clinical applications for the benefit
of a broader population of child patients, and it is set to play a positive
role in driving the vibrant development of neonatal medical care business
in China.

In the field of daily gastrointestinal medication, CR Jiangzhong Group
launched a new product “Jiangzhong Lihuo Probiotics” in May 2020.
This product has the effects of improving the stability of intestinal
flora, preventing and treating constipation and diarrhea, regulating
the balance of intestinal flora and stabilising the intestinal tract, and
is effective for procuring intestinal health. The launch of the product
will enable the Group to further strengthen the development of multi-
category products in the field of daily gastrointestinal medication.

Dong-E-E-Jiao is committed to enhancing its R&D and innovation with
stronger efforts in the commercialisation of technological achievements,
clinical research of products, modernisation of dosage forms and
innovation of product techniques, in a bid to optimise and diversify its
product regime. In April 2020, E-Jiao launched a new technology product
“Little Gold Bar E-Jiao Powder” manufactured with its proprietary
innovative technology, which turned raw material into E-Jiao liquid and
then “into powder in one step”. The product offers superior water
solubility which makes it easier for absorption. On top of its distinctive
healthcare function of boosting immunity, it also ushers in a new era
for the consumption of traditional E-Jiao as a convenient, fashionable,
ready-to-drink and instant nourishment. During the Reporting Period,
Dong-E-E Jiao launched bird’s nest products. Apart from new product
development, Dong-E-E-Jiao was engaged in rapid transition to
digital marketing on the back of its advantageous offline resources in
vigorous implementation of strategic transformation, seeking mutual
empowerment between online and offline operations to materialise
Internet-based operation of the business on the marketing front.

In August 2020, Dong-E-E-Jiao joined forces with CR Sanjiu to launch the
dual-branded “E-Jiao Zhu" decoction pieces. Dong-E-E-Jiao, a veteran
name and leader in the E-Jiao business, and CR Sanjiu, a company
focused on TCM prescriptions as one of its core businesses, were able
to identify a point of convergence in TCM decoction pieces. Sales of
the new product has benefited from the aggregation of production
resources, marketing capability and brand advantage offered by the two
companies.
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In November 2020, developed by Shenzhen China Resources Gosun
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. CRIIZEB A EZEBRAE) ("CR
Gosun”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of CR Sanjiu, received the Drug
Registration Certificate for Ceftobiprole Medocaril Sodium for Injection
issued by the National Medical Products Administration (NMPA), making
the product the first fifth-generation cephalosporin approved for
registration in China. The product is used for the treatment of hospital-
acquired pneumonia (HAP) and community-acquired pneumonia
(CAP). The approval for production has enabled the Group to further
improve its product mix in the anti-infection category and enhanced its
competitiveness in the market of products for anti-infection therapy.
Earlier in September 2017, CR Gosun entered into an exclusive
technology licensing cooperation agreement in relation to ceftobiprole
for injection with Swiss listed company Basilea Pharmaceutica
International, pursuant to which CR Gosun was granted the exclusive
right to develop, manufacture and commercialise ceftobiprole in
Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau.

In November 2020, CR Double-Crane received the Drug Registration
Certificate for its Pregabalin Capsule issued by NMPA, granting approval
for the production of the said drug, which is mainly used in the treatment
of post-herpetic neuralgia. In accordance with pertinent national policies
and regulations, receiving such approval is deemed as the fulfiiment of
consistency evaluation, and CR Double-Crane was the second company
to achieve deemed fulfilment of this drug consistency evaluation. The
approval for production will further diversify the product lines of CR
Double-Crane and enhance its market competitiveness in the future.

The Group consistently seeks international opportunities for strategic
partnership, product import and joint venture, with a view to diversifying
and optimising its product portfolio in a speedy manner. During the
Reporting Period, the Group has signed 35 international cooperation
projects in 13 countries covering cooperation in areas such as chemical
drugs, biopharmaceuticals, TCM/Chinese prescription products, OTC
and Big Health by way of product in-licensing, equity or cooperative joint
venture, and collaboration in technical research.
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Since August 2020, CR Sanjiu and NOVO Nordisk (China)
Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (572 () HEHEAE) ("NOVO
Nordisk”) have started to co-promote the Recombinant Human
Somatropin Injection (RHSI), Norditropin® (5872®), by way of contract
sales in Mainland China. In this cooperation, CR Sanjiu has been
responsible for promotion among academic institutions in China
whereas NOVO Nordisk has been responsible for manufacturing, medical
strategies and interaction with the medical community, as well as
providing full support to patients via the patients” hotline. Given NOVO
Nordisk’s decades of innovative ability and experience in the RHSI field
and CR Sanijiu’s strong ability to promote products in the academic sector
and extensive business network, the two parties would consolidate
their quality resources to strengthen and develop the sales network of
Norditropin® through joint efforts and further increase the availability
of the product to provide premium treatment solutions to medical
professionals.

In December 2020, CR Sanjiu and Oncoceutics, Inc. (the “Oncoceutics”)
entered into a licensing cooperation, pursuant to which CR Sanjiu
obtained the exclusive rights for the development, production and
commercialisation of ONC201, an innovative pharmaceutical product
for glioma treatment, in the Greater China region (Mainland China,
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan). ONC201 is a novel small molecule
with a unique mechanism of action. As the core product developed by
Oncoceutics and currently undergoing the crucial clinical stage, its anti-
cancer activity and safety has been proven in a number of clinical trials,
including clinical trials on adult and child patients suffering from high-
grade gliomas. The introduction of ONC201 will hopefully facilitate a
breakthrough in the therapy of pediatric and adult gliomas. At the same
time, it will also enable CR Sanjiu to expand its product layout and bolster
its development in innovation and transformation.

During the Reporting Period, the Group actively advanced the
consolidation of its internal resources and facilitated OTC co-branding
empowerment in the pharmaceutical manufacturing segment in terms
of product development and marketing, while generating synergy
in business deployment with the aid of CR Pharmaceutical Industrial
Investment Fund.
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In September 2020, China Resources Biopharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (&
SR EFR/AT) (the “CR Biopharm”) increased its shareholding
in China Resources Angde Biotech Pharma Co., Ltd. (ZEB S8 4EY) L%
¥ AR/AE) (the “CR Angde Biotech Pharma”) from 51% to 80%
by way of equity acquisition and capital injection. Through the increase,
the two companies will generate synergies in capital, human resources,
R&D and other aspects, while the Group will further enhance its R&D
capability in the biopharmaceutical segment. In December 2020, CR
Sanjiu announced its acquisition of 100% shares in CR Care (Shenzhen)
Pharmaceutical Chain Company Limited (FEB=E (FRi) BEsEHAa
FR/A 7)) (the “CR Care Shenzhen”) held by CR Care Company Limited
(the “CR Care") at a consideration of RMB190 million. CR Sanjiu will
seek to combine CR Care Shenzhen’s groundwork in TCM nutrition
and healthcare products, credentials in online and offline operations
and experience in retail operations with its own TCM business resources
and brand building ability to generate synergy in active transformation
and development of CR Care Shenzhen'’s online TCM nutrition brand
business. At the same time, through gradual integration with CR Sanjiu’s
TCM formula granules business and exploration of TCM services with the
benefit of CR Care Shenzhen'’s relevant credentials, CR Care Shenzhen
will be built into a platform for the development of TCM formula
granules business.

Leveraging the value of the synergy committee, the Group advanced
the implementation of projects such as industrial OTC co-branding
empowerment and CR Pharma e-Store. In connection with the launch
of the dual-branded E-Jiao Zhu TCM decoction pieces of CR Sanjiu and
Dong-E-E-Jiao, the advanced production resources of Dong-E-E-Jiao
and the formidable sales network of CR Sanjiu have generated a brand
combination effect and driven sales of the product. CR Sanijiu also joined
Jiangzhong Group, Dong-E-E-Jiao and CR Zizhu in organising a forum
on new retail trends, as the industrial brands under the Group voiced
their views in a joint action to materialise digital joint empowerment
for famous brands in the pharmaceutical manufacturing segment.
Moreover, the Group's industrial brands jointly hosted the “China
Resources Pharmaceutical Brands Day” at CR Pharma e-Store and
showcased together in the " 15" September” activity of CR Pharma
e-Store, generating transaction amounts of over RMB100 million,
representing a year-on-year growth of more than 20%, while the
number of online customers grew by more than 30%.
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As one of the Group's diverse channels of investment, CR Pharmaceutical
Industrial Investment Fund develops, on an ongoing basis, investment
portfolios aimed at biopharmaceuticals, innovative drugs and TCM
at various stages and pharmaceutical distribution in tandem with
the direction of the Group's strategic development. Currently, it has
established presence in a number of areas, such as in vitro diagnosis and
oncology drugs, and has generated business synergy with the Group
in terms of R&D, pharmaceutical manufacturing and distribution. The
Group pursued new business incubation through CR Pharmaceutical
Industrial Investment Fund to help improve its business deployment and
to cement and strengthen its leading position in the industry. In 2020,
CR Pharmaceutical Industrial Investment Fund was engaged in active
coordination with CR Sanjiu and CR Double-Crane in external expansion
and acquisition through joint investment.

Pharmaceutical Distribution Business

In the pharmaceutical distribution business, the Group actively
participated in the centralized procurement and stepped up with the
acquisition of premium product types to improve its market access ability,
while making ongoing efforts in product mix optimisation to enhance
its ability to cover the small-town and rural markets. Meanwhile, we
continued to drive the development of innovative businesses and digital
transformation, as we improved our capabilities in professional services
with the aid of Internet technologies while being engaged in vigorous
development of the e-commerce business. We also accelerated the
robust development of our medical device distribution business and
made progress in the development of international businesses.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s pharmaceutical distribution
business achieved segment revenue of HK$168,832.1 million,
representing a decrease of 1.1% compared with 2019, or a decrease
of 0.5% on a RMB basis. For 2020, the gross profit margin of the
distribution business was 7.1%, representing an increase of 0.2
percentage points as compared to the same period of last year, which
was mainly attributable to the faster growth of revenue from the high-
margin medical device business during the Reporting Period.
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During the pandemic, due to its efficient response mechanism and
professional service team, CR Pharmaceutical Commercial, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, was named among government-
designated companies for the provisioning and distribution of anti-
pandemic drugs and supplies in a number of provinces and cities,
undertaking the immensely challenging task of ensuring supply of
pharmaceutical products in fulfilment of the commitment and social
responsibility of a state-owned enterprise. It also undertook the
task of urgent procurement of supplies requested by anti-pandemic
command centres of governments at various levels in fulfilment of
the commitment and social responsibility of a state-owned enterprise.
During the Reporting Period, enterprises under the Group's industrial
and commercial segment in aggregate supplied more than RMB12
billion-worth of anti-pandemic drugs and medical devices to pandemic-
stricken areas in various provinces and cities across the nation. Following
the global outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, it became evident
that anti-pandemic supplies were in shortage of provision in some
foreign countries and regions. CR Pharmaceutical Commercial set up a
command centre for the international business for the export of anti-
pandemic supplies, expanding international business channels in an
efficient and extensive manner to facilitate the export of anti-pandemic
supplies. The Group connected with countries such as Italy, South Korea,
Belgium, Ireland and the United Kingdom, etc. and exported relevant
anti-pandemic supplies with a value of over RMB2.4 billion during the
Reporting Period.
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The Group upgraded to a platform-based development strategy as a
breakthrough of traditional models with the application of Internet
technologies, driving continuous inherent innovation of the market
service model of “Internet + medical/pharmaceutical/medical insurance”
as the “Internet hospital + prescription circulation platform” project
has been implemented in a number of provinces, while the “CR Micro
Medicine” Internet platform for specialist medical treatment has been
in service online. During the Reporting Period, CR Pharmaceutical
Commercial signed a strategic cooperation agreement with Shandong
Province Internet Medical Insurance Health Group (LLIZE & B B 4858
RAHEREEEE) in Shandong Province and WeDoctor Group Company
Limited (4285 @ %5 fR/A B)) (WeDoctor), pursuant to which the
three parties further promoted strategic cooperation in pharmaceutical
supply chain, Internet medical healthcare, pharmaceutical e-commerce
and financial operation on the basis of their existing cooperation in
the Internet pharmaceutical supply chain. We set up “Internet Medical
Pharmaceutical Joint Institute” with WeDoctor, the only Internet medical
enterprise in China supported by medical insurance payment, in a pre-
emptive move to establish its presence in the new channel, with a view
to the digital-driven integration of medical care, pharmaceutics and
medical insurance service and digitalised upgrade of the pharmaceutical
circulation and supply chain. Meanwhile, the Group actively developed
its e-commerce business, as its B2B online platform “CR Pharma e-store”
is now operating in 24 provinces, with an online transaction amount of
close to RMB25 billion for the Reporting Period, representing year-on-
year growth of 12%.

During 2020, the Group continued to enhance the introduction of
quality products, as it established a supply-chain management centre
to conduct centralised strategic procurement while undertaking more
than ten suppliers’ projects relating to strategic sub-segments, actively
participated in drug distribution under centralised procurement and
entered into cooperation with a number of pharmaceutical enterprises
whose products had passed the consistency evaluation. At the same
time, the Group actively expanded upstream resources with a strong
effort to develop new strategic cooperation businesses, continued to
expedite the introduction of high-quality oncology drugs, innovative
drugs, biopharmaceuticals and drugs for rare diseases, and obtained
the general distributorship and strategic distributorship for a range
of heavyweight products from Gilead Sciences, Roche and Hengrui
Pharmaceutical during the year, in further diversification of the product
portfolio for oncology drugs, blood and diagnostic reagents under the
Group's distribution business.
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The Group advanced the specialisation of its medical device distribution
business with vigorous efforts, as it set up the specialised medical device
headquarters and established independent medical device companies
in 16 provinces, focusing on the development of specialised product
lines and service models with a special emphasis on interventional
supplies, IVD in vitro diagnostics, orthopedics, equipment and general
supplies. During the Reporting Period, the Group’s medical device
distribution business reported sales revenue of approximately RMB20
billion, representing an increase of more than 40% as compared to
the same period of last year. The Group actively extended its medical
device business to the production side and sought cooperation with
medical device manufacturers for equity or cooperative joint ventures.
Meanwhile, the Group continued to actively develop specialised supply,
processing and distribution (SPD) services for hospital drug and medical
device supply chain management projects.

In the meantime, in response to the trend of market restructuring, the
Group's distribution business stepped up with efforts to expand medical
terminals, strengthen construction of platforms at local and municipal
levels and extend our network downwards to penetrate the small-town
and rural markets. We sought to increase our share of the end markets
by driving the development of multiple business formats in advantageous
areas, while enhancing promotion and digital marketing to explore the
primary market in depth in active response to the demand for upstream
enterprises to reach out downwards to the primary market. As at the
end of the Reporting Period, the Group's pharmaceutical distribution
network covered 28 provinces, municipalities and autonomous regions
across the country with over 110,000 clients, including 8,003 second-
and third-class hospitals and around 70,000 primary medical institutional
clients (of which approximately 22,000 clients were added during the
Reporting Period).

The Group is consistently strengthening the construction of an
integrated, specialised, large-scale and standardised modern logistics
system to foster core competitive advantages. As at the end of the
Reporting Period, the Group’s distribution business had 176 logistics
centers, with main warehouses in Beijing and Shanghai; the Guangzhou
logistics warehouse of the distribution segment is the first bonded
warehouse in Guangdong Province approved by Guangzhou Customs.
It is equipped with a best-in-class cold chain logistics management
system and owns third-party logistics qualification for pharmaceuticals
and medical devices. During the Reporting Period, CR Pharmaceutical
Commercial’s third-party logistics revenue increased by close to 40%,
year-on-year.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group was engaged in vigorous
development of the innovative import business, as it successfully
developed self-circulatory end-to-end supply chain services covering
import, storage, logistics, distribution, pharmacy management and
distribution to endpoints, while enhancing the construction of a number
of import checkpoints in Shanghai, Beijing and Jiangsu, forming a joint
operation in terms of submission for inspection, bonded areas and tender
bids. During the Reporting Period, we introduced import franchise of 14
new products and annual import business income scale surpass RMB10.0
billion. As an import platform for the Greater Bay Area under the CR
Pharmaceutical Commercial, CR Guangdong Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

(FEMEREEESR/AT) (the "CR Guangdong Pharmaceutical )
has continued to leverage its advantage as a pharmaceutical import
platform for the Great Bay Area to extend its international supply chain
services, exploring innovative supply chain service models with a host
of world-renowned pharmaceutical enterprises and medical diagnostic
device companies.

Pharmaceutical Retail Business

In the pharmaceutical retail business, the Group stepped up with the
integration of resources and enhanced the construction of an integrated
retail operation regime, while actively introducing innovative drugs and
other premium products and expediting the development of pharmacy
models, such as specialty pharmacies and community pharmacies. We
sought to foster competitive strengths in terms of standardisation,
differentiation and specialisation, while vigorously advancing the building
of regimes and business development in relation to the Group’s new
retail business.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s retail pharmaceutical business
recorded revenue of HK$6,466.9 million, representing a year-on-year
increase of 0.1% over 2019 (a year-on-year increase of 3.4% in terms of
RMB), attributable mainly to faster growth in revenue from the Group's
DTP business, which amounted to approximately RMB3.8 billion for
2020, representing year-on-year growth of approximately 9.4%. The
gross profit margin of the retail business was 10.3%, representing a
decrease of 2.2 percentage points as compared with the same period of
last year. The decrease in gross profit margin was attributable mainly to
the added share of revenue from DTP business with a lower gross profit
margin, as a percentage of overall revenue.
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Driven by policies such as “prescription outflow”, retail pharmacies were
undergoing a process towards standardisation and professionalisation,
while designated medical insurance resources were tilted towards
premium pharmacies, contributing to a further accelerated process of
concentration of the retail market. The Group continued to enhance
operational planning and standardisation management for retail
pharmacies by improving the coverage of the retail ERP system and
vigorously expanding the network of specialty pharmacies for the high-
value drug DTP business. As of 31 December 2020, the Group had a
total of 862 self-operated retail pharmacies, including 194 DTP specialty
pharmacies covering 93 cities in 21 provinces in the PRC.

During the pandemic, Internet-based medical services experienced rapid
development, while the “Internet+" development of the pharmaceutical
industry was gaining pace. The Group established a new retail division
during the Reporting Period to integrate internal resources and step
up with external cooperation for the promotion of innovative business
models. The new retail division is responsible for the planning and
implementation of B2B, B2C, 020 and other Internet-based out-of-
hospital big retail business systems. During the Reporting Period, the
transaction amount of the online C-end increased by 35 times, year-
on-year. During the Reporting Period, CR Pharmaceutical Commercial
enhanced third-party cooperation to seek complementary benefits
in capabilities and resources, as it entered into strategic cooperation
agreements with Guangdong KAD Digital Health Technology Co., Ltd.

(BEREELHMFERERINERAR) and Chengdu Quanyuantang
Pharmacy Chain Joint Stock Co., Ltd. (B&BRIRE K% =& HRH
BIRAE]), respectively, to drive the implementation of the new retail
strategy of “Internet + pharmaceuticals”, comprising businesses such as
020 operation agency services and community pharmacy supply chain
services, on the back of their respective advantages in pharmaceutical
supply chain and Internet operations.
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Product Research and Development

The Group regards R&D and product innovation as important drivers
for long-term growth and consistently increases its investment in R&D
activities. Total R&D expenditure for the Reporting Period amounted to
HK$1,497.9 million. Guided by national policies, development trends
of industry technology and market demands, the Group enhanced its
core competitiveness through a combination of generic and innovative
products with a special focus on the R&D of medicines for the
cardiovascular system, respiratory system, tumor treatment, alimentary
tract and metabolism, central nervous system, immune system, anti-
infection, hematology, and genitourinary system. As at the end of the
Reporting Period, the Group operated 3 State-certified engineering
technology research centers, 3 State-certified enterprise technology
centers and 17 research centers certified by provincial and municipal
authorities, as well as post-doctoral research workstations with a R&D
team comprising over 1,200 staff members.

As of 31 December 2020, there were 199 products in the Group's
R&D pipeline, including 68 new drugs relating mainly to oncology
and immunity, metabolism and endocrine system, respiratory system,
hematology, cardiovascular system and classical TCM prescriptions.
During the Reporting Period, the Group obtained 86 patents, filed
99 new patent applications. Applications for manufacturing and
registration for 14 products, including Linezolid tablets, Apixaban tablets
and Dienogest tablets, were filed with NMPA. In addition, production
approvals for 6 products, including Caffeine Citrate injection, Amlodipine
Besylate Tablets (2.5mg), Pregabalin capsule, Ceftobiprole Medocaril
Sodium for Injection, Vildagliptin tablets and Oral Rehydration Salt
(I, were issued by the NMPA, in a further enrichment of the product
portfolio of the Group’s pharmaceutical manufacturing business. Among
them, Ceftobiprole Medocaril Sodium for Injection was the first fifth-
generation cephalosporin approved for registration in China.

During the Reporting Period, on top of improvements to the existing R&D
technology platform, the Group constructed and completed an early-
stage R&D platform for small molecule new drugs and antibody drugs,
as well as acquired a R&D technology platform for peptide drugs and
biochemical extract drugs through equity participation. As at the end of
the Reporting Period, the R&D platform for small molecule innovative
drugs covered critical techniques of the pre-clinical and early clinical
development stages for small molecule drugs and achieved full capability
for proprietary R&D.
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The Group continued to be actively engaged in innovation through
external cooperation, as it diversified and optimised the innovation
R&D pipeline through licensing and industry — academia — research
alliances. During the Reporting Period, we obtained the exclusive rights
of development, manufacturing and commercialisation in Greater
China for ONC201, a small molecule innovative drug which had been
granted fast track approval, orphan drug status and rare pediatric disease
designation by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA). The Group
was engaged in active cooperation with the United Research Institute of
China Resources Science and Technology Research Institute — Research
Institute of Tsinghua University in Shenzhen and secured successful
project listing for a small molecule anti-tumor innovative drug at the
United Research Institute during the Reporting Period.

In February 2020, NIP292, a Class | innovative drug developed by the
Group, was granted orphan drug status for treatment of idiopathic
pulmonary fibrosis (IPF) by FDA. The Group will be entitled to various
incentives for the clinical development of drugs for rare diseases,
including tax credits for U.S. clinical trial costs, FDA fee waivers and a
seven-year period of market monopoly for the identified indications after
the launch of the drug.

In December 2020, NIP046, a Class | innovative drug developed by the
Group, received a notice of approval for clinical trial of drugs issued
by NMPA, giving approval to the commencement of clinical trial of
the rheumatoid arthritis indication. NIP046 is Class | small molecule
innovative drug developed the Group on a proprietary basis. It has a
clear mechanism of action with high selectivity, and has demonstrated
outstanding therapeutic effects and good safety levels in a number of
animal models for innate immunity diseases in pre-clinical research. Apart
from rheumatoid arthritis, NIPO46 also has therapeutic potential for other
innate immunity diseases, such as systemic lupus erythematosus, multiple
sclerosis, allergic dermatitis and pemphigus.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group accelerated the multi-point
deployment of original biologics, improved innovative drugs, and
biosimilars, in a move to provide overall balance between R&D risks
and values of projects under research. Currently, our biopharmaceutical
business has three products (Baijieyi, Ruitongli and Jialinhao) in
the market, of which Ruitongli has been included in the National
Reimbursement Drug List, and research on its new indications for
acute stroke and acute pulmonary embolism are currently in the clinical
phase Il stage. Another application submitted to the NMPA to expand
clinical research on a new indication, deep vein thrombosis, has also
been approved. As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Group had
11 biological drugs under research, of which 7 were new biological
drugs focusing on areas such as anti-tumor, immunity and endocrine
treatments.

The Group attaches great importance to and promotes the consistency
evaluation of the quality and efficacy of generic drugs through multiple
channels. By the end of the Reporting Period, 64 key projects for
consistency evaluation had been carried out, more than 20 projects
had undergone bioequivalence clinical trials and application had been
completed for Sodium Valproate tablets, Irbesartan Dispersible tablets,
Fluconazole Sodium Chloride injection, Mannitol Sodium Chloride
injection and allopurinol tablets. During the Reporting Period, seven
products, including Montmorillonite powder, Valsartan capsule,
Mifepristone tablets (200 mg), Misoprostol tablet, Pitavastatin Calcium
tablet, Montmorillonite granule and Valsartan Hydrochlorothiazide tablet
have passed the consistency evaluation.

Benefiting from the great attention for and smooth progress of
the consistency evaluation project, in the Group’s pharmaceutical
manufacturing business, three products, namely Terazosin Hydrochloride
tablets, Azithromycin tablets and chewable Magnesium-aluminum
Carbonate tablets, were included in the catalogue of the second-
batch centralised procurement, while four products, including Valsartan
capsule, Metformin HCL sustained release tablet, Finasteride tablet
and vildagliptin tablet, were included in the catalogue of the third-
batch centralised procurement. Total sales revenue of approximately
RMBO.39 billion was recorded for the Reporting Period, providing new
growth drivers to the development of the pharmaceutical manufacturing
segment.
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OUTLOOK AND FUTURE STRATEGY

Year 2021 is the commencing year of the “14th Five-Year Plan (FYP)". Pivoting
on requirements warranted by the new landscape, new starting point and
new development and taking into consideration its inherent business structure
and product characteristics, the Group will adopt “Reform, Innovation and
Qualitative Development” as its management theme and increase R&D
investments to strive for innovation and breakthrough. Efforts in external
merger and acquisition will be strengthened with a strong focus on investment
opportunities for potential businesses and innovative sectors. Emphasis will also
be placed on our internal development as we seek cost reductions, efficiency
enhancement and improvements in the quality of development. Further
progress in digitalisation and the development of intelligent features will be
made and model innovation will be encouraged to enhance management
efficiency. Counter-risk measures will be strengthened to ensure the stability of
operations. Our business portfolio will be subject to ongoing optimisation in
an active bid cover key sections in the industry chain and potential sectors. In
the meantime, we will seize strategic opportunities for regional development,
tapping the international market on the back of our domestic operations
with an eye for vertical as well as horizontal expansion, in order to lay a solid
groundwork for development during the “14th FYP" and consistently add
value and increase investment return for shareholders.

1. Toincrease effort in R&D innovation, expedite development
of key regional innovation R&D platform, enhance
capability in innovative R&D, strengthen external
cooperation, and step up with the acquisition of premium
products
The Group will seize the good opportunities presented by the national
development of pharmaceutical innovation to increase R&D investment
and innovation efforts, striving to achieve “five breakthroughs”:
investment in innovation R&D, building of platform for innovation,
incentive mechanism for innovation, application of results in projects and
progress of key projects. Key measures include the following:

o To substantially increase the Group's total R&D investment as a
proportion of revenue.
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To accelerate the construction of an innovation R&D platform
for chemical drugs and biopharmaceuticals in Guangdong —
Hong Kong — Macau and Yangtze River Delta Region, advance
the construction of a TCM innovation platform at a faster pace,
and improve capabilities in innovation R&D. To develop high-
end preparation technology, sophisticated synthetic technology
and products with special packaging, and to build a platform of
differentiated technologies for products such as oral sustained
release preparation, inhaler and emulsion injection preparation.

To focus on R&D in small molecule and biopharmaceuticals, build
a high-end technology platform and commence research on TCM
effectiveness and mechanism of action; to diversify our product
pipeline by stepping up with our developments in the anti-tumor,
immunity and cardiovascular drugs.

To adopt the model of “self-innovative research + introduction”.
We will consistently diversify our internal innovative product
pipeline as well as to enhancing external cooperation, facilitating
industry — academia — research alliances with top-notch
international as well as domestic R&D institutions, building
up long-term cooperation on all fronts with a strong focus on
technology R&D, commercialisation, resource sharing and talent
training to advance project cooperation and commercialised
application. We will also further enhance our ability in the
integration of resources for innovation.

To stimulate vigor in innovation through a range of mechanisms
relating to talent grooming, fault tolerance, investment and
incentivisation, enhance efficiency in innovation and foster a
culture of innovation.
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To enhance the quality of internal development by
consistently optimising our business structure, reinforcing
fundamental management and facilitating quality and

efficiency enhancement, with a view to sustainable healthy
development

B BHBEHTERE BREESH
REE8 FREECEDER EHHEUN
o B (BRRR) :

The Group will adapt to policy changes and structural market
adjustments by active responding to the impact of such factors as
centralised procurement and health insurance cost control, and continue
to optimise and drive the transformation and upgrading of its business

structure. Our measures will include, but not be limited to:
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Cost reduction and efficiency enhancement will be normalised:
through a range of measures such as green low-carbon recycling
development, the Group is to build an operational regime for
green production. The deployment of production capacity will
be optimised, whereby outdated capacity will be phased out
and the intelligent manufacturing will be upgraded to achieve
economies of scale. Technology innovation and process innovation
will be continuously pursued to enhance the Group's competitive
strengths. Efforts will be made to advance operational excellence
and reinforce fundamental management, especially in relation to
the control over raw material procurement, marketing expenses,
per capita output and logistical efficiency.

Ongoing product mix optimisation: to stabilise cornerstone
product pipeline, while actively developing new products
according to consumers’ requirements, to expand into new
businesses and diversify our product lines in continuous
optimisation of our business portfolio. We will improve our ability
in specialist areas and enhance our presence in high-potential
areas such as anti-tumor and psychiatric/neurological drugs. The
Group will also facilitate expansion into new businesses such as
commercial segment import/export and medical devices to foster
new business growth niches. Actives investigations will be made in
“+Internet” applications for the development of new models, with
a view to enhancing our overall supply chain servicing capability
and foster core competitive strengths.
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To expedite investment in mergers and acquisitions in order
to seize opportunities presented by deepened industry
reform and enhance our presence in innovation and high
growth areas

Mergers and acquisitions have always been one of the key engines of the
Group's rapid development. Seizing the historic opportunity presented
by the integration and concentration of the Chinese pharmaceutical
industry, the Group will accelerate its mergers and acquisitions and
continue to increase its investment in merger and acquisition in areas
such as innovative drugs, biopharmaceuticals, vaccines and medical
devices to strive for breakthrough in new frontiers. At the same time,
we will seek to establish our presence in new technologies commanding
high growth through a diversified range of investment means. By
fully exploiting the advantage of the industry fund and its function
as a pathfinder, with a special emphasis on establishing presence
in unclaimed areas with sound potential, the Group will be able to
incubate new business opportunities as well as to support and serve the
development of profit centres in investment and merger and acquisition.
In the pharmaceutical manufacturing business, the Group will aim to
consolidate premium resources in the industry with a special focus on
CHC, biopharmaceuticals and innovation drugs, as well as exclusive
product categories or competitive categories with higher technological
thresholds, such as specialty generic drugs. In the pharmaceutical
distribution and retail businesses, we will focus on medical care, medical
devices, retail and new retail businesses, with a special emphasis on
merger and acquisition and platform building in relation to leading
enterprises with a top status in the relevant sub-segments and key
product lines.

To focus on business synergies and resource integration,
optimise resource allocation and enhance operational
efficiency

CR Pharmaceutical’s ability to drive synergy will be brought into play to
develop a cross-regional, multi-dimensional and multi-model synergy
mechanism and drive the implementation of synergy projects.

o Regional synergy: to forge regional advantages through
cooperation in advantageous businesses in the context of the
Company'’s overall regional strategic planning.

o Leveraging the Group’s overall strengths: to bring together
the advantages in regional resources of CR Group, CR
Pharmaceutical and the profit centres, forming a regional
business profile underpinned by top-to-bottom joint actions and
complementary advantages, and to build a synergetic platform
for the pharmaceutical segment to develop in-depth synergies in
government affairs, market channels and customer resources.
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o Multi-model development: To select optimal models based on
two major criteria, the market-oriented principle and innovation,
including joint negotiations, joint equity investment, uniform
media communication, shared logistics and the building of
technology platforms.

o To deepen synergy between the pharmaceutical business and
financing with ongoing exploration of opportunities to develop
synergies with CR Group's internal financing and energy segments
to form joint market force.

o To support business development in the Greater Bay Area,
leveraging the link between funding and capital to drive
collaborative development of the Group’s different business
segments in the Greater Bay Area.

o To build a specialised platform featuring characteristics of the
pharmaceutical and health industry in accordance with the trend
of digitalisation and intelligentisation on the back of coordinated
efforts from the Group headquarters, profit centres and partners,
in order to forge core competitive strengths.

To focus on the global acquisition of product/technology
resources and supplier resources in a bid to expand and
diversify international cooperation and enhance our
general competitiveness

The Group will continue to improve the expansion and development
of platforms for international cooperation and further diversify its
channels for international cooperation. Leveraging its existing business
and competitive advantages, the Group will seek further optimisation
and upgrade of product portfolio and business models through a variety
of means, such as product import, distribution agency, commissioned
production, joint ventures and cooperative development. By globally
identifying launched or unlaunched product resources and introducing
products with higher clinical value and market value, the Group will
consistently diversify our product portfolio and R&D pipeline to drive
upgrades in product categories for the industry, production capacity and
R&D capability. Cooperation with distinguished foreign R&D institutions
will be enhanced to step up with build-up of technological strength.
Cooperation with world-leading pharmaceutical enterprises will also be
strengthened to increase agencies or the localisation of import products
with a view to product mix optimisation. The development of overseas
business at an appropriate timing is also under consideration, with the
aim of enhancing our competitiveness in commercial circulation.
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To deepen the implementation of state-owned enterprise
(SOE) reform plans, drive system mechanisms innovation;
targeting the world - class enterprises to seek management
leap

To deepen the implementation of SOE reform, to deepen
mixed ownership reform in an active and cautious manner
pivoting on conversion of the corporate operation mechanism,
improvement of the corporate governance structure and building
of a modernised corporate system, while continuing to increase
investment in innovation R&D, optimise business deployment
and product mix, optimise management control hierarchy,
increase efficiency in capital allocation and operation, enhance
organisational vigor, deepen reform and innovation and advance
qualitative development.

To conduct comprehensive analysis on the best practices of first-
rate international enterprises, identify weaknesses in corporate
management in a probing manner, and enhance development
of the system regime, organisational regime, accountability
regime, execution regime and assessment regime for corporate
management. To achieve a comprehensive enhancement of our
management competence and business standard, specifically
in eight areas, including strategic management, organisational
management, operational management, financial management,
technology management, risk management, human resources
management and informatisation management. The corporate
management regime will be optimised to enhance management
competence, reinforce management foundation and strengthen
management innovation, with a view to achieving notable
improvements in overall management competence.

Liquidity and Financial Resources
The Group adopts a prudent treasury management policy to maintain a solid
and healthy financial position.

The Group funds its operations principally from cash generated from its
operations, bank loans and other debt instruments and equity financing from
investors. Its cash requirements relate primarily to production and operating
activities, business expansion, repayment of liabilities as they become due,
capital expenditures, interest and dividend payments.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had bank balances and cash of
HK$11,231.5 million (2019: HK$12,524.0 million), which were primarily in
RMB and HKD.
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As at 31 December 2020, the RMB-denominated, and HKD-denominated
bank borrowings accounted for approximately 87.5% (2019: 95.8%) and
12.5% (2019: 4.2%), respectively, of the Group's total bank borrowings.
Among the Group's total bank borrowings as at 31 December 2020, a
substantial portion of approximately 97.8% (2019: 88.5%) would be due
within one year.

The Group's current ratio (being the ratio of total current assets to total current
liabilities) was 1.2:1 as at 31 December 2020 (2019: 1.2:1).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's gearing ratio (being the ratio of net debt
divided by total equity) was 52.6% (2019: 56.9%).

In 2020, the Group's net cash from operating activities remained solid at
HK$8,206.3 million (2019: HK$8,140.9 million). The Group's net cash used
in investing activities in 2020 and net cash from investing activities in 2019
amounted to HK$2,254.6 million and HK$1,008.8 million, respectively.
In 2020, the Group's net cash used in financing activities amounted to
HK$6,414.5 million (2019: HK$13,009.9 million)

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's total bank borrowings amounted to
HK$36,249.3 million (31 December 2019: HK$31,065.7 million), of which
HK$101.1 million (31 December 2019: HK$161.1 million) were secured and
accounted for 0.3% (31 December 2019: 0.5%) of the total borrowings.

Certain of the Group’s trade and bills receivables with an aggregate net book
value of HK$112.5 million (31 December 2019: HK$94.0 million) have been
pledged as security.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no material contingent liabilities (31
December 2019: nil).

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The Group's operations are located in the PRC and most of its transactions are
denominated and settled in RMB. The Group is exposed to foreign exchange
risks on certain cash and cash equivalents, borrowings from banks and
trade payables denominated in foreign currencies, the majority of which are
denominated in USD. During the Reporting Period, the Group did not enter into
any derivatives contracts to hedge the foreign exchange exposure.
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Capital Expenditure

The Group's capital expenditure comprised mainly additions to property,
plant and equipment, intangible assets, investment properties and right-
of-use assets, but excluding additions resulting from acquisitions through
business combination. The Group’s capital expenditure in 2020 amounted to
HK$2,758.9 million (2019: HK$3,402.0 million), which was primarily utilized for
expansion and upgrade of manufacturing facilities, development of distribution
networks, and upgrading of logistic systems. Such capital expenditure was
funded primarily by using cash generated from the Group's operating activities,
bank borrowings and proceeds from the Company's initial public offering.

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed around 64,000 staff (31
December 2019: 67,000 staff) in the PRC and Hong Kong. The Group
remunerates its employees based on their performance, experience and
prevailing market rate while performance bonuses are granted on a
discretionary basis. Other employee benefits include, for example, medical
insurance and training.

Significant Investments Held, Material Acquisitions and Disposals
of Subsidiaries, and Future Plans for Material Investments or
Capital Assets

As disclosed in the announcement and shareholders’ circular (the “Circular”)
published by the Company on 30 September 2020 and 23 December
2020, respectively, CR Pharmaceutical Holdings entered into relevant
transaction documents with Shenzhen Gaotejia Investment Group Co., Ltd.
(the “Vendor") and Boya Bio-pharmaceutical, pursuant to which: (i) CR
Pharmaceutical proposed to acquire 69,331,978 non-restricted tradable
shares (accounting for 16.00% of the then total share capital of Boya Bio-
pharmaceutical) in Boya Bio-pharmaceutical held by the Vendor by way of
cash; (i) the Vendor proposed to entrust the voting rights of all the remaining
shares of Boya Bio-pharmaceutical held by the Vendor to CR Pharmaceutical
Holdings. Following the aforesaid share transfer and entrustment of voting
rights, CR Pharmaceutical Holdings will hold the voting rights for 29.17% of
the total share capital of Boya Bio-pharmaceutical; and (i) CR Pharmaceutical
Holdings proposed to subscribe for 86,664,972 shares (accounting for 20%
of the total share capital of Boya Bio-pharmaceutical prior to the issue, the
final subscription volume shall be subject to the documents approved by the
China Securities Regulatory Commission for registration) to be issued by Boya
Bio-pharmaceutical by way of cash (the “Proposed Transaction”). The total
consideration under the aforesaid transaction documents is expected to be
approximately RMB5.358 billion.
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Upon completion of the aforesaid Proposed Transaction under the relevant
transaction documents, the total share capital of Boya Bio-pharmaceutical is
expected to be changed to 519,989,835 shares, whereas CR Pharmaceutical
Holdings will hold 155,996,950 shares of Boya Bio-pharmaceutical
(representing 30.00% of the total share capital of Boya Bio-pharmaceutical)
(subject to adjustment under the terms of the relevant transaction documents).
and will have the voting rights corresponding to 57,049,640 shares of Boya
Bio-pharmaceutical (representing 10.97% of the total share capital of Boya
Bio-pharmaceutical), holding the voting rights corresponding to 213,046,590
shares of the Boya Bio-pharmaceutical (representing 40.97% of the total share
capital of Boya Bio-pharmaceutical) in aggregate, and CR Pharmaceutical
Holdings will become the controlling shareholder of Boya Bio-pharmaceutical.

As disclosed in the Circular, the aforesaid Proposed Transaction is subject
to the fulfilment of certain precedent conditions described in the relevant
transaction documents. As at the date of this annual report, in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the relevant transaction documents, the
closing of the aforesaid Proposed Transaction has yet to be completed, and CR
Pharmaceutical Holdings has yet to pay the relevant transaction consideration
in accordance with the relevant transaction documents.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not hold any other
material investment during the Reporting Period, nor did it conduct any
material acquisition or disposal in relation to its subsidiaries. Save as disclosed
in this annual report, during the period from the Reporting Period to the date
of this annual report, the Group did not have other material investment in or
acquisition of capital assets which had been approved by the Board.
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The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintain high standards of corporate governance
to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and to enhance corporate value
and accountability. The Company has adopted the CG Code as its own code
of corporate governance. The Company has complied with all applicable code
provisions of the CG Code during the Reporting Period, save and except the
following:

In respect of code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, the non-executive Directors
are not appointed for a specific term, and in respect of code provision D.1.4
of the CG Code, the Company did not have formal letters of appointment for
Directors. Since all Directors are subject to re-election by the Shareholders at the
annual general meeting of the Company and at least about once every three
years on a rotation basis in accordance with the Articles of Association, there
are sufficient measures to ensure the corporate governance of the Company
complies with the same level to that required under the CG Code. In respect of
code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the Board was not able
to attend the AGM held on 22 June 2020 due to other business commitment.

The Company will continue to review and monitor its corporate governance
practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

THE BOARD

Responsibilities and Delegation by the Board

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group, oversees the
Group's strategic decisions and monitors business and performance. Directors
may seek independent professional advice in performing their duties at the
Company's expense and are encouraged to consult with the Company’s
senior management independently. The Board has delegated the authority
and responsibility for day-to-day management and operation of the Group
to the senior management of the Group. The delegated functions and
responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board. The management is
required to timely report to and seek approval from the Board before engaging
in any significant transactions. To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs, the Board has established five Board committees, namely the Executive
Committee, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Corporate Governance Committee (together,
the “Board Committees”). The Board has delegated to the Board Committees
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference.
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All Directors have the obligations to carry out duties in good faith and in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations and to act in the interests of
the Company and the Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance in respect of legal
action against the Directors and officers.

Board Composition
During the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this report, the
Board comprises the following Directors:

Chairman and non-executive Director
Mr. Wang Chuncheng

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Han Yuewei

Executive Director and Vice Chairman
Mr. Li Xiangming

Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer and Vice President
Mdm. Weng Jingwen

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yu Zhongliang
Mdm. Guo Wei
Mr. Wang Shouye
(resigned on 26 March 2021)
Mr. Lyu Ruizhi
(resigned on 26 March 2021)
Mr. Hou Bo
(appointed on 26 March 2021)
Mr. Qing Mei Ping Cuo
(appointed on 26 March 2021)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mdm. Shing Mo Han Yvonne

Mr. Kowk Kin Fun

Mr. Fu Tingmei

Mr. Zhang Kejian

The biographies of the Directors are set out under the section headed
“Biographies—Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

During the year, the Board has met the requirements under Rules 3.10(1) of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors.
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The Company has also complied with Rules 3.10(2), 3.10A and 3.21 of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of independent non-executive
Directors representing at least one-third of the Board (with at least one
independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise).

As each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company
considers all of them to be independent parties. Details are set out on page 96
of this annual report.

None of the Directors has any personal relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationship) with any other
Director, nor between the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company.

Al Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have brought a
wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and professionalism
to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning. Independent non-
executive Directors are invited to serve on the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Corporate
Governance Committee.

As regards the CG Code provision requiring directors to disclose the number
and nature of offices held in public companies or organisations and other
significant commitments as well as the identity of the public companies or
organisations and an indication of the time involved, the Directors have agreed
to disclose their commitments and any subsequent change to the Company in
a timely manner.

Induction and Continuous Professional Development

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant.

Each newly appointed Director would receive an induction package covering
the statutory and regulatory obligations of a Director of a listed company. The
Company has also arranged in-house trainings for Directors in the form of
seminars and reading materials.
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Reading
regulatory
Receiving training; updates or
attending and/or information
giving talks at seminars, relevant to
conference the Company or
Name of Directors and/or forum its business
Chairman and non-executive Director
Mr. Wang Chuncheng 4 v
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Han Yuewei 4 v/
Executive Director and Vice Chairman
Mr. Li Xiangming 4 v/
Executive Director; Chief Financial Officer and Vice
President
Mdm. Weng Jingwen 4 v
Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yu Zhongliang 4 v
Mdm. Guo Wei 4 v
Mr. Wang Shouye 4 v
(resigned on 26 March 2021)
Mr. Lyu Ruizhi 4 v/
(resigned on 26 March 2021)
Independent non-executive Directors
Mdm. Shing Mo Han Yvonne 4 v
Mr. Kwok Kin Fun 4 v
Mr. Fu Tingmei 4 v/
Mr. Zhang Kejian 4 v
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman of the
Board and chief executive officer should be separate and performed by different
individuals.

The Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
are currently two separate positions held by Mr. Wang Chuncheng and Mr. Han
Yuewei, respectively, with clear distinction in responsibilities. The Chairman of
the Board is responsible for formulating of business plans, strategies and major
decisions of the Group through the Board, while the Chief Executive Officer is
responsible for the overall management of the Group.

The Company will continue to review and monitor its corporate governance
practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

Details of the Directors’ service contract are set out on page 96 of this annual
report.

Board Meetings

The Board meets regularly and at least four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals. With respect to regular meetings of the Board, Directors
usually receive at least fourteen days prior written notice of the meeting to
provide all Directors with an opportunity to attend and include matters in the
agenda for a regular meeting.

For other Board and Board Committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally
given. The agenda and accompanying Board papers are dispatched to the
Directors at least three days before the meetings to ensure that they have
sufficient time to review the papers and are adequately prepared for the
meetings. When the Directors or Board Committee members are unable to
attend a meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be discussed and given
an opportunity to make their views known to the Chairman of the Board or the
relevant chairman of the Board Committee prior to the meeting.
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EEEREETEZTE N ERALRTFHELEE  Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee meetings are recorded
EEEREEEZEEMEREMNETRMER  in sufficent detail about the matters considered by the Board and the Board
HRE BEESRENEMNBE-ZEEEE  Committees and the decisions made, including any concerns raised by the
RELZEZEGNERLRERATNEESE  Directors. Draft minutes of each Board meeting and Board Committee meeting
TENAEREARNTEESES MHEEEE  are sent to the Directors for comments within a reasonable time after the date
B RLENETEZNEREFEEERESE  on which the meeting is held. Minutes of the Board and Board Committee
ZEGNEHLT T AMZEEHRLEMERT  meeting are kept by the duly appointed secretary of the meeting and are open
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for inspection by Directors.

N TETRFEEFRITTAXREEEEE During 2020, six Board meetings (including one meeting by way of circulation

(BEUERHEERERS
#)BEHEFHFEFS S
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of written resolutions) were held and the attendance of each Director at the
HIEREIR T  meeting is set out in the table below:

=
HE EMPER
BITEERH RE
Meetings Written BE
EEHL Name of Directors Attended/Held Resolutions Total
FIERIFHTESE Chairman and non-executive Director
FERMTE Mr. Wang Chuncheng 3/5 171 4/6
HITEEREEHNTE Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer

BREELE Mr. Han Yuewei 4/5 171 5/6
HITEZEREBIEE Executive Director and Vice Chairman
FmELE Mr. Li Xiangming 5/5 1”1 6/6
HITEE BEIEE Executive Director, Chief Financial

KEIHEE Officer and Vice President
FEELL Mdm. Weng Jingwen 5/5 11 6/6
FFEBITESE Non-executive Directors
FREBREE Mr. Yu Zhongliang 5/5 111 6/6
R+ Mdm. Guo Wei 5/5 171 6/6
FrERLE Mr. Wang Shouye 5/5 171 6/6

P—ZE_—F (resigned on 26 March 2021)

=B Z+/~HEHMD

BESNRE Mr. Lyu Ruizhi 5/5 1”1 6/6
BB — (resigned on 26 March 2021)

=B +/"HE&D
BUFHITEE Independent non-executive Directors
BREZL Mdm. Shing Mo Han Yvonne 4/5 11 5/6
ZhRBN L E Mr. Kwok Kin Fun 5/5 171 6/6
BEESLE Mr. Fu Tingmei 5/5 171 6/6
R ER S Mr. Zhang Kejian 5/5 171 6/6
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Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry of all
the Directors, each of the Directors has confirmed that he/she has complied
with the required standards as set out in the Model Code during the year.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Executive Committee
The Executive Committee comprises all the executive Directors, namely Mr. Han
Yuewei (chairman), Mr. Li Xiangming and Mdm. Weng Jingwen.

The principal duties of the Executive Committee include but are not limited to
the following:

1. to monitor the formulation, revision and implementation of the
Company’s strategic plans;

2. to monitor the execution of the Company’s business plans and the
Company'’s business operations;

3. to monitor the operation of the Company’s subsidiaries;

4. to approve the scope of authority delegated to the Senior Management
of the Company and its changes;

5. to exercise part of the power on behalf of the Board between regular
Board meetings, with its power restricted to the areas that are considered
by the Board as material and related to the formulation of the policy and
business development direction of the Company;

6.  to review and approve operational matters which constitutes below
5% (for matters within the business plan of the Group) or below 1%
(for matters outside the business plan of the Group) of the audited net
asset of the Group in the previous financial year (except for notifiable
transactions and connected transactions for which announcements are
required under the Listing Rules);
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to review and approve the financing matters within the financing plan
resolved and passed by the Board (including bank loans and trusts etc.)
and their corresponding guarantee matters;

to review and approve on behalf of the Board the financing matters
within the financing plan resolved and passed by the board of directors
of the subsidiaries of the Company (including bank loans and trusts etc.)
and their corresponding guarantee matters;

to exercise the following power in accordance with the needs of the
Company and its subsidiaries:

i. to approve on behalf of the Board banking facilities and/or
financial instruments to be granted to or issued by the Company
for the needs of the Company and its subsidiaries;

i.  toapprove on behalf of the Board the grant of any loan or
other financial assistance to the Company’s subsidiaries and/or
associates;

ii.  to approve on behalf of the Board the provision of corporate
guarantees, indemnity and/or letters of comfort by the Company
for its subsidiaries and/or associates;

iv.  to approve on behalf of the Board the opening of bank or
securities related accounts and other ancillary matters of the
Company and/or its subsidiaries, including appointing the
signatories and approving the terms and mandate for such
accounts; and

V. to affix the Company’s seal on any instrument or document related
to the above items and approve any one or more of the Directors
of the Company to sign the instrument or document;

to decide external donation matters which should be reviewed and
approved by the Board in accordance with the “Donation Management
Policy of the China Resources Group”;
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to authorize one or more Directors for executing relevant documents to
be filed and/or submitted to regulatory authorities on behalf or in the
name of the Company;

12.  to deal with any other specific business authorized to this Committee by
the Board; and
13.  to approve on behalf of the Board the relevant arrangements for

the publication of voluntary announcement(s), overseas regulatory
announcement(s) made pursuant to Rule 13.10B of the Listing Rules,
announcement(s) made pursuant to Rule 13.18 of the Listing Rules, next
day disclosure return(s), or announcement(s) on the principal financial
results of the subsidiaries of the Company on the HKEXNews website of
the Stock Exchange and the Company’s website.

The written terms of reference of the Executive Committee are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During 2020, eight meetings were held by the Executive Committee which
primarily covered banking and financing matters of the Group.

HE

BITEERH

Meetings

HITEEERE Executive Committee members Attended/Held
BIBRNLE HITEEELE) Mr. Han Yuewei (Chairman of the Executive

Committee) 7/8

@RSk E Mr. Li Xiangming 8/8

SEELL Mdm. Weng Jingwen 8/8

EitLZEg Audit Committee

B EZEGHNRHEEN SENRIBILIE
HITEF DHRBRERRL T (EF) ~BREY
FRE-BREEEERRRBRERMBIFRTT
B NRABRELL -2EERE (RZE
“—HFZAZHRERD REEFERE (R
“E_—F=A”+/BEZMD -

The Audit Committee comprises six members, including four independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mdm. Shing Mo Han Yvonne (chairman), Mr.
Kwok Kin Fun, Mr. Fu Tingmei and Mr. Zhang Kejian, and two non-executive
Directors, namely Mdm. Guo Wei, Mr. Lyu Ruizhi (resigned on 26 March 2021)
and Mr. Qing Mei Ping Cuo (appointed on 26 March 2021).
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The principal duties of the Audit Committee include but are not limited to the
following:

1.

to review and monitor the Auditor’s independence and objectivity and
the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards;

to develop and implement policy on engaging an external auditor to
supply non-audit services;

to discuss with the external Auditor before the audit commences, the
nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations, and ensuring
coordination where more than one audit firm is involved;

to monitor integrity of the Group's financial statements, annual reports
and accounts, half-year reports and, if prepared for publication, quarterly
reports and reviewing significant financial reporting judgments contained
in them;

to review the Group'’s financial controls, risk management and internal
control system; and

to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Group, and reviewing and monitoring its
effectiveness.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During 2020, three meetings were held by the Audit Committee to discuss and
consider the following matters:

reviewed the financial statements, annual report, interim report and
internal control report; and

reviewed the financial reporting system, compliance procedures,
internal control (including the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function) and risk management
systems and processes.
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FEFLZEEHRBHEZSEENBERHMNT  Attendance of each Audit Committee member is set out in the table below:
E
HiE
BITEERRH
Meetings
BitRZEENE Audit Committee members Attended/Held
BRMzt Mdm. Shing Mo Han Yvonne
(BFAEEEFE) (Chairman of the Audit Committee) 3/3
FEut Mdm. Guo Wei 3/3
Hﬂ”f‘ﬁéE Mr. Lyu Ruizhi
RZE_—F=A-+/XH&D (resigned on 26 March 2021) 3/3
SR S Mr. Kwok Kin Fun 3/3
BEELYE Mr. Fu Tingmei 33
RETER A Mr. Zhang Kejian 33
RLEEE Nomination Committee
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THERITEMEE) EEFERESIRY
3N

The Nomination Committee currently comprises five members, including
one non-executive Director, Mr. Wang Chuncheng (chairman), and four
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mdm. Shing Mo Han Yvonne,
Mr. Kwok Kin Fun, Mr. Fu Tingmei and Mr. Zhang Kejian.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include but are not limited
to the following:

1.

to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company'’s corporate strategy;

to develop and maintain a policy for the nomination of the Directors
which includes the nomination procedures and the process and
criteria adopted by the Nomination Committee to identify, select and
recommend candidates for directorship during the year, and to review
periodically the policy and progress made towards achieving the
objectives set in the nomination policy;

to develop, maintain and review periodically the policy concerning the
diversity of the Board,;

to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re—
appointment of Directors and the succession planning for Directors, in
particular the chairman and the chief executive;
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5. toidentify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships with regard to the nomination
policy of the Company; and

6.  toassess the independence of independent non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee assesses the candidate or incumbent on criteria
such as integrity, whether the individual can bring to the Board the perspectives,
how the individual can contribute to the diversity of the Board, experience, skill
and ability to commit time and effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities.
The recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be put to the
Board for decision.

The written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During 2020, one meeting was held by the Nomination Committee mainly
to review the Board Diversity Policy, which included the assessment of its
effectiveness and to review the structure, size and composition of the Board
and to review the time required from non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors etc..

Attendance of each Nomination Committee member is set out in the table
below:

tHE,

BITEERH

Meetings

REEZEEHE Nomination Committee members Attended/Held
FEWMSE (EREEEF/E) Mr. Wang Chuncheng (Chairman of the Nomination

Committee) 17

BRMzt Mdm. Shing Mo Han Yvonne 11

FREN S E Mr. Kwok Kin Fun 11

BEESLE Mr. Fu Tingmei 1/1

RETER A Mr. Zhang Kejian 1/1
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Summary of the Director Nomination Policy

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of a Board with a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives. Given the importance of the
Nomination Committee’s role in ensuring the balance within the Board and
to give greater focus and transparency in relation to the election of Directors,
the Company has established the Director Nomination Policy. This policy aims
to set out the approach to guide the Nomination Committee in relation to the
selection, appointment and re—appointment of the Directors, and to ensure
the Board has a balance of skills experience, knowledge and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business.

Nomination Criteria: The Nomination Committee will assess, select
and recommend candidate(s) for directorship to the Board by giving due
consideration to criteria including (but not limit to) reputation for character
and integrity, region and industry experience, diversity in aspects, commitment
for responsibilities of the Board in respect of available time, and potential
contributions brought to the Board.

Procedures and Process for Nomination of Directors: The Nomination
Committee may consult any source it deems appropriate in identifying
or selecting suitable candidates, such as referrals from existing Directors,
advertising, recommendations from third-party agency firm and proposals
from Shareholders with due consideration given to the criteria; the
Nomination Committee may adopt any process it deems appropriate in
evaluating the suitability of the candidates, such as interviews, background
checks, presentations and third party reference checks; upon considering a
candidate suitable for the directorship, the Nomination Committee will hold
a meeting and/or by way of written resolutions to, if thought fit, approve the
recommendation to the Board for appointment; the Nomination Committee
will provide the relevant information of the selected candidate to the
Remuneration Committee for consideration of remuneration package of such
selected candidate.

Monitoring and reporting: The Nomination Committee will assess and report
on the composition of the Board in the corporate governance report.

Review of the Director Nomination Policy: The Nomination Committee
will review the Director Nomination Policy periodically to ensure that it is
transparent and fair, remains relevant to the Company’s needs and reflects the
current regulatory requirements and good corporate governance practice. The
Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions that may be required and
recommend any such revisions to the Board for approval.
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The Company's Director Nomination Policy is available at the website of the
Company.

Summary of the Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board,
and sees diversity at Board level as an essential element in maintaining a
competitive advantage. A truly diverse Board will include and make good use of
differences in the perspectives, talents, skills, regional and industry experience,
background, gender and other qualities of the members of the Board. The
Nomination Committee reviews and assesses the composition of the Board
and makes recommendations to the Board on appointment of new Directors,
and also oversees the conduct of the annual review of the effectiveness of the
Board. The Nomination Committee also develops and maintains the Board
Diversity Policy and periodically reviews the effectiveness of this Policy and
whether the measurable objectives are achieved and/or should be amended.

Measurable objectives: The Nomination Committee will discuss and agree
annually all measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board and
recommend them to the Board for adoption. At any given time, the Board
may seek to improve one or more aspects of its diversity and measure progress
accordingly.

Monitoring and reporting: The Nomination Committee will report annually,
in the corporate governance report of the Company, on the process it has
used in relation to Board appointments. Such report will include a summary of
the Board Diversity Policy, the measurable objectives set for implementing the
Board Diversity Policy and progress made towards achieving these measurable
objectives.

Review of the Board Diversity Policy: The Nomination Committee will
review the Board Diversity Policy annually, which will include an assessment of
its effectiveness. The Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions that may
be required and recommend any such revisions to the Board for approval.

The Company’s Board Diversity Policy is available at the website of the
Company.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises five members, including one non-
executive Director, Mdm. Guo Wei and four independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Kwok Kin Fun (Chairman), Mdm. Shing Mo Han Yvonne,
Mr. Fu Tingmei and Mr. Zhang Kejian.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include but are not limited
to the following:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for the remuneration of the Directors and senior management
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy;

2. toreview and approve the senior management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the corporate goals and objectives determined by the
Board;

3. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive Directors and senior management. These include
benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including
any compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment;

4. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-
executive Directors;

5. to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in the Group;

6.  to review and approve compensation payable to executive Directors and
senior management for any loss or termination of office or appointment
to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair
and not excessive;

7. toreview and approve compensation arrangements relating to dismissal
or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that they are consistent
with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and appropriate;
and

8.  to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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During 2020, one meeting was held by the Remuneration Committee mainly to
make recommendation to the Board for the remuneration of the Directors and
to review the remuneration policy etc..

Attendance of each Remuneration Committee member is set out in the table
below:

HiE

BITERIH

Meetings

HFMNEZEERE Remuneration Committee members Attended/Held
SRRBN L L Mr. Kwok Kin Fun

FNZE5F/E) (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) 11

s Rogan Mdm. Guo Wei 11

BRMzt Mdm. Shing Mo Han Yvonne 11

BEESLE Mr. Fu Tingmei 1/1

RETER A Mr. Zhang Kejian 1/1

TEELREZEY Corporate Governance Committee
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The Corporate Governance Committee comprises six members, including two
executive Directors namely Mr. Han Yuewei and Mdm. Weng Jingwen and four
independent non-executive Directors namely Mr. Fu Tingmei (chairman), Mdm.
Shing Mo Han Yvonne, Mr. Kwok Kin Fun and Mr. Zhang Kejian.

The principal duties of the Corporate Governance Committee include but are
not limited to the following:

1. to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management on corporate
governance;

3. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual applicable to employees and Directors;
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4. FIERBSNARABIZEEERBERE 4. todevelop and review the Company's policies and practices on corporate
HoUwEEESFERESE & governance and make recommendations to the Board; and

5. MEARBHEEERTHZETIER 5 toreview the Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
RECEERRENZHE- the corporate governance report.

TEERLZEGNEEBEHENKZPTRA  The written terms of reference of the Corporate Governance Committee are
REVEE P HER - available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

EA: LT HEPEEREZEEEHEIT—RE  During 2020, one meeting was held by the Corporate Governance Committee
BIERERTAREETEREEATANIE  mainly to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code.
/R °

BELEXBRZEENELEZEERNIBERNE  Attendance of each Corporate Governance Committee member is set out in

I the table below:

HE
BITEERRH
Meetings
TEEREZEEME Corporate Governance Committee members Attended/Held

BEENLE Mr. Fu Tingmei (Chairman of the
(PEELRZEETE) Corporate Governance Committee) 1N
BRI ELSE Mr. Han Yuewei 1N
SEELL Mdm. Weng Jingwen 1/1
BRREZ L Mdm. Shing Mo Han Yvonne 1/1
FRIRB e Mr. Kwok Kin Fun 11
RETER A Mr. Zhang Kejian 1/1
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ATTENDANCE AT ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

During the year, the Company held one general meeting, namely the AGM
held on 22 June 2020. Details of matters resolved and the poll results were
published on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website after
the general meeting on that day.

Bt 2B FNEZEEREEERZEEN
TEHAEHERRBEAS  BEREARRFRE
ENNBER -BRERBUNEE (BREES
LREES) EAHxﬁLij(ﬁ?J:LM%_LHmm

The chairman of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Corporate Governance Committee attended the AGM to ensure effective
communication with the Shareholders. Separate resolution was proposed at
the AGM on each substantially separate issue, including re-election of each

RE WUREDNETRR REFNET
RANFHBRFENR AT LBRE-

retiring director, and was put to vote at the meeting by way of poll. Detailed
procedures for conducting a poll were explained at the meeting.

TECTF
NBZ+ZH
BITHRRBERS
Annual General
Meeting
Held on 22 June 2020
FERIFHNTESE Chairman and non-executive Director
FEBESEE Mr. WANG Chuncheng -
HITEZEREENITE Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
RIERELE Mr. HAN Yuewei -
HITEZEREIEE Executive Director and Vice Chairman
ALt Mr. LI Xiangming -
HITEE BEAEEREEE Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer and
Vice President
SEZuL Mdm. WENG Jingwen v
FEHITEE Non-executive Directors
REREE Mr. Yu Zhongliang -
T+ Mdm. Guo Wei v/
ET%?EE Mr. Wang Shouye v
N _E-_—F=A-+/"HED (resigned on 26 March 2021)
ﬁ*”f‘ﬁﬂi Mr. Lyu Ruizhi v
MZEZ—F=A"+BFMD (resigned on 26 March 2021)
BIIFHITEE Independent non-executive Directors
BREZL Mdm. Shing Mo Han Yvonne v
il e Mr. Kwok Kin Fun v
BEESE Mr. Fu Tingmei v
R ER Y Mr. Zhang Kejian v
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Remuneration of Senior Management

Details of the remuneration by band of the senior management of the
Company, whose biographies are set out on pages 87 to 91 of this annual
report, for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out below:

A

Number of

[T Remuneration band individuals
T 5 151,000,00075 Nil-HK$ 1,000,000 0
78 1£1,000,00170 & #&151,500,0007T HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 2
78 1£1,500,00170 & #&12,000,0007T HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 5
78 1£2,000,00170 & #&12,500,0007C HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2
7B 1£2,500,00170 & #13,000,0007T HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 3
78 1£3,000,00170 & #13,500,00078 HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 0
7B 1£3,500,00170 & #&154,000,0007T HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 1
7B 1£4,000,00170 & #&154,500,0007T HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 1
7B 1£4,500,00170 & A& 15,000,00078 HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 0
78145 000,00170 & A& 15,500,0007T HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 0
78145 500,00170 & #&16,000,0007T HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 0
78 1£6,000,00170 & #&16,500,0007T HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000 0

%?ﬁ%ﬁﬁ#ﬁiﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁ?fﬁﬂﬁﬁ%
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EEECREFSRHVENEERER &
EFEREHRETEFIMENETRTYBR
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W&k
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 which give a true and fair
view of the affairs of the Company and the Group and of the Group’s results
and cash flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and information
as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed assessment of
the Company’s financial statements, which are put to the Board for approval.
The Company provides all members of the Board with monthly updates on
Company'’s performance, positions and prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The statement by the Auditor regarding their reporting responsibilities on the
consolidated financial statements of the Company is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 112 to 119 of this annual report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board for
maintaining an adequate risk management and internal control systems to
safeguard shareholder investments and Company assets and reviewing the
effectiveness of such systems on an annual basis. The risk management and
internal control systems can provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss, and are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure in the process of attaining business objectives.

The Group has established a comprehensive risk management and internal
control system, and devoted significant attention to internal control measures
of its pharmaceutical manufacturing, pharmaceutical distribution and
pharmaceutical retail businesses. It has adopted stringent internal control
measures and operating procedures to regulate all stages of its pharmaceutical
value chain, from research and development to manufacturing, distribution
and retail. The Group's internal control system is designed according to
relevant industrial and management standards, including the GMP and GSP
requirements. The Group implements the procedures for periodic internal
control audit, internal risk management, and error correction and prevention on
a regular basis.

With respect to dissemination of inside information, the Company has adopted
its “Information Disclosure Policy” setting out the procedures of proper
information disclosure. Release of inside information shall be led by the Board.
Unless duly authorized, all staff members of the Company shall not disseminate
inside information relating to the Group to any external parties and shall not
respond to media report or market speculation which may materially affect the
trading price or volume of the Shares.

The Group’s internal audit department plays a major role in monitoring the
internal governance of the Company. The major tasks of the internal audit
department include reviewing the financial condition, risk management and
internal control of the Group and conducting audits of subsidiaries of the
Company on a regular basis. The internal audit department is required to report
to the Audit Committee and the Board in relation to its review of the Group's
risk management and internal control system annually, and if there is any
material deficiency, such issue has to be reported in a timely manner.

Through the Audit Committee, the Board has conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the Group'’s risk management and internal control systems and
considered the systems to be effective and adequate. The Audit Committee
has also assessed whether the Group’s internal audit department is adequately
resourced and reviewed its effectiveness.
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AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

The remuneration for the audit and non-audit services provided by the Auditor
to the Group during the year ended 31 December 2020 was approximately as
follows:

&% (BT o)
ilreicgsll Type of services Amount (HK$'000)
Z AR5 Audit services 17,741
IEZERTS Non-audit services 1,260
“aET Total 19,001

NalfpE COMPANY SECRETARY
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The Company Secretary, Mr. Lo Chi Lik Peter, is a practicing solicitor in Hong
Kong. Mr. Lo, aged 71, was appointed as the Company Secretary on 20
May 2016. He qualified as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1976 and has been in
continuous practice since qualification. He is currently a partner of Messrs.
Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo. Although Mr. Lo is not a full time employee of the
Company, he reports to the Board and in his capacity as Company Secretary
advises the Board on governance matters. The primary contact person of the
Company with Mr. Lo is Mdm. Weng Jingwen, the executive Director, chief
financial officer and vice president of the Company. Mr. Lo confirmed that he
had fulfilled the 15 hours of professional training in 2020.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with the Shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and understanding of the Group’s
business, performance and strategies. The Company also recognizes the
importance of timely and non-selective disclosure of information, which will
enable Shareholders and investors to make the informed investment decisions.

The AGMs provide opportunity for the Shareholders to communicate directly
with the Directors. The Chairman of the Company and the chairmen of the
Board Committees will normally attend the AGMs to answer Shareholders’
guestions. The Auditor will also be invited to attend the AGMs to answer
guestions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the
auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor’s independence.
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To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a Shareholders’
communication policy which aims at establishing a two—way relationship and
communication between the Company and the Shareholders and maintains
a website of the Company at http://www.crpharm.com, where up-to-date
information on the Group's business operations and developments, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information are
available for public access.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening of extraordinary general meeting and putting
forward proposals at the general meetings

In accordance with Section 566 of the Companies Ordinance, the Directors
are required to call a general meeting if the Company has received requests
to do so from members of the Company representing at least 5% of the total
voting rights of all the members having a right to vote at general meeting. Such
requests (a) must state the general nature of the business to be dealt with at
the meeting; and (b) may include the text of a resolution that may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting. Such requests (a) may
be sent to the Company in hard copy form (by depositing at the registered
office of the Company for the attention of the Board) or in electronic form
(by email: crpharm—ir@crpharm.com); and (b) must be authenticated by the
person or persons making it. In accordance with Section 567 of the Companies
Ordinance, the directors must call a meeting within 21 days after the date
on which they become subject to the requirement under Section 566 of the
Companies Ordinance and such meeting must be held on a date not more than
28 days after the date of the notice convening the meeting.
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Besides, Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance provides that members may
request the Company to give, to the members who are entitled to attend the
AGM, notice of a resolution that may properly be moved and is intended to
be moved at its annual general meeting. The Company must give such notice
of resolution if it has received requests that it do so from (a) the members of
the Company representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the
members who have a right to vote on the resolution at the annual general
meeting to which the requests relate; or (b) at least 50 members who have
a right to vote on the resolution at the annual general meeting to which the
requests relate. Such requests (a) may be sent to the Company in hard copy
form (by depositing at the registered office of the Company for the attention of
the Board) or in electronic form (by email: crpharm-ir@crpharm.comy;(b) must
identify the resolution of which notice is to be given;(c) must be authenticated
by the person or persons making it; and (d) must be received by the Company
not later than (i) six weeks before the annual general meeting to which the
requests relate; or (ii) if later, the time at which notice is given of that meeting.
Section 616 of the Companies Ordinance provides that the Company that
is required under Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance to give notice of
a resolution must send a copy of it at the Company’s own expense to each
member of the Company entitled to receive notice of the annual general
meeting (a) in the same manner as the notice of the meeting; and (b) at the
same time as, or as soon as reasonably practicable after, it gives notice of the
meeting.

Procedure for Shareholders to nominate a person for election as
a Director

Article 90 of the Articles of Association provides that the Company may from
time to time in general meeting by ordinary resolution elect any person to be a
Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board; no person,
other than a retiring Director or a person recommended by the Board, shall
be eligible for election to the office of Director at any general meeting, unless
notice in writing from a shareholder of his intention to propose that person for
election as a Director and notice in writing by that person of his willingness to
be elected as a Director shall have been lodged with the registered office of the
Company; unless otherwise determined by the Directors and notified by the
Company to the Shareholders, the period for lodgement of the notices referred
to in paragraph (2) of this Article shall commence on a day after the dispatch
of the notice of the meeting designated for such election of Director(s). If the
Directors should so determine and notify the Shareholders of a different period
for lodgement of the said notice referred to in paragraph (2) of this Article, such
period shall in any event be a period of not less than seven days, commencing
no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the said notice of the meeting and
ending no later than seven days prior to the date of such meeting.
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Accordingly, if a Shareholder wishes to nominate a person to stand for election
as a Director at the general meeting, the following documents must be validly
served at the registered office of the Company, namely (1) his/her notice of
intention to propose a resolution at the general meeting;(2) a notice signed by
the nominated candidate of his/her willingness to be elected;(3) the nominated
candidate’s information as required to be disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of
the Listing Rules; and (4) the nominated candidate’s written consent to the
publication of his/her personal data.

The aforesaid procedures are available on the website of the Company.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on 17 December 2018. Subject
to the relevant criteria, the Company may distribute not less than 20% of the
Group's annual distributable profit, excluding one-off gains, as dividends to the
Shareholders. Such declaration and payment of dividends shall remain to be
determined at the absolute discretion of the Board and subject to all applicable
requirements (including without limitation restrictions on dividend declaration
and payment) under the Companies Ordinance and the Articles of Association.

The Company will regularly review the Dividend Policy and reserves the
right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or modify the
Dividend Policy at any time, and Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a
legally binding commitment by the Company that dividends will be paid in any
particular amount and/or in no way obligate the Company to declare a dividend
at any time or from time to time.

The Company'’s Dividend Policy is available at the website of the Company.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the Board
by addressing them to the Finance and Investor Relations Department (Hong
Kong) of the Company. The contact details are as follows:

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited

Finance and Investor Relations Department (Hong Kong)
Room 4104-05, 41/F, China Resources Building,

26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Email: crpharm-ir@crpharm.com

Tel No.: 852-2593 8991

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholding to the
Company’s Share Registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong or fax number: 2861
1465.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During 2020, there is no change in the Articles of Association.
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DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Chuncheng

Chairman and Non-Executive Director

Mr. Wang Chuncheng, aged 58, was appointed as a Director in December
2014, designated as an executive Director in June 2016, was the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company from June 2016 to October 2019, has been
the chairman of the Board since March 2019 and has been re-designated
from an executive Director to a non-executive Director since October 2019.
Mr. Wang also serves as an executive vice president of CR Holdings and the
chairman of CR Sanjiu and CR Jiangzhong Group. Mr. Wang has over 20 years
of experience in corporate management. He was the chairman of Dong-E-
E-Jiao from January 2015 to November 2019 and was the chairman of CR
Double-Crane from January 2015 to December 2018. Mr. Wang served as a
general manager of the standing board office of CR Holdings, the chairman
of Teck Soon Hong Limited, and the chairman of China Resources Textiles
(Holdings) Company Limited (ZE45 %% ((2M) A R/AF)) and the chairman
of CR Pharmaceutical Commercial. Mr. Wang holds a bachelor’s degree in
economics from Jilin Institute of Finance and Trade (currently known as Jilin
University of Finance and Economics), China.

Mr. Han Yuewei

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Han Yuewei, aged 53, was appointed as an executive Director, Chief
Executive Officer of the Company in October 2019. He also serves as the
chairman of Dong-E-E-Jiao, a director of CR Sanjiu and a director of CR Double-
Crane. Mr. Han served as an executive director of CR Medical from October
2017 to October 2019, during which he served as the chief executive officer
of CR Medical and the general manager of CR Healthcare, the controlling
shareholder of CR Medical. Mr. Han worked for CR Land from October 2010
to October 2017, during which he served as deputy general manager of
Shenyang Region, deputy general manager of Shenzhen Region, director of
engineering and vice president of CR Land. Prior to joining CR Land, Mr. Han
worked as the deputy director and director of the Bureau of Public Works
of Shenzhen Municipality CRIITTEZE TFE) from April 2002 to October
2010. Mr. Han obtained a master’s degree in construction economics and
management and a bachelor’s degree in construction management from
Tsinghua University, China in July 1993 and July 1991 respectively.
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Mr. Li Xiangming

Mr. Li Xiangming, aged 56, was appointed as an executive Director in May
2019 and subsequently appointed as Vice Chairman of the Board in December
2019, also serves as the chairman of CR Pharmaceutical Commercial, director
of CR Pharmaceutical Holdings, China Resources Pharmaceutical Investment
Company Limited and Beijing Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (Jt REEZEEFIR
E{E/AT]) etc.. Mr. Li was the vice general manager of Beijing Pharmaceutical
Economic and Technical Management Co. Ltd. (At FRE& &L R T8 E A
@), general manager of Beijing Pharmaceutical Holdings Company Limited (1t
REEFGH A BR/AE]) (currently known as CR Pharmaceutical Commercial),
president of CR Pharmaceutical Commercial, senior vice president and
executive vice president of CR Pharmaceutical. Mr. Li is a traditional Chinese
pharmacist. He obtained an EMBA degree from University of International
Business and Economics, China.

Mdm. Weng Jingwen

Mdm. Weng Jingwen, aged 45, was appointed as an executive Director,
chief financial officer and vice president of the Company in July 2019, has
12 years of experience in financial management and auditing and 8 years
of experience in strategic development and business analysis. Mdm. Weng
also serves as a director of CR Pharmaceutical Holdings, China Resources
Pharmaceutical Investment Company Limited, Beijing Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd. Gt REBZEEBARE(EAE)), CR Pharmaceutical Commercial, CR
Double-Crane, CR Jiangzhong Group, Dong-E-E-Jiao, CR Biopharm, CR Care
Company Limited and a supervisor of CR Sanjiu etc.. Mdm. Weng served as
a general manager of internal audit department and strategic controller of
China Resources Gas Group Limited (listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code:
1193), deputy strategic development controller of CR Holdings (with a focus in
pharmaceutical and healthcare areas). Mdm. Weng was previously engaged in
financial management and auditing job in the International Business Machines
Corporation and PricewaterhouseCoopers before joining China Resources
Group. Mdm. Weng obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics from Zhejiang
University, China and an MBA degree from the Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology.

Mr. Yu Zhongliang

Mr. Yu Zhongliang, aged 56, was appointed as a non-executive Director in
June 2016. Mr. Yu also serves as a senior deputy chief strategy officer of the
Strategy Management Department of CR Holdings. Mr. Yu has over 30 years
of experience in investment, business analysis and strategic development. Mr.
Yu was successively the strategic development controller, an executive director
and a vice chairman of China Resources Cement Holdings Limited (listed on
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1313). Mr. Yu holds an MBA degree of York
University in Toronto, Canada.



EFRESREEARBGHE

LT

ML+ 45 RN _E—HNELRESZTEA
FHRTES R _E—tENBESEAEY
EEPEHRBRE -+t _E— N\EMA

BECERN-NEFTIE _Z—AF+ "Bt
EREHEBER B LIRHATEBINGE
BEARBEE2B8 L RPEILRASEMRELE
ST R

=8k E

BEIERE ST _E - —F=_REZERF
HTEERRZZ-—AFMASLRBEES L
BRALREERLINKERES HERERSE
MEESEEAZECR BEIERTERT
FRREBMIFRTRBEER IIRTERT
FREMTHEEER  RIERREXZHOA
RABEIMEEIE BIFK  PRANKRERSR
BEBERARDRBEXXZERBIMEESHR
B mEER—NNNFERPEBERBEM
IEABREBEEXETESTEE N NEF
RAPBREHKEEZARBHELCEREIINES
MEREEREXBELRRTN _STAEESD
Bl E RS ER) MK BB RBRERE
ERESEXET BRI B2 R ASRERSD
M

BRFHELE

SEFIERE BHR _E_—F=ZHESZTE
AEFTESETAN _E—N\ENALZAE
R IRALREEROLKEEE I RIEK
BliAEsmEReERROARAE FRFEIIE
HRZ S Lo BRMASE : 000505) JEBILE
B oBEFHEALETRTEREZELE S
ERBEERTHESERMESEXTIITE
PR TEEEL  AEET AT XKL 4
KB -BEER NELSHEEMEEEXLTT
‘E .éaua ﬁﬁiﬂ%@lzx&daua (ﬁ)&
IEREAED OV R EENEELE - 5EFE
HERE—TERFEBERSIBRHASD
BEFEYR S -NERPEBERNELE
BB THEIREE AL EY .

Mdm. Guo Wei

Mdm. Guo Wei, aged 45, was appointed as a non-executive Director in May
2019 and appointed as a deputy financial director of the Finance Department
of CR Holdings in April 2017. Mdm. Guo has been a director of CR Sanjiu since
April 2018 and has been a director of and CR Double-Crane since December
2015. Mdm. Guo holds a bachelor’s degree in economics from University of
International Business and Economics, China and a master's degree in law from
Peking University, China.

Mr. Hou Bo

Mr. Hou Bo, aged 57, was appointed as a non-executive Director in March
2021 and joined the BSCOMC in 2019 and is currently an external task
director of the BSCOMC. Mr. Hou has many years of experience in financial
management. He served as the director of the insurance and non-banking
services department of the Beijing Municipal Bureau of Financial Work (362
M=/ TYER), the director of the financial market department of the Beijing
Municipal Bureau of Financial Work 3R AR T1E/E), and the deputy
general manager (deputy bureau level) of the former Beijing Equity Exchange
Center Co., Ltd. CEFRRER ZHLARAT), member of the Party Branch
and deputy general manager of Zhongguancun Equity Exchange Service Group
Co., Ltd. (FEANIRERZ F RS ERB B RAR) . Mr. Hou graduated from the
department of mechanical engineering of Tsinghua University, China in 1986
with a bachelor of engineering degree in forging and pressing. He graduated
from the department of business and economics of Capital University
of Economics and Business, China with a master degree in foreign trade
operations and management in 1997 and obtained a doctor of engineering
degree in resources industry economics from the school of earth sciences and
resources of the China University of Geosciences, Beijing in 2009. He is also a
senior international business engineer.

Mr. Qing Mei Ping Cuo

Mr. Qing Mei Ping Cuo, aged 33, was appointed as a non-executive Director
in March 2021 and joined the BSCOMC in 2018 and is currently the deputy
general manager of the second investment management department of
BSCOMC and a non-independent director of Hainan Jingliang Holdings Co.,
Ltd. (listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 000505). Mr. Qing
Mei Ping Cuo has years of experience in the banking industry. He served as the
vice branch manager of Tibet Bank in the Lhasa Economic and Technological
Development Zone, the secretary of the Youth League Committee of Tibet
Bank, the deputy general manager of the corporate business department
and the secretary of the Youth League Committee of Tibet Bank, the branch
manager of Tibet Bank in the Lhasa Economic and Technological Development
Zone, the deputy secretary of the working committee of the Tibet Financial
League (Fa%EIB4E) (concurrently) and the deputy general manager of the
comprehensive management department of the BSCOMC. Mr. Qing Mei
Ping Cuo graduated from the department of foreign languages of Tsinghua
University, China with a major in English in 2010 and graduated from the
school of economics and management of Tsinghua University, China with a
master’s degree of business administration in 2014.
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Mdm. Shing Mo Han Yvonne

Mdm. Shing Mo Han Yvonne, 8BS, JP, aged 65, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in August 2017. Mdm. Shing was
appointed as a Justice of Peace of the HKSAR in 2013 and awarded Bronze
Bauhinia Star in 2017. Mdm. Shing is currently the chairman of Yinn Advisory
Services Limited and an independent non-executive director of CSSC (Hong
Kong) Shipping Company Limited (listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code:
3877), AEON Credit Service (Asia) Company Limited (listed on the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 900) and an independent director of China Merchants
Energy Shipping Co., Ltd. (listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code:
601872). Mdm. Shing was a partner of Deloitte China for over 26 years until
May 2016. She is also a member of the 10th, 11th and 12th Jiangsu Provincial
Committee of the CPPCC. Mdm. Shing is a founding member and former
president of the Association of Women Accountants (Hong Kong) and the
former chairman of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
Taxation Committee. Her professional qualifications include fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Chartered Governance Institute.
Mdm. Shing'’s current public appointments include treasurer of the Council of
the Hong Kong Academy for Performing Arts, member of the Communications
Authority, court member of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University, and advisor
and member of the Finance Committee of Our Hong Kong Foundation. In
2006, Mdm. Shing received the National Hundred Outstanding Women
Entrepreneurs Award in Great Hall of the People in Beijing. She also received
the Outstanding Alumni Award of Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2007.
Mdm. Shing has been consecutively named from 2001 to 2015 in International
Tax Review as one of the World's Leading Tax Advisors in Hong Kong and
Mainland. Mdm. Shing graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (currently
known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic University) and obtained a Higher
Diploma in Accountancy and was awarded in 2016/2017 Honorary University
Fellow of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
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Mr. Kwok Kin Fun

Mr. Kwok Kin Fun, 8BS, JP, aged 71, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in June 2016. Mr. Kwok also serves as an executive
committee member of Rehabilitation International and global vice chairman
of Social Commission of Rehabilitation International, the co-chair of the
Conference Organizing Committee of Rehabilitation International Asia &
Pacific Regional Conference 2019, the chairman of Incheon Strategy Group
Committee of Asia and Pacific Disability Forum, a vice chairman of The
Hong Kong Joint Council for People with Disabilities, a vice chairman of
The Hong Kong Society for Rehabilitation, the council member of Fu Hong
Society, a member of Ethics Research Committee of Hospital Authority
Kowloon Central and Kowloon East Clusters, a member of Voting Members
Committee of Riding For the Disabled Association, the chairman of Accessible
IT Development Association Limited, a professional committee consultant to
the Disabled Research and Professional Committee of the China Association of
Rehabilitation of Disabled Persons (March 2019-March 2023), a professional
consultant to the Professional Committee of Shenzhen Smart Assistive Tech
Association, and an off-campus co-operative instructor to PHD students in
the field of athletic rehabilitation in the Sports Institute of Soochow University
(2019-2022). Mr. Kwok has over 30 years of experience in disability research
and medical research ethics. He successively served as a senior lecturer, a
principal lecturer, a university senior lecturer and an associate professor of the
City University of Hong Kong from 1985 to 2009, and after retirement served
as full-time and part-time senior research fellow. Mr. Kwok was appointed as a
Justice of the Peace by the government of Hong Kong in 1997 and received the
Bronze Bauhinia Star awarded by the government of Hong Kong SAR in 2005,
“Kazuo Itoga” Memorial Prize awarded by the government of Shiga Prefecture,
Japan in 2006, and the Promoter title of “Asian and Pacific Decade of Persons
with Disabilities, 2013-2022" awarded by United Nations Economic and Social
Commission for Asia and the Pacific (UNESCAP) in 2012. Mr. Kwok holds a
bachelor’s degree in social science from the University of Hong Kong, a master’s
degree in social science from the Chinese University of Hong Kong, and a Ph.D.
degree in philosophy from the University of Nottingham, the United Kingdom.
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Mr. Fu Tingmei

Mr. Fu Tingmei, aged 54, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director in June 2016. Mr. Fu has over 20 years of experience in investment,
finance, law and business management. Mr. Fu currently serves as an
independent non-executive director of Guotai Junan International Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1788), Postal
Savings Bank of China Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1658) and COFCO Joycome Foods Limited (formerly known as “COFCO
Meat Holdings Limited”), a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
1610). Mr. Fu was an independent non-executive director of Beijing Enterprises
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0392)
from July 2008 to June 2017 and an independent non-executive director of
CPMC Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
0906) from June 2008 to July 2019. Mr. Fu holds a master’s degree in law and
a Ph.D. degree in law from London University, the United Kingdom.

Mr. Zhang Kejian

Mr. Zhang Kejian, aged 65, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director in June 2016. Mr. Zhang also serves as an independent director of
Zhejiang Hisoar Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (a company listed on Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, stock code: 002099), a non-independent director of Guangzhou
Boji Medical Biotechnological Co., Ltd. (a company listed on Shenzhen Stock
Exchange GEM, stock code: 300404) and the Chief Scientist of The South
China Center for Innovative Pharmaceuticals. Mr. Zhang has over 20 years of
experience in the pharmaceutical industry of PRC. He was an independent
director of CR Double-Crane, a company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 600062) from February 2016 to June 2018, an independent
director of Yifan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (@ company listed on Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, stock code: 002019) from October 2014 to November 2020 and an
independent director of Hunan Fangsheng Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd (a company
listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 603998) from October 2018
to January 2021. He was employed as a professor of School of Pharmaceutical
Sciences of Sun Yat-sen University and the director (Pharmacy Administration)
of The South China Center for Innovative Pharmaceuticals, a researcher at the
Institute of Medicine, Chinese Academy of Medical Sciences (H1[E] 52 £2 7| Ea iz
BEYIEZTFR) , and successively served as a deputy director of Pharmaceutical
Evaluation Center (%5285 FH1,0y) and a deputy director of Medical Device
Evaluation Center (B& 23 B fiT s #0y) under the State Food and
Drug Administration of the PRC (BIXBEmZEREEEER). Mr. Zhang
received a master’s degree in pathophysiology from China Medical University
in Shenyang, the PRC and a doctor’s degree in pharmacy from the School of
Pharmaceutical Sciences of Chiba University in Chiba, Japan.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Qiu Huawei

Mr. Qiu Huawei, aged 53, is a director and president of CR Sanijiu, a director
of CR Jiangzhong Group. He used to be the chairman of Shenzhen San-
jiu Pharmaceutical trade Co., Ltd. GRIITT=Z N EZEEZ AR AF)and a
senior vice president of CR Sanjiu. Mr. Qiu holds a bachelor’s degree in science
granted from Fudan University, China, is a senior engineer, a traditional Chinese
pharmacist, and concurrently serves as a rotating chairman of China Non-
Prescription Medicines Association ((FBIIEER /5 Y1 E) , a vice president
of Chinese Rural Health Association (B 2 A& 4 17 2) and a vice president
of China Association of Traditional Chinese Medicine (F1EIH %17 &) and the
vice chairman of the Shenzhen Nutrition Society CEII & & &) .

Mr. Feng Yi
Mr. Feng Yi, aged 59, was appointed as the chairman of CR Double-Crane
in November 2018. Mr. Feng has served as a deputy division researcher and
director of the organization bureau, a deputy general manager of human
resource department of CR Holdings, a deputy general manager of China
Resources Snow Breweries (Panjin) Co., Ltd. (EEEATIENE (B548) BREA
5]), a deputy general manager of China Resources Land (Beijing) Co., Ltd.
FEHEM JER) BRI ABRAE), the chief human resources officer, vice
president and senior vice president of CR Bank, a senior vice president of CR
Pharmaceutical, and a supervisor of CR Sanjiu and Dong-E-E-Jiao. Mr. Feng
obtained an EMBA degree from Peking University, China.

Mr. Mu Hong

Mr. Mu Hong, aged 58, was appointed as a director of CR Pharmaceutical
Commercial in March 2019 and the general manager of CR Pharmaceutical
Commercial in February 2019. Mr. Mu currently serves as the chairmen of
CR Guangdong Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (EHEREEAERRAF) the
rotating chairman of China Federation of Logistics & Purchasing Pharmaceutical
Logistics Branch and the vice chairman of Beijing Logistics and Supply Chain
Management Association. Mr. Mu started his career in China Resources since
1994 and successively served as the general manager of China Resources Beer
(Liaoning) Co., Ltd. (ZEEEH (EE) A F), the chairman and the general
manager of China Resources (Shenyang) Sanyo Compressor Co., Ltd. (&[5
R =X BB A R/AT), the deputy chairman of CR Pharmaceutical, the
general manager of CR Pharmaceutical Commercial. Mr. Mu is an engineer
who holds an EMBA degree awarded by Nanjing University Business School,
China.
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Mdm. Lu Xiaoqing

Mdm. Lu Xiaoging, aged 52, currently serves as a secretary of the party
committee, a director and a general manager of CR Jiangzhong Group and
the chairman of Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical. She served as a the director of
the general office, human resources controller, the head of the organization
department of the party committee, party committee vice secretary, deputy
general manager, general manager, and deputy chairman of Jiangxi Jiangzhong
Pharmaceutical (Group) Co., Ltd, currently known as CR Jiangzhong Group.
Mdm. Lu holds a bachelor’s degree in science from Jiangxi University of
Traditional Chinese Medicine, China, a master’s degree in law from Zhejiang
University, China, an EMBA degree from Tsinghua University, China. Mdm. Lu is
also a practising pharmacist and an associate chief pharmacist.

Mr. Gao Dengfeng

Mr. Gao Dengfeng, aged 48, holds a master’s degree in MBA. Mr. Gao has
been working in Dong-E-E-Jiao from September 1995. He used to be a
sales representative of Dong-E-E-Jiao, a sales manager,an office manager, a
marketing manager/director, a director of south west and north west regions,
a director of high-end product segment, a general manager of Jiangsu sales
branch, a general manager of Suwan sales branch, a director of human
resources department, a general manager of a healthcare product company, a
general manager of an e-commerce company, the associate president, the vice
president, etc.. Mr. Gao serves as a party committee secretary and the president
of Dong-E-E-Jiao.

Mr. Wu Jun

Mr. Wu Jun, aged 58, was appointed as a senior vice president of the
Company in December 2013. Currently, Mr. Wu also serves as a director of
CR Pharmaceutical Holdings, China Resources Pharmaceutical Investment
Company Limited and Beijing Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. At REEEE B[R
E1E/AF]), Dong-E-E-Jiao, a chairman of the supervisory board of CR Double-
Crane etc.. Mr. Wu has been a director and the general manager of China
Resources Machinery and Minmetals (Holdings) Co., Ltd. GEFtain T hE (&
&) BBR/AT)), a deputy general manager in the enterprise development
department of CR Holdings, a director and deputy general manager of CR
Investment & Development Company Limited GEFSIZ BRI AERAT), a
deputy general manager in the internal audit department of CR Holdings and
a vice president of CR Pharmaceutical. Mr. Wu obtained the qualification of
senior engineer in China and he obtained a master’s degree in engineering
from Tianjin University, China and an MBA degree from University of San
Francisco in San Francisco, the United States of America.
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Mr. Yin Huijun

Mr. Yin Huijun, aged 50, was appointed as a senior vice president of the
Company in June 2017. Currently, Mr. Yin also serves as the chairman of China
Pharmaceutical R&D Center Co., Ltd. (FEIBEZEHI3ERIEE P LB RAR),
the chairman and general manager of CR Biopharm etc.. Mr. Yin has served as
the cardiovascular laboratory officer of Xiyuan Hospital under China Academy
of Chinese Medical Sciences (the former China Academy of Traditional
Chinese Medicine), a vice president of Affiliated Hospital of Gansu University
of Chinese Medicine and the chief of international cooperation department
of China Academy of Chinese Medical Sciences. Mr. Yin was awarded the
“Star of Science and Technology” by TCM Society and the Second Class Prize
for Progress of National Science and Technology (B F i  —F47)
Mr. Yin obtained the qualification of researcher issued by China Academy of
Chinese Medical Sciences. Mr. Yin obtained a doctor’s degree in medicine from
Heilongjiang College of Chinese Medicine (currently known as Heilongjiang
University of Chinese Medicine, China (ZAg;1 8% KX E)). Mr. Yin
conducted his postdoctoral research in Institute of Genetics and Developmental
Biology, Chinese Academy of Sciences.

Mr. Liu Yaoming

Mr. Liu Yaoming, aged 59, was appointed Secretary of the CPC Discipline
Committee of the Company in November 2020. Mr. Liu has previously
served as head of the research and development department, director of
the technology centre, office director, assistant to the chairman, director and
deputy geneal manager of Jiangxi Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical (Group) Co.,
Ltd. He is a member of the management team of CR Jiangzhong Group. Mr.
Liu is a chief Chinese medicine pharmacist and a licensed pharmacist entitled
to special government grants awarded by the State Council. Mr. Liu holds a
Bachelor of Science degree from the Pharmacy Department of Jiangxi College
of Traditional Chinese Medicine, China (now known as Jiangxi University of
Traditional Chinese Medlicine).
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Mr. Wu Jianjun

Mr. Wu Jianjun, aged 48, was appointed as an vice president of the Company
in September 2019, also serves as a director of CR Pharmaceutical Holdings,
China Resources Pharmaceutical Investment Company Limited and Beijing
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. At REEEEEEBRFERF]), CR Pharmaceutical
Commercial, CR Biopharm and a supervisor of CR Jiangzhong Group etc.. Mr.
Wu had been a vice director of Workshop, a vice head of Sales Division and a
vice head of Foreign Trade Division of Beijing Hua'er Company Limited (355
1EZRRIPABRAT, an assistant researcher of Enterprise Reform Office of
Beijing Municipal Commission of Economy and Information Technology (36
HIRET N ER), a vice head of Enterprise Reform Office of the Stated-
owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of Beijing, an
assistant to the general manager of Beijing Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (AE R &&
ZEEB/ARFEAF), a director of China Resources Pharmaceutical (Beijing)
Industrial Development Co., Ltd. GEHEZE JbR) EXZEBRELRF), a
senior director of Production and Manufacturing Division of CR Pharmaceutical,
a general manager of the general manager’s office of CR Pharmaceutical etc..
Mr. Wu holds an executive master’s degree in Business Administration awarded
by Tsinghua University, China.

Mr. Meng Qingsheng

Mr. Meng Qingsheng, aged 52, was appointed as a vice president of the
Company in October 2016. Mr. Meng has engaged in the Information
Technology (IT) consultancy and management business for over 20 years. Mr.
Meng has extensive experience in areas like corporate IT strategic planning,
system structural design, project management and the training of professional
personnel. Mr. Meng has been a presales consultant of Platinum China Co.,
Ltd., a senior consultation manager of Oracle China Co., Ltd.. Mr. Meng has
also acted as a consulting director, assistant director and deputy director of the
Information Management Department of CR Holdings.

Mdm. Tang Na

Mdm. Tang Na, aged 44, was appointed as the chief legal advisor of the
Company in March 2014. Mdm. Tang also serves as a director of Dong-E-E-
Jiao, a supervisor of CR Pharmaceutical Commercial, CR Sanjiu, CR Jiangzhong
Group, Dong-E-E-Jiao and chairman of the supervisory board of China
Resources Zizhu Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. GEBRMEZEERAE]) . Mdm.
Tang served as a partner of Concord & Partners and a director of legal affairs of
CR Pharmaceutical Commercial. Mdm. Tang obtained the qualification of PRC
lawyer and the corporate counsel qualification. Mdm. Tang obtained a bachelor
of law degree from China University of Political Science and Law.
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Mr. Jin Song

Mr. Jin Song, aged 45, was appointed as an assistant president of the Company
in June 2016. Mr. Jin served as a division-level consultant at the State Food and
Drug Administration of the PRC (currently known as the China Food and Drug
Administration of the PRC). Mr. Jin obtained a master’s degree in international
cooperation policy from Ritsumeikan Asia Pacific University, Japan.

Mr. Zhao Bingxiang

Mr. Zhao Bingxiang, aged 48, was appointed as an assistant president of the
Company and the chairman of China Resources Zizhu Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd. EEEEMEEEAR/AT) in September 2016. Mr. Zhao had served as
a regional sales manager and a marketing officer of San-jiu Pharmaceutical
trade Co., Ltd. (= HBEE FEBRAFD), a deputy general manager of
San-jiu Tongda Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (Z FLEZZEZEEBRAE), a senior
researcher of the R&D center of CR Sanjiu and a general manager of China
Resources Sanjiu (Ya'an) Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. GEE = (%) B%
BBR/AE]) . Mr. Zhao has been named as an excellent entrepreneur and
an outstanding entrepreneur in Sichuan province, he has received the State
Scientific and Technological Progress Award — second-class and the Sichuan
Scientific and Technological Progress Award — first-class. Mr. Zhao is a
professor-level senior engineer and he holds a bachelor’s degree in medicine
analysis from Shenyang Pharmaceutical Institute, China (currently known as
Shenyang Pharmaceutical University), a master’s degree in pharmaceutical
preparations from the Peking University, China, and a doctor’s degree in
engineering from Zhejiang University, China.

Mr. Tao Ran

Mr. Tao Ran, aged 55, was appointed as vice president of the Company
in June 2017. Mr. Tao also serves as a director of CR Jiangzhong Group,
China Resources Zizhu Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. EEBEERMEEFREA
@l), a supervisor of China Resources Pharmaceutical Investment Company
Limited, Beijing Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (Jt REEEEMEREZIAE), CR
Pharmaceutical Commercial, CR Sanjiu, CR Double-Crane and Dong-E- E-Jiao.
Mr. Tao has been a deputy chief of Import Division | of China Resources National
Corporation (currently known as China Resources Company Limited), a senior
manager of Investment Division, a general manager of Strategy Division and
a deputy general manager of China Resources Textiles (Holdings) Co., Ltd.
and a senior director of Strategic Development Division, a general manager
of Strategic Development Division of CR Pharmaceutical. Mr. Tao holds a
bachelor’s degree in engineering awarded by Shanghai Jiao Tong University,
China and a master’s degree in economics awarded by Beihang University,
China.

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited Annual Report 2020 91




EFEHS

Report of the Directors

EFEMAREAEEBE_ZT_TE+ A
—t+—HLEFEZREREERREMHR
*o

FEXH

KRB B—REBEERAB - AEBREFERSE
FHEBRELHEMRERR2AZRNE DK
ZEAEERHEE_Z_TE+_HA=+—
HIEEERNEZEBEBDTEINNEEMEER
R0

E S
FERHE_T_TF+_A=+—HLEE
MEBHINAFREI20E121E2KE5HE
mREREEEEWRER-

FRHEARZ B
EERERAKNEBE_S 2+ A=+—
BLEFEZRAKREGRBEK 12T (2
—NE A1) cBRAKRERERBER
MAERBBENR ZFRARSMBEFTRER
TEC—FRAAZ+NBRETZEERERES
j(ﬁtitt)’% HEEB  FREAKREARR 51‘12}75(\:
—FRAZH=ZHHABERSFR-E
E/\EEE%§‘J$@7HX$%%E’]HX%°

LEMERMNBRELFE
AHETERIERBEEATNRESMH &
NERR T —FRBZF+HHEZZ - —
FREAZ+HN\BHE (BEEE2mH) G
ERMBAECFE - ATOERHKERSERE
FERXG FBEEZNRME A XHERIER
KREBFER _ZE-_—FAB-+—HTFHE
R=1+9ERXANBZ2EERDBAELES
EERSEBEBARAB MILATBERFANER
1835E B M IL\5418 s LUEE D ©

92 ooxfm EERmEESEA

The Board is pleased to present its report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is principally
engaged in the research and development, manufacturing, distribution
and retail of an extensive range of pharmaceutical and other healthcare
products. Analysis of the principal activities of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2020 is set out in the note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on pages 120 to 121 of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.12 per Share
for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: HK$0.11). Such final dividend
will not be subject to any withholding tax in Hong Kong. The final dividend is
subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the forthcoming AGM to be held
on 28 May 2021 and the final dividend will be distributed on or about 23 June
2021 to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on 4 June 2021.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 24 May 2021
to 28 May 2021, both days inclusive, in order to determine the identity of the
Shareholders who are entitled to attend the AGM, during which period no
share transfers will be registered. To be eligible to attend the AGM, all properly
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged for registration with the Company'’s share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 21 May 2021.
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The register of members of the Company will also be closed on 4 June 2021,
in order to determine the entitlement of the Shareholders to receive the final
dividend, during which no share transfers will be registered. To qualify for
the final dividend, all properly completed transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration with the Company’s
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m.
on 3 June 2021.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Company'’s business, a discussion and analysis of the Group's
performance during the year, the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group, the material factors underlying its results and financial position, certain
important events occurred since the end of the Reporting Period and the future
development of the Company’s business have been set out in the Management
Discussion and Analysis of this annual report.

The Group shall comply with the relevant provisions governing environmental
protection and appraisal of environmental impact, as well as national
and provincial standards of environmental quality established by various
government authorities. The Group has carried out the relevant environmental
impact assessments and has obtained all the required permits and
environmental approvals for its manufacturing facilities. To ensure compliance
with relevant laws, rules and regulations on pollution control, the Group has
also established waste water treatment and waste management facilities at its
pharmaceutical manufacturing sites.

To the best knowledge and information of the Company, the Group has
complied with the relevant laws, regulations and other applicable requirements
that have a significant impact on the Group during the Reporting Period.

The Group recognizes the importance of good governance to its sustainable
growth and strives to maintain effective communication with its stakeholders,
including its Shareholders, investors, employees, customers and suppliers.

In addition to the above, general information regarding the Group's
performance on environmental and social-related policies, as well as
compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact
on the Group and an account of the Company’s relationships with its key
stakeholders are disc— ussed throughout this annual report. Further details will
be also disclosed in the Company’s Sustainability Report 2020 to be published
on or before 31 May 2021.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

A summary of the Group's results, assets and liabilities for the last five financial
years is set out on page 27 of this annual report. This summary does not form
part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Major Customers

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's sales to its five largest
customers accounted for 3.5% (2019: 3.6%) of the Group's total revenue and
our single largest customer accounted for 1.1% (2019: 0.8%) of the Group's
total revenue.

Major Suppliers

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for 6.2% (2019: 13.5%) of the Group's total purchases and our
single largest supplier accounted for 1.4% (2019: 3.3%) of the Group’s total
purchases.

During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors or any of their close
associates or any Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the number of issued Shares) had any interest in the
Group's five largest customers and suppliers.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the
Reporting Period are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
pages 124 to 125.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the Company'’s reserves available for distribution,

amounted to approximately HK$941.4 million.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2020 are set out in notes 29 and 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors up to the date of this annual report are:

Chairman and non-executive Director
Mr. Wang Chuncheng

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Han Yuewei

Executive Director and Vice Chairman
Mr. Li Xiangming

Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer and Vice President

Mdm. Weng Jingwen

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yu Zhongliang
Mdm. Guo Wei
Mr. Wang Shouye
(resigned on 26 March 2021)
Mr. Lyu Ruizhi
(resigned on 26 March 2021)
Mr. Hou Bo
(appointed on 26 March 2021)
Mr. Qing Mei Ping Cuo
(appointed on 26 March 2021)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mdm. Shing Mo Han Yvonne

Mr. Kwok Kin Fun

Mr. Fu Tingmei

Mr. Zhang Kejian
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In accordance with article 78 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Hou Bo and
Mr. Qing Mei Ping Cuo shall retire from office, and being eligible, have offered
themselves for re-election at the AGM.

In accordance with article 88(1) of the Articles of Association, Mr. Wang
Chuncheng, Mr. Yu Zhongliang, Mr. Fu Tingmei and Mr. Zhang Kejian shall
retire by rotation, and being eligible, have offered themselves for re—election at
the AGM.

Details of the Directors to be re-elected at the AGM are set out in the circular to
the Shareholders dated 28 April 2021.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the Company
are set out on pages 81 to 91 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the independent non-executive
Directors and the Company considers such Directors to be independent
throughout the year ended 31 December 2020 and remain so as of the date of
this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not terminable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No Director or his/her connected entities had a material interest, either directly
or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to
the business of the Group to which the Company, its parent company or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year ended 31
December 2020 and up to the date of this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year and up to the date of this annual report.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee was set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and
senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group's operating
results, individual performance of the directors and senior management and
comparable market practices.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors, and five highest paid individuals
during the Reporting Period are set out in notes 10 and 11 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the retirement and employee benefits scheme of the Group are set
out in note 2.4 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests/short positions of the Directors and
the chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO which were required (a) to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) to be entered into the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (c) as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code were as follows:

INTERESTS/SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES OF THE COMPANY

R4y

BOE

LBk  Approximate

815 Rt E Y=y} AZ1P8H  percentage of

EENY Capacity/ Long/short Number of  shareholding

Name of Director Nature of Interest position ordinary Shares %

FRIE(R BEmEAA ) 300,000 0.0048
Han Yuewei Beneficial Owner Long Position
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, so far as it is known to the
Directors or chief executives of the Company, none of the Directors or chief
executives of the Company had any interests/short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required
(a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) to
be entered into the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO; or () as otherwise to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the year was
the Company, its parent company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement that would enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate, and none of the Directors or any of their spouses or
children under the age of 18 were granted any right to subscribe for the equity
or debt securities of the Company or any other body corporate or had exercised
any such right.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the following
persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the Company) had interests
or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
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B BFEFZE LA ERLRE section 336 of the SFO:
HARE]
fetEZ
B4 BE A
Approximate
Percentage of
515, ke FsaZROE B %A Shareholding in
IEER TR Capacity/ Nature of Number of Long/short the Company
Name of Shareholder Interest Shares held position (%)
hEEBAERAFY Ry E D 3,333,185612 & 53.05
China Resources Company Limited™® Interest in controlled Long position
corporation
FE RN REEfEE RS 3,333,185612 & 53.05
CRI™ Interest in controlled Long position
corporation
CRC Bluesky Limited™ LG EE S 3,333,185,612 & 53.05
Interest in controlled Long position
corporation
EHER" Ry E D 3,333,185612 & 53.05
CR Holdings!” Interest in controlled Long position
corporation
ERHEE (B ARREO BEmEAA 3,333,185612 & 53.05
CRH (Pharmaceutical) Limited™ Beneficial owner Long position
IEREEH L ZEGNEE D 1,296,238,849 & 20.63
BSCOMC®?2) Interest in controlled Long position
corporation
BREEROREERARATY ZEGEEED 1,094,800,000 & 17.43
Beijing State-owned Capital Operation  Interest in controlled Long position
and Management Center Investment ~ corporation
Holdings Limited®
BREAEFROREEEARATY BmBEAA 1,094,800,000 & 17.43
Beijing State-owned Capital Operation Beneﬂoal owner Long position
and Management Center Investment
Management Limited®
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Notes:

(1) CRH (Pharmaceutical) Limited (“CRH (Pharmaceutical)”) directly held
3,333,185,612 Shares. CRH (Pharmaceutical) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CR
Holdings. CR Holdings is a beneficially wholly-owned subsidiary of CRC Bluesky
Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned by CRI. CRIis an ultimately beneficially
wholly-owned subsidiary of China Resources Company Limited. By virtue of
the SFO, each of China Resources Company Limited, CRI, CRC Bluesky Limited
and CR Holdings is deemed to have an interest in the Shares held by CRH
(Pharmaceutical).

2) By virtue of the SFO, BSCOMC is deemed to have an interest in the 201,438,849
Shares held by Bejjing Equity Investment Development Fund (Cayman Il) L.P, an
exempted limited partnership registered in the Cayman Islands, by reason of a
series of funds and corporate structures. Each of which, individually, is interested
in less than 5% in the voting Shares.

3) Bejjing State-owned Capital Operation and Management Center Investment
Management Limited ("BSCOMC Investment Management”, formerly
known as Beijing Pharmaceutical Investment Limited) directly held
1,094,800,000 Shares. BSCOMC Investment Management is a wholly—owned
subsidiary of Bejjing Stateowned Capital Operation and Management Center
Investment Holdings Limited (“BSCOMC Investment Holdings”, formerly
known as Beijing Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited), which is in turn wholly
owned by BSCOMC. By virtue of the SFO, each of BSCOMC and BSCOMC
Investment Holdings is deemed to have an interest in the Shares held by
BSCOMC Investment Management.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the Directors were not aware
of any persons (who were not Directors or chief executive of the Company)
who had an interest or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or which would be required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to
be entered in the register referred to therein.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 12 December 2017 (the
“Share Option Scheme”). No share option was granted under the Share
Option Scheme since adoption.

1.

PURPOSE

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to effectively retain and
attract exceptional talents through a further optimized remuneration
structure, align the interests of the employees and Shareholders, and
effectively motivate both the management team and key employees,
thereby fostering the long-term development of the Company and
maximizing the interests of the Shareholders.

INCENTIVE TARGETS

There are 199 incentive targets under the Share Option Scheme, who are
the Directors (excluding non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors), senior management (including general managers,
deputy general managers, heads of the finance department and those
personnel with such functions, board secretaries and other senior
management pursuant to the Articles of Association), and other key
employees whose management and technical skills may have a direct
impact on the results of operation and strategic development of the
Group.

LIMIT OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The total number of new Shares that may be issued upon exercise
of the share options pursuant to the Share Option Scheme and all
other schemes of the Company (if any) shall not, in aggregate, exceed
628,450,646 Shares, representing 10% of the Company’s total issued
shares as at the date on which the resolution approving the Share Option
Scheme is passed at the extraordinary general meeting.

The Company may seek approval from the Shareholders at a general
meeting of the Company to grant share options exceeding the above
10% limit, provided that share options in excess of such limit are granted
to those incentive targets specifically identified by the Company before
such approval is obtained.

The total number of new Shares that may be issued in relation to the first

grant of the share options to the incentive targets under the Share Option
Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the Company's total issued Shares.
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Unless approved by the Shareholders in the general meeting of the
Company, the total number of Shares which are issued and will be
issued upon exercise of the share options (including both exercised and
outstanding Share options) granted to any one of the incentive targets
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company within any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of
the total issued Shares from time to time. Where further grant of share
options to an incentive target would result in the Shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the share options granted and to be granted
to such incentive target (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
share options) in the 12-month period up to and including the date
of such further grant representing in aggregate over 1% of the total
issued Shares, such further grant must be separately approved by the
Shareholders in general meeting of the Company with such incentive
target and his/her close associates (or his/her associates if such incentive
target is a connected person) abstaining from voting, and in such case,
the Company will send a circular to the Shareholders disclosing all
relevant information necessary under the Listing Rules.

The limit on the number of securities which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and other schemes (if any) shall not exceed 30%
of the relevant class of securities of the Company in issue from time
to time, and no share option may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other schemes of the Company if this will result in this
limit being exceeded.

VALIDITY PERIOD AND EXERCISE PERIOD

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid for ten (10) years from its
effective date, unless otherwise terminated pursuant to the terms
therein.

The incentive targets under each grant of the Share Option Scheme may
only exercise the share options two (2) years after the grant date.

Once the conditions to the exercise are satisfied after the two—year
restriction period commencing from the grant date, the share options
may be exercised by three (3) years thereafter with the proportion of
30%, 30% and 40% of the share options in each year.
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5. EXERCISE PRICE
The exercise price of the share options under the Share Option Scheme
shall be determined by the Board, but shall not be less than the highest
of the followings:

() the closing price of the Shares on the grant date (which must be
a trading day) as stated on the Stock Exchange's daily quotations
sheet; and

(i) the average closing price of the Shares for the five (5) trading
days immediately preceding the grant date as stated on the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the grant date.

The incentive targets, subject to the fulfillment of the relevant conditions
and within the relevant exercise period, may apply with the Company in
respect of the exercise of the share options granted to him/her and shall
pay the relevant subscription amount within 28 days.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed above, no equity-linked agreements were entered into during
the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report, the
Company bought back a total of 1,996,000 Shares on the Stock Exchange at
an aggregate consideration (before expenses) of HK$9,522,940. Particulars of
the Shares bought back are as follows:

BN ERER

Price paid per share
mEE
P&l =B RIEE CEIET)
EanE S| (EBHT) (CEBHT) Aggregate
No. of Shares Highest Lowest Consideration
&5/ BB Month/Year Bought Back (HKS) (HKS) (HKS)
ZETETFMMA April 2020 1,786,000 5.00 4.67 8,598,940
ZETEFHA May 2020 210,000 4.40 4.40 924,000
wBst Total 1,996,000 9,522,940
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During the Reporting Period, all such Shares bought back by the Company were
cancelled on 15 June 2020.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Company have entered into a non—
competition agreement (the “Non-competition Agreement”) with CR
Holdings on 14 September 2016.

The independent non-executive Directors have conducted a review of the
compliance with the Non-competition Agreement by the Company and CR
Holdings in respect of year 2020, including but not limited to the review of
the Non-Competition Agreement and internal confirmations by the Company
and CR Holdings. Having made all reasonable enquiries, nothing has come to
the attention of the independent non-executive Directors that, except for the
Retained Business (as defined in the Prospectus), CR Holdings has engaged
in, participated in or assisted others to engage or participate in, or procure its
subsidiaries (other than the Group) to engage in, participate in or assist others
to engage in, any business that competes or is likely to compete, directly or
indirectly, with our business within the PRC during year 2020.

DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors or their respective associates had engaged in or had any interest in
any business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the businesses of the Group.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 6 May 2019, CR Pharmaceutical Holdings entered into a loan agreement
with CR Leasing in respect of a loan in the maximum facility amount of HK$3
billion with annual interest rate to be determined based on the applicable
market rate offered by the People’s Bank of China for a term of three years.

The Group has entered into the following continuing connected transactions

during the year ended 31 December 2020:

WRZBEANL
SEMERS Connected
Continuing Connected Transactions Parties involved

RIETIRBBIEIRIGE (Wit 1) EHEH
Amended Procurement Framework CR Holdings
Agreement (Note 1)

RIESTIRBBIERIGE (Wat1) EHEE
Amended Procurement Framework CR Holdings
Agreement (Note 1)

EmkEmEERGE W) EEEE

Products and Commodities Sales CR Holdings
Framework Agreement (Note 1)
BB S EE (i22) ERRT

Strategic Cooperation Agreement CR Bank
(Note 2)

RS 1RIE (22) EBIRT

Strategic Cooperation Agreement CR Bank
(Note 2)

IR E1EiRE (1i22) ERIRT

Strategic Cooperation Agreement CR Bank
(Note 2)

BB SRR (Wi2) EHEST

Strategic Cooperation Agreement CR Trust
(Note 2)

BB S EE (Wi22) EHiER

Strategic Cooperation Agreement CR Trust
(Note 2)

LHRRIFRATH
FEER
Annual cap permitted
“E under the
Nature Listing Rules
B & AT HKS million
MR EmiRE 152.5
Procurement of supplies and products
RERE 50.0
Procurement of services
HEERKE® 1173
Sales of products and commodities
FRREBRTEHEEFNEE (B 3,1573
ERKHR
Maximum daily deposit amount placed
with CR Bank (inclusive of interest
receivable)
EBRTRENERERNEARS 16914
XEEERIE
Maximum daily principal amount and
interest in relation to financial products
provided by CR Bank
ERRITRENEMESMER KRS 169.1
NEERBERRAE
Maximum service fees and commissions
for other financial products and services
provided by CR Bank
EBCARENERERNEARS 3383
XEEERIE
Maximum daily principal amount and
interest in relation to financial products
provided by CR Trust
ERELRENEMSMER KRS 789
NEERBERRAE

Maximum services fees and commissions
for other financial products and services
provided by CR Trust

TR
Transaction
amount in 2020

BHE BT HKS million
100.9

45.0

231

2,884.6

4515

19.8

&Nl

.
N
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FELR
WRZBEAL Annual cap permitted =~ —E_EERFLHE
FERERS Connected “E under the Transaction
Continuing Connected Transactions Parties involved Nature Listing Rules amount in 2020
BEBTHKS million  BHEEIT HKS million
BEAERE (1H3) EHHE EHHERENSRBERERNR 2784 9.5
BRBERAKAES
Strategic Cooperation Agreement CR Leasing Maximum service fees and commissions
(Note 3) for the financial services and products
provided by CR Leasing
HERRRE (1) EHRERE HERRREBREERREN 1,465.9 806.2
Sales Framework Agreement (Note 4)  CR Health Sales of medical and pharmaceutical
products and consumables
e SRR (1715) EHER ifgz;%?%ﬁ@%%%\ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ 349 FENil
%
Supply Chain Management Agreement  CR Medical Provision of supply chain management
(Note 5) services for medical supplies by
CR Medical

Vo= Notes:

1. ARG —E—tFE+ A=+ HHEEFERE 1. The Company has entered into a procurement framework agreement with CR
ST IRIBNEZ 8 ([ — E— FIRBIER G Holdings on 30 October 2017 (the “Procurement Framework Agreement
551) o #RIUL » 7N EE B B T [ 2 R 5 [ R PR 2017"), pursuant to which the Group may from time to time purchase from CR
BEBYH A ER (BIFFEME - BE - RER Holdings and its subsidiaries various types of supplies and products (including
Bt Em BT BT REFEF LR EEHER— raw materials, ingredients, apparel and software products, but excluding the
MREFBE T B EE 7 IR L B X procurement of utilities by the Group from CR Holdings and its subsidiaries in
KR (BT AR A ERBERES the Group's ordinary and usual course of business) as well as services (including
BFEHRE LA RETFE 2R 18 logistics services, company secretarial services and services of an integrated
T 11 2B 5 [ B 2K N B 5T 17 B9 # 1 1 as T e-commerce and internet based service platform, but excluding IT technical
JRER)IT BT 1500 ) E T EIRERE support services, property leasing services, and construction, decoration and
HRERIFKERE) BT R FIAER furniture services which are covered by separate agreements entered into between
CE T REER SR —E—+ CR Holdings and the Company) in support of our business. The Procurement
F+A=Z+HBG BEE_ZE—/N\F+_H Framework Agreement 2017 has a term commencing from 30 October 2017
=F—HIE S A RERERRE until 31 December 2018, subject to renewal by mutual consent and negotiation
Bl —E—)\F+_F_+tH ZXLEH between the parties. On 27 December 2018, the Company has renewed the
= EE — E— F R E s E R Procurement Framework Agreement 2017 and entered into the procurement
ST —IEIRAEIER 5 (| —FE— N FIREHE framework agreement with CR Holdings for a term from 1 January 2019 to 31
20155 )) BRI —FE— N FE—F—HEEIT December 2020 (the “Procurement Framwork Agreement 2019").

ROE-ZFEF —H=A—FHK&IE

KRR ZE—HE=FH -+ FLazEREE On 27 March 2019, the Company entered into the Amended Procurement
HFT TANEFT — E— N FIRAEESR 3% (T# Framework Agreement 2019 with CR Holdings for a term commencing on 27
15T — E—NERBEF ) BRI — March 2019 and ending on 31 December 2020 (the “Amended Procurement
E—NF=ZFA -+ tHBBIUIE ZEZEF Framework Agreement 2019") o reflect the amended scope and the relevant
F A= HAIE YRR T F R proposed annual caps for the transactions contemplated under the Procurement
HEZ2 1735 18 FHEETTHIR 55 BAS 65T #018 % Framework Agreement 2019. The Procurement Framework Agreement 2019
TR ZFE LR —F— | FIRBIEZ 1755 has been replaced by the Amended Procurement Framework Agreement
BEHIETT — E— N FIREES a0t A 2019 and has ceased to have effect on 27 March 2019. On 29 December

BERZE—NF=ZA -+t HFEEHL
FECERF T HTANH IR EHEREE
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2020, the Company has entered into the procurement framework agreement
with CR Holdings for a term from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2022 (the
“Procurement Framework Agreement 2021").

On 27 March 20189, the Company has entered into a Products and Commodiities
Sales Framework Agreement (“Products and Commodities Sales Framework
Agreement 2019°), pursuant to which the Group may from time to time supply
products and commodities, which mainly comprise pharmaceutical products, to
CR Holdings andfor its subsidiaries that are not hospitals including, among others,
supermarkets. The Products and Commodiities Sales Framework Agreement 2019
has a term commencing from 27 March 2019 to 31 December 2020. On 29
December 2020, the Company has renewed the Products and Commodities Sales
Framework Agreement 2019 and entered into the products and commodities
sales framework agreement (“Products and Commodities Sales Framework
Agreement 2021") with CR Holdings for a term from 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2022.

The Company has entered into a strategic cooperation agreement with CR Bank
on 12 May 2017 (the “CR Bank Strategic Cooperation Agreement 2017 "),
pursuant to which the Group may place deposits with CR Bank and use other
financial services and products of CR Bank, including (but not limited to) the
provision of letters of credit, guarantee, loans with collaterals, bill of exchange
and discount services, assignment of receivables, RMB and foreign exchange
settlement, entrusted loans and collaterals, financial and cash management
services, financial advisory services and other financial services and products as
agreed by the parties. The CR Bank Strategic Cooperation Agreement 2017 has
a term commencing from 20 May 2017 until 31 December 2018, subject to
renewal by the parties. On 27 December 2018, the Company has renewed the
CR Bank Strategic Cooperation Agreement 2017 and entered into the strategic
cooperation agreement (the “CR Bank Strategic Cooperation Agreement
2019”) with CR Bank for a term from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2020.
On 29 December 2020, the Company has renewed the CR Bank Strategic
Cooperation Agreement 2019 and entered into the strategic cooperation
agreement (“CR Bank Strategic Cooperation Agreement 2021") with CR
Bank for a term from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2022.
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The Company has entered into a strategic cooperation agreement with CR
Trust on 12 May 2017 (the “CR Trust Strategic Cooperation Agreement
2017"), pursuant to which the Group may use the services and products
provided by CR Trust, including (but not limited to) cash management, asset
management, custodian trust loan services, assignment of receivables, advisory
services in relation to redemptory monetary capital for sale, and other financial
or trust services and products as agreed by the parties. The CR Trust Strategic
Cooperation Agreement 2017 has a term commencing from 20 May 2017 until
31 December 2018, subject to renewal by the parties. On 27 December 2018,
the Company has renewed the CR Trust Strategic Cooperation Agreement 2017
and entered into the strategic cooperation agreement (“CR Trust Strategic
Cooperation Agreement 2019 ") with CR Trust for a term from 1 January 2019
to 31 December 2020. On 29 December 2020, the Company has renewed the
CR Trust Strategic Cooperation Agreement 2019 and entered into the strategic
cooperation agreement (“CR Trust Strategic Cooperation Agreement 2021")
with CR Trust for a term from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2022.

The Company has entered into a strategic cooperation agreement with CR
Leasing on 12 May 2017 (the “CR Leasing Strategic Cooperation Agreement
20177), pursuant to which the Group may use the financial services and products
provided by CR Leasing, including (but not limited to) financial leasing, leasing and
the related consultancy and guarantee services, and factoring in relation to the
Group's principal businesses. The CR Leasing Strategic Cooperation Agreement
2017 has a term commencing from 20 May 2017 until 31 December 2018,
subject to renewal by the parties.

The Company has entered into a supplemental agreement in relation to the CR
Leasing Strategic Cooperation Agreement 2017 with CR Leasing on 7 May 2018,
pursuant to which the term of the CR Leasing Strategic Cooperation Agreement
2017 has been extended from 31 December 2018 to 31 December 2019, subject
to renewal by the parties, and the original annual cap for the financial services and
products to be provided by CR leasing for the year ended 31 December 2018 was
revised.

The Company has entered into a supplemental agreement (the “CR Leasing
Strategic Cooperation Agreement 2020") in relation to the CR Leasing
Strategic Cooperation Agreement 2017 with CR Leasing on 9 December 2019,
pursuant to which the term of the CR Leasing Strategic Cooperation Agreement
2017 has been extended from 31 December 2019 to 31 December 2020, subject
to renewal by the parties, and the original annual cap for the financial services and
products to be provided by CR leasing for the year ended 31 December 2019 was
revised.
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On 29 December 2020, the Company has renewed the CR Leasing Strategic
Cooperation Agreement 2020 and entered into the strategic cooperation
agreement (“CR Leasing Strategic Cooperation Agreement 2021") with CR
Leasing for a term from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2022.

The Company has entered into a sales framework agreement with CR Health
on 12 May 2017 (the “Sales Framework Agreement 2017"), pursuant to
which the Group may from time to time supply medical and pharmaceutical
products and consumables, including prescription medicines and over-the-
counter (OTC) drugs to CR Health, its associates and/or the hospitals that are
managed by CR Health and/or its associates. The Sales Framework Agreement
2017 has a term commencing from 12 May 2017 until 31 December 2018. On
31 December 2018, the Company has renewed the Sales Framework Agreement
2017 and entered into the sales framework agreement (the “Sales Framework
Agreement 2019 ") with CR Health for a term from 1 January 2019 to 31
December 2020.

On 29 December 2020, the Company has renewed the Sales Framework
Agreement 2019 and entered into the sales framework agreement (“Sales
Framework Agreement 2021") with CR Health for a term from 1 January 2021
to 31 December 2022.

The Company has entered into a cooperation framework agreement (the
“Cooperation Framework Agreement”) with CR Medical on 17 September
2020, pursuant to which CR Medical, its subsidiaries and the medical institutions
owned or managed by it (collectively the “CR Medical Group ”) shall provide
the Group supply chain management services of medical supplies in relation
to establishment of regional platforms and streamlining of supply chain
management procedures in order to improve the efficiency of supply chain
management of medical supplies of the Group and reduce the corresponding
costs. CR Medical Group shall receive management service fees from the Group
for the abovementioned services. The term of the Cooperation Framework
Agreement shall commence from the date of the agreement and expiring on 31
December 2022. Subject to compliance with the Listing Rules, the parties may
then renew the Cooperation Framework Agreement.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the aforesaid
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the transactions have
been entered into:

(i)
(i)
(if)

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
on normal commercial terms or better; and
in accordance with relevant agreements governing them on terms that

are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a
whole.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged the auditor
of Company to report on the Group'’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
" Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued
his unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group on pages 105 to
109 of the Annual Report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.
A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

Certain related party transactions as disclosed in Note 42 to the consolidated
financial statements constituted as connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and is in
compliance with the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, during the year, the Company had no
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions which fell to be
disclosed in accordance with the provisions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules in relation to the disclosure of connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions.

DONATIONS

During the Reporting Period, the charitable and other donations made by the
Group amounted to HK$38,835,000.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The name of directors who have served on the board of the subsidiaries of the
Company during the year and up to the date of this annual report is available
on the Company'’s website at www.crpharm.com under” Investor Relations —
Corporate Governance”.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association provide that every Director or other officer of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities (including any such liability as mentioned in Section
468(4) of the Companies Ordinance) which he/she may sustain or incur in the
execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto, and
no Director or other officer shall be liable for any loss, damages or misfortune
which may happen to or be incurred by the Company in the execution of the
duties of his/her office or in relation thereto, provided that this article shall only
have effect in so far as it is not invalidated by the Companies Ordinance.
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So far as may be permitted by the Companies Ordinance, if any Director
or other person shall become personally liable for the payment of any sum
primarily due from the Company, the Board may execute or cause to be
executed any mortgage, charge, or security over or affecting the whole or any
part of the assets of the Company by way of indemnity to secure the Director or
person so becoming liable as aforesaid from any loss in respect of such liability.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liability and costs associated
with defending any proceedings which may be brought against the directors of
the Company and its subsidiaries.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The events after the Reporting Period are disclosed in note 46 to the
consolidated financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee had, together with the management and external
auditor of the Company, reviewed the accounting principles and policies
adopted by the Group and the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 57 to 80 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the total issued Shares, the
prescribed minimum percentage of public float approved by the Stock
Exchange and permitted under the Listing Rules, was held by the public at all
times during the Reporting Period and as of the date of this annual report.

AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Company for the year have been audited by
Ernst & Young. A resolution will be submitted at the forthcoming AGM to
reappoint Ernst & Young as independent auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Wang Chuncheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2021
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To the members of China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Resources
Pharmaceutical Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 112 to 300, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “"Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For
each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Audiitor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report,
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the
matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Impairment of goodwill and trademarks with indefinite useful lives

REHEIRAIEEFRIIEER B HE

Goodwill and trademarks with indefinite useful lives
as at 31 December 2020 were HK$21,072 million
and HK$2,442 million, respectively. The impairment
tests performed by management regarding various
cash-generating units (“CGUs") involved significant
judgement for the determination of the value in use
of the CGUs.
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RERNEERERD RSB E21,07288 7T
KRAEE2 4288 -EEEMITRREELSE
il (MREELBA) ETETREEL BN
FREERYBE R KB ARHER o

This is a key audit matter due to the magnitude,
the complexity, and the management's estimates
involved in the impairment testing. The accounting
policies and related disclosures are included in notes
2.4, 3, 18 and 19 to the financial statements.
ERREAEFTS RREEHREEREIERE
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BEHIN MM ARWNEE2.4318%19°

114 200554 mxpmeEsRA

Our procedures in relation to the impairment assessment of goodwill and
trademarks with indefinite useful lives included, but were not limited to:
KMEMAARRTEAFHANEE AERNRETLEFEEET
PRI :

- Considered the reasonableness of the determination of the CGUs to
which the goodwiill is allocated;
- ETRETHEMOEZREELEBANSGIEN;

- Evaluated the models used in determining the value in use of the CGUs;
-  HMEAREERTELBAGHABENRE ;

- Compared the cash flow forecasts to approved budgets, the historical
operating results and other relevant market and economic information
to ensure the reasonableness of the cash flow forecasts, as well as tested
the underlying calculations;

- BREAERAIELZETRE VIBTRSEEREHMBRATIEMN
KEERETH MBRFRREAERAINGIEN  WiREE6E
8

- Reviewed the reasonableness of key assumptions used in the impairment
testing models and sensitivity analysis performed; and
-  BETAEARERENGRE TR ARARERROSIEY &

- Assessed the appropriateness of the disclosures of impairment
assessment in the consolidated financial statements.
- HMEEREMBERERTAETGIRENEE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Control over Dong-E-E-Jiao Company Limited (“Dong-E-E-Jiao”)

HREPBREERAE (TR B9EEF

As disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, the directors of the Company
reassessed the Group’s practical ability to direct the
relevant activities of Dong-E-E-Jiao, an investee of
the Group, unilaterally by considering the Group's
absolute size of holding in Dong-E-E-Jiao and the
relative size of and dispersion of the shareholdings
owned by the other shareholders and the practical
right to appoint the majority members of the board
of directors of Dong-E-E-Jiao.
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This is a key audit matter due to the significant
judgement associated with management’s
assessment of control over Dong-E-E-Jiao.

B EIRE S R AR BRI T LB
FERFIER LETh RSt EIE

Our procedures in relation to the reassessment of control over Dong-E-E-Jiao
included, but were not limited to:

IR [ BRI ST EER 2 R F 8RR ETRR

- Reviewed the basis of management's reassessment of control against the
requirements of relevant accounting standards;

- LDUEREStERNEXRBEEEEEN T EERIRZER

- Assessed the impact of the Group’s absolute size of equity interest held
with reference to the percentage of equity interest in Dong-E-E-Jiao
owned by the Group, the voting rights of the Group conferred by the
statutory documents of Dong-E-E-Jiao, and other evidence such as the
composition of the board of directors, resolutions of the shareholders’
and board of directors’” meetings of Dong-E-E-Jiao; and

- ERn %l%&ﬁ%ﬂﬂﬁ%’]ﬂx%ﬁ o EE ~ SRFAIRR R E Xt e H
EERA (MR B E S G AEM Hxi/\%;&%$’;’;%/\m
B) BT EEENKER LJ\.:ME EEESANEERENTE
jj ) &

- Assessed the impact of the relative size of the equity interest held by
other shareholders and the extent of dispersion with reference to the
number of the other shareholders, the percentage of equity interest, and
voting rights held by the other shareholders.

- ERHEMEEAPTRERE PSR ER D bR R DT
EEHMRRNBEFRRENTEENUREDBIRE
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our condlusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Wu Ka Lai Cary.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

26 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

BEZTZF+ "B =+—HIEFE Yearended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
[OF BT T BT T
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Wz REVENUE 5 200,423,023 204,453,869
HEMAE Cost of sales (168,129,162)  (170,436,179)
EH GROSS PROFIT 32,293,861 34,017,690
Ha A Other income 6 1,504,420 1,249,832
Htham K 8518 Other gains and losses 7 (1,511,033) (39,234)
THE KD iR Selling and distribution expenses (16,029,445) (19,188,523)
TR Administrative expenses (5,564,495) (5,203,769)
HAhgs Other expenses (1,347,144) (1,260,626)
RBEWA Finance income 8 675,765 636,181
RRE A AN Finance costs 8 (3,153,273) (3,712,401)
RRE A S o JBEE Finance costs, net (2,477,508) (3,076,220)
PMEFERB R EERERH  Share of profits of associates and joint
ventures 206,852 140,417
FRIRETIEF] PROFIT BEFORE TAX 9 7,075,508 6,639,568
FriSfiBs Income tax expense 12 (1,751,867) (1,541,765)
FERaH PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 5,323,641 5,097,803
FEqL Attributable to:
KRBHEB A Owners of the Company 3,297,126 3,286,419
JEIER R Non-controlling interests 2,026,515 1,811,384
5,323,641 5,097,803
A EBRERFAA EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
FELSREA ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY 14
HARKE#E (B ) Basic and diluted (HK$) 0.52 0.52
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BE_Z"ZF+"HB=—+—HIEFE Yearended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FA @A PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 5,323,641 5,097,803
Hth 2w, (8518) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)
AR B BRI A] 5E B #T 7 2E E 18 e B Other comprehensive income/loss) that
B2 Emifiem,~ (B8 - may be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
PMEBE R T EREENES) Share of changes in translation reserve of
associates - (1,773)
BEBINEFEENERER Exchange differences arising on translation
of foreign operations 5,310,801 (1,977,661)
BERERBRIBEENDEEEGN Other comprehensive income/(loss) that
/H\ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ 5/ (B518) may be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods 5,310,801 (1,979,434)
AR A BRI & B B EEm A Other comprehensive income/loss) that
Hmzmihezm -~ (B8 - will not be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
EHTERTImataE, (B538)  Gain/loss) on the remeasurement of
defined benefit plan 19,001 (11,593)
REBEREYEREEYE  KE Gain on revaluation of property, plant and
Fes& RN E > 3 FRIRIE equipment upon transfer to investment
properties, net of tax 58,749 201,382
AR HRIABENMSEEEEN Other comprehensive income that will not be
Hi>mEW S reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods 77,750 189,789
Hivzmkzs (B518) » 0 iRiE OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOMEALOSS),
NET OF TAX 5,388,551 (1,789,645)
FREHEWTAREE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR 10,712,192 3,308,158
(S Attributable to:
EN/NETEZZS N Owners of the Company 6,474,145 2,447,406
Sl Non-controlling interests 4,238,047 860,752
10,712,192 3,308,158
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_EBETEF+"H=+—H 31 December 2020

2020 2019

FsE BT BT

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
JEREEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
M BB REE Property, plant and equipment 15 17,324,389 16,322,310
FRAMEE Right-of-use assets 17(a) 5,317,849 5,507,549
KREMZE Investment properties 16 1,935,910 1,724,234
e Goodwill 18 21,072,192 19,306,440
B EE Intangible assets 19 6,939,633 6,049,195
REeEbENER Interests in joint ventures 20 11,391 96,602
REE QBN R Interests in associates 21 5,720,721 4,735,488
HthIERBETMEE Other non-current financial assets 22 602,344 412,215
IRIERRTEE Deferred tax assets 31 969,852 856,088
HMIERSEE Other non-current assets 23 2,368,622 2,072,276
IEMENE ELERE Total non-current assets 62,262,903 57,082,397
BB E CURRENT ASSETS
75 Inventories 24 24,584,761 22,332,374
B 5 R EH WA Trade and other receivables 25 67,702,982 63,772,489
HEHMREEmMEE Other current financial assets 22 34,613,823 26,403,362
& Uk R B 5 =R I8 Amounts due from related parties 42 2,440,119 3,230,581
AU B2 18 Tax recoverable 43,745 65,183
ERRER Pledged deposits 26 6,491,930 4,614,611
RERIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 26 11,231,497 12,524,016
TMENE EARRR Total current assets 147,108,857 132,942,616
mEaE CURRENT LIABILITIES
B 5 K L FE (T 7B Trade and other payables 27 66,396,004 60,039,533
SHN8E Contract liabilities 28 2,477,763 1,651,904
HEaE Lease liabilities 17(b) 709,958 614,389
e BB 5 =B Amounts due to related parties 42 12,011,513 14,100,989
RITE™N Bank borrowings 29 35,457,220 27,486,200
FEIES Bonds payable 30 4,824,692 2,288,443
FEIRIE Tax payable 671,127 452,959
BINEF RS Defined benefit obligations 32 71,378 37,252
mENEE4REE Total current liabilities 122,619,655 106,671,669
TMENEEFRE NET CURRENT ASSETS 24,489,202 26,270,947
WEERRSHERA TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 86,752,105 83,353,344
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TEBECEF+"H=+—H 31 December 2020

2020 2019
FdEE BT T BT T
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ERBIAE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
IRITEMN Bank borrowings 29 792,072 3,579,485
FEES Bonds payable 30 1,215,729 5,663,955
HEaE Lease liabilities 17(b) 1,155,708 1,632,967
RIEIRIEE R Deferred tax liabilities 31 1,668,871 1,506,573
RIREHIETE Defined benefit obligations 32 1,032,467 566,980
HMIERHHERE Other non-current liabilities 33 857,814 821,563
IEmEN B ([ELERE Total non-current liabilities 6,722,661 13,771,523
BEFE NET ASSETS 80,029,444 69,581,821
#m EQUITY
AR AEEER Equity attributable to owners of the
Company
&N Share capital 34 27,241,289 27,241,289
B Reserves 19,228,537 13,470,059
46,469,826 40,711,348
JEIER R Non-controlling interests 36 33,559,618 28,870,473
AR TOTAL EQUITY 80,029,444 69,581,821
BRIE(E SEE
Han Yuewei Weng Jingwen
BE EE
Director Director
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BEZTZF+ "B =+—HIEFE Yearended 31 December 2020

KATEANE
Attributable to owners of the Company
N O nEER EQNR R
RE EREE LERREE  AHEE i fiff  EfiEE REE Bt Ba  AEs
Statutory Property  Exchange Non-
Share Capital surplus Merger  revaluation  fluctuation Other  Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total interests equity

Eitn  BEtn  ENTn  BBTn  ENTn BBTn ERTn ERTn BT ARTn  BETn
HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000

RIBZZE-FA-H  At1lanuay 2020 21241289  (6,6426%) 150883  (513534) 427627  (2,586,949) 175 22634553 40,711,348 28870473 69,581,821
ERigkl Profitfor the year - - - - - - - 3207126 3297126 2026515 5323641
ERAMEE Other comprehensive income/(oss)
Wi/ E8). forthe year.
BERIES S Exchange differences on tranglation
EENERER of foreign operations = = = = - 3102188 = - 3102188 2208613 5310801
FER @2 Remeasurement gain on
BifstElE defined benefit plan = = = = = = 16,082 = 16,082 2919 19,001
BEERENER  Gainon revaluation of property,
SEMEEER  plantand equipment upon
RIS MBRME  transfer to investment properties,
net of tax - - - - 58,749 - - - 58,749 - 58,749
ER2ENRLE Total comprehensive incorne
for the year - - - - 58749 3,102,188 16,082 3297126 6474145 4238047 10,712,192
FERRRTE Capital contribution from non-
controling interests - - - - - - - - - 38,304 38,304
BIoEARERN lssuance of finandial nstruments
SBTE W) dassified as equity (Vote 39 = > > > - - - - - 1154306 1,154,306
R (i) Shares repurchased (ore 34) = = = = = = = 953) 953) = (953)
WEEMBAR (:537)  Acquisiions of subsidiaries (Vote 37) = = = = = = = o - 125269 125269
HBATEERA™  Repurchase of shares of
a subsidiary** - (15,068) - - - - - - (15,068)  (120844) (135912
ERZE—NERERE 2019final dividend decired
(13) (Note 13) - - - - - - - (691,076)  (691,076) - (691,076)
NEZHEAERE  Distrbutions to holders of finandia
SHTARAE instruments classified as equity
i) (Note 35) - - - - - - - - - (16581 (76581)
AEEREREKRS  Dividend dedared to non-controling
shareholders - - - - - - - - - (669,35) (669,356
RIE-ZE At 31 December 2020
+-A=1+-8 27201289 (6,657,764)*  150,883* (513534)* 486,376  515,239* 16,257* 25,231,080* 46,469,826 33,559,618 80,029,444

* BEBEROITGESIBRLINRAZESHE  * These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
HAEE19,228,537,00057 (ZFE—4F | B HK$19,228,537,000 (2019: HK$13,470,059,000) in the consolidated statement
13,470,059,0005T) ° of financial position.

o RIETEFTFAXRABZHEASRMEEE <% In February 2020, Dong-E-E-Jiao Company Limited (“Dong-E-E-Jiao”), a subsidiary
%175 R 5] (5 [fefE) [E1 20.60% 8952 17 © of the Company, repurchased 0.60% of its shares.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HEZ"ZF+"HB=+—HIEFEE Yearended 31 December 2020

KRATER N
Attributable to owners of the Company
-  ongER EQM ¥R
BE ERGE TERRER  ARERE £ % Higs  REEN szt Bn  AER
Statutory Property  Exchange Non-
Share Capital surplus Merger  revaluation fluctuation Other  Retained controling Total
capital Tesenve Tesenve Tesenve resene resene feseve - eamings Total interests equity

BTn  BETn  EfTn  BETn BT BBTn BT BBTn BT ABTn BiTn
HKJ000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000

RIE—HE-F-H At1lanuay2019 21241289 (6479849 150,883 (513,534) 226245 (1,555474) 9,095 20,165,120 39243775 21,155,750 60,399,525
i) Profit for the year - - - = . = - 3286419 3286419 1811384 5097803
EREMEE Other comprehensive Income/(oss)

W&/ (B8 for the year
BEEMEEES  bchange differences on

ERER translation of foreign operations - - - - - (1031243) - - (1031243) (46418 (1,977661)
FER @A Remeasurement gain on

EfrrElm defined benefit plan - - - - - - (8.920) - (8.920) 673 (1159)
MEBEATESR  Shareof changes in translation resenve

HENEY of associates - - - 5 5 23) S S 23 (1,541) 1773

BETLENEREL  Gain on revaluation of property, plant
NE BERKED  and equipment upon transfer to

Wi b AE investment properties, net of tax = = = - W3R = = - 0038 - 0038
ER2AENRLE Total comprehensive incorne
for the year - - - - 201382 (1,031,475 (8920) 3286419  2,447406 860,752 3,308,158
JHERERTE Capital contribution from non-
controling shareholders - - - - - - - - - 171,169 171,169

BInEARERN Issuance of financial intruments
SRTE M) dasifid as equity o 35) = = . - - - - -

230,746 2,230,746

WEENBAR (172837)  Acquisiions of subsidiaries (Vote 37) 5 5 5 5 5 S S S - 6020981 6020981
HEMBAT (138  Disposalof subsidiares fMote 38) = = = = = = = 5 - (134550 (134550)
e RS Acquistons of non-controling interests - (162847) - - - - - - (e84 B3 (462978)
ER-E-NERERE 2018 final dhidend dedlared (ot 73)

Wi#3) = = S - - - - (816986 (816,986 - (816,986

DRENBAREE  Distibutions to holders of finanda
THIAREE instruments lasifed as equity

(H#3) (ote 35) - - - - - - - - - (19 (11949
FEEERREERRE  Diidend decared tonon-controling
shareholders - - - - - - - - - (1122295 (1,122,295)
RIZ-NE At 31 December 2019
+ZB=+-8 27241289 (6,642,69)F 150883 (513534 427.627% (2,586,949)* 175%  22,634553* 40,711,348 28870473 69,581,821
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BEZTZF+ "B =+—HIEFE Yearended 31 December 2020
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Finance costs

Share of profits of associates and joint ventures

Interest income

Dividend income

Loss on disposal of items of property, plant and
equipment,net

Loss on disposal of intangible assets

Gain on disposal/deregistration of subsidiaries

Gain on disposal/deregistration joint ventures

Fair value changes of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Fair value changes of investment properties

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Amortisation of intangible assets

Impairment loss recognised on intangible assets

Impairment loss recognised on right-of-use asset

Impairment loss recognised on trade receivables, net

Impairment loss recognised on other receivables, net

Impairment loss recognised on items of property,
plant and equipment

Impairment loss recognised on goodwill

Government grants

Allowance for slow-moving and obsolete inventories

Increase in inventories
Increase in trade and other receivables
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due from related parties
Increase in trade and other payables
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities
Increase in amounts due to related parties
Increase in other non-current liabilities
(Decrease)/Increase in amounts due to

non-controlling interests

Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid

Net cash flows generated from operating activities

Mzt
Notes

~N NN

~N N N N O O WO N~

~

2020

BRI
HK$'000

7,075,508

3,153,273
(206,852)
(675,765)

(4.412)

45,281
(27,436)
(11,120)

(96,745)
(4,559)
1,500,932
700,309
242,812
71,057
9,406
780,417
70,011

8,382
588,142
(64,040)
304,272

13,464,873

(805,547)
(5,033,861)
(86,835)
1,541,026
573,247
56,161
13,152

(19,840)

9,702,376
(1,496,076)

8,206,300

2019

BT
HK$'000

6,639,568

3,712,401
(140,417)
(636,181)

(8,047)

6,421
1,588
(1,091,295)

(47,683)
14,433
1,432,208
684,638
248,001

446,927
29,651

37,318
722,587
(101,700)

67,099

12,017,517

(537,474)
(7,804,509)
217,567
6,189,599
(282,208)
6,929
188,015

10,248

10,005,684
(1,864,745)

8,140,939
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HEZ"ZF+"HB=+—HIEFEE Yearended 31 December 2020

RARHASRERE
HENE BERRBREMENE

HERMABTMEERSTE
HERNBEMSTEA
BREFEHE—-BNBABMSHA
HEMBAT
BIERRTEEEFE
=Ll

BB LHRERERE
EBEBEARRE
MBS A BERERM
ISERER 3 8

KEIZEER

ENE BERRERERE
ENEVBERS

BENE BERREER
BEEVE

BEEAREE

BB AR IRE () /WRE
HEBEAARGERE
RERBEAARGELE
BEAMRSTREE
BAKEREAR
XTREFEYBEREARNE

REED (FA) /FSHREREFE

(i
Notes

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from disposal of items of property,

plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of other current financial assets

Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets

Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary in prior year

Disposal of subsidiaries 38

Net changes in pledged bank deposits

Interest received

Dividend received from unlisted equity investments

Dividend received from associates

Repayment of advancements to associates

Receipt of government grants

Repayment of entrusted loans

Deposits for items of property, plant and equipment

Deposits for intangible assets

Purchase of items of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

Purchase of right of use asset

Acquisitions of subsidiaries, net of cash (paid)/received 37

Disposal of associate and joint ventures

Investment in associates and joint ventures

Purchases of other current financial assets

Prepayment for acquisitions of subsidiaries

Payment for acquisitions of subsidiaries in prior years

Net cash flows (used in)/from investing activities

2020

BRI
HK$'000

94,936
35,609,259
872,786
73,796
(1,117,147)
886,464
4,412
31,630
445,960
91,676
54,272
98,556
16,464
(1,669,195)
(368,309)
(180,995)
(1,065,182)
90,482
(371,448)
(35,755,449)

(97,594)
(2,254,626)

2019

BT
HK$'000

91,506
39,017,906
41,219
185,868
(1,052,744)
697,948
8,047
21,913
119,062
89,537
(52,104
(17,463
(1,596,697
(374,248
1,143,153
11,164
(1,174,527
(35,628,402
(93,773
(428,573

)
)
)
)

SR

1,008,792

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited Annual Report 2020 127




BEHRERER

BHEZ"ZF+"HA=+—HIEFEE Yearended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
Mzt BT BT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
METBFRRRERE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
RITERITERE Proceeds from bank borrowings 55,085,788 55,823,978
EIEHFMEHNE Proceeds from issuances of bonds = 1,116,350
ERE SR AE Proceeds from short-term debentures 4,499,880 3,349,050
(BB REHBERAEN (Repayment of loans to)/proceeds of loans from
B an intermediate holding company (4,452,397) 10,122,062
BEIDBEAEEN Proceeds from issuance of financial
TR IAMFHERE instruments classified as equity, net 1,154,306 2,230,746
FERERIE Capital contribution from non-controlling shareholders 38,304 171,169
BERTE Repayment of bank borrowings (53,030,186) (72,814,336)
BEAMED Repayment of other borrowings = (369,022)
BEENES Repayment of bonds payable 30 (2,262,869) =
EBREPRES Repayment of short-term debentures (4,499,880) (6,698,100)
BEREES (BB /FiE3E (Repayment of)/proceeds from asset-backed securities (248,653) 791,207
SHESR Payment of lease liabilities 17 (684,778) (653,954)
REBERBH Advances from related parties 2,472,282 =
BRHE Interest paid (2.851,630) (3,614,790)
BRRE Dividend paid (691,076) (816,986)
jEUNGI| BT ) Repurchase of shares of a subsidiary (135,912) (162,847)
Pk Share repurchase (9,523) =
WEE IR Acquisitions of non-controlling interests = (300,131)
ENFHERRRRE Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders (798,167) (1,184,249)
MEEEHARES RERE Net cash flows used in financing activities (6,414,511) (13,009,853)
RERREEBYRLFH Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (462,837) (3,860,122)
R—B—BNRERREEEY Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 12,548,141 16,636,337
SMNEEZEFNTE ) 25 Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net (853,807) (228,074)
ERRERRTEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 11,231,497 12,548,141
Re RS EBWERDIT ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
EAMBINRAMTES RBTEE  Cash and bank balances as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position 26 11,231,497 12,524,016
=EA RIS REIERER Restricted time deposits with maturity less than three
months 26 - 24,125
ReERERMARERFEEEN Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
statement of cash flows 11,231,497 12,548,141
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_EBECEF+"H=+—H 31 December 2020

1. REREEER CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
AATA—FRNEEBEMAINRNE The Company is a public limited company incorporated in Hong Kong
[RAT ERIPNEBHMEXRZRAERA and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BB _E—R"E+A-+/\HEL with effect from 28 October 2016. Its immediate holding company is
o ﬁg;ﬂv‘cgﬂf\ SAENER (B®) A CRH (Pharmaceutical) Limited (“CRHP"), a company incortporated in
[RBAT (MEMER (BE) ) ) —RNHEB the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) and its ultimate holding company is
BERBEE ((RBELHEE) SWMEIHN China Resources Company Limited (“CRCL"), a state-owned enterprise
NE)  MERKRIER NG ATEERE established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

RAR (THFEER  —RKRPEARHE
ME (T E) RIZEB ) o
AATHEMMEEMI AT EE TS The address of the registered office of the Company is 41/F, China
EIEIGEE N AELIIB - AATNTE Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The
W B b BE oA S SHCO (7 SO OM ) 0 O 3 88 principal place of business of the Company is Room 4104-05, 41/F, China
[BE41484104-05% Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
AABA—FREBIER AT AEFTE The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is principally
NEBRELFREHOEE SHEEEE engaged in the manufacturing, distribution and retail of pharmaceutical
and healthcare products.
BREKEATNER Information about subsidiaries
AANBTEREATMEEBUT : Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
ey S BRTLER
St B R HftRA AADEGKREESLE TEEH
Place of Issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
registration and registered attributable Principal
Name business share capital tothe Company activities
2020 2019
EHBEERERAD (EHEEER) R/ FEl AR 100% 100% REZRK
Hiz53)c) 15,000,000,0007%
China Resources Pharmaceutical Holdings PRC/Mainland China RMB15,000,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited Company ("CR Pharmaceutical
Holdings") (Note (3)(c))
EHRELEERRAR (EBEELSE) e/ FEl AR 100% 100% REZRK
Wz BIb) 500,000,0007%
China Resources Pharmaceutical Investment PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding

Company Limited ("CR Pharmaceutical
Investment”) (Note (3)(b))
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1. REIREEER @) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

ERMBARNER @

Eap Ak BRTLER
Bl e Hftx FADEGRESSLE FTBEH
Place of Issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
registration and registered attributable Principal
Name business share capital tothe Company  activities
2020 2019
EB-NBERMARAE ((FEH=H) R/ HRER AR#E  6360% 6360% EREERFE
Wiz 1)RG) ) 978,900,0007%
China Resources Sanjiu Medical & Pharmaceutical ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB978,900,000  63.60%  63.60%  Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd. (“CR Sanjiu") (Notes (1) and (3)(d) pharmaceutical products
EBRMMR W2GI) R,/ HEIRy i AR#E  5662% 5662% REZK
422,771,67570
China Resources Dong-E-E-Jiao (Note (3)b) PRC/Mainland China RMB422,771,675  56.62%  56.62%  Investment holding
REMB W) 2) GldEE) R,/ HEIRy i ARE  2231% 217% EREEREE
654,021,5377¢
Dong-E-E-Jiao (Notes (1), (2), (3)c)anal4)) PRC/Mainland China RMB654,021,537  2231%  22.17%  Manufacturing and sale of
pharmaceutical products
FTRBEEFERETAR WWiEGI) e,/ FER AR 100% 100% KEZR
2,320,000,0007%
Beijing Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (Note (3)@)) PRC/Mainland China RMB2,320,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
EWITEREREMAE (EHITEE) +E/FEAM AR 51% 51% HEREEKHEE
Wiz eIb) 254,102,04175
China Resources Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical Group  PRC/Mainland China RMB254,102,041 51% 51%  Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd. (“CR Jiangzhong Group") (Note (3)b) pharmaceutical products
THREERNBRAR (DIHEX) R/ HRER AR 2195%  2195% EREERBE
(W1a(1) Gla)K(4) 630,000,0007%
Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB630,000,000  21.95%  21.95%  Manufacturing and sale of
("Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical ) pharmaceutical products
(Notes (1), (3)(cand (4))
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1. AEIREEREN @) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

BB ARNER @

Eap Al BRTLER

TR R S HftRx FADEGRESSLE FTBER

Place of Issued Percentage of

incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest

registration and registered attributable Principal
Name business share capital tothe Company  activities

2020 2019
EHEEEERNBRAR (EHEE) E/ RE A AR 59.99% 59.99% EREERBE
Wiz 1)RG) ) 1,043,237,7107%

China Resources Double-Crane PRC/Mainland China RMB1,043,237,710  59.99%  59.99%  Manufacturing and sale of
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“"CR Double-Crane”) pharmaceutical products
(Notes (1) and (3)(d)

ERREREERABRAT R/ HRER AR 100%  100% HEREE

(EEBBEEE) W26 9,191,703,3567C
China Resources Pharmaceutical PRC/Mainland China RMB9,191,703,356 100% 100%  Trading of pharmaceuticals

Commercial Group Co., Ltd. products
("CR Pharmaceutical Commercial”) (Note (3)b)

FNER=NBEEZERAR WAGL)  +E/FERM AR 6360% 6360% ERIHE
60,000,000
Shenzhen Huarun Sanjiu Medicine Trading Co., Ltd.  PRC/Mainland China RMB60,000,000  63.60%  63.60%  Sale of pharmaceutical
(Note (3)b)) products
FIEBNIREEBRAR WG0) E/ RE A AR 6360% 6360% ZEREE
500,000,000

Shenzhen Huarun Jiuxin Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000,000  63.60%  63.60%  Manufacturing of

(Note (3)(b)) pharmaceutical products
ERMIURBEERAR WEGIL) i,/ hE R N 100% 100% E@HE
500,000,0007%
China Resources Shandong PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000,000 100% 100%  Sale of pharmaceutical
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (Note (3)b)) products
EHEEBREERAT (WG e,/ FE R AR 100% 100% HERFE
150,000,00075

China Resources Liaoning Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.  PRC/Mainland China RMB 150,000,000 100% 100%  Sale of pharmaceutical
(Note (3)(b)) products
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1. REIREEEN @ 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)
BB ATNER &) Information about subsidiaries (continued)
218 Ak BRTLER
Eais e HMRA ARBEGRESAL FTEER
Place of Issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
registration and registered attributable Principal
Name business share capital tothe Company  activities
2020 2019
EMRRBEERAR WEGIL) i,/ hE R N 100% 100% E@HE
505, 146,8007T
China Resources Henan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB505,146,800 100% 100%  Sale of pharmaceutical
(Note (3)(b)) products
FHEBELBREMNE WHG) e,/ FER AR 59.99% 59.99% ERLERHE
82,608,7007T
Double-Crane Pharmaceutical (Anhui) Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB82,608,700  59.99%  59.99%  Manufacturing and sale of
(Note (3)(b)) pharmaceutical products
TREBREELCEERETLR WAG)  FE/FEARM AR 59.99% 59.99% ERIHE
59,326,8007%
Double-Crane (Beijing) Pharmaceutical PRC/Mainland China RMB59,326,800  59.99%  59.99%  Sale of pharmaceutical
Management Co., Ltd. (Note (3)b)) products
EHRRBERRAR WEHGIL) i,/ hE R AR 100% 100% ERHE
50,000,0007%
China Resources Nantong Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.  PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 100% 100%  Sale of pharmaceutical
(Note (3)(b)) products
EMRILBEERAR WFGIL) i,/ hE R N 100% 100% E@HE
330,000,0007
China Resources Hebei Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB330,000,000 100% 100%  Sale of pharmaceutical
(Note (3)(b)) products
EWIHBEERAD (WG e,/ FER AR 100% 100% ERHE
500,000,0007T
China Resources Jiangsu Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.  PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000,000 100% 100%  Sale of pharmaceutical
(Note (3)(b)) products
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1. AEIREEREN @) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

BB ARNER @

Eap Al BRTLER
TR R S HftRx FADEGRESSLE FTBER
Place of Issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
registration and registered attributable Principal
Name business share capital tothe Company  activities
2020 2019
EWEOE Ot BEERAR #20))  +E/FERM AR 100%  100% ERHE
110,000,0007%
China Resources Purenhong (Beijing) PRC/Mainland China RMB110,000,000 100% 100%  Sale of pharmaceutical
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (Note (3)b)) products
ERRERERRARE WEGW) E/ RE A AR 100% 100% ERHE
500,000,0007T
China Resources Tianjin Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.  PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000,000 100% 100%  Sale of pharmaceutical
(Note (3)(b)) products
EHHILBREERAR ERELER E/ RE A AR 60% 60% EmiEE
WizeIb) 352,000,0007%
China Resources Hubei Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.  PRC/Mainland China RMB352,000,000 60% 60%  Sale of pharmaceutical
("CR Hubei Pharmaceutical”) (Note (3)(b)) products
EHHRERBEBRAR WHGIL) E/ RE A AR 100%  100% ERHE
50,000,0007%
China Resources Hunan Shuangzhou PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 100% 100%  Sale of pharmaceutical
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (Mote (3)b) products
EHERBEERAR (EEEREE)) E/ RE A, AR 70% 70% ERiEE
Wiz 3)a) 405,755,0007%
China Resources Guangdong Pharmaceutical PRC/Mainland China RMB405,755,000 70% 70%  Sale of pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. (“CR Guangdong Pharmaceutical") products
(Note (3)a))
EHEE (8 BRAA WEGW) E/ RE A, AR 70% 70% ERiEE
70,000,0007T
China Resources (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (Note (3)b))  PRC/Mainland China RMB70,000,000 70% 70%  Sale of pharmaceutical
products
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1. REIREEER @) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

ERMBARNER @

Eap Ak BRTLER
Bl e Hftx FADEGRESSLE FTBEH
Place of Issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
registration and registered attributable Principal
Name business share capital tothe Company  activities
2020 2019
EHNEIREBERRAR (WHGIL) E/ RE A, AR 51% 51% EERHE
151,000,0007%
China Resources Hunan Ruige Pharmaceutical PRC/Mainland China RMB151,000,000 51% 51%  Sale of pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. (Note (3)b) products
EHEBRERRARE WEGW) E/ RE A, AR 100%  100% ERHE
100,000,0007%
China Resources Qingdao Pharmaceutical PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 100% 100%  Sale of pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. (Note (3)b) products
EHEMBEBRAE WG E/ RE A, AR 100%  100% ERHE
200,000,0007%
China Resources Jilin Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000,000 100% 100%  Sale of pharmaceutical
(Note (3)(b)) products
TRENERBEBRETAR W) HE/FEN AR®  5999% 5999% EmiHE
2,800,0007%
Beijing Saike Changsheng Pharmaceutical PRC/Mainland China RMB2,800,000  59.99%  59.99%  Sale of pharmaceutical
Company Ltd. (Note (3)b)) products
ERAEE (LR BEBRAR (HW2G)I) R,/ HEIRy i A 51,000,0007T 60% 60% Em#HE
China Resources Xinlong (Shanxi) Pharmaceutical ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB51,000,000 60% 60%  Sale of pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. (Note (3)b) products
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

1. REIREERER @ 1.

BB ARNER @

Eap Al BRTLER
TR R S HftRx FADEGRESSLE FTBER
Place of Issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
registration and registered attributable Principal
Name business share capital tothe Company  activities
2020 2019
EREBENELERAT W26 R,/ HEIRy AR#E  6360% 6360% HEREE
88,067,0007T
China Resources Shenghuo Pharmaceutical PRC/Mainland China RMB88,067,000  63.60%  63.60%  Manufacturing of
Holdings, Inc. (Note (3)b)) pharmaceutical products
SREX (5% BRETAR WHGIL) E/ RE A AR 59.99% 59.99% ER4EE
150,000,0007%
Double-Crane Pharmaceutical (Hainan) Co., Ltd. ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB150,000,000  59.99%  59.99%  Manufacturing of
(Note (3)(b)) pharmaceutical products
Bt (PE) HEBRAR CRHARE)) Wz FE/AFERH AR 63.60% - HERAEE
BIb) 51,000,0007%
Aonuo (China) Pharmaceutical Co.,Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB51,000,000  63.60% - Manufacturing of
("Aonuo Pharmaceutical”) (Note (3)b) pharmaceutical products
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1. REIREERER @ 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

ERMBABNER @& Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Mt - Notes:

(1) FEH=AREBEFEBSEFINESIZH (1) CR Sanjiu and Dong-E-E-Jiao are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange,
EHTE S R T AT RS CR Double-Crane and Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical are listed on the
REH Lo Shanghai Stock Exchange.

2) BEEEFF_F=A1—HIFE (2)  During the year ended 31 December 2020, Dong-E-E-Jiao repurchased
BB 7#5" B FABEIE.60%H9817 0.60% of its shares during the year. As a result, the Group’s equity interests
B - R E S F B e 122,17 %18 in Dong-E-E-Jiao increased from 22.17% to 22.31%.

TI#)22.31% °

(3)  FBEIRL I BIHTE A E]RY % 1R R AR R (3)  For those subsidiaries established in the PRC, their legal entity types are as
S5 follows:

@ HYIEESELRF @  sino-foreign equity joint venture
b)) BREFLE (b)  limited liability company

©  EEELE () wholly foreign owned enterprise
@ REBRAE (@)  joint-stock limited company

@)  AREFBIHFTEFREEIELEFGER (4)  These entities are accounted for as subsidiaries by virtue of the Company’s
2 EERF RG] control over them through non-wholly-owned subsidiaries.

5 EHBEERARAFBERFARN £ Except for CR Pharmaceutical Holdings, which is held directly by the

MEREMNB AT AR A BBIETE Company, the remainning subsidiaries above are held indirectly by the
Company.

TRPINESTIRFTERTEARAEFNE The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the

BEREENARATMNEB AT - é?;ﬂd%ﬂﬂ opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or assets of the

I HMMBARNENBECRIER Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the

directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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2.1 AR EAE 2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

MBREDREEBESMOAE (THH
SEEAE)) BMNEBMBEREER
(TEBMBREER)) (BETEESE
MHREER EBGHER (EBE
R Kz BEBADGHEIRE
AREFG > RBELRFERR 1B
AABESENRENDE UKRETES
RIRER AR - HHFRRUBE 2R
PRESRENEERBRANTT BAH
B BRON o

REEE
REMBRREELIRATRANEAF
(HBIAEE) BE "2 -2F 1+ A
S+t HLEEENVBRR-NBLARS
HAABERABREFNER (BEG
BHER EXEEBEB2UEREHR
WEBMAEDTEERNEABRIAERE
EFERRBEENEBEARERR
BEENEOZEEHLR <&@ E
FIARENIEEREHEKNBERMEHRH
RERA) BESEGE-

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (which include all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
investment properties, and certain debt and equity investments that are
measured at fair value. The financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
"Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020. A subsidiary is an
entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by
the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).
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2.1 {RELEAE 4B 2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
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Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(0 the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described above. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets
(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained and
(iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive income
is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 and the following revised HKFRSs for the first time for
the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
(early adopted)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and  Definition of Material
HKAS 8

The nature and the impact of the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 and the revised HKFRSs are described below:

(@) Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018
(the “Conceptual Framework”)
The Conceptual Framework sets out a comprehensive set of
concepts for financial reporting and standard setting, and provides
guidance for preparers of financial statements in developing
consistent accounting policies and assistance to all parties
to understand and interpret the standards. The Conceptual
Framework includes new chapters on measurement and reporting
financial performance, new guidance on the derecognition of
assets and liabilities, and updated definitions and recognition
criteria for assets and liabilities. It also clarifies the roles of
stewardship, prudence and measurement uncertainty in financial
reporting. The Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and
none of the concepts contained therein override the concepts
or requirements in any standard. The Conceptual Framework
did not have any significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

(0

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance
on the definition of a business. The amendments clarify that
for an integrated set of activities and assets to be considered a
business, it must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute to the ability to
create output. A business can exist without including all of the
inputs and processes needed to create outputs. The amendments
remove the assessment of whether market participants are capable
of acquiring the business and continue to produce outputs.
Instead, the focus is on whether acquired inputs and acquired
substantive processes together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs. The amendments have also narrowed
the definition of outputs to focus on goods or services provided
to customers, investment income or other income from ordinary
activities. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance to
assess whether an acquired process is substantive and introduce
an optional fair value concentration test to permit a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets
is not a business. The Group has applied the amendments
prospectively to transactions or other events that occurred on or
after 1 January 2020. The amendments did not have any impact
on the financial position and performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 address issues
affecting financial reporting in the period before the replacement
of an existing interest rate benchmark with an alternative risk-
free rate ("RFR"). The amendments provide temporary reliefs
which enable hedge accounting to continue during the period
of uncertainty before the introduction of the alternative RFR. In
addition, the amendments require companies to provide additional
information to investors about their hedging relationships which
are directly affected by these uncertainties. The amendments did
not have any impact on the financial position and performance of
the Group as the Group does not have any interest rate hedging
relationships.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(d)

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendment to HKFRS 16 provides a practical expedient for
lessees to elect not to apply lease modification accounting for
rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the novel
coronavirus (“COVID-19") pandemic. The practical expedient
applies only to rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence
of the pandemic and only if (i) the change in lease payments
results in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change; (i) any reduction in lease payments affects
only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and (iii)
there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the
lease. The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 June 2020 with earlier application permitted and shall be
applied retrospectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, certain monthly lease
payments for the leases of the Group’s office premises and retail
stores have been reduced or waived by the lessors as a result of
the COVID-19 and there are no other changes to the terms of the
leases. The Group has early adopted the amendment on 1 January
2020 and elected not to apply lease modification accounting
for all rent concessions granted by the lessors as a result of the
pandemic during the year ended 31 December 2020. Accordingly,
a reduction in the lease payments arising from the rent concessions
of HK$18,087,000 has been accounted for as a variable lease
payment by derecognising part of the lease liabilities and crediting
to profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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22 SR ZEFRIEE &) 2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

() BFADHERFIEREBD (€) Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
ZERIFEBIRIEET A
EReHENEIEREETHE Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new definition
B8 I RAEEMRMEH—E of material. The new definition states that information is
HER - HESREL HERZIE material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably
R AR B E T S EERR be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
B ARV ERR2TEGFEHE general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those
BMEZLEMBREEHZRTE AE financial statements. The amendments clarify that materiality will
BEBEAK ZEBITIABE EE depend on the nature or magnitude of information, or both. The
MEEATERN s EEREE SRR amendments did not have any significant impact on the financial
MEME ZHEBT AT HEERE position and performance of the Group.
EFBRIRRBEREANERT
E

23 EEMERKREN ZzEAE 2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

RS 2R FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
AEBTERMERETERALUTEE The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that
A RE M T T REETE ST have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

SR

EAMBREED TET LS HEL? Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
EXACHENS) Framework?
EAMBREED FIRB N = Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
FORBHEGHEN —F B HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, — Phase 2!
3958 BB HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

REERBTREE
MES IR S R BT K

SR BHREED
B165% (1BFTA)

ERHHREED BEERABHS Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between
BIOREEBGHE LTAEELE HKAS 28 (2011) an Investor and its Associate or Joint
B 55285% (1851 7) ZHBEHED Venture?

25 HA

ERTHREER REEEHP HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®
$5175%

ERHHREED Rl 546 Amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts*®
E179% (BFTE)

EBgHERE15E BESELRES Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or

(1&5T %) FETEPS Non-current>*
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2.3 BEMGEHEKREMZEAET 2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

RS 2R (@) KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)
EREHENEIE HE BERKE Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:
CHEN) TEHEE FHZRFTHT Proceeds before Intended Use?
Vit e
ERGENEIIR FASAET Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts
CHEN) BRI A — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract?
BB IR R BB SRS L] Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
“E-N\EE E150 - BEUH HKFRSs 2018-2020 lllustrative Examples accompanying
TETEFFENE REERBSE HKFRS 16, and HKAS 412
BRUHERGE
A5 165%FET 2
AN TRAIRS
BEETEERIBAR
(CHESE
7 K _E_—F—F—HR BRI FE 1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
KA
2 RIE - —F—H—HIZ BN FE 2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
HARTERL
3 REOFE - =F—F—H 2 BRIRFE 3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
HBRTAERL
4 B AR TE T LR FH 1 B RERA 4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
5 TE# BB BT ERIE 15 2 IE5THIAER 5 As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong
BBAEBEFS R B REZNZHR—EAN Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the
BB EREE B TR B4 Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause
BER ZE ZEF A FEITIEST K EIERE was revised in October 2020 to align the corresponding wording with no
FESLRIF— I TTAS a TR 12 change in conclusion
6 TERIR ZE - EF+ FIEMHE B F 6 As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October
EERE1 79 NEETHIER K E = 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that
F—H—HZFI R FEER  &ER permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods
BREZERF45EEEHIEST » R beginning before 1 January 2023

SFIRENEF & BB 51 ERE395 M &
BB IREEREIT B B BT A R

BB ERARNTER 2 ZEERBMBR Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
FEAZE—SERN T E applicable to the Group is described below.
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KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to the
previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued in June 2018 without significantly changing its
requirements. The amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its
recognition principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework
to determine what constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception
specifies that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within
the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred separately
rather than assumed in a business combination, an entity applying
HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively instead
of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the amendments clarify
that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition
date. The Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from
1 January 2022. Since the amendments apply prospectively to business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the date of first
application, the Group will not be affected by these amendments on the
date of transition.
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KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS
16 address issues not dealt with in the previous amendments which
affect financial reporting when an existing interest rate benchmark is
replaced with an alternative RFR. The Phase 2 amendments provide a
practical expedient to allow the effective interest rate to be updated
without adjusting the carrying amount when accounting for changes
in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows of financial
assets and liabilities, if the change is a direct consequence of the
interest rate benchmark reform and the new basis for determining the
contractual cash flows is economically equivalent to the previous basis
immediately preceding the change. In addition, the amendments permit
changes required by the interest rate benchmark reform to be made to
hedge designations and hedge documentation without the hedging
relationship being discontinued. Any gains or losses that could arise on
transition are dealt with through the normal requirements of HKFRS 9
to measure and recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments also
provide a temporary relief to entities from having to meet the separately
identifiable requirement when an RFR is designated as a risk component.
The relief allows an entity, upon designation of the hedge, to assume
that the separately identifiable requirement is met, provided the entity
reasonably expects the RFR risk component to become separately
identifiable within the next 24 months. Furthermore, the amendments
require an entity to disclose additional information to enable users of
financial statements to understand the effect of interest rate benchmark
reform on an entity’s financial instruments and risk management
strategy. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2021 and shall be applied retrospectively, but entities
are not required to restate the comparative information.

The Group had certain interest-bearing bank borrowings denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and foreign currencies based on the Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate and the London Interbank Offered
Rate ("LIBOR") as at 31 December 2020. If the interest rates of these
borrowings are replaced by RFRs in a future period, the Group will apply
this practical expedient upon the modification of these borrowings
when the “economically equivalent” criterion is met and expects that no
significant modification gain or loss will arise as a result of applying the
amendments to these changes.
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KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an inconsistency
between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in
dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition
of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or
loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or
loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor's interest in that associate
or joint venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The
previous mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new
mandatory effective date will be determined after the completion of a
broader review of accounting for associates and joint ventures. However,
the amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKAS 1 clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities
as current or non-current. The amendments specify that if an entity’s
right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying
with specified conditions, the entity has a right to defer settlement of
the liability at the end of the reporting period if it complies with those
conditions at that date. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the
likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the
liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that are considered a
settlement of a liability. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied retrospectively.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from
selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds
from selling any such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or
loss. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only to items
of property, plant and equipment made available for use on or after the
beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial statements
in which the entity first applies the amendments. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the
contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs that
relate directly to a contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling
that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an allocation of other
costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an allocation of
the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment
used in fulfilling the contract as well as contract management and
supervision costs). General and administrative costs do not relate directly
to a contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to
the counterparty under the contract. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied
to contracts for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at
the beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first applies the
amendments. Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of
initially applying the amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment
to the opening equity at the date of initial application without restating
the comparative information. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out amendments to
HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples accompanying HKFRS 16, and
HKAS 41. Details of the amendments that are expected to be applicable
to the Group are as follows:

o HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity
includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified
financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the
original financial liability. These fees include only those paid or
received between the borrower and the lender, including fees paid
or received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf.
An entity applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are
modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendment.
The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2022. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendment is not expected to have a significant impact on the
Group's financial statements.

o HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from the
lessor relating to leasehold improvements in lllustrative Example
13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This removes potential confusion
regarding the treatment of lease incentives when applying HKFRS
16.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long-term interest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it
is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.



e BT ME

“ETEF+"HB=+—H 31 December 2020
24 EXEHBRBE &

RMEARREETENRE @)

GELEEN AR CHER L EZH#E
NETRAEEXFEEHRARANHT
F & sk HEIERBIEUGHNERER
RIBZPEOVIESIE > EHEIERIET > 48
FEHNRARCAESHEENRERS

—HREE-

FEEBRBERARGELENRER
FREMBRAERTRBDEBENERE
e P EENRERRERBEYR &
EEEFHAR B EFENERF—
HESTERmE -

FEEBGEKBRERHEADREELE
FEAHEMEAEWE D HFALSIRD
KRFEE2ER@mED I BEEEE
RHMERTANGELENEREEE &
EREBREEFRT REoEaZEH*E
BRONEFNES) - RERNAEEA
BMEARNHAGECXBEARZEEN KT
WEERBRAEFTHELTDNTEDR
ERRREMRRIEHE  RIFRERNER
EEBNEERERSE ARBHEAT
NEEEEEENHESALER B
EADHAGERENRE

HRBHEATDNREEZNGEREN
RE S WNBELENREED/NBER
ANKRE RN EENGEEFER ™
REBREDZEZRREAR -RATAEHLM
BRT BEFERREHBEQATNEK
FEAHGERENHEESR FRA
ABESEREISTINEEFRE-BHER
BREELENRKEEAZENLRIE
FINNEREEREERENAABERK
HEFRSRBENE R EEN B

ERNBMERRNGELENRERERD
FIEHER  AREBHMBHREERES
SIFEHER B EERCHRILES
EBAIR

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group's investments in associates and joint ventures are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s share of
net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment
losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting
policies that may exist.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture,
the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates or
joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group's investments in
the associates or joint ventures, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising
from the acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as part of
the Group's investments in associates or joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity method.
In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the associate or
joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises
any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained investment
and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is classified as
held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair
value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value
or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired
set of activities and assets include an input and a substantive process that
together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration
classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's previously held
equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is
lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwiill as at 31 December. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination
is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwiill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwiill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and equity investments
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.
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POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1T — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on
a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, contract assets,
deferred tax assets, financial assets, investment properties and non-
current assets/a disposal group classified as held for sale), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and
its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is
charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises
in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether
there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwiill is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of
that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years.

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited Annual Report 2020 153




AR B BRI
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

TEBECEF+"H=+—H 31 December 2020

24 EXEHERME @)

RAHH TS
H—7AE TIFRE RIRSEAERR
A B

(a)

5

(b)

154

ZHBUT—HHERELRKE

(ii)

(iii)

ERIHHERIERIAER ;
HEEBBEEAREN ; X

RAEEEHAFEBZ AT
FTEBEEBENE ;

ZAR/TEUTERNBRNER !

(i)

(ii)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

2020F F 3R

ZEREAEEBRN—5F
BRF;

il(\#

=
3

\

—XEERZ—RER JHZ
—XBEEBNSAE -WEBAH
HERKBATE) BE QT

HEERE

ZEREAEEARE—F
=N GERE;

—RERRE=ZFEBNSE
EhFE ME —REBRAZ
BE=ZHERNBEAT
ZEESEAEENEEEF
BMEENESNEMRILL
BERREN R R ERER
BEFEFENEE

33

ZERR(a)EFTIE A LTS
FHBEER

R@OEBEREALTHZER
BEEATENABZER (N
ZERNEAE) TEEEE
mE 5 &

ZEREAETAHERRER

ARHEIBEEEABRE T
AEBRRNEAERZHRF

EHREEEARAR

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and
that person

(i)
(i
(iii

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

@)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to
the Group; and the sponsoring employers of the post-
employment benefit plan;

the entity is controlled or a jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the parent of the Group.
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POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
When an item of property, plant and equipment is classified as held for
sale or when it is part of a disposal group classified as held for sale, it is
not depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5, as
further explained in the accounting policy for “Non-current assets and
disposal groups held for sale”. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of
the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates
them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of
each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are
as follows:

Buildings 2.71% t0 4.75%

Machinery and equipment 9.5% t0 19%

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease terms
and 20%

Furniture and fixtures 9.5% t0 19%

Motor vehicles 19%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)
An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and
is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the period
of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including the
leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset which would otherwise
meet the definition of an investment property) held to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in
the ordinary course of business. Such properties are measured initially
at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market
conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss in the year in
which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year of the
retirement or disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties (continued)

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied properties,
the deemed cost of a property for subsequent accounting is its fair value
at the date of change in use. If a property occupied by the Group as an
owner-occupied property becomes an investment property, the Group
accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” for owned property
and/or accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated
under “Right-of-use assets” for property held as a right-of-use asset up
to the date of change in use, and any difference at that date between the
carrying amount and the fair value of the property is accounted for as a
revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant
and equipment and depreciation” above.

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale
Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale
if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sales
transaction rather than through continuing use. For this to be the case,
the asset or disposal group must be available for immediate sale in its
present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for the sale of such assets or disposal groups and its sale must be highly
probable. All assets and liabilities of a subsidiary classified as a disposal
group are reclassified as held for sale regardless of whether the Group
retains a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than investment properties
and financial assets) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower
of their carrying amounts and fair values less costs to sell. Property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets classified as held for sale are not
depreciated or amortised.
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POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition
at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination
is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives,such as certain trademarks,
are tested for impairment annually either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The
useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues
to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Patents and licences

Purchased patents and licences are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives of 5 to 15 years.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is capitalised
and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the technical
feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for
use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset,
how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the availability of
resources to complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during the development. Product development expenditure
which does not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.
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POLICIES (continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for
all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-
use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease
component, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to each lease and non-lease component on the basis of their stand-
alone prices. A practical expedient is available to a lessee, which the
Group has adopted, not to separate non-lease components and to
account for the lease and the associated non-lease components (e.g.,
property management services for leases of properties) as a single lease
component.

(@)  Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use
assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Where
applicable, the cost of a right-of-use asset also includes an estimate
of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it is located. Right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets as

follows:
Leasehold land 2 to 60 years
Building 2 to 50 years

Other equipment 110 10 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the end
of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase
option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of
the asset.
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Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate the lease. The
variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of
lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change
in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to
future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate)
or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

(© IoHIfHERMEBEESEHE (c)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
NEBFERGCHESERET The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
BRLSENEHMBAER S (BNREE its short-term leases of buildings, machinery and equipment (that
MHHEMAEA12EAB 51218 is those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
AN EERFEEEEEE#ENE the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option).
B HENNERAEIRRENEEES It also applies the recognition exemption for leases of low-value
ERNELUHAERRARKEENRA assets to leases of office equipment and laptop computers that are
EREBERELANEH considered to be of low value.

M ER R EEEEREZRE Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
NHUBESEERBIRESAH assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
o lease term.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or when
there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an operating lease
or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each component on
a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in
the statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease
term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised
as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for as
finance leases.

At the commencement date, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at
the present value of the lease payments and related payments (including
the initial direct costs), and presented as a receivable at an amount
equal to the net investment in the lease. The finance income on the net
investment in the lease is recognised in the statement of profit or loss so
as to provide a constant periodic rate of return over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The dlassification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the
financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group's
business model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially measures
a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that
do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.
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POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continueq)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it needs to
give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
("SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash
flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held within
a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified and
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are held
within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held
within the aforementioned business models are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.
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POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (debt
instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income,
interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment losses or
reversals are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and computed
in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost.
The remaining fair value changes are recognised in other comprehensive
income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change
recognised in other comprehensive income is recycled to the statement
of profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its
equity investments as equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income when they meet the definition of equity
under HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for
trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument
basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the
statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income
in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds
as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such
gains are recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income are not
subject to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments
which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value
through other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity investments
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are also
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability or
non-financial host, is separated from the host and accounted for as
a separate derivative if the economic characteristics and risks are not
closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms
as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative;
and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or
loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Reassessment
only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or
a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or
loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a financial
asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial asset host
together with the embedded derivative is required to be classified in its
entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of
a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed
from the Group's consolidated statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and
to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the
asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs")
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss.
ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows
due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows
from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).
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POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continueq)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort, including historical and
forward-looking information.

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income,
the Group applies the low credit risk simplification. At each reporting
date, the Group evaluates whether the debt investments are considered
to have low credit risk using all reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort. In making that evaluation,
the Group reassesses the external credit ratings of the debt investments.

The Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group.

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income and
financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages for
measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables and contract assets
which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continueq)

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified
approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing component and
lease receivables, the Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
borrowings, payables as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the

case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.
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POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included
in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability
is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new
liability, and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.
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POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments classified as equity
Financial instruments issued by the Group are classified as equity
instruments when all the following conditions have been met:

o The financial instruments have no contractual obligation to pay
cash or other financial assets to others, nor to exchange financial
assets or liabilities with others under potential unfavourable
circumstances;

o The financial instruments will or may be settled in the Group’s own
equity instruments: if the financial instrument is non-derivative,
it should not have the contractual obligation to be settled by the
Group delivering a variable number of its own equity instruments;
if the financial instrument is derivative, it should solely be settled by
the Group delivering a fixed number of its own equity instruments
in exchange for a fixed amount of cash or other financial assets.

Financial instruments classified as equity instruments are recognised
initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined on a weighted average method and, in the case of work
in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based
on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not
restricted as to use.
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POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided
that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for
a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

A contingent liability recognised in a business combination is initially
measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is measured at the higher of
(i) the amount that would be recognised in accordance with the general
policy for provisions above; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less,
when appropriate, the amount of income recognised in accordance with
the policy for revenue recognition.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss,
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and
practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited Annual Report 2020 171




AREH BTN

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

TE2ETEF+"H=+—H 31 December 2020

24 EXEHERME @)

FR1STR ()

EE T A R A TR AR R S
HELEHSEHENRE > KENRE
#IR B AR EH E EMMME (R
%) b

EEXERABN GANITER IR AT
MBS ERNARNESFEIRE  BIELER
HEERRIERBESFEER —RFH LR
HE-ERNEBAN S RRAERS
ERBELREEENEERZEEN
BER BRFREREEEIARNESRE
REERRRFEREERGEEEZD
FERFERHUZASRAER REELER
EEEREERBESER T

AT # B

B 8 BY 7 5 IR B E R & BN A B R
GG —UIPRMHR R RE QA BEERE
Do ERMIEE AR MINAERB
BIRREER AU A IR R B 2R R Bh £
RAEERBRI R IR o

HEBREEARR AR EES AEL
Walk WRHEFEDH REFEE
BTRHI R A F AR EIRm R B Z
EEEREBERNRG LEBRITER
XA AEERER -

EAEERWEIFEREEMBE > /i)
RIFEREENRAEEIR LNARM
BEENGAPNERFHEFRFEDH
BER@mK-

172 0005455 mpmuEEsRAD

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the
Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either
the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred
income account and is released to the statement of profit or loss over
the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments
or deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and released to the
statement of profit or loss by way of a reduced depreciation charge.

Where the Group receives grants of non-monetary assets, the grants are
recorded at the fair value of the non-monetary assets and released to the
statement of profit or loss over the expected useful lives of the relevant
assets by equal annual instalments.
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POLICIES (continued)

Government grants (continued)

Where the Group receives government loans granted with no or at a
below-market rate of interest for the construction of a qualifying asset,
the initial carrying amount of the government loans is determined using
the effective interest rate method, as further explained in the accounting
policy for “Financial liabilities” above. The benefit of the government
loans granted with no or at a below-market rate of interest, which is
the difference between the initial carrying value of the loans and the
proceeds received, is treated as a government grant and released to the
statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant
asset by equal annual instalments.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the
amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be entitled
in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained
until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount
of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides the
customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted using the
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception. When the
contract contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised
under the contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price is not
adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
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(i)

For contracts which provide a customer with a right to return
the goods within a specified period, the expected value method
is used to estimate the goods that will not be returned because
this method best predicts the amount of variable consideration to
which the Group will be entitled. The requirements in HKFRS 15
on constraining estimates of variable consideration are applied in
order to determine the amount of variable consideration that can
be included in the transaction price. For goods that are expected
to be returned, instead of revenue, a refund liability is recognised.
A right-of-return asset (and the corresponding adjustment to cost
of sales) is also recognised for the right to recover products from a
customer.

Volume rebates

Retrospective volume rebates may be provided to certain
customers once the quantity of products purchased during the
period exceeds a threshold specified in the contract. Rebates are
offset against amounts payable by the customer. To estimate the
variable consideration for the expected future rebates, the most
likely amount method is used for contracts with a single-volume
threshold and the expected value method for contracts with
more than one volume threshold. The selected method that best
predicts the amount of variable consideration is primarily driven by
the number of volume thresholds contained in the contract. The
requirements on constraining estimates of variable consideration
are applied and a refund liability for the expected future rebates is
recognised.
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POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as income in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

Other income
Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or
a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods
or services transferred to the customer. If the Group performs by
transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised
for the earned consideration that is conditional. Contract assets are
subject to impairment assessment, details of which are included in the
accounting policies for impairment of financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group
transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised
as revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers
control of the related goods or services to the customer).
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POLICIES (continued)

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil a contract
with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the following criteria
are met:

(@)  The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated contract
that the entity can specifically identify.

(b)  The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that will
be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy) performance
obligations in the future.

(0 The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to the
statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with
the transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which the asset
relates. Other contract costs are expensed as incurred.

Right-of-return assets

A right-of-return asset is recognised for the right to recover the goods
expected to be returned by customers. The asset is measured at the
former carrying amount of the goods to be returned, less any expected
costs to recover the goods, and any potential decreases in the value of
the returned goods. The Group updates the measurement of the asset
recorded for any revisions to the expected level of returns, and any
additional decreases in the value of the returned goods.

Refund liabilities

A refund liability is recognised for the obligation to refund some or
all of the consideration received (or receivable) from a customer and
is measured at the amount the Group ultimately expects it will have
to return to the customer. The Group updates its estimates of refund
liabilities (and the corresponding change in the transaction price) at the
end of each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits

Pension scheme

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme or state-managed
retirement benefit schemes are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

PRC

The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of state-managed
retirement benefit schemes operated by the local government in the PRC.
The Group is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll
costs to the retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit schemes is
to make the specified contributions.

Hong Kong

The Group participates in a defined contribution scheme which is
registered under a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) established under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of the schemes are
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustees.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of termination
benefits.

Other employee benefits

Defined benefit plan

The Group operates a defined benefit pension plan which requires
contributions to be made to a separately administered fund. The benefits
are unfunded. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit
plan is determined using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation
method.
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POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits (continued)

Defined benefit plan (continued)

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit pension plans, comprising
actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability) and
the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest
on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the
consolidated statement of financial position with a corresponding debit
or credit to retained profits through other comprehensive income in the
period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit
or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss at the earlier of:

o the date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and
o the date that the Group recognises restructuring-related costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net
defined benefit liability or asset. The Group recognises the following
changes in the net defined benefit obligation under “cost of sales” and
“administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
by function:

° service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs,
gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements

° net interest expense or income

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised.
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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POLICIES (continued)

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends are disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s memorandum and articles of association grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is
the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines
its own functional currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional currency. The Group
measures foreign currency transactions in the respective functional
currencies of the Company and its subsidiaries. In determining the
functional currencies of the group’s entities, each entity takes into
consideration the currency that mainly influences sales prices for goods
and services; the currency of the country whose competitive forces and
regulations mainly determine the sale prices of the entity’s goods and
services; and the currency that mainly influences labour, material and
other costs of providing goods or services; and the currency in which
financing activities were made and the currencies in which receipts from
operating activities are retained.

Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated. Differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at
the end of the reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the average exchange rate for the
period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
average exchange rate.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets and liabilities
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting period.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result
in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

The Group has accounted for Dong-E-E-Jiao as a subsidiary of the
Group, whose shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. As at
31 December 2020, the Group directly held a 9.00% (2019: 8.94%)
interest in Dong-E-E-Jiao and indirectly held a further interest in Dong-E-
E-Jiao through CR Dong-E-E-Jiao, a 56.62% subsidiary of the Company
which held a 23.50% (2019: 23.36%) equity interest in Dong-E-E-Jiao.
The remaining 67.50% (2019: 67.70%) of shareholdings of Dong-E-E-
Jiao are owned by thousands of shareholders that are unrelated to the
Group. As at 31 December 2020, The Group's equity interest in Dong-E-
E-Jiao was 22.31% (2019: 22.17%).

The directors of the Company assessed whether or not the Group has
control over Dong-E-E-Jiao based on whether the Group has the practical
ability to direct the relevant activities of Dong-E-E-Jiao unilaterally. In
making their judgement, the directors of the Company considered the
Group's absolute size of holding in Dong-E-E-Jiao and the relative size
of and dispersion of the shareholdings owned by the other shareholders
and the fact that, the Group has the practical right to appoint the
majority members of the board of directors of Dong-E-E-Jiao. After
assessment, the directors of the Company concluded that the Group has
a sufficient dominant voting interest to direct the relevant activities of
Dong-E-E-Jiao, and therefore, the Group has control over Dong-E-E-Jiao.

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax arising from investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the directors
of the Company have reviewed the Group's investment property
portfolios and concluded that the Group’s investment properties are
held under a business model whose objective to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits is embodied in the investment properties
over time. Therefore, in determining the Group’s deferred tax on
investment properties, the directors of the Company have determined
that the presumption that the carrying amounts of investment properties
measured using the fair value model are recovered entirely through sale
is rebutted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Deferred tax on investment properties (continued)

As a result, the Group has recognised deferred tax on changes in fair
value of investment properties on the basis that the deferred tax reflects
the tax consequences that will follow from the manner in which the
Group expects at the end of the reporting period to recover the carrying
amount of the investment properties.

Property lease classification— Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its investment
property portfolio. The Group has determined, based on an evaluation of
the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term not
constituting a major part of the economic life of the commercial property
and the present value of the minimum lease payments not amounting
to substantially all the fair value of the commercial property, that it
retains substantially all the significant risks and rewards of incidental to
ownership of these properties which are leased out on and accounts for
the contracts as operating leases.

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts with
renewal options

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and
termination options. The Group applies judgement in evaluating whether
or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it
considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to
exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement
date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or
change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to
exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate the lease
(e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant
customisation to the leased asset).

The Group includes the renewal period as part of the lease term for leases
of property/warehouses due to the significance of these assets to its
operations. These leases have a short non-cancellable period (i.e., three
to five years) and there will be a significant negative effect on production
if a replacement is not readily available.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

The Group assesses annually whether property, plant and equipment
have any indication of impairment, in accordance with the relevant
accounting policies. The recoverable amounts of property, plant and
equipment have been determined based on the higher of the fair value
less cost of disposal and value in use calculations. These calculations
and valuations require the use of judgement and estimates on future
operating cash flows and discount rates adopted. In case where the
recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment assessed are
higher or less than expected, a material reversal or recognition of
impairment of property, plant and equipment may arise, which would be
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which such recognition takes
place.

At the end of each reporting period the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generated unit to which the asset belongs.

When determining whether goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are impaired, the Group requires an estimation of
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating units to which goodwill
and intangible assets have been allocated, which is the higher of the
value in use or fair value less costs of disposal. The value in use calculation
requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less
than expected, or change in facts and circumstances which results in
downward revision of future cash flows, a material impairment loss/
further impairment loss may arise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-use assets) at the
end of each reporting period. Indefinite life intangible assets are tested
for impairment annually and at other times when such an indicator
exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment when
there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation
of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available data from
binding sales transactions in an arm'’s length transaction of similar assets
or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows.

Provision for expected crediit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables.
The provision rates are based on the ageing of trade receivables for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns
(i.e., by geography, product type, customer type and rating, and
coverage by letters of credit and other forms of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical observed
default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical
credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if
forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are expected
to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number
of defaults, the historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss experience and
forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs
on the Group's trade receivables is disclosed in Note 25 to the financial
statements.

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a lease,
and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR"”) to measure
lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have
to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use
asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what
the Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation when no
observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter
into financing transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the
terms and conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not in
the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR using
observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and is
required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s
stand-alone credit rating).

The carrying amount of interests in associates is reviewed for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 whenever certain events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
The Group determines the recoverable amount which is the higher of
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal. The value in use is based
on the estimations of future expected cash flows from the associates and
a suitable discount rate. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
or more than expected, or there are favourable or unfavourable events
and changes in facts and circumstances which result in revision of future
estimated cash flows, a material impairment loss may arise or reverse.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Allowance for inventories

The Group makes allowance for inventories based on an assessment
of the net realisable value of inventories. Allowances are applied to
inventories where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
net realisable value is lower than the cost of inventories. The identification
of obsolete inventories requires the use of judgement and estimates on
the conditions and usefulness of the inventories. In cases where the net
realisable value of inventories assessed are less than expected, a material
recognition of allowance for inventories may arise, which would be
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which such recognition takes
place.

Deferred tax assets

As at 31 December 2020, deferred tax assets of HK$969,852,000
(2019: HK$856,088,000), in relation to unused tax losses and deductible
temporary differences have been recognised in the Group's consolidated
statement of financial position. The realisability of the deferred tax asset
mainly depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases where the taxable
future profits generated are less or more than expected, or change in
facts and circumstances which results in revision of future taxable profits
estimation, a material reversal or further recognition of deferred tax
assets may arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss for the
period in which such a reversal or further recognition takes place.

Development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with the accounting
policy for research and development costs in Note 2.4 to the financial
statements. Determining the amounts to be capitalised requires
management to make assumptions regarding the expected future cash
generation of the assets, discount rates to be applied and the expected
period of benefits.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the board of directors that are used to make
strategic decisions. The board of directors of the Company, being the
chief operating decision maker ("“CODM"), considers resource allocation
and assesses segment performance from a different business type
perspective.

Specifically, the Group has four reportable segments as follows:

(@  Pharmaceutical manufacturing business (Manufacturing segment)
— research and development, manufacture and sale of a broad
range of pharmaceutical and healthcare products

(b)  Pharmaceutical distribution business (Distribution segment)
— distribution, warehousing, logistics, and other value-added
pharmaceutical supply chain solutions and related services to
pharmaceutical/medical devices manufacturers and dispensers,
such as hospitals, distributors and retail pharmacies

(©  Pharmaceutical retail business (Retail segment) — operation of
retailing of pharmacy stores

(d)  Other business operations (Others) — property holding

No operating segments have been aggregated to derive the reportable
segments of the Group.

Inter-segment sales are conducted at prices and terms mutually agreed
amongst those operating segments, with reference to the selling prices
used for sales made to third parties at the then prevailing market prices.

The board of directors assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of revenue and segment results.

Segment results represent the profit earned by each segment without
allocation of other income, other gains and losses, administrative
expenses, other expenses, share of results of associates and joint
ventures, finance income and non-leased-related finance costs. This is the
measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment.

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited Annual Report 2020 187




e MERENGE

TE2ETEF+"H=+—H 31 December 2020

4. DEEH E
AEZABRRRED BHHRER :

s FEEE BERNBARANKRE
REWAERNERERORER
DEERRENMEE FTEFEE
JEFRIEE E R AW AR IE 5 K

s FERRBEEBVEAEEREH
BEENME PEETRSOBE
B FEEETEMRE VEER
RaE EHRES RITERE
fHESFREMIEAB AR

73 BB W i Ko R A
UTREAREREEN D BEAER
Wi B SR AE R D A

BE_Z_ZBHE+_A=+—HLEE

PEE Segment revenue

IMERSHE External sales

DNHEHEE Inter-segment sales

it Elmination:

BHDHEEE Elimination of inter-segment sales

AEME Segment revenue

PHEE Segment results

Ht A (fite) Other income (\oze 6)

B REE (1727)  Other gains and losses (Note 7)

THES Administrative expenses

Hits Other expenses

RMEWA (1728 Finance income (Note 8)

HERA Finance costs (other than interest on
(FEERESEFNE)  lease liabities)

PMEBEATR Share of profits of associates and
AERERT joint ventures

bR AR Profit before tax
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and allocating
resources between segments:

o all assets (including investments in subsidiaries and the amounts
due from group entities within the Group) are allocated to
reportable segment assets other than deferred tax assets and tax
recoverable; and

o all liabilities (including the amounts due to group entities within the
Group) are allocated to reportable segment liabilities other than
tax payable, deferred tax liabilities, short-term debentures, bank
borrowings, bonds payable and other non-current liabilities.

Segment revenue and results
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by
reportable and operating segment:

Year ended 31 December 2020

RER DD ZENE Efth At
Manufacturing Distribution Retail

segment segment segment Others Total
B8R BT BB BB BB
HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000
29,289,589 164,440,511 6,466,933 225,990 200,423,023
2,917,216 4,391,558 - - 7,308,774
32,206,805 168,832,069 6,466,933 225,990 207,731,797
(7,308,774)

200,423,023

8,103,756 7,930,795 (14,412) 149,532 16,169,671
1,504,420
(1,511,033)
(5,564,495)
(1,347,144)

675,765
(3,058,528)

206,852

7,075,508
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4. DEERE @) 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
DEBU IR R LR (B Segment revenue and results (continued)
BE_E—NF+-_B=+—HILEFE Year ended 31 December 2019
BEnH DHRE ZELHY 2t st
Manufacturing Distribution Retail
segment segment segment Others Total
B8 AT BB BB BT
HK$'000 HKE'000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
DEIEE Segment revenue
MR E External sales 30,692,657 167,093,588 6,462,839 204,785 204,453,869
DEREIHE Inter-segment sales 3,113,038 3,597,698 = = 6,710,736
33,805,695 170,691,286 6,462,839 204,785 211,164,605
it Elimination:
BN HEEE Elimination of inter-segment sales (6,710,736)
HElE Segment revenue 204,453,869
RS Segment results 6,765,276 7,736,419 72,893 142,454 14,717,042
Htk A (#r6) Other income (\oze 6) 1,249,832
Btz RESE (:7)  Other gains and losses (Note 7) (39,234)
IHE% Administrative expenses (5,203,768)
Hiths Other expenses (1,260,626)
HEWA (3#8) Finance income (Note 8) 636,181
HERA Finance costs (other than interest on
(FBEHREARHNE)  leaseliabiities) (3,600,276)
PMEBEATR Share of profits of associates and
RErERA joint ventures 140417
BRiRETRR| Profit before tax 6,639,568
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4. DHFER @ 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
PHEERER Segment assets and liabilities
UTERORERKE SRR AERRS The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by
ERBENDHT reportable and operating segments:
—_E_EF+_HA=+—H 31 December 2020
BENE Akt FENH Hith 13H st
Manufacturing  Distribution Retail
segment segment segment Others  Elimination Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
NHEE Segment assets 71,261,484 124,903,586 3,185,683 11,995,875 (2,988,465) 208,358,163
ERMIBEE (75231)  Deferred tax assets (Note 37) 969,852
ERE Tax recoverable 43,745
mEE Total assets 209,371,760
HUEE Segment liabilities 15,905,381 66,962,825 3,139,307 12,894,461  (15,064,563) 83,837,411
xnEak Unallocated liabilities 45,504,905
aaE Total liabilities 129,342,316
—E—-hAFE+ZHA=+—H 31 December 2019
SN DIEDL ZENH Hith 158 st
Manufacturing ~ Distribution Retail
segment segment segment Others  Elimination Total
BT BT BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
PHEE Segment assets 63,187,695 112,685,186 4124305 20383763  (11,277.207) 189,103,742
ERMIESBE (5231)  Deferred tax assets (Note 37) 856,088
AERE Tax recoverable 65,183
BEE Total assets 190,025,013
pan=E Segment liabilties 16,651,124 63,302,055 2998725 19305361  (23434179) 78,823,086
FAE&E Unallocated liabilities 41,620,106
=t Total liabilities 120,443,192
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4. DEEK E 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Hith o ZER Other segment information
BE_E-_EF+-_A=+—HLEEE Year ended 31 December 2020
BENE DHEAE ZENH Hith izt
Manufacturing Distribution Retail
segment segment segment Others Total
BETT ABETT BETT BETT BETT
HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
S ASBNUEENZIE  Amounts induded in the measurement
of segment results:
W% FERRENE  Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 922,866 199,084 30,967 703 1,153,620
EREEENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 128,884 283,349 154,304 = 566,537
BN BERY Amortisation of intangible assets 58,687 111,793 = = 170,480
ERREFEAT Amounts regularly provided to the

BZEMAHANE board of directors of the Company

DULERNFEEN  butnotincluded in the

HE: measurement of segment results

or segment assets:
REWMENREELS  Gainarising on change in fair value of

FEERINER investment properties - - - 4,559 4,559
REFZREMBEYWEIE  Impairment recognised on trade and

BIRAE other receivables,net 281,659 565,855 2,804 70 850,428
RHERRERERE Allowance for slow-moving and

obsolete inventories 263,203 41,069 - - 304,272
T BRE R EREN Impairment recognised on property,

HE plant and equipment 5,385 1,597 1,400 = 8,382
FEERINHE Impairment recognised on goodwil 245,532 342,610 - - 588,142
TENBERDN Impairment recognised on

A intangible assets 5,925 71,132 - - 71,057
HEREEERIN Impairment recognised on right-of-use

HE assets - - 9,406 - 9,406
*E FERRENE  *Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment 176,172 165,062 2,866 3212 347,312
EREEENE *Depreciation of right-of-use assets 39,264 86,064 4,187 4,257 133,772
*EREERY *Amortisation of intangible assets 66,254 6,057 21 = 72,332
ERRY **Capital expenditure 1,875,085 735,828 131,054 16,918 2,758,885
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4. DEEN @ 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
HithoaEk @) Other segment information (continued)
BHE _Z—NE+_A=+—HLEEE Year ended 31 December 2019
BENH DEDE ZENH Hif #ast
Manufacturing Distribution Retall
segment segment segment Others Total
AETT BB BT BETT BETT
HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKs 000
HAGEDWEENIE . Amounts included in the measurement
of segment results:
WE BERRENE  Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 832,651 233,702 31,59 6,826 1,104,774
EREEENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 120,490 292,087 143,946 = 556,523
BN BERY Amortisation of intangjble assets 59,380 144,398 = = 203,778
EHREFEATDESEM Amounts regularly provided to the
R AHENPEES  board of directors of the Company
DEHEBENTE . but not included in the
measurement of segment results
or segment assets:
REVE AR EEEEFTE Loss arising on change in fair value of

EHER investment properties - - - (14433) (14433)
T8 5 R ELth FEUEIERE SR Impairment recognised on trade and

B #8 other receivables,net 208,857 250,154 28,708 (11,141) 476578
HERREGERE Allowance for slow-moving and

obsolete inventories 55,960 11,139 - - 67,099
T BRE R EREN Impairment recognised on property,

HE plant and equipment 35,280 1,559 = 479 37318
HEERINAE Impairment recognised on goodwil 240,654 481933 = = 722,587
*E FERRENE  *Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment 164,704 151,594 3,192 7,944 327,434
ERREERE *Depreciation of right-of-use assets 31,39 92,052 707 3,960 128115
*EREERY *Amortisation of intangible assets 0373 1829 2 = 44,223
HERRR **( apital expenditure 1,903,850 1,144,305 81,361 22,437 3,401,953
* TS O EEEEENESE Y * Depreciation of right-of-use assets, depreciation of property, plant
2\ R E R EITE R EERT and equipment and amortisation of intangible assets are included in
administrative expenses.
> BRI OIENE BERRE KREY
2 (EHEEERFEFEE (FaZIKEN **  Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment,
BLFIPFEL Z BE) By1Z0] - investment properties, right-of-use assets and intangible assets excluding

assets from acquisition of subsidiaries.
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4. DEEN @) 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
IBER Geographical information

(a) KEINEEL IS (a)  Revenue from external customers
2020 2019
ST T EHT 5T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FR ] g 3t Mainland China 199,760,472 203,500,944
55 Hong Kong 662,551 952,925
200,423,023 204,453,869

FKWEBR T ERERERE/ o The revenue information above is based on the locations of the
customers.
(b) BT EZ S EIIE A E (b)  Non-current assets by geographical location
AEBHNKETZMMNPE R The Group's operations are mainly located in the PRC and
TR EEEMEZIDNIERDE substantially all non-current assets are located in the PRC by
EMR - location of assets.
BEREFEZRNER Information about major customers
MRS BRI M AE R & P B UK i E AR No revenue from customers in each reporting period individually
EEBNEN10% o amounted to over 10% of the total revenue of the Group.
5. W= 5. REVENUE
DM : An analysis of revenue is as follows:
2020 2019
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
REEFR SO Revenue from contracts with customers
B MiHE Sale of pharmaceutical products 200,282,820 204,290,140
IR B HASRIRAV U &5 Revenue from other sources
REREYELSSHENES Gross rental income from investment
U A4BEE : property operating leases:
MEMR BEEENR Lease payments, including fixed
payments 140,203 163,729
200,423,023 204,453,869
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5. m (7 5. REVENUE (continued)
JIE SEI=E=¥0]:5} LI& Revenue from contracts with customers
(1) LB 71 B (1) Disaggregated revenue information
BE_ZE_EF+”-A=+—HL For the year ended 31 December 2020
FE
RER DHEDE ZEHY Hift i #act
Manufacturing  Distribution Retail
segment segment segment Others  Elimination Total
BT BT BETT BT BT BT
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
W REER B Timing of revenue recognition
PR B At a point in time 32,166,733 168,798,651 6,458,565 167,645 (7,308,774) 200,282,820
REZEGAMMREE  Total revenue from contracts with customers 32,166,733 168,798,651 6,458,565 167,645  (7,308,774) 200,282,820

BHE_Z-NE+A=+—HL For the year ended 31 December 2019
FE
BENE DIEDL TENL Hith 13 st
Manufacturing ~ Distribution Retail
segment segment segment Others  Elimination Total
BT BT BT BT BT BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R R M Timing of revenue recognition
REERRR Ata pointin time 33,752,537 170,690,880 6,454,759 102700 (6,710,736) 204,290,140
REZPENMYEAE  Total revenue from contracts with customers 33752537 170,690,880 6,454,759 102700 (6,710,736) 204,290,140

TREIIN AR ESHABEDE A The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in
REPVENEEN KRG EEE - the current reporting period that were included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:

2020 2019

BT BT

HK$000 HK$'000

BRI ARSHIEHN Revenue recognised that was included in
BEMNE contract liabilities at the beginning of
the reporting period:
EmidE Sale of goods 1,651,904 1,711,938
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5. W (@ 5. REVENUE (continued)
REELEHNNWZE @) Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(i)  JETTEF (i) Performance obligations
R AERRITEENER B Information about the Group's performance obligations is
T summarised below:
BEERHE Sale of pharmaceutical products
BN BREEDHNHE WERER For sale of pharmaceutical products, revenue is recognised when
PTG EZR T LD - BRIE control of the goods has been transferred. The trading terms with
B—RBFRENNRIEI REFBEHE its customers are mainly on credit, except for new customers,
EECBEERHKTEAEE AR where payment in advance is normally required. Some contracts
HReNmERIRHEEELHEE provide customers with a right of return and volume rebates which
B0 HEXR IR RS M ER T give rise to variable consideration subject to constraint.
BB
6. HthUkA 6. OTHER INCOME
2020 2019
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
ARFSEUTA Service fee income 631,805 608,246
BB Government grants 621,071 457,889
BT R ABRA R R S Covid-19-related rent concessions from lessors
(H13£17) (Note 17) 18,087 -
HESE @aE17) Remeasurement of lease (Note 77) 14,517 =
IS ON Dividend income 4,412 8,047
Hith Others 214,528 175,650
1,504,420 1,249,832
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7. Hithzm KkEsia 7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

2020 2019
b5 BT T BT T
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
HE SHEMB AT NG Gain on disposal/deregistration of subsidiaries 27,436 1,091,295
HE SFHEEE ARG Gain on disposal/deregistration
of joint ventures 11,120 -
HEEFEENEER Loss on disposal of intangible assets = (1,588)
HEMZE BB KR HRY Loss on disposal of items of property,
E518 0 SR 58 plant and equipment,net (45,281) (6,421)
T~ BE R 58 B TEER Y Impairment recognised on property,
ERETR plant and equipment 15 (8,382) (37,318)
mELEERTNEE Impairment recognised on
intangible assets 19 (77,057) -
B 7 FEUGRIE R ST AY Impairment recognised on
ERSTR > JHEE trade receivables, net 25 (780,417) (446,927)
LELAh FE U TR IE R SR AY Impairment recognised on
ERSTR > JHEE other receivables, net 25 (70,011) (29,651)
T EERIREEE Impairment recognised on goodwiill 18 (588,142) (722,587)
PR EEE Impairment recognised on
right-of-use assets 17 (9,406) -
MrnEEstEBEHES) Fair value changes on financial assets at
SFABENEMEERN fair value through profit or loss
RABEEEE 96,745 47,683
REYEANDBEED Fair value changes on investment properties 16 4,559 (14,433)
HAth Others (72,197) 80,713
(1,511,033) (39,234)
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8. MBEWARKA 8. FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS
2020 2019
BETT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
B - Finance costs:
RITETFE Interest on bank borrowings 2,628,356 3,148,800
FESESHH B Interest on bonds payable 318,563 388,495
R B REER A BRERFE Interest on borrowings from intermediate
holding companies 97,354 48,629
HEasErE WWat17) Interest on lease liabilities (Note 17) 94,745 112,125
BRIRNEN BB E Ha232) Interest on defined benefit obligations (Note 32) 18,686 19,139
B E BB REEN Less: Interest capitalised in property,
BARIEFIE HfaE15) plant and equipment (Note 75) (4,431) (4,787)
RRE A A 4B Total finance costs 3,153,273 3,712,401
BB WA —F) EWA Finance income — Interest income (675,765) (636,181)
MBS FEE Net finance costs 2,477,508 3,076,220
Bzt BAREF B R BIE S BEIBEEFN Note: Capitalised interest arose from funds borrowed specifically for the purpose
BETREXNEEMHS  WiZ4.75% (—=F of obtaining qualifying assets and from the general borrowing pool which
—NEE 1 4.75%) BYFEE AR LFIF B A E is calculated by applying a capitalisation rate of 4.75% (2019: 4.75%) per
IEEEELHIFS - annum to expenditure on qualifying assets.
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9. FR¥EAEIEF 9. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
NEBBBKREGEA LG (5t A) The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
UTFEBBER:
2020 2019
b5 BT T BT T
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
EEEBN Directors’ remuneration 10 9,104 11,083
EERFHEX Employee benefit expense
B EEEHDY) (excluding directors’ remuneration)
TEKRHFE Wages and salaries 7,859,104 8,071,501
RERmaT X Defined benefit scheme expense 32 482,219 1,830
BIREN ET B HERR Retirement benefit scheme contribution 343,891 770,352
kT Total 8,694,318 8,854,766
TZE B B Auditors’ remuneration 17,741 16,935
M RE MR EITE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 15 1,500,932 1,432,208
EREEEITE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 17 700,309 684,638
mIC B EE Amortisation of intangible assets 19 242,812 248,001
THEE A R EE R Allowance for slow-moving and
obsolete inventories 304,272 67,099
BAHEEMEANEFEENA Cost of inventories recognised as cost of sales 166,873,743 169,467,387
EEZE GrAEMBED) Research and development expenditure
(included in other expenses) 1,317,964 1,154,293
KRt AHEEBGETEMFEE I Lease payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities 17 132,421 52,152
R (&) k51835 Foreign exchange (gain)/loss, net (60,977) 30,191
b=k Donations 38,835 21,085
& E WA Dividend income 6 (4,412) (8,047)
BT 4aEh Government grants 6 (621,071) (457,889)
B WA Interest income 8 (675,765) (636,181)
L E Y =B U A AERE Gross rental income from investment
properties 5 (140,203) (163,729)
B U ER R SR B Less: Direct operating expenses arising from
EXNEEBKEER rental-earning investment properties 45,568 39,307
(94,635) (124,422)
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10. EEREETTHRAENENE  10. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

REMUNERATION

Rig EHRA BB REFAE383(1)
(@ ) (OKROFERRAE REEEF =@
Bk RO E2MAIREFAFENEER
RETHRASHMEWT :

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

K&

Group
2020 2019
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
W Fees 1,200 1,200

Hhil s : Other emoluments:

e R ARG Salaries and other allowances 7,183 9,471
BIREH) 5T B RN Retirement benefit scheme contributions 199 118
Hih Others 522 294
7,904 9,883
9,104 11,083

tHREERERSTHRAENNZERRE
ARBEBUFATEFT PTEFKIF

The above directors’ and chief executive's remuneration only included
remuneration during the tenure of each Independent non-executive

AITEENERZNE -FRAMEESEN
ERETHAERRXABDERREAME
Z 2o

(@ WIIFMNITES
FRABILFATEEZTNES

director, Executive director and Non-executive director of the Company.
There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief executive
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

(@) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the

mr: year were as follows:

2020 2019

BT T BT

HK$'000 HK$'000

BRREZt Mdm. Shing Mo Han Yvonne 300 300
Bl e Mr. Kwok Kin Fun 300 300
BEESE Mr. Fu Tingmei 300 300
R ER A Mr. Zhang Kejian 300 300
1,200 1,200

FRNTERRER N THILIFR
TEENHEHMFEMN (C2—NF:

) o

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
non-executive directors during the year (2019: Nil).

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited Annual Report 2020 199 (




AR B BRI
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

“E2TFF+"HA=+—H 31 December 2020

10. EEh&STHAESMNME  10. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
G2 REMUNERATION (continued)

b) HITES -IFRITESERESIT (b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and the
BAE chief executive
BREELEARXEENEENITE Mr. Han Yuewei is the chief executive officer (“CEQ") of the Group
(TEBHNTEL) » R EXIHEZ and the emoluments disclosed above include those for services
EERIEAEENTEIRENR rendered by him as the chief executive officer.
f% o
ek BINERIFE
ik Hitn2ak e Hth st
Salaries Retirement
and other  benefit scheme
Fees allowances contributions Others Total
AEtR AETR AETR AR AltR
HKS'000 HK$/000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000
ZECEE 2020
PTEE. Executive directors:
BERELE Mr. Han Yuewei - 2,087 65 25 2,404
ZmmALE Mr. Li Xiangming - 3,036 56 - 3,092
HERUT Mdm. Weng Jingwen - 1723 78 270 2,071
- 6,846 199 522 7,567
FHTEE ! Non-executive directors;
TERRE Mr. Wang Chuncheng - 337 - - 337
REREE M. Yu Zhongliang = = - - -
BHEUL Mdm. Guo Wei - - - - -
ITERE Mr. Wang Shouye = = - - -
BERRE Mr. Lyu Ruizhi = - - - -
- 337 - - 337
- 7,183 199 522 7,904
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10. EEREITHASREE  10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
) REMUNERATION (continued)

b) BMITEZ -IEFRITESEREST (b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and the
BAE @) chief executive (continued)
ek  RUREREE
e Hitnzah s Hith st
Retirement
Salaries and benefit scheme
Fees  otherallowances contributions Others Total
ARt AETT BETT BETT BT
HK§ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKs 000 HKS 000
“Z-hE 2019
PTEE. Executive directors:
BRELE W) Mr. Han Yuewei (\ote ¢) = 446 20 52 518
TEBEE (W) Mr. Li Guohui (Note b) = 652 10 107 769
SEFUT () Mdm. Weng Jingwen (Vote ¢/ = 606 39 135 780
FEEBRE Wito) Mr. Li Xiangming (Note o) - 2895 28 - 2923
BREERIE (Hate) Mr. Qiu Huawei (Vote ) = 570 8 - 578
- 5,169 105 294 5,568
FHTEE Non-executive directors;
BEBLE (&) Mr. Fu Yuning (Note 7 - - _ _ _
TEWRE Wig) Mr. Wang Chuncheng () - 4,302 13 = 4315
TR (ih) Mr. Chen Rong (Vote f) - - - - _
sBEuL () Mdm. Guo Wei (\oze - - _ _ _
REREE Mr. Yu Zhongliang - - - - -
BERRE Mr. Lyu Ruizhi = - - - _
ITERLE Mr. Wang Shouye = - - - _
- 430 13 . 4315
- 9,471 118 294 9,883
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10. %5&%%??&)\%5’9%%

(b) MITEF -FRITEFKERST
BAE @

Mista: BHEEELTER -_FE—NF+A
S CHEZABHTEFRE
EHRITE

Miztb: FEIWELLR —E—NFEAR
HEHE-

Miztc: BEERLIR -_F—AFEAL
HBEZEBHTEFEREEAE
2o

Miztd: FRBLLER —E—NFLA
I NABEEBRITEER
CENEFF B AESAES
EFEET/E-

Mizte: BBEERELER —FE—NFLA
ZHNABZEBBTEERF
ZE-NFFAZF ZHEEH
1TEE-

Histf: BEEALER -F—AE=ZH
A —HBREIFRITESE-

Miatg: EFEMAER —FE—NE=H
T+ HEZFREFSFE
RIE—NF+AZ+ZHTHE
EAEENTE WHEHIFH
TEBREBHTIEEFSLE-

Wiath: BRAELER - E—NFLA
ZHHREIFRITES

Hiszi: BELLR -ZF—NFLA
ZFAAEEERIFBTEE-
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10. DIRECTORS’" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (continued)

(b)

Executive directors, non-executive directors and the
chief executive (continued)

Note a: Mr. Han Yuewel was appointed as an executive director and the
CEO on 22 October 2019.

Note b: Mr. Li Guohui resigned on 5 July 2019.

Note c: Mdm. Weng Jingwen was appointed as an executive director and
the Chief Financial Officer on 5 July 2019.

Note d: Mr. Li Xiangming was appointed as an executive director on 29
May 2019 and was appointed as the Vice Chairman of the Board
on 2 December 2019.

Note e: Mr. Qiu Huawei was appointed as an executive director on 29
May 2019 and resigned as an executive director on 22 October
2019.

Note f. Mr. Fu Yuning resigned as a non-executive director on 21 March
2019.

Note g: Mr. Wang Chuncheng was appointed as Chairman of the Board
on 21 March 2019, ceased to be the Chief Executive Officer, re-
designated as non-executive Director and continue to serve as the
Chairman of the Board on 22 October 2019.

Note h: Mr. Chen Rong resigned as a non-executive director on 29 May
2019.

Note i: - Mdm. Guo Wei was appointed as a hon-executive director on 29
May 20189.
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M. AR HNMES 11. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
FRALREHFNEERIE—REE (Z The five highest paid employees during the year included one (2019:
E—NFE . WME)  FEZMESHFEEH two) director, details of whose remuneration is set out in Note 10 above.
MNEXHzE10 83 TR (ZE—HF: Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining four (2019:
=) TR RTESFTHESTHAEN three) highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
ESHEESNERNTMOT : executive of the Company are as follows:

2020 2019
BETT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
o R EMERL Salaries and other allowance 15,526 12,364
RIREF] FTBIERR Retirement benefit scheme contributions 136 141
15,662 12,505
FEERFEBTHRAEZRSHNE The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
EZHMWBLUTSERAZULT : employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as
follows:
2020 2019
783,000,001 7t £ A #3,500,0007t  HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 1 1
783,500,001 70 £ 8 14,000,0007t  HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 1 =
7B 1£4,000,00170 & #154,500,0007c  HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 1 1
7B 1£4,500,00170 & A& 155,000,0007c  HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 1 1
785,000,001 7t £ A #5,500,0007t  HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 = =
4 3
HE_ZEZ_ZTE+"B=+—HIE No emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
E-AEBITEDALRSHFMAL (B individuals (including directors and employees) as an inducement to join
REEREE) T MFMIERME or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office during
£ B 5 0 B8 A £ [ B Y AR B o B B e M the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).
(ZE—hF: @\ o
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12. FRISIRB 12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

ERATESRNBREANTBEENGHER
MEF16.5% (CE—NFE:16.5%) 8
=R

REFECEFRERE (LEFER
%)) R ZFRERIAEIEES] > o E B
AFE-BRN\E—F—BE®R25%H
REMH - & TR B RS B A S5
5ho

ETETESENRBARDERRFAEM
R BRI ERHMEER T Te il
TEIEE AR =F CREMRFES
FIERERI5%NREREXEMERREK-

BRI Z S > IRERE (201211258 ~ B 1R
[2011]585% K BF E[2020]235% » A EEE
F FR [ P B B A B A B P 30 A R B AT
MR ENEREFY MR ZE—FF
TECERELERSABES15%NEE
M=K EIL > TH#215% MR R+ E M

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2019:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year.

Under the Law of PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law")
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of PRC
subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards, except for those
subsidiaries described below.

Certain subsidiaries operating in Mainland China were accredited as
“High and New Technology Enterprises” by the Science and Technology
Bureau of relevant provinces and other authorities for a term of three
years, and were registered with the local tax authorities to be eligible for
a reduced 15% enterprise income tax rate.

Apart from that, according to the Guo Shui 2012 No. 12, Cai Shui
2011 No. 58 and Cai Zheng 2020 No. 23, certain PRC subsidiaries of
the Group are engaged in the encouraged business activities under the
Development of Western Region Program, and a preferential tax rate of
15% is granted for an extended period from 2011 to 2030. As a result,
the tax rate of 15% is used to calculate the amount of current taxation.

B EE o
2020 2019
BEFT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BREATRIE Current
R (B ZEFTEHR PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“PRC EIT")

(TFREEPT1SHR) 1,757,150 1,749,840
EEFER Hong Kong profits tax 123 136
BEFEREBETE Underprovision in prior years

FRED{h2PriSTR PRC EIT 102,632 54,002

EHHBEFER Hong Kong profits tax = (20)

1,859,905 1,803,958
IRIERRIE (FE31) Deferred (Note 37) (108,038) (262,193)
FRRIES HAERE Total tax charge for the year 1,751,867 1,541,765

204 0055w EEmmsmsEAE
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12. FRISHFAY (&

BoEAH (KBDEBARDNEERR
) EEMERFERRANEN 2 BRAREA
FAXAREERERAE MBS ZH
IR URERARE BIEERE) HBERR

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at
the statutory rate for Mainland China, where majority of the group
companies are domiciled, to the tax expense at the effective tax rates,
and a reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., the statutory tax rates) to

K7HIENT . the effective tax rates, are as follows:
2020 2019
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
PRAS AT A Profit before tax 7,075,508 6,639,568
#25% MR EI R EFSIMEFTERN  Tax at the PRC EIT rate 25% (2019: 25%)
ME(CE—HE :25%) 1,768,877 1,659,892
DMEBE R REE R EEERN Tax effect of share of results of associates and joint
MERE ventures (51,713) (35,104)
ERFBFHEBERRWAZ FRIEFZEE Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes (13,768) (14,079)
AERFHE AR 2 M IEF 2 Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax
purpose 336,582 304,394
B2 AR A4 B4R Special deduction of research and development
costs (170,759) (135,864)
BRBEEMRETENER Income tax on concessionary rate (380,276) (345,947)
HEEBKEEEBTRENTRMEN  Effect of different tax rates of group entities
& operating in Hong Kong (98) (804)
A a AR IEE 18 Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised (238,510) (37,916)
A RESDRI B ERFE=%E  Utilisation of deductible temporary differences
previously not recognised (31,038) (59,523)
RERRIEGEENRIERE Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 167,152 160,741
REER TN AT R EREMNMIBEZ  Tax effect of deductible temporary
differences not recognised 206,073 51,587
BEFERERE Underprovision in prior years 102,632 53,982
HAth Others 56,713 (59,594)
FRRIBEZ H Tax charge for the year 1,751,867 1,541,765

RIFEIR[2018]35%  WINH IR EEEIE
BEASENFAERENRWRES R HE
R IR SN R (S AR B R B AR S FE M 5t
BEHE R _Z—tE—BF—BREN-
AEBMOESDIRNEERERITRTE
REFE A B AT RS LEIEZ
EHBRABINE—FHE RILBEEE
ZEHRREREDER AR S84
+ZBE=+—HBERIERESE (CT
—NhE | (fIsE31)

According to Guo Shui 2018 No. 3, if foreign investors invest directly
their distributed profits in the investees, the dividend withholding tax will
be provided when the dividend is paid out of Mainland China, which
is effective from 1 January 2017. The Group is in a position to control
the quantum and timing of the distribution and decides to retain the
dividend in the subsidiaries in Mainland China for further development of
such subsidiaries. Therefore, the deferred tax liability provided in previous
years was reversed and no deferred tax liability was provided as at 31
December 2020 (2019: Nil) (Note 31).

AEER R T B 119,583,0007T (=
T—HF : B1E67,128,0007T) IERILEFFE
MERAREME2ERE (Fi8) -

The Group also recognised a deferred tax expense of HK$19,583,000
(2019: HK$67,128,000) in other comprehensive income/(loss).
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13. RE 13. DIVIDENDS
2020 2019
BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FRER R DI AT EEB Dividend for ordinary shareholders of
PSS ! the Company recognised as distribution
during the year:
“E-NFREA-SREBER Final 2019 — HK$0.11 per ordinary share
AT (CTE—NE: (2019: Final 2018 — HK$0.13 per ordinary
“E-NFRP-ERZER share)
7&1£0.137T) 691,076 816,986

REBREHBRE A ADESEZUE
E_EEE+_RA=+—HIEEK
BERIAKESREEREBEK 12T (ZF
— L D ABHE0.117T) BRI ETSAEE
T (ZE—NF B EHET) EA
FRENEEREARG LHMER HAE

Be

REREHERE WBABNESER
FERNEMEB=- A EMAME-EEN
BERIHEXEE T - ZF+_ A
S+ HIEFENFPRE RELTE
DANAEREERARBS0.09 AR
#30.090 - AR#29.07 R AR¥27.0
7 BED AR ANRTE489,450,0007T
(FES B H581,545,00070) ~ AR
196,206,0007T (16572 & 1#233,125,000
70) ~ AR #302,539,0007T (SR B 1K
359,465,0007T) & AR #170,100,0007T
(FBE R HE#202,106,0007T) ° MR B
NBEREEHNBABDNKENREH
WEASNEEREAS LHER FE

fEHE

206 (0055w EEmmsmsEAF

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2020 of HK$0.12 (2019: HK$0.11)
per ordinary share, in an aggregate amount of HK$754 million (2019:
HK$691 million), has been proposed by the directors of the Company
and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming general
meeting.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend
of subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2020 in respect
of CR Sanjiu, Dong-E-E-Jiao, CR Double-Crane and Jiangzhong
Pharmaceutical of RMB50.0 cents, RMB30.0 cents, RMB29.0 cents
and RMB27.0 cents per ordinary share, in aggregate amounts of
approximately RMB489,450,000 (equivalent to HK$581,545,000),
RMB 196,206,000 (equivalent to HK$233,125,000), RMB302,539,000
(equivalent to HK$359,465,000) and RMB170,100,000 (equivalent
to HK$202,106,000), respectively, has been proposed by the directors
of the subsidiaries, and is subject to approval by the shareholders of
the subsidiaries in the forthcoming general meeting of the respective
subsidiaries.
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14. NATIZEIGESIFBEARE 14 EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE

hERkRET TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY
AN EEREZEFEABGERESR The calculations of the basic earnings per share attributable to ordinary
BRLENRTYE equity holders of the Company are based on:
2020 2019
BEETT BT
HK$000 HK$'000
&R Earnings
B BEREARTINAANTE Profit attributable to owners of the
A AEERA] Company used in the basic earnings
per share calculation 3,297,126 3,286,419
b =] Number of shares
ARt ESREARINERN Weighted average number of
BEITEERINET D ordinary shares in issue during the
year used in the basic earnings
per share calculation 6,283,122,861 6,284,506,461
HREE_Z N _T—hL&F+= Diluted earnings per share equal to the basic earnings per share as there
B=+—HLEFEUIRETBTHES were no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue for the years ended
BR O WEREEERNENSERELAR 31 December 2020 and 2019.
He
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15. Y% -BERZHE 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

BF BHRkRE BEWZRE hE FEREE rEIR st
Machinery

and Leasehold Furniture  Construction
Buildings ~ equipment improvements Motorvehicles  andfixtures  in progress Total
ABTT ABTR ABTR ABTR AT AT ABTT
HKS'000 HKS000 HiKS 000 HiKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000

ﬁlt' Cost

AE"ZE-F-H At 1 January 2020 13,124,246 6,281,858 538,863 331,376 2,045,492 890,686 28,212,521
*E Additions 12,861 475,033 84378 32,962 WM 922,592 1,770,238
HE Disposals (118,935) (383,653) (20,488) (55,552) (79.218) - (657,846)
WEREAR (:37) Acquisiion of subsidiaries (Aot 37) 96,061 73,409 - 652 4,1% 1,247 175,565
HERBAR (38) Disposal of subsiciaries (ote 38) (78,264) (52,225) - (1.433) (1,908) - (133.830)
BRELEE Transfer to investment properties (67,765) - = = = - (67,765)
BRERENE (M26)  Transfer from investment properties

(Note 16) 36,823 - - - - - 36,823
EXTERREE W17)  Tanster toright-of-use assets Aot /7) = = = = = (14,356) (14,356)
e Transers 578,848 341,181 66,264 1,306 184290 (1,171.889) -
EREZ Exchange realignment 755,575 366,180 29020 19,662 105,353 21 1,317,901

ATETRELTAZH-H At31 December 2020 14,339,450 7,101,783 698,037 328973 2,500,617 670,391 25,639,251
RIHE! Accumulated depreciation:

RZE-2E-F-H At 1 January 2020 2,351,112 2,949,116 295,986 160,697 1,063,019 - 6,819,990
FRtiE Provided for the year 453,768 622,245 55,164 39,101 330,654 - 1,500,932
HE Disposals (38,881) (314.217) (17,732 (48,922) (70977) - (490,789)
HERBAR (:38) Disposal of subsiciaries (Hote 38) (25,157) (41,785) - (1,306) (1,479) - (69,727)
BRELEE Transfer to investment properties (19,783) - = = = - (19,743)
o Transfers (1,045) 3,151 (783) @) (1,281) - -
EREE Exchange realignment 184,587 215328 21,468 8,915 89,710 - 520,008

ATETRETTAZ—H  At31 December 2020 2,904,701 3433778 354,103 158,443 1,409,646 - 8,260,671
IWE : Impairment;

AZEZEE-H-H At 1 January 2020 6,137 25,908 457 5 3,161 34,506 70221
EWDHAT: ) Provided for the year (Mote 7) 603 2751 - % 4,954 - 8382
HE Disposals (1,755) (25,417) - () (274) - (27451)
EREE Exchange realignment 366 19 29 4 28 2220 3,039
RZEZBEFTB=1+—H  At31 December 2020 5,351 3434 486 125 8,069 36,726 54,191
KERE! Net camying amount:

RZE"EE+"A=+-H  At31December 2020 11,429,398 3,664,571 343,448 170,405 1,082,902 633665 17324389
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15. W% BB K&tk @)

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)
BF hRkxE BENEEE A8 GAREE fHRIR st
Machinery
and Leasehold Fumniture  Construction
Buldings equipment  improvements  Motorvehides  and fixtures in progress Total
BT BT An AT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
A Cost:
RIZ-NE-B-H At 1 January 2019 11,394,987 5,826,248 467,074 330613 1659422 1105350  20,7836%4
HE Additions 192,336 341972 67343 43998 332575 1,165,425 2,143,649
HE Disposals (24.116) (385,705) (16,616) (43,807) (90,001) (10,844) (571,089)
WERBAR (h7) Acquisiion of subsidiaies (Aote 37) 1,209,810 280,281 1279 10473 74,942 57,135 1633920
HERBAR (H238) Disposal of subsidiaries (Wote 38) = = (34 (327) (3307) (166,955) (170932)
BEERENE Transfer to investment properties (189773) S S 5 = (1,575 (191,349)
BREERENE (W26)  Tanfer from investment properties (Yore /)~ 140,046 s 5 s = = 140,046
g Transfers 694,754 375,521 28436 (1469) 127,962 (1,225,210) -
EREE Exchange realignment (293,79) (156,465) (8310) (8,109 (56,101) (32,640) (555,419)
RZZ—NE+ZB=+—F At31December 2019 13,124,246 6,281,858 538,863 331376 2,045,492 890,686 23,212,521
ZiiNE: Accumulated deprediation:
RZE-N5-F-H At 1 January 2019 2,031,108 2,154,225 270,629 159,275 851,243 - 6,066,480
FRztiE Provided for the year 450923 582,678 B0 48634 306,271 = 1432,208
HE Disposals (11.401) (308,630) (13,509) (39,746) (60,125) - (433411)
HERBAR H28) Disposal of subsiciaries (Mote 38) S S (343) (310) (2,806) = (3459)
BRERENE Transfer to investment properties (74,361) 5 5 5 = = (74,361)
ax Transfers 200 1990 1,309 (2,027) (329) E 5
ERRE Exchange realignment (@7.117) (81,147) (5802) (5129 (28272 - (167.467)
RZE-NFTTA=1—H  At31 December 2019 2351172 2949116 295,986 160697 1,063,019 - 68199%
HE: Impairment:
RIZ-NE-F-H At 1 January 2019 6,665 34014 162 - 393 35,341 76,575
Rt hi7) Provided for the year (Aote /) 238 31319 29 63 331 = 37318
HE Disposals (1.175) (38,046) - 1 (519 - (39,751)
BEERENE Transfer to investment properties (1,280) S S 5 = = (1,280)
ERAE Exchange realignment (401) (1379 ) 5 (25) (835) 2.641)
RIE-AEFZB=1+—H At31December 2019 6,137 25,908 457 52 3,161 34,506 70,221
RESE. Net carrying amount:
RZZ—NE+ZB=+—H At31 December 2019 10,766,937 3,306,834 1240 170,627 979312 856,180 16,322,310
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15. ME - -BERFZE & 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

HRAEEETYE -BERRBHBR
MRIBERERMRE  ZEWE BB KRR
FHHREEHEREAE #E_T_F
F+ZR=+—HLEFEEEIBBES
1B 78158,382,0007T (ZE—hEF : B
37,318,0007T) - HEAEER AU EIE 2R
REBERENEREERTE

AEBEFHEURREAM -

RZEMHRFREMLEDS  KEB kK
RER_ZE_TFE+"_B=+—HZEK
EEAB2,144,204,00070 (ZE—H
1 ABI82,112,542,0007T) 2 BYES
EEMBEBTBEAEBRNERAER
HEAEBMEEHEEZSYEMLEE
BRAMERE ARBEERA BRAK
BRI ZEYE 2 RRAHRE -

ANEBEEFEL A B 859,573,000 7T

(ZE—HFE : B1144,439,0007T0) A8
FEEFEALERERE TIRITER
BYIEIR (FI5E29) ©

BE_Z-_ZTHE+HB=+—HILHF
fE > B14,431,00050 (ZE—HF | B
4,787,0007t) A EHZEEARCER
BIR-

BEE_Z_ZE+_B=+—HIHE
ErAEEABIE=ZF/B&REB
NEHBEFTARFERYE
TEBEFTERMEZTREYE (M
16) o MEREHHHANERFERS
ABEDRILNAAENLS,022,0005T (=
T —h 4 HWE115,707,0007T) KR E
#126,354,000c (ZE—NF B
384,217,0007T) e A BESRREEN
EREAB 78,332,000 (ZE—HE B
#268,510,0007T) E4R & 2 E MR KR T
A E MG (HIsE16) o

210 0055w zpmmsmsEAd

(continued)

Due to physical damage and technical obsolescence in respect of the
Group's certain property, plant and equipment, the carrying values of
these property, plant and equipment were impaired and impairment
losses of HK$8,382,000 (2019: HK$37,318,000) have been recognised
for the year ended 31 December 2020. The recoverable amounts of the
relevant assets have been determined based on their respective values in
use.

The Group’s buildings are all situated in Mainland China.

At the date of the approval of these financial statements, the Group had
not yet obtained the building ownership certificates of certain buildings
with a carrying value of HK$2,144,204,000 (2019: HK$2,112,542,000)
as at 31 December 2020 and the Group is still in the process of
application of title certificates. The Group continues to possess these
properties without objection from the relevant authorities. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, the risk of the relevant government
authorities confiscating these properties is relatively low.

The Group's buildings with a net carrying amount of approximately
HK$59,573,000 (2019: HK$144,439,000) were pledged to secure the
bank borrowings granted to the Group (Note 29).

The interest expenses of approximately HK$4,431,000 during the year
ended 31 December 2020 (2019: HK$4,787,000) were capitalised into
construction in progress.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group rented out
certain properties located in Mainland China to independent third
parties/fellow subsidiaries and transferred owner-occupied properties
to investment properties (Note 16). The net carrying amount and fair
value of the properties were approximately HK$48,022,000 (2019:
HK$115,707,000) and HK$126,354,000 (2019: HK$384,217,000)
on the date of transfer, respectively. The excess of HK$78,332,000
(2019: HK$268,510,000) of the fair value over the carrying amount
was recorded as a revaluation gain in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (Note 16).
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15. YZE -BERZE @) 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

HE T &+ _B=+—81t%HE During the year ended 31 December 2020, certain investment properties
E-mBuIs=r/RBaWBAT+HE which had been rented out to independent third parties/fellow
METEREYERER RN E B (% subsidiaries have been transferred to property, plant and equipment
THEERERYETR) S EYE- upon the change of their uses, evidenced by commencement of owner
BEERLE REBEAMB MEALE occupation. The fair value of properties at the date of transfer amounting
{E751£36,823,0007T0 (ZE—HF : B to HK$36,823,000 (2019: HK$140,046,000) represented the deemed
140,046,0007T) FEY 2~ BB MR ERIE cost of property, plant and equipment.

AR o

16. REYE 16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2020 2019

BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
R—A—HNREE Carrying amount at 1 January 1,724,234 1,541,437
HEWBAR Bz38) Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 38) (515) =
RIERPREBIN AN BEZSNFEE  Net change of fair value recognised in
H15£7) profit or loss (Note 7) 4,559 (14,433)
EREYE  RERRME (#/5215)  Transfer from property, plant and equipment
(Note 15) 126,354 384,217
BRI R R (H/5215)  Transfer to property, plant and equipment
(Note 15) (36,823) (140,046)
PE T Exchange realignment 118,101 (46,941)

FRREE Carrying amount at end of the year 1,935,910 1,724,234

AEFRENENANEBER  NERN In estimating the fair value of investment properties, the Group's policy
BB UE XS ERMGEMET is to engage independent professional qualified valuers to perform the
TETE cBEENBUABEMEXGHBEME valuation. Management works closely with the independent qualified

S U EENGERIG RELLH professional valuers to establish the appropriate valuation technique and
Q@)\%H% ° inputs to the model.
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16.

XBEYE (B

AEBEEMER_Z_ZF+A
=t+—HBHNAABELDERBIGER
EXxGEMABRAEAXEETHBRAE
ETHNHEMER - RIZEEF+A
=t+—H ARBEILEBEBRALETE &
EMENMBUHBEBMN TSR SR
KREERILEY E RN T IB R R T
AR - mIBEHE2 T YETHBEN
SR AT EOUENEMH AR SE
TAESH o BRIRE T, 2 Z A EEUEBY
XHERBMEBRESMEE L EHE
BN ERMELREENTIZ AR UK
REBMEENERFENRE - RERNFTE
ARG ER A mEEE o EAT&L%%%
HNARBER MENRERRAHE
MERERR-

AREBEEER
TRIITMAEEREMEN L ABES
BE®:

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The fair value of the Group's investment properties as at 31 December
2020 has been arrived at based on valuations carried out by Pan-China
Assets Appraisal Co., Ltd., an independent qualified professional valuer.
As at 31 December 2020, the fair value was determined based on the
income approach, where the market rentals of all lettable units of the
properties are assessed and discounted at the market yield expected by
investors for this type of properties. The market rentals are assessed by
reference to the rentals achieved in the lettable units of the properties
as well as other lettings of similar properties in the neighbourhood.
The discount rate is determined by reference to the yields derived from
analysis of sales transactions of similar commercial properties in the PRC
and adjusted to take into account the market expectation from property
investors to reflect factors specific to the Group's investment properties.
There has been no change from the valuation method used during the
year. In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best
use of the properties is their current use.

Fair value hierarchy
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of the
Group's investment properties:

TS ENAREERE
(NSl EEELY/E -1

Fair value measurement for:
Commercial property units located
in the PRC

A—B-BE+-A=+—H
T@ﬂ%kT‘J&ﬁ%ﬁm)\%ﬁF
ETHNARBESE
(E=H
Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2020

using significant unobservable

inputs (Level 3)

2020 2019
AT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000

1,935,910 1,724,234

REAMES -—RRAS _RENEBK
TWESANEHE =K

212 (0055w mnmmsEsER

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 and into or out of
Level 3 during the year.
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16. REYZE (B

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

NRBEERER @) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
TRARSEYEGEFRAGHEERMKE Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the key inputs
TBEABBEBE . to the valuation of investment properties:
SR METIH
fhERA EXFTHZHATE Range or weighted average
Valuation technique  Significant unobservable inputs 2020 2019
EEEL 0N () feRE (i Discount rate 7.6% 76%
Commercial property units ~ Incomeapproach (i) FSERMEE (i) Average monthly rental 8¥AK RMB8-125 §FAk RMB8-122
BEAR) (per square meter) AREBA257T  persquare meter ARES127 persquare meter
17. A& 17. LEASES
KEBEASEHBA The Group as a lessee

AEBMELEMA LM IEFRAEMR
BEREREFAEESN A —
RUEMRUBEE AWBEE L B
30F60F  REZSLHBERTE
FHFEMR -TEE LT M RIEFHEAR
2E505 MEMRKRAE—RBH/IE0
FoHMBRBE -—REHR/12ERIUT
B,/ ARt REEE —RME &
ErERERERLINEELRDHEEE
BE-ETHEGNESEORKILER
o

The Group has lease contracts for various items of land, building and
other equipment used in its operations. Lump sum payments were made
upfront to acquire the leased land from the owners with lease periods
of 30 to 60 years, and no ongoing payments will be made under the
terms of these land leases. Leases of land and building generally have
lease terms between 2 and 50 years, while other equipment generally
have lease terms between 1 and 10 years. Other equipment generally
has lease terms of 12 months or less and/or is individually of low value.
Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the
leased assets outside the Group. There are several lease contracts that
include extension and termination options.

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited Annual Report 2020 213

s




AR B BRI
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

TEBECEF+"H=+—H 31 December 2020

17. 18 @ 17. LEASES (continued))
REBREAEBAN @& The Group as a lessee (continued)
(@) HEESBE (@)  Right-of-use assets
AERERAESENREEERTN The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and the
SEHUNE - movements during the year are as follows:
TAE i EF Hs a5t
Leasehold Other
Land Building equipment Total
BlETT BETT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
N _E_EFF—H—H As at 1 January 2020 3,394,888 2,106,738 5,923 5,507,549
wE Additions 220,395 374,158 25,765 620,318
HUW BN B AT AE Additions as a result of acquisition
(H15£37) of subsidiaries (Note 37) 14,011 - - 14,011
BEBERYE - BERRE Transfer from property, plant and
(H15%15) equipment (Note 15) 14,356 = = 14,356
HEWB AT (Wa£38) Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 38) (22,771) = = (22,771)
TERX Depreciation charge (87,121) (608,567) (4,621) (700,309)
TITEEREEREE S Reassessment of lease terms arising
HE R EMTE from a decision not to exercise
the extension option - (237,070) - (237,070)
EAROJHEEFAEHAREE  Revision of lease terms arising

ERNHBEERRER from a change in the non-

&3] cancellable period of lease - (16,897) = (16,897)
BE Impairment - (9,406) = (9,406)
PE R sREE Exchange realignment 93,633 53,153 1,282 148,068
R _E _EFFE+_"H=+—H Asat 31 December 2020 3,627,391 1,662,109 28,349 5,317,849
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17. 1HE #& 17. LEASES (continued)
TEBEAEABEAN @ The Group as a lessee (continued)
(a) FAEEE®@ (@)  Right-of-use assets (continued)
TE 1B HMHE A8t
Leasehold Other
Land Building equipment Total
AT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZ2—nFE—HF—H As at 1 January 2019 2,743,877 1,897,468 7,657 4,649,002
NE Additions 1,402 843,263 869 845,534
HUW BN B AT AE Additions as a result of acquisition
(H15£37) of subsidiaries (Note 37) 787,655 2,044 - 789,699
ERX Depreciation charge (87,629) (594,573) (2,436) (684,638)
PE R sREE Exchange realignment (50,417) (41,464) (167) (92,048)
KZE—NF+"H=+—H Asat 31 December 2019 3,394,888 2,106,738 5923 5,507,549
REE L AREE 4% 110,987,000 The Group's right-of-use assets in respect of land with a carrying value
T MRS EEIRE LUK of HK$10,987,000 were pledged to secure certain bank borrowings
R _E-EFE+_-_B=+—H granted to the Group (Note 29) as at 31 December 2020.
RTAEENSE TIRITER (M
29) ©
TR4% P Uk (5] & 28 5 #523,178,0007T An impairment loss of HK$9,406,000 was provided based on recoverable
TR BB RS 1878 159,406,000t © HH amount of HK$23,178,000. The impairment was recognised in certain
R EEBENTEURERTHBH retail CGUs in Hong Kong due to the impact of COVID-19 and intense
BB O ITEENTNZTERS competition in the market of pharmaceutical products, which resulted
ELBNERIDAE ERZER in a decrease in sales of those CGUs as compared to the budget and a
SELBEUBEESELEEEL mMA corresponding decrease in expected future cash flow accordingly.

HIRZRIREMEBIF S AL o
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17. 1HE #&

NEEEREBEAN @
b) HESRE

HEEENREERFRESH U

17. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)  Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during

T the year are as follows:
2020 2019
BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
K—A—BZEREE Carrying amount at 1 January 2,247,356 2,016,387
WS New leases 439,323 814,817
HU BB A RAE Additions as a result of acquisition of subsidiaries
(Hz237) (Note 37) - 2,044
FRRESRRIR] B IG N Accretion of interest recognised during the year 94,745 112,125
BT A R AR R B R R Covid-19-related rent concessions from lessors (18,087) =
R Payments (684,778) (653,954)
MMIEBHREEESRNEHEE Reassessment of lease terms arising from
&R E e a decision not to exercise the extension option (245,695) =
ERTHEENA SR E S Revision of lease terms arising from a change in
BYHEE RN ENES] the non-cancellable period of lease (22,789) =
PE TR Exchange realignment 55,591 (44,063)
R+ZR=+—HZKHEE Carrying amount at 31 December 1,865,666 2,247,356
S Analysed into:
BNHEAER Current portion 709,958 614,389
JEBNEREE Non-current portion 1,155,708 1,632,967

HESRNVIRBERINTRERM
BRI 450

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 45 to the
financial statements.

MU IR 2 2P IR BB > AN
ERFAECRARAEBMBRS
ERF16RHEST 4 W5 B FRE
HAZBRREBEARFEARARET
BREYNEEMATHMAESER
HEEE-

As disclosed in note 2.2 to the financial statements, the Group
has early adopted the amendment to HKFRS 16 and applied the
practical expedient to all eligible rent concessions granted by the
lessors for leases of certain buildings during the year.
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17. & & 17. LEASES (continued)
REBREAEBAN @& The Group as a lessee (continued)
(c) MBEENRBTZHEIHVSBEUOT (0 The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are as
follows:
2020 2019
BETT BT
HK$000 HK$'000
HEaENE Interest on lease liabilities 94,745 112,125
FREEEITERS Depreciation charge for right-of-use assets 700,309 684,638
BT A R AR R B R R Covid-19-related rent concessions from lessors (18,087) =
MNMIEBHREEESRNEHEE Reassessment of lease terms arising from
BB E G a decision not to exercise the extension option (8,625) -
ERTHEEA SR E S Revision of lease terms arising from a change in
BYHEE RN ENES] the non-cancellable period of lease (5.892) =
B Impairment 9,406 =
ER 5 HRTE & R I ERAE HA Expense relating to short-term leases and other
REZE+_"_B=+—HZZHEM leases with remaining lease terms ended on
HNEMBERENER or before 31 December 132,421 52,152
PIBR SRV AE £ 2 Total amount recognised in profit or loss 904,277 848,915
(d) HEZMABRSRERENRHMBRE (d)  The total cash outflow for leases are disclosed in note 39(b) to the
f$5E39(b) ° financial statements.
NEBEABEA The Group as a lessor
AEERBKEHEZHLEERLEYE The Group leases its investment properties (note 16) under operating
(MzE16) - FHEMBKEF—REKREHL L lease arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require the tenants
RSB REREEEM I CHMBESE to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
HiEE  REFBRFERNBRIHNHES WAL according to the then prevailing market conditions. Rental income
A #140,203,0007T (ZEBE— N5 . BHE recognised by the Group during the year was HK$140,203,000 (2019:
163,729,0007T) @ He¥ BEH N 53R KM HK$163,729,000), details of which are included in note 5 to the financial
5E50 statements.
RIE_EHERZZE—NAFE+ZA At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the undiscounted lease payments
=+—B FEBRERBEAURBELEHRE receivable by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable
RERPEEEERFEWRWAKIREE operating leases with its tenants are as follows:
RAT
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17. 1HE @&
AE@MELHBA @)

17. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessor (continued)

2020 2019
BETT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
—&FR Within one year 67,771 79,335
FIEFLT (BIEEEMD) In the second to fifth year inclusive 236,000 223,435
RELE Over five years 103,298 155,093
407,069 457,863
18. HE& 18. GOODWILL
2020 2019
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
%N Cost
REH] At the beginning of the year 20,220,465 19,998,438
WEE B AT (5E37) Acquisitions of subsidiaries (Note 37) 1,063,018 745,233
HEMWB AR Hfa#38) Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 38) (27,125) =
PE R AR Exchange realignment 1,364,473 (523,206)
REXR At the end of the year 22,620,831 20,220,465
HEHRE Accumulated impairment
REH] At the beginning of the year 914,025 193,584
BB RERE #iE7) Impairment loss recognised (Note 7) 588,142 722,587
HEMWB AR Hfa#38) Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 38) (13,005) =
PE R AR Exchange realignment 59,477 (2,146)
REXR At the end of the year 1,548,639 914,025
BRERE Net carrying value
REXR At the end of the year 21,072,192 19,306,440
R EAIR Impairment testing of goodwill

RETRENS BERAEAERAER
FHNEE QRE19IRE) ENRE
BRREELEMU ((REELEM) ]
TELBURBES=ZH (WERDH;
QFETHREEER, KQ)ERTE-BE
MWEREE RRFEERR ENERE
TEREEEEM FHEUOT

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill and trademarks with
indefinite useful lives (as disclosed in Note 19) have been allocated to
individual cash generating units (“CGUs") which are in three categories:
(1) distribution of pharmaceutical products, (2) manufacturing of
pharmaceutical products in the PRC, and (3) retailing of pharmaceutical
products. The carrying amounts of goodwill (net of accumulated
impairment losses) allocated to the different CGUs are as follows:

.
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18. & (@ 18. GOODWILL (continued)
FEREIR @) Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)
2020
BT T
HK$'000
BEraid Distribution of pharmaceutical products
REEEBA Cash-generating units:
NEIA Company A 2,143,779
‘AEJB Company B 1,566,393
AEIC Company C 1,060,892
‘AEID Company D 638,933
NGIS Company E 838,092
~NEIF Company F 616,681
NEIG Company G 571,888
AEH Company H 410,644
~E Company | 392,256
NCI) Company J 214,763
AEIK Company K -
NEIL Company L 246,762
NEIM Company M 231,883
NSIN Company N 229,539
RNEIV Company V 206,091
NEIX Company X 202,771
NEY Company Y 177,528
YN=IVA Company Z =
NEIAA Company AA 163,711
Hith Others 1,775,528
11,688,134
BEodE Manufacturing of pharmaceutical products
IREEEEN Cash-generating units:
‘AE)0 Company O 2,602,306
NE)P Company P 1,677,049
AEIQ Company Q 803,607
AEIR Company R 481,554
NEIS Company S 366,008
AFT Company T 325,373
NEW Company W 316,487
‘ATEIAB Company AB 301,206
NBJAC Company AC 183,188
ATAD Company AD 110,771
AB)AE Company AE 727,598
‘AN EIAF Company AF 1,100,041
Hith Others 282,094
9,277,282
BELTE Retailing of pharmaceutical products
REEEBN: Cash-generating units:
AEU Company U 106,776
21,072,192

2019

BT T
HK$'000

2,014,213
1,471,723
996,774
600,317
787,440
579,410
537,324
385,826
368,549
201,783
234,941
231,848
217,869
215,666
193,635
190,516
166,799
39,608
153,816
1,699,065

11,287,122

2,445,028
1,575,692
950,342
452,450
343,887
305,708
297,359
283,002
172,117
104,076
683,624

305,710
7,918,995

100,323
19,306,440
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18.

BE @
BERENR 6@

BETRENR BEE2EEERNIRE
EfEM -zEReESLEMNT KOS
HMEENERBENEETE &8 ZE
KBRS REEA WU EEE I ER
ELERRTEEHENEEA3I%E24%
ZEBE—NFE 3% FE24%) RUI1%E
12% (ZZ2—NE 1 12%) WEERRIRE
AENMBEEARE - BBERFHNZ
ERGELFEMNRESREFEMHI% (°F
—NE 3% NIBEREXEA ERE
BERBRATEEERA - EBKRERERK
ANEHHERBTIEGNRTIZEREKTE
ey BEERA ZERINEME
B2 rg8nE@ReEES
MNEEREBRREELEMNNER
WO EEE - EERRA NS RBEE
B EmENEARBINAERE -

RIEAI[EW £ 8B 1£24,266,00070 (=
— ML #B183,927,989,0007T) 5T E R
B4 574 1329,389,00070 (ZE—H
£ #1£481,933,0007T) ° AN EE G TH IS
BREEI BRHE WAL B TRE R
B FBERESRE AL o EIit
A EE E MR R E R 1R B 16329,389,0007T
(ZZE— N : B1481,933,0007T) ©
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18. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated
to individual CGUs. The recoverable amounts of these CGUs have
been determined based on a value in use calculation. That calculation
uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a 5-year period with average sales growth rates
of 3% t0 24% (2019: 3% to 24%), and a discount rate of 11% to 12%
(2019: 12%) per annum. These CGUs’ cash flows beyond the 5-year
period are extrapolated using a steady growth rate of 3% (2019: 3%),).
The growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts.
Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on past practices
and expectations of future changes in the market. Management believes
that any reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions would
not cause the aggregate carrying amount of individual CGUs to exceed
respective recoverable amounts of CGUs. In the opinion of the directors,
no material additional impairment loss of goodwill was identified at the
end of the reporting period.

An impairment loss of HK$329,389,000 (2019: HK$481,933,000)
based on the recoverable amount of HK$24,266,000 (2019:
HK$3,927,989,000) was recognised. Due to the intense competition in
the market of pharmaceutical products, which resulted in a decrease in
sales of certain CGUs as compared to the budget and a corresponding
decrease in the expected future cash flows of those CGUs accordingly. As
a result, the Group recognised an impairment loss of HK$329,389,000
(2019: HK$481,933,000).
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18. BE #&) 18. GOODWILL (continued)

HERENR @

BETHRENS BHEKAEBERAE
BEHNBEEESEEENREELS
fiegt M RBME  ZEREELESBN
MBS EHERZATDNARER
REERAFTHEET -FIELmAEM
S RSEREELBUNIKEISELE
REREEFBEET ZetE A AHAR
EREBA - UEEEBMERELFH
BEHHEREREARS%E2T% (ZF
—NE I 3%E37%)RHU12%E14% (Z
T—HFE11%E13%) WEERLIER
BN BHEEAEE - BBAFHNZ
EHRSELEURESREEHI% (T
—NF 3%) NEEEERHEA - EREER
BERBRATEEERA - EBKRERERK
ANEHHERBTEGNRTIZERKTE
e BEERA  ZERITNEM
SEAENEFRIFERNEIREE
FEMNEERAEBRRSELBEUN
ZENEEE - EERA RBREHR
BRI ENEAREBINRERIE -

RIEET (O] Uk £ 388 1£985,108,000 Jt (=
T— A4 : H181,371,242,0007T) 5t E
By R B k518 A 8 #5258,753,0005T (Z &
— L B M240,654,0007T) o RS EE
mTERIFRI BERZEEHERS
L BEEERMAEL > FHREESREN
A It R 2 o BRIt » 7 £ B 7 50 OR (B A5 18
5 M5258,753,0007T (ZE— L4 | B
240,654,0007T) °

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill and trademarks with
indefinite useful lives have been allocated to individual CGUs. For
listed companies, the recoverable amounts of these CGUs have been
determined based on the fair value of the company and disposal costs.
For unlisted companies, the recoverable amounts of these CGUs have
been determined based on value in use calculations. That calculations
use cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a 5-year period with average sales growth rates
of 5% t0 27% (2019: 3% to 37%), and discount rates of 12% to 14%
(2019: 11% to 13%) per annum. These CGUs’ cash flows beyond the
5-year period are extrapolated using a steady growth rate of 3% (2019:
3%). The growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts.
Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on past practices
and expectations of future changes in the market. Management believes
that any reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions would
not cause the aggregate carrying amount of individual CGUs to exceed
respective recoverable amounts of CGUs. In the opinion of the directors,
no material additional impairment loss of goodwill was identified at the
end of the reporting period.

An impairment loss of HK$258,753,000 (2019: HK$240,654,000)
based on the recoverable amount of HK$985,108,000 (2019:
HK$1,371,242,000) was recognised. Due to the intense competition
in the market of pharmaceutical products, which resulted in a decrease
in sales of certain CGUs for the year as compared to the budget and a
corresponding decrease in the expected future cash flows of those CGUs
accordingly. As a result, the Group recognised an impairment loss of
HK$258,753,000 (2019: HK$240,654,000).
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18. B2& (@)
HEREE @

BETRENR BEE2EEERNIRE
EXBA - ABRUNIKESEEERE
FAEEFEET ZtEAARARER
SE UEEBHUERE A FHNT
FEE O RHEREREXEARAI%WE24% (=
Z—NF I 8%) RMURIEZZF+Z
B=+—H11%%E12% (ZE— N5 :
12%) NFEMREAEN Y HBEEAR
B R E_EFE+_F=+—HEBER
FHNREELEMNRESREFEAS3%
(ZE—HF 3%) WIETEHEXHEAR -
BMEXTLERARITEERBIN-EEK
BERANEHLERBEEANRTS
RARTEHES - BB A ZFHREN
ARMEENENESFFEENZAE
EFXEMANREERBEWEISE %
ERAH RBREHAMERIEENEX
RESNBIERE
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18. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

Retailing of pharmaceutical products

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated
to an individual CGU. The recoverable amount of Company U has
been determined based on a value in use calculation. That calculation
uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a 5-year period with a sales growth rate of 3%
10 24%(2019: 8%), and a discount rate of 11% to 12% (2019: 12%)
per annum as at 31 December 2020. This CGU’s cash flows beyond
the 5-year period were extrapolated using a steady growth rate of 3%
(2019: 3%) as at 31 December 2020. The growth rate is based on the
relevant industry growth forecasts. Changes in selling prices and direct
costs are based on past practices and expectations of future changes in
the market. Management believes that any reasonably possible change
in any of these assumptions would not cause the carrying amount of
that CGU to exceed its respective recoverable amount. In the opinion
of the directors, no material additional impairment loss of goodwill was
identified at the end of the reporting period.
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19. BCEE 19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

SHRER  FEHK AR EERENA PRI At st
Deferred
Patents  Non-patent development Customer
andlicences  technology  Trademarks costs  relationships Others Total

R AR AT BT BT BT EHTR

HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000
ZZIEEFIR=1-H  31December 2020
S Cost:
RZZZEF-F-H At 1 January 2020 382,891 358,952 2320762 1,089,653 2,984,412 195,976 1,332,646
HE Additions - 523 48 298,916 68,842 - 368,329
WENBAR (hd7) Acquisition of subsidiaies (Aot 37) 88,366 142,115 116470 - 176,892 - 523,843
&g Tansfers - 166977 - (166,977) - - -
i Wiite-off - - - (119027) - - (119027)
EREE Exchange realignment 32483 52,336 158,592 75210 215,276 12,606 546,523
RZE"FE+"B=+-H At31 December 2020 503,700 720,903 2595872 177,835 3045422 208,582 8,652,314
e Accumulated amortisation:
RIZZZE-F-H At 1 January 2020 17,31 193,611 52,948 - 830,527 85,689 1,280,012
FRzE Provided during the year 55,500 36,361 298 - 130,555 19,598 242812
EREE Exchange realignment 13,380 2,191 4,057 - 64,263 5,039 108,930
RIZZTEFTA=+—H  At31December 2020 186,117 252,663 57,303 - 1,025,345 110,326 1,631,754
B Impairment:
RIZZZE-F-H At 1 January 2020 3231 208 - - - - 3439
R h7) Provided during the year (ot /) - - 5,925 - 7113 - 71,057
EREZ Exchange realignment 208 13 16 - 194 - 831
RIEZRE+TAZT-H A3 December 2020 3439 2 5,941 - 71,326 - 80,927
REE. Net canying amount:
RZE"FE+TB=+-H  At31 December 2020 314,144 468,019 2532628 1,177,835 2,348,751 98,256 6,939,633
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19. 2B E @ 19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
SHRER  FEARE 1 G T ERE% i st
Deferred
Patents ~ Non-patent development Customer
and licences technology ~ Trademarks costs  relationships Others Total

BT BT AT AT BT BT BT

HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
Z5-NETZB=1-H  31December 2019
A Cost:
RIZ-NE-F-H At 1 January 2019 204,755 344,197 1474.4% 891,435 2975359 198370 6,088,012
HE Additions 24436 722 = 333,639 47178 2% 42710
& Disposdls 2918) (15,048) (2358)) - (21,84) - (63372
WEREAR (37) Acoisiton of subsidiaries Note 37) 167,221 31275 929,871 107 49,693 - 1179087
HENBAR (Hi238) Disposal of subsiciaries (Mote 38) - (58,177) 5 5 = = (58,177)
o Tiansfers - 60,509 - (60,509 - - -
s Wiite-off - - - (52,257) - - (52,257)
ERHE Exchange realignment (10,603) (11,025) (60,023 (23,682) (65,994) (2,690) (174017)
RZE-NFTTA=1—H  At31 December 2019 382,891 36952 230762 1089653 2984412 195976 733266
it Accumulated amortisation:
RIZ-NE-F-H At 1 January 2019 79482 213030 57,665 - 696,699 81,467 1128343
MR Provided during the year 42635 35,775 - - 163,661 5930 248,001
HE Disposals (1443) (5,757) (233) - (11,65) - (19,090)
HERBAR () Disposal of subsiciaries (e 38) = @ = = = = @m)
EREE Exchange realignment (3437) (7,666) (4.479) - (18,181) (1,708) (35.471)
RIBE-AEFZB=1+—H At31December 2019 17,237 193,611 52,948 - 830,527 85,689 1,280,012
e Impaiment
RZE-nF-F-H At 1 January 2019 4,749 856 - = = = 5,605
tE Disposdls (1479) = = = = = (1479)
EREE Exchange realignment ®) (648) = = = = (691)
RZE-NE+ZB=1-H At31 December 2019 3231 208 = = = = 3439
KERE: Net carrying amount:
RIB-AEFZA=+—H At31December 2019 262,423 165,133 2,267,814 1,089,653 2,153,885 110,287 6,049,195
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19.

BILEE #@

RIZEZZEF+ A =+—0H > LitEmFE
BE CRIREAEFEAR®E2,442,256,0007T
(ZZT—H45F : #152,186,305,0007T) K9
NB (ZZ—HF : \IB) 5 (BEZKIE18
Rt DB FABORABAERESEL S
i) BEERAUFHFR ZEBTEE
WEGER T HAR#

BRI & IER 5ZE 154
FEFE AT 5E104F
g 5Z&E 204
EERBE 10E 204
HAth 5E 104

MEM - M_BE_B2F+_F=+—H
BRE4EFEABN2,442,256,00050 (Z
ZT— 4 HEUE2,186,305,0007T) HIEGAZ
B+ EREBRAEESE A ATE
ERARERRBSHEBESEBDEZNEE
NETEE-AEEETEEBEETZIEN
o EEEREMBRMAE - mHEE
FERRIEED RGBEEREES I
EMEBIFR MEEERTBRALER
BEMBEEMFEMES R UEIBEEN
RE-FHIt AEEEEERBEHERE
RNERFH FRARZEEERE—8
BEMBEESRAZHE BESATEES
MO BEERETHAIERAFHABRES
Ltk BRESFEFREENRETH
AERERETTRER S - BRABERFN
FEIBR MR 18IRE o

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

The above intangible assets, other than eight (2019: eight) trademarks
with a total net carrying value of HK$2,442,256,000 as at 31 December
2020 (2019: HK$2,186,305,000) (which are allocated to the CGU of
Company O and Company AE in Note 18), have finite useful lives. Such
intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the following
periods:

Patents and licences
Non-patent technology

51to 15 years
51to 10 years

Trademarks 5 to 20 years
Customer relationships 10 to 20 years
Others 5to 10 years

As stated above, the trademarks with a total net carrying value of
HK$2,442,256,000 as at 31 December 2020 (2019: HK$2,186,305,000)
are renewable continuously every ten years at minimal costs. The
directors of the Company are of the opinion that the Group would
renew the trademarks continuously and has the ability to do so. Various
studies including product life cycle studies, market, competitive and
environmental trends, and brand extension opportunities have been
performed by the management of the Group, which support that the
trademarks have no foreseeable limit to the period over which the
trademarked products are expected to generate net cash flows for the
Group. As a result, the trademarks are considered by the management of
the Group as having an indefinite useful life because they are expected
to contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely. The trademarks will not be
amortised until the useful life is determined to be finite. Instead, they will
be tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication
that they may be impaired. The details for the impairment test are
disclosed in Note 18.

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited Annual Report 2020 225




AREH BTN

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

“E2TFF+"HA=+—H 31 December 2020

20. REEEFENED

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

DILEEFE

Share of net assets

2020 2019
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
11,391 96,602

FEERGECLENEZRRNRERE
P RIRNAE BRI B R M 5E 424K

E’go

TRMGAEEEN L FEANSE L
MBI R

The Group's trade receivable and trade payable balances with the joint
ventures are disclosed in Note 42 to the financial statements.

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information of the
Group's joint ventures that are not individually material:

2020 2019
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAMMEEEEREE Share of the joint ventures' loss for the year (4,504) (6,059)
FEFAREGE L EMEREARME  Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's
investments in the joint ventures 11,391 96,602
21. RIS ATIAER 21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
2020 2019
BT T AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
DMEBEERE Share of net assets 5,720,721 4,735,488

FEERBEATNEZ R E MWK
TR MU e B 5 Fe B FE J 7R IE B9 45 R 1S A
BRI ETA2H2FR ©

The Group's trade and other receivables, and trade and other payables,
balances with the associates are disclosed in Note 42 to the financial
statements.
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21. REFERBAINER & 21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
AEERBR _ZE-TF+"_/B=+—HH Particulars of the Group's principal associates as at 31 December 2020
TEHEATHEBEOT are as follows:
R FribksE  FREET
HERRLHE ek &R Antt  RhzEE HEERED
Place of Particulars of
registration Registered  Percentageof issued
Name of associates and operation capital  voting power  shares held Ownership interest
AEREEMNEERARAT e/ hERA B 800,004,600 B15%  HHER Eniii ¥R TERME
(TBIEXE) (Hista)
Hefei Tianmai Biotechnology Development Co,, Ltd ~ PRC/ RMB800,004,600 Registered capital ~ Research and development, production
("Hefei Tianmai") (Note ) Mainland China and sale of pharmaceutical products
BREEERERAT "/ 4,200,000%7T 632%  HER BpiR &R TERBE
Beijing Hanmei Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. PRC/ USD4,200,000 Registered capital ~ Research and development, production
Mainland China and sale of pharmaceutical products
EPMEREERAR (£ERE) "/ RE R AR13,084,334,1717 4000%  FEAELR HERERE BEVREREMES
R R
China Resources Financial Leasing Co,, Ltd. PRC/ RMB3,084,334,171 Registered capital ~ Financial leasing, leasing, factoring and
("CR Leasing") Mainland China other related consultancy and
quarantee services
HIERERRABRAR (1) "/ A #249,000,0007 2000%  HEELR ERhR BB LERBE
Zhejiang Int'L Group Co. Ltd.("Zhejiang Int'L") PRC/ RMB249,000,000 Registered capital ~ Research and development, production
Mainland China and sale of pharmaceutical products
Wtzta: R-IFE_ZELHA+NNH FTEFHG Note a: On 16 July 2020, the Group acquired additional 3.75% shares of Heifei
EEXFIERREZ EHE NS EX Tianmai from Hefei Wo Ji Cang Biological Technology Co., Ltd., a wholly
HEEYREFRAGKESEXE owned company by the controlling shareholder of Hefei Tianmai. Upon
BEIL3. 75% L8R5 o K ZSEHL 18+ K EE the completion of the transaction, the Group held 23.75% shares of
EF B S BEXE23.75%H988 17 7 IR Heifei Tianmai and accounted for Heifei Tianmai as an associate using the
A a A S IERE(FR I E R A equity method.
AR
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21. REFERENER & 21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
TEBMAEF@ER TR E RS A The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information of the
SIMABRERI B K ¢ Group's associates that are not individually material:

2020 2019
BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FADMEHBE A EAN Share of the associates’ profit for the year 211,356 146,476
FADEHEABEMEEER Share of the associates’ other comprehensive loss
for the year - (1,773)
FEFPBEATIREMERELAEE  Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's
investments in the associates 5,720,721 4,735,488
tmE, IEREERE 22. OTHER CURRENT/NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL
ASSETS
2020 2019
BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEERFES AR BES Assets backed securities, at fair value (Note a)

(Htzta) - 532,586
B 5 RWGERIBE A RN E Trade and bills receivable, at fair value (Note b)

BANBES WD) 27,699,362 20,756,903
JE LR E B ARBES Unlisted equity investments, at fair value (Note ¢)

(Htzzc) 602,344 412,215
B ER B ARNEE (Watd) Financial products, at fair value (Note d) 6,914,461 4,946,093
120 B SR IR EH A AN BT (T 3Fe) Financial products, at amortised cost (Note e) = 167,780
fast Total 35,216,167 26,815,577
SaLiim Analysed into:

REEE Current assets 34,613,823 26,403,362

ERBIEE Non-current assets 602,344 412,215

35,216,167 26,815,577
Kiita: KEFREEHIFZENLE [0 Note a: The Group’s investments in asset-backed securities with returns linked to
BB = H R ST S the performance of those securities and are issued by independent third
B FEIF ) 0 35 Z 2B KT IR N A MEE parties in the PRC. These securities are measured at fair value through
HABHRA B R - EEE+—H profit and loss. As at 31 December 2020 all these securities have matured
=+ —HEBZM I TRE S EFH and fully settled.
I EYL[o] 0
Hizth: AKEEFEEEEELAFENES Note b: The Group has classified trade and bills receivable that are held within a
TR E B S E I N E business model both to collect cash flows and to sell upon transition to
RBERESEBIEALEBARM financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income.

PEMW AT B E
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/)IL@J/;'E/}IL 37 Emiﬁ&
:é%)

Htazc:

Hiatd:

Htazte:

KEFPIIF L IR ERE 15 R
THIFFLTMNBREIIRE - ZFFF
LHEEFENFERGE DR
1ERIEE - RER AR BB AR

FEe

FRATNEE S IRAIIER] Z dp B 1% K 5
EmiRIT R BHEEFAN G EIEF
ko ZFREE I A E LS D2
FEWTEA  IEERBALEEE
AR5t BHIZHEE

FR AT R K 5 BRI IE RS E dp B FE R AR
REBIIER] Edp o % FEET IR
A 518 K] 75 1 Z i E T 5 i
ft: EHMEENBEELARE T
HEZMEENBNSRREAEE
T 5 By B E RS AIIFAIIEE A
HELRERE MFEELRTR K
EEXTHF B - K FE_FF
+TZA=+—H HEELENESR
EZFJRFT £ AFL[E]

HitIERSEE

22. OTHER CURRENT/NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL
ASSETS (continued)

Note c: The Group’s unlisted equity investments represented investments in
unlisted private entities established in the PRC. These unlisted entities are
principally engaged in research and development, distribution and related
operations of pharmaceutical products. They are measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

Note d: Financial products at fair value included structured deposits entered into
by the Group with banks and financial institutions. These structured
deposits (where the effect of structured element is not material) are
designated as financial assets measured at fair value through profit or
[oss.

Note e: Financial products at amortised cost include financial products with
principal and interest guaranteed. The assets are measured at amortised
cost as they meet two conditions: (i) the financial asset is held within
a business model with the objective to hold financial assets to collect
contractual cash flows, and (ii) the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. As at
31 December 2020 all these financial products have matured and fully
settled.

23. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

2020 2019
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000

WY % - B R EEE Deposits for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment 247,778 274,658
WEE R EERE Deposits for acquisition of right-of-use assets = 65,149
WEEET EERE Deposits for acquisition of intangible assets 27,406 43,870
REAERWGRIE Long-term receivables 1,149,894 976,025
ZEENR (/5/7‘?‘42(//)) Entrusted Loan (Note 42(1})) 867,357 380,452
AN EMRIE Prepayments for investment 45,907 317,043
HAth Others 30,280 15,079
2,368,622 2,072,276
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24. 76 24. INVENTORIES

2020 2019

BT T T T

HK$000 HK$'000

JE A1 Raw materials 2,694,009 2,505,818
B Packaging materials 24,224 23,285
RS Work in progress 1,438,982 1,263,572
SRS Finished goods 20,427,546 18,539,699
24,584,761 22,332,374

25. B 5 REMEWTIE 25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2020 2019

BT IT BT T

HK$000 HK$'000

EW = Bills receivable 703,357 2,270,974
B 5 WA Trade receivables 59,617,016 52,680,136
AR Impairment allowance (1,692,829) (832,206)
57,924,187 51,847,930

FB{IRIA Prepayments 3,737,216 3,662,142
HihEWERIE Other receivables 5,570,605 6,150,906
AR Impairment allowance (232,383) (159,463)
5,338,222 5,991,443

67,702,982 63,772,489

TEE—RKAEBESZELEFNFI0E The Group generally allows credit periods ranging from 30 to 180 days

180 RMEE o REECELAREE
HIEEE365K Mt BRFETELD
B ERGEEERTE - B ERIEAR
TF30E180K ©

AEEBNEZRERFEQERKAER
ARBAT -SELE - BEAT —
RERMBATNEE QS RIEZTERR
RHRIED B A A K220,302,0007T (&
ZT— 4 B1E41,991,0007T) ~ B
407,00070 (ZZE— N4 : #B1253,000
7o)~ A #841,330,000 0 (ZE—HE B
#43,365,0007T) ~ %1 154,584,0007% (=
T—f 6 EWE174,864,0007T) K B
43,577,000 (ZE—NF  8) ZEXR
EHEAEBRDTEZARENEMUEE

1RRIEE -

230 c0055% EEmmsEmsEAT

to its trade customers, which may be extended to 365 days for selected
customers depending on their trade volume and settlement terms. The
bills receivable generally have maturity periods ranging from 30 to 180
days.

Included in the Group's trade receivables are amounts due from the
Group's fellow subsidiaries, joint ventures, associates, associates of a
fellow subsidiary and non-controlling shareholders of HK$220,302,000
(2019: HK$41,991,000), HK$407,000 (2019: HK$253,000),
HK$41,330,000 (2019: HK$43,365,000), HK$ 154,584,000 (2019:
HK$174,864,000) and HK$43,577,000 (2019: Nil), respectively, which
are repayable on credit terms similar to those offered to the major
customers of the Group.
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25. B REMEWRIE @) 25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
N E_EFR_E—HL&E+ZH An ageing analysis of the Group's trade receivables, net of loss
=—+—HB FAERENZEEZHBNRERE allowance, based on the invoice date at 31 December 2020 and 2019 is
BEENESBWFIBENERE W T as follows:

2020 2019
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
0ZE30Kk 0 to 30 days 13,467,276 19,055,572
31E60K% 31 to 60 days 10,049,417 7,556,805
61290k 61 to 90 days 6,775,877 5,023,435
91E180K 91 to 180 days 14,855,296 10,795,980
181&365% 181 to 365 days 10,115,177 7,275,886
BiB1E Over 1 year 2,661,144 2,140,252
57,924,187 51,847,930
RIEZEFEFR_ZTE—NE+_A An ageing analysis of the Group’s bills receivable, based on the issue
=t+—HB ' FAERRWREEILZEZTHEN date, at 31 December 2020 and 2019 is as follows:
ERECDATUWT -
2020 2019
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
0E30K 0 to 30 days 107,451 1,264,215
31E60XK 31 to 60 days 122,936 233,886
61290k 61 to 90 days 85,775 262,085
91£E180K 91 to 180 days 387,195 510,788
703,357 2,270,974
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25. B REMEWRIE @) 25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
EHE S REMIEWSIEN R EE S & The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade and other
BERIEBHU T ¢ receivables are as follows:

2020 2019
BETT BT
HK$000 HK$'000
B S EWERIE Trade receivable
REH] At beginning of year 832,206 436,084
ESENEIEI ik 6l Amount written off as uncollectible (30,022) (2,860)
RERSTE ) JBEE (Wat7) Impairment losses, net (Note 7) 780,417 446,927
PE R sREE Exchange realignment 110,228 (47,945)
RER At end of the year 1,692,829 832,206
Hih RIS Other receivables
i At beginning of year 159,463 136,347
ESENEIEI ik G Amount written off as uncollectible (16,289) (1,014)
BERSIE R 8B (WaE7) Impairment losses, net (Note 7) 70,011 29,651
ERFHEE Exchange realignment 19,198 (5,521)
RER At end of the year 232,383 159,463
BOEKRHBEREBESMIINEHRE A An impairment analysis on trade receivables is performed at each
EREEEREMETUEBHEER reporting date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses.
B EXNMIRBEABFHAMERNNEKRLSR The rate is based on the ageing of the trade receivables due from various
ZERONE S EWFIEBNIRE DM customer segments with similar patterns. The calculation reflects the
STHSTE MBI RNMELS R«  EHEEE probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable
EREREHEENERBTS M IR and supportable information that is available at the reporting date
AR R R AR AR AR R FE R & I8 K& 7] 5 about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
&itlo conditions.
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25. B REMEWRIE @) 25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
TXYHLEREAAEESZ S EWSIEERE Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the
BEEEFEENEERRBNER . Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix:
RIE_ZEF+_HA=+—H As at 31 December 2020

IREARE TEHREEREE
Gross Expected
carrying credit
amount losses
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
TBHAE EEENERE TG Individual evaluation of

expected credit losses 680,557 245,630

EREERRAAS L TERAS EEE Assessment of expected credit losses by
credit risk portfolio 58,936,459 1,447,199
59,617,016 1,692,829
BIME 122f PEX}:3 BiB3E it

Less than 1t02 2t03 Over3

1 year years years years Total
BEEEREE Expected credit loss rate 0.46% 17.44% 43.10% 100.00% -
RERE (BT ) (Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) 55,085,936 2,634,551 844,995 370,977 58,936,459
BHEERE (BT Expected credit losses (HK$'000) 252,521 459,520 364,181 370,977 1,447,199
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25. B 5 hEMEWRRIE (&)
R-B—h&E+=A=+—8

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
As at 31 December 2019

EREARE TFEHAEERE
Gross Expected
carrying credit
amount losses
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
TBHAE EEENER TG Individual evaluation of

expected credit losses 411,142 40,353

BB EERRAASSTLTERAS EE51E Assessment of expected credit losses by
credit risk portfolio 52,268,994 791,853
52,680,136 832,206
DRE 1525 153F BE3E it

Less than 1t02 2103 Over3

1year years years years Total
BEEEREE Expected credit loss rate 042% 15.91% 32.61% 91.42% -
REEE (BT Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) 49,849,959 1877,744 362,928 178,363 52,268,994
BHEEHE (BB T Expected credit losses (HK$'000) 211,639 298,795 118,366 163,053 791,853

EEE — BB BGRIER AT U AR R > 4
EEEEEEBANGHERARENIR
HEEZHBURREEHERFNEH A
REEENZRERESLER BEE

In determining the recoverability of a receivable, the Group considered
whether there had been adverse change in the credit standing of the
debtors from the date credit was initially granted. The concentration
of credit risk was limited as the Group's customer base comprised of a

N

y
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BBREFEEER - AABDEEIRH
ARBEEREMBREPFHBEENR
IRE—PIFHBRERREE-

N _EZEF+ZA=+—HB Fx&EH
HNERFEZRERIRSREREREES
HBi£112,497,000c (ZE—HhE B
#93,978,0007T) » UIERE TIRITE
R (HEE29) > BIRIREWER R B
1,384,658,0007c (ZZE— AL : B
620,403,0007T) » MUIEREN 24 (M7
27) °

202058 EHBEEEARAR

large number of customers. The directors of the Company believed that
there was no further credit provision required in excess of the allowance
for doubtful debts already provided for in the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had pledged trade and bills
receivables of HK$112,497,000 (2019: HK$93,978,000) to secure
certain bank borrowings (Note 29) and pledged bills receivable of
HK$1,384,658,000 (2019: HK$620,403,000) to secure the bills payable
(Note 27).
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26. BIRHIR1TESR IRE& &IH  26. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/CASH AND CASH

EEXEY EQUIVALENTS
2020 2019
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
& MIR1THR Cash and bank balances 17,723,427 17,138,627
e Less:
BRENEERNEIRITFIRITER Pledged bank deposits for bills payable 4,089,930 3,305,633
EREFRRISFR DR =@ Guarantee deposits and other restricted
FE M Z BREIFERR deposits with original maturity less than
three months - 24,125
EREF KRR RBE=ES Guarantee deposits and other restricted
FE M Z BREIZ R deposits with original maturity more than
three months 2,402,000 1,284,853
EIRIRIRIT AR Total pledged bank deposits 6,491,930 4,614,611
BERIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 11,231,497 12,524,016

KEFERITERNEIEA®2,314,760,395

Included in the Group’s bank deposits of HK$2,314,760,395 (2019:

7T (ZE—H4 | B1820,813,3647T) &
AR =ZARRE—FNIHNTH
FFCBRAFI130%E4.18% (ZBE—H
F 1 1.10%E2.10%) I IFGEFRFE o
ZERTEFIREABERESERD
BIRENMBAELZ (ST

N_Z_TE+"HB=+—H &~EEN
RITEGIENF0%EL4.20% (ZE—H,
FIO0%EL57%) NHIBEMNRTB -

NZBEZZE+"HA=+—H > &AEEE
EIIRITERIEAERIBEITHE (GI5E
NER) MR FETNEDT BN TF
0.30%%E3.85% (ZE— % : 0.30%F
1.55%) B EFEF B -

HK$820,813,364) are time deposits with original maturity more than
three months but less than one year, which carry interest at market rates
ranging from 1.30% to 4.18% per annum (2019: 1.10% to 2.10%).
These bank deposits can be withdrawn at any time at the Group's
discretion without penalty.

Bank balances of the Group carried interest at market rates ranging from
0% t0 4.20% (2019: 0% to 4.57%) per annum as at 31 December
2020.

Pledged bank deposits of the Group represent deposits pledged to banks
to secure banking facilities including bills payable and carrying interest at
market rates ranging from 0.30% to 3.85% (2019: 0.30% to 1.55%)
per annum as at 31 December 2020.
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27. B REMEARIE 27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
2020 2019
BEE BT T BT T
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B EARIE Trade payable @) 31,124,280 29,471,893
FEAT R Bills payable @) 14,477,812 13,259,163
FEstirE Accrued salaries 2,228,579 1,875,526
FEIFIE Interest payable 108,240 93,616
HhEHRIE Other tax payables 766,243 667,354
HAhE T RIE Other payables 16,957,675 13,940,109
FEAHRER Refund liabilities 22,918 24,884
FHUEEMI B ATIRIFEIFUIE  Payable for acquisitions of subsidiaries 710,257 706,988
66,396,004 60,039,533

et - Note:

@ HREEDHFIEEBE N F30E90XK - @  The average credit period for purchases of goods range from 30 to 90
JEITZ1E B 7 F30F 180K HIHG R o i days. The bills payable have maturity period ranging from 30 to 180 days.
CECZTFS _H=+—H KEEE As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s bills payable of HK$ 14, 112,454,000
#14,112,454,00057 (—FE—JLF : B (2019: HK$6,210,204,000) were secured by the Group’s bills
6,210,204,0007T) HI/E(T 15 1 K E EIAR receivable with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$1,384,658,000
BB 5 8151,384,658,0005T (ZF—71 (2019: HK$620,403,000) (Note 25) and pledged bank deposits of
1F [ BI5620,403,0005T) (Hfa£25) BIRENL HK$4,089,929,000 (2019: HK$3,305,633,000) (Note 26).

g R 5B 154,089,929,0007T (—E— L4 :
BME3,305,633,0005T) (B15#26) HIEHRHF

RITEAPTHER
AEBENBREARNBZENZEN An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables, based on the invoice
fREC DU ¢ date, is as follows:

2020 2019

BETT BT

HK$'000 HK$'000

0FE30XK 0 to 30 days 17,005,465 19,549,147

31E60K 31 to 60 days 5,911,357 3,659,134

6190k 61 to 90 days 2,438,860 1,589,073

EB3890K Over 90 days 5,768,598 4,674,539

31,124,280 29,471,893

\\\
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27. B REMENTIE #@) 27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)
AREBEERHILHPNEN ZHRNRE An ageing analysis of the Group's bills payable, based on the issue date,
DWW is as follows:

2020 2019
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
0F30Kk 0 to 30 days 1,922,614 11,473,614
31E60K% 31 to 60 days 3,039,488 507,708
61E90K% 61 to 90 days 2,889,382 440,988
EB3890K Over 90 days 6,626,328 836,853
14,477,812 13,259,163
28. SHNAaE 28. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

2020 2019
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000

B E B HER R Short-term advances received from

customers

EmiHeE Sale of goods 2,477,763 1,651,904
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29. IR1TE 29. BANK BORROWINGS
2020 2019
BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RITIERR Bank borrowings
B Secured 101,050 161,089
Eins il Unsecured 36,148,242 30,904,596
36,249,292 31,065,685
FEERREE ERTETERE) ¢ Carrying amount repayable
(based on scheduled repayment terms):
—FEA Within one year 35,457,220 27,486,200
—FUEEDPMmE More than one year, but not more than
two years 792,072 1,875,639
MEL LBV AF More than two years, but not more than
five years - 1,703,846
36,249,292 31,065,685
BORBAMIE NI RAEISEE . Less: Amount due shown under current
liabilities:
—F LA EHA Due within one year (35,302,759) (25,577,234)
—FLU A REBEZENR Due within one year and contain a
BAER repayment on demand clause (154,461) (1,908,966)
(35,457,220) (27,486,200)
IEREBERIE NARR—FE Amount due after one year shown under
ERlps e 2 non-current liabilities 792,072 3,579,485
AEFBETFRITETHAUTRIBRIER: Certain of the Group’s bank borrowings were secured by:
2020 2019
BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
EREEE (Wit17) Right-of-use assets (Note 17) 10,987 69,143
&5 (Hzt15) Buildings (Note 15) 59,573 144,439
B L EWTIB R EWERE (H15225) Trade and bills receivables (Note 25) 112,497 93,978
183,057 307,560

REBIHAXRTERKE T RMEG
THFEHEREFESFAH3.19% (ZF
— L [ 3.83%)%3.74% (ZE—NF .
4.32%)

The average effective interest rates of the Group's floating rate bank
borrowings and fixed rate borrowings were 3.19% (2019: 3.83%) per
annum and 3.74% (2019: 4.32%) per annum, respectively.
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30. EfHMES 30. BONDS PAYABLE

2020 2019
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
&1 (Wata) Bonds 1 (Note a) - 2,288,443
&252 (H1atp) Bonds 2 (Note b) 4,824,692 4,521,583
&3 (Watc) Bonds 3 (Note ¢) 1,215,729 1,142,372
6,040,421 7,952,398

i 3NE Amount repayable:
—FEA Within one year 4,824,692 2,288,443
FE_ERERF In the second to fifth years 1,215,729 5,663,955
6,040,421 7,952,398

Mizta:

MzEb:

MzEc:

RCE—FE+HANH EFEEEZF
[RIGE D EEANRIE1007T# 1T/ 2
g85 A B #52,000,000,0005T BYZE 7
FEFEBES (MME31) - BEIEEFF
4.20%51 B EHFIER - E_RF+
B/\HEH o EF 1 ETEFSAR
#56,322,0007T °

RZE-NENBFAZ+tEtHE
BEBEFRETHELTESARK
2,000,000,0007T H) IR FFIE L 1R

(MEH2 ) - [EH21ZREHEEA R
81007 E1E > 12 [E EEFFA.21 %5+
EoEH2/N —E_—F A+t
HEH - EH209BFTEFENR K
6,312,0005T °

RIE—NE+—HEH EFEBE
FRIZ G EEN R 1007 —2
FITHE T BE A A FE 152,000,000,0007T
BYFEILIFIE L B 52 I EEFF
F4.04%518 o [BHF2EHR —FE_—F
+—HHHEH o EH2HIEITE 5
AR #6,312,0007T °

RCE—NEFTH 1+ _—H EEE
BRI (D EEN R 10077 174
2EEA A R BE1,000,000,0005T HIFEHE
FRIE FiTES (T1E531)  HBEEFF
3 78%51E BHFIGH ZEZZF
A ZAPIHFE] o (B 253098 1T E H
A A FE#5870,0005T ©

Note a:

Note b:

Note c:

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited Annual Report 2020

On 9 July 2015, CR Pharmaceutical Holdings issued unsecured non-listed
bonds (“Bonds 1") in an aggregate amount of RMB2,000,000,000 at par
at RMB100 each, carrying interest at a fixed rate of 4.20% per annum.
Bonds 1 matured on 8 July 2020. The issue fee of Bonds 1 amounted to
RMB6,322,000.

On 27 August 2018, CR Pharmaceutical Holdings issued unsecured non-
listed bonds in an aggregate amount of RMBZ2,000,000,000 (“Bonds 2”).
Bonds 2 were priced at par at RMB100 each, carrying interest at a fixed
rate of 4.21% per annum. Bonds 2 will mature on 27 August 2021. The
issue fee of Bonds 2 amounted to RMB6,312,000.

On 5 November 2018, CR Pharmaceutical Holdings further
issued unsecured non-listed Bonds 2 in an aggregate amount of
RMB2,000,000,000 at par at RMB100 each, carrying interest at a fixed
rate of 4.04% per annum. Bonds 2 will mature on 5 November 2021.
The issue fee of Bonds 2 amounted to RMB6,312,000.

On 22 May 2019, CR Pharmaceutical Holdings issued unsecured non-
listed bonds (“Bonds 3") in an aggregate amount of RMB1,000,000,000
at par at RMB100 each, carrying interest at a fixed rate of 3.78% per
annum. Bonds 3 will mature on 24 May 2022. The issue fee of Bonds 3
amounted to RMB870,000.
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30. IR @ 30. BONDS PAYABLE (continued)
ZEBSRBE_Z_ZFR_Z—N The movements of these bonds during the years ended 31 December
F+ZBA=+—HLEFEENEFHHIW 2020 and 2019 are set out below:

T

2020 2019

BETT BT

HK$°000 HK$'000

REFEREE Carrying amount as at the beginning

of the year 7,952,398 6,847,740

e TESIENIFRSIIE Proceeds received from issued bonds = 1,116,350
B Repayment (2,262,869) -

FEsHFIE Interest accrued 99,351 137,551
b oA EE Exchange realignment 251,541 (149,243)
RERNREE Carrying amount as at the end of the year 6,040,421 7,952,398

31. IEERTE 31. DEFERRED TAX
IRIERIEEE Deferred tax assets
R-oE_E4+_HA=+—BR_= Details of deferred tax assets as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December
—AWE+_B=+—BHETERIESEN 2019 are as follows:

FIBMT
Bk
BEAfE HESH EHER HE&R i st
Impairment Provision Lease
of assets Taxlosses  and accruals liabilities Others Total
ATn ARt AT AETT AT AT
HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000
RZ%-2E-F-H At 1 January 2020 343,360 177,429 260,488 35,856 38,955 856,088
EMPEEERRA MK /3AE Defered tax (harged)credited to the
ETRE 1) consolidated statement of profit or
loss during the year (Vote 12) 114,555 (118,128) 47,404 (5,670) 17,597 55,758
WERBAR W) Acquistion of subsidiaries (Aot 37) 181 = = = - 181
EREE Exchange realignment 29,083 3763 19,554 1,880 3,585 57,825
RIE-FETA=+-HZ Gross deferred tax assefs at
BEREEEAT 31 Decerber 2020 487,139 63,064 327,446 32,066 60,137 969,852
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31. IEEIRTE (&) 31. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
RERIEEE B Deferred tax assets (continued)
BEk
BEAfE HEsE HER fE&aR i st
Impairment Provision Lease
of assets Taxlosses  and accruals liabilities Others Total
AT ABTR ABTR AT AT AT
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000
RIZ-NE-B-H At 1 January 2019 234,251 77148 274873 B4T1 35,153 644,896
ERPRAERRA MK /AR Defered tax charged)credited to the
IEILIE (ft12) consolidated statement of profit or
loss during the year (Vote 12) 93,728 104,706 (8:830) 12,893 4,405 206,902
WENBAR W) Acquistion of subsidiaries (\bte 37) 38449 S 5 = = 33449
HENBAG (i28) Disposal of subsiciaries (ote 38) (10,992) = = = = (10,992)
EREE Exchange realignment (12,076) (4419 (5,555) (51 (603) (23,167)
RZF-nE+ZR=1+-H (sross deferred tax assets at
EHEEELE 31 December 2019 343,360 177429 260,488 35,856 38955 856,088
FEREA(E Deferred tax liabilities
R_E-_E2F+_HA=+—HBR_Z Details of deferred tax liabilities as at 31 December 2020 and 31
—hNWE+ZA=+—HEILEREBESEN December 2019 are as follows:
EE
WehE M A Fl
FTEEN
MEEM ARBERE Hih Hast
Fair value
adjustment
arising from
Revaluation acquisition of
of properties  subsidiaries Others Total
AT T BT BEFTT AT T
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
RZE2-EF—F—H At 1 January 2020 414,989 1,017,728 73,856 1,506,573
ENREEERRAITEEE  Deferred tax charged/(credited) to
WAk GEA) BY the consolidated statement of
LRI (W5E12) profit or loss and consolidated
statement of comprehensive
income during the year (Note 12) 26,760 (79,351) 19,894 (32,697)
WEEHT B AR (at37) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 37) - 98,655 - 98,655
LEMRBAT #fE38) Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 38) = (1,788) = (1,788)
FERAE Exchange realignment 27,646 64,481 6,001 98,128
RZEZFF+"F=+—H  At31 December 2020 469,395 1,099,725 99,751 1,668,871
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31. IRIEIRIA () 31. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
IRIERRIBEE &) Deferred tax liabilities (continued)
W I I 2 B
PREER
MEEM AnEERE HAth ABst
Fair value
adjustment
arising from
Revaluation  acquisition of
of properties subsidiaries Others Total
BETT  BMTT  OBMTR BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RIZ2—hF—HA—H At 1 January 2019 360,043 454,315 66,914 881,272

FRAREEBERREAE2EU Deferred tax charged/(credited) to
HERNIE GTA) BUEIER  the consolidated statement of

| profit or loss and consolidated
(yzt12) statement of comprehensive
income during the year (Note 12) 70,319 (68,134) 9,652 11,837
WM B A8 (H13237) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 37) - 662,860 = 662,860
EREE Exchange realignment (15,373) (31,313) (2,710 (49,396)
RIZ—AF+ZA=+—H  At31December 2019 414,989 1,017,728 73,856 1,506,573
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31. IEEIRTE (&) 31. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
NI _EF+_A=+—H KxE£EH The Group had unused tax losses of HK$2,107,948,000 (2019:
RIRMIRIBR 848 12,107,948,0007T HK$3,248,995,000) as at 31 December 2020. Deferred tax assets have
(ZE—HFE : B¥3,248,995,0007T) ° been recognised in respect of tax losses amounting to HK$363,130,000
RIE_EF+_A=+—H > ~EEWM (2019: HK$1,086,579,000) as at 31 December 2020. Deferred tax
RIBES BB 1363,130,0007T (ZEFE—AN assets have not been recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses of
F . A M1,086,579,0007T) ERERIELE HK$1,744,818,000 (2019: HK$2,162,416,000) due to the unpredictable
BPESE - R _E_=F+_H=+— profit stream as at 31 December 2020. Included in the unused tax
H- e TRV IEE B E11,744,818,000 losses was a loss of HK$332,708,000 (2019: HK$212,192,000) at 31
T (CTE—HFE  A¥2,162,416,0007T) December 2020 that may be carried forward indefinitely. Other tax losses
RARKRBR REEEATER » W RESDE will expire in the following years:

AREREESE-R_S_FSF+_H4
=+—H > RkEMNRBEBEEFBEEHESE
7515332,708,0007T (ZZ— L4 | B
212,192,0007%) A] MEPREAAE &5 « HhiR 18
BEERUTEERR :

2020 2019
BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
“ETE2F 2020 - 436,287
25 2021 155,572 369,902
_ETHF 2022 121,735 236,047
=== 2023 145,566 370,561
“ZTpuE 2024 395,037 537,427
B R 2025 594,200 =
1,412,110 1,950,224

BRITHIEEMNIEIERIEE &I R Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following

items:

2020 2019
BETT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
EEIbEEAET Deductible temporary differences 1,401,155 701,014
KB FERIER R Unused tax credits 1,744,818 2,162,416
3,145,973 2,863,430

BRI LB B MIRLEIRIBE E I K i’ Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the above

o RRBEBEATKAIEFERERR items as it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be available

wAIP] AR IKEE EEB BNIEE © against which the above items can be utilised.
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31. IEEIRIE (B 31. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
REhE S 2mEHE > KPR R T Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
ZHELEDIIBEREETIRZREA tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
BUHRI10%BEINRN - BEREE S N\E investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement
— AL TEAR _EEE is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
+ A=+ —RBELE B ER December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is
BN EEMEB fHEZREETA a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
MK B ol IR BB R R U FEI0 6 o investors. The applicable rates for the Group are 5% or 10%. The Group
REEZ BRBRERS%H10%  FIL > is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
AEFBBRNPARAME L ZHE AT those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
GH_EZEENE—B—HEBELEZEFR generated from 1 January 2008.
DIk B B TEIN o
32. BRIREFIERT 32. DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
7% £ [ A 72 R B oA Bk I =R kB IR AR The Group provided supplementary retirement benefits to its normal
KB ESRHBIBAREN  ZEF A retired or early retired employees in Mainland China, which are
BEAKENHE TESHTEFREESD considered to be defined benefit plans, and recognised a liability for the
B ARSSEENESEAEENE unfunded employee benefit obligations in the consolidated statement of
& BT financial position as follows:
2020 2019
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRENERBIRE Present value of defined benefit obligations 1,086,061 581,071
REAfR(EE Long-term dismissal benefits 17,784 23,161
1,103,845 604,232
DEEAREE D HE D Portion classified as current portion (71,378) (37,252)
JERPEAEL > Non-current portion 1,032,467 566,980
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32. BRIREHERT @ 32. DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)
REHREANTEAERELOT - The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:
2020 2019
BETT BT
HK$000 HK$'000
BEIRE (%) Discount rate (%) 3.25%-3.75%  3.25%-3.50%
FTERABERE (%) Expected rate of separation (%) 0.00%-1.00% 1.00%
FREEZENEBEREHN Expected rate of future pension and
FEHAIE R R (%) health care increase rate (%) 4.00%-8.00%  4.50%-8.00%
BERSHR HEEBRIRN T2 A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at the end
DM TR of the reporting period is shown below:
RINENEF RINENER
MEE (%) #Bm/ (R HOE (%) Em/ (R
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in defined in defined
Increase benefit Decrease benefit
in rate(%) obligations inrate(%) obligations
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
ETE 2020
LRI S Discount rate 0.25 (30,094) 0.25 31,634
“2—NF 2019
LRI S Discount rate 0.25 (12,782) 0.25 13,541
U ESRMED T IRBERE—FABE % The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a method
FOETIHE AN ERSARE LR that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligations as a result
BRRBELESBETMBRARENETE of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of
FNRE - BREDMEREZERINE the reporting period. The sensitivity analysis is based on a change in a
16 M ARFFPT A MRS A& - UMD significant assumption, keeping all other assumptions constant. The
MAERERREREBANEZEBENERE sensitivity analysis may not be representative of an actual change in the
16 RRARZRECEEE LA FEER defined benefit obligations as it is unlikely that changes in assumptions
/re would occur in isolation of one another.
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32. RRBEHET (B

ZEBE S HEBEDRTHEDE I BN

32. DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)

The total expenses recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or

T loss in respect of the plan are as follows:
2020 2019
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
ERIRTE 2 Current service cost 471,397 1,830
BERBA A Past service cost 10,822 =
B Hfz28) Interest cost (Note 8) 18,686 19,139
BRI PSR EE Net benefit expenses 500,905 20,969
RITE RS2 1R Recognised in administrative expenses 482,219 1,830
R REES A A HERR Recognised in finance costs 18,686 19,139
500,905 20,969

BABHNEBREZSHUOT

The movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations
are as follows:

2020 2019
BT T AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
®—A—H At 1 January 581,071 604,884
ERIARFS A2 Current service cost 471,397 1,830
BEARTS AL A Past service cost 10,822 =
FE A Interest cost 18,686 19,139
E ) S EE Actuarial (gain)/loss (19,001) 11,593
[SENEEY Benefit paid (39,160) (43,348)
FE A EE Exchange realignment 62,246 (13,027)
R+=ZB=+—H At 31 December 1,086,061 581,071

REBREBHRBHNEBENWFEHERS
9-14%F (ZE—NFE : 9-136F) o
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The average duration of the defined benefit obligations at the end of the
reporting period is 9-14 years (2019: 9-13 years).
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Iy ==
33. Hft3EREEE 33. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
2020 2019
BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT/ Eh() Government grants (7) 651,442 601,126
Hith Others 206,372 220,437
857,814 821,563
(i) HE _E_FFf A= —HIFFEE (i) During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group received new
KEE[E 5K TSP B E #591,676,0007T government grants from the government authorities amounting to
T E—F 1 [ ENE17,516,0005T) HIE HK$91,676,000 (2019: HK$17,516,000) to subsidise the construction of
JFE » IR AR EE R A T30 certain research and development centres and the purchases of property,
RBEYE - BERRKEIEEFHE) - KE plant and equipment of the Group. The Group has complied with the
B8R E IR 1T S B B - A5 condiitions attached to the grants as at the end of the reporting period and
B R E R BT (EFF R4 i By B2 F 18 will transfer the grants to profit or loss over the useful lives of the related
B RBE_E_FFF+_F=+—HIF assets. The Group recognised these government grants in profit or loss
FE - KB 8 b 55 8 1564,040,0007T amounting to HK$64,040,000 (2019: HK$67,015,000) during the year
(ZE—A 4 EH67,0150007T) HIE T ended 31 December 2020.
#Eh)
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34. fg7s 34. SHARE CAPITAL
avl Shares
2020 2019
BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEITAEE Issued and fully paid:
6,282,510,461 (ZE—NFE: 6,282,510,461 (2019: 6,284,506,461)
6,284,506,461) % & @A ordinary shares 27,241,289 27,241,289
AT RSB RAT - A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as follows:
BETRAME (&N
Number of
shares in issue Share capital
BT
HK$'000
A ZE—NF—HA—B8- At 1 January 2019,31 December 2019 and
“E2-NAEFE+ZRA=+—HkK 1 January 2020
—EEF—HF—H 6,284,506,461 27,241,289
RADEI8E (Fa2) Shares repurchased (Note) (1,996,000) =
N ZEIEF+ZHA=+—H At 31 December 2020 6,282,510,461 27,241,289
Wiat : KA BB & B ATAEE]1,996,000/% % Note: The Company repurchased 1,996,000 of its shares on the Hong Kong
1%+ B (U1B59,522,94087T » BIRIE(E Stock Exchange at a cash consideration of HK$9,522,940, which was
B EIERY) 2571818 KR 559K R charged into retained earnings of the Company in accordance with section
TSR o BE[BIRI AR 2 A G E 5t 7 257 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The shares repurchased

were cancelled during the year.
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35. NEEAEENERT A 35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CLASSIFIED AS
EQUITY
2020 2019
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
“E-NFE—HAERABES) 2019 first tranche perpetual corporate bonds (}) 2,230,746 2,230,746
“ETEFE—HIIEREA BI{&EZ5() 2020 first tranche perpetual corporate bonds (i) 1,154,306 -

(i) AR S E S S SR E
BE TR O T — E— N ER
—HIOJERE S ((ZE— N FRELFE
) K2 AN R H2,000,000,0007T »
H R 5 = 1F » 5 8] B 25 710 AT 56 1E Y
BT E RS RIS < = AT F RIS T 2015
B BErEEFFIE) c —E—NFRE
LENEH BRI B FE3.94% ©

(i) ASHEESEEEEES @ftxﬁ)ﬂ% R
B Eﬂfi’@bzﬁ@ﬁﬁ: BT E
—HAOJERE S ((C T SFRENGE
%) Kz EEAA B 1,000,000,0007T
EREH 5w o » 8 B2 A% BT EEFE R
F51E Hfiﬁ*%ﬁiﬁéﬁ?&%?fﬁﬁﬁ LR
B BRI EEFFIE) c ZE-FERKE
RENEFLIEEFFAFEL3.79% °

AABDEERR FEETEAGNRBEE
BE-NEARZT_TFXKERTR
FNAZRFFHEMKE Bt ZF
BEEWRDERERD -

ER PDEESBEAEGENERTARTE
&5 H1E76,581,0007T (ZB—HEF .
H1£11,949,0007T) ©

SEAMRNERTAGERAERAN
DR 3 o

®

(i)

Approved by China Securities Regulatory Commission, CR Pharmaceutical
Holdings has completed the issuance of 2019 first tranche perpetual
corporate bonds in the PRC (“2019 Perpetual Bonds”), with a principal
amount of RMB2,000,000,000 with an initial term of three years, which
may be extended for a new term of three years or repaid in full (together
with all accrued interest) at the end of every Interest Term at the election
of CR Pharmaceutical Holdings. The coupon rate for the 2019 Perpetual
Bonds is 3.94% per annum.

Approved by China Securities Regulatory Commission, CR Pharmaceutical
Holdings has completed the issuance of 2020 first tranche perpetual
corporate bonds in the PRC (“2020 Perpetual Bonds "), with a principal
amount of RMB1,000,000,000 with an initial term of two years, which
may be extended for a new term of two years or repaid in full (together
with all accrued interest) at the end of every Interest Term at the election
of CR Pharmaceutical Holdings. The coupon rate for the 2020 Perpetual
Bonds is 3.79% per annum.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the Group has no
contractual obligations to repay the principal or to pay any distribution
for both 2019 and 2020 Perpetual Bonds, and therefore, these should be
classified as equity.

During the year, distributions attributable to holders of financial
instruments classified as equity amounted to HK$76,581,000 (2019:
HK$11,949,000).

The financial instruments classified as equity are included in non-
controlling interests of the Group.
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36. EEERIEIEKRERIES 36. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH

wENE LT MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
TR RAEEESE AJEITRRESH The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
EE2ERBATMFS . Group that have material non-controlling interests:
i FEERILR JERRES PETIFERERN
MEARAHE TESEHY PR RS iafl/ (58 LG 3000
Place of
incorporation Proportion of ownership
and principal interests and voting rights held Profit/(loss) allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiaries place of business by non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
AT BETT AT BETT
% % HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEEE e/ HEn 71.69 7183 35,24 (404,002) 8,489,192 8725613
Dong-E-E-fiao PRC/Mainland China
ZEEE e/ Ew 40.01 4001 461,800 492,681 4246212 3924991
(R Double-Crane PRCMainland China
EB-0 HE/RE R 3640 3640 676,699 898,522 5,951,750 5,540,131
(R Sanju PRC/Mainland China
ERITER e/ PR 49,00 4900 457,752 361,979 4721003 428738
(R Jiangzhong Group PRC/Mainland China
ERINEE e/ Ew 40,00 4000 0178 46,018 488,490 48,152
(R Hubei Pharmaceutical PRC/Mainland China
EEEREE HE/RE R 30.00 3000 179117 186,879 697,056 534,621
(R Guangdong Pharmaceutical PRC/Mainland China
EEEEAFEREZNAERN B Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group's
NBEZENMBERBEH N T T subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests is set out below.
N HENBEREBNRE A SIKHE The summarised financial information below represents amounts before
I EER intragroup eliminations.
B e Py 2 Dong-E-E-Jiao
2020 2019
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
(= E5)
(Restated)
MENEE Current assets 9,235,720 9,169,005
FERIEE Non-current assets 3,774,661 3,895,056
mENAIR Current liabilities (1,237,711) (1,804,549)
FERBIEE Non-current liabilities (156,017) (63,701)
JEIER R Non-controlling interests (54,184) (53,738)
Rpf B ES AL Equity attributable to owners of Dong-E-E-Jiao 11,562,469 11,142,073
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36. IEHEAIEIERERMNEES  36. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH

BERBAS @& MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
(continued)
R @& Dong-E-E-Jiao (continued)
2020 2019
BT T BT T
HKS$'000 HK$'000
(& 5)
(Restated)
W Revenue 3,835,518 3,375,642
X Expenses (3,789,429) (3,894,249)
FEREF, (58 Profit/(loss) for the year 46,089 (518,607)
SRR ER AFE(SER], (B538)  Profit/loss) attributable to owners of
Dong-E-E-Jiao 43,699 (516,938)
JEEE R R FE(L AR Loss attributable to the non-controlling interests (2,610) (1,669)
EmiEH, (58 Profit/(loss) for the year 46,089 (518,607)
SRR B EAE AR E M2 mE Other comprehensive income/(loss)

Wz, (E518) attributable to owners of Dong-E-E-Jiao 68 (1,906)
FREMEEWE, (58) Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 68 (1,906)
%WWH?%‘EE ANEEZ2@E Total comprehensive income/(loss)

Wz, (E518) attributable to owners of Dong-E-E-Jiao 48,767 (518,844)

JEERR R RS 2 E 1B 4R EE Total comprehensive loss attributable to

non-controlling interests (2,610) (1,669)
EREmElRE (B8) 4258 Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 46,157 (520,513)
EFRERERRE Dividends paid to non-controlling interests - 2,931
KRNI TMA CRYE) 7358 Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating

activities 900,915 (1,272,114)
REFRHWIRE (RE) /RAFEE  Net cash (outflow)inflow from investing

activities (1,090,685) 2,084,299
MEEHNIRES R P58 Net cash outflow from financing activities (342,963) (1,050,913)
PERERR Exchange difference 9 7)
REmE 3R Net cash outflow (532,724) (238,735)
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36. R EAIFERERRIE D

BEENE AR @)

36. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(continued)
=R CR Double-Crane
2020 2019
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
TMENEE Current assets 8,079,808 6,741,310
IEREEE Non-current assets 6,672,965 5,847,618
mENAE Current liabilities (3,172,424) (2,613,882)
ERFEaRE Non-current liabilities (438,989) (288,970)
JEIER R Non-controlling interests (98,475) (82,666)
EHEEES AEhER Equity attributable to owners of

CR Double-Crane 11,042,885 9,603,410
2020 2019
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
W Revenue 9,566,683 10,661,972
X Expenses (8,426,529) (9,449,890)
E=SNpnv Profit for the year 1,140,154 1,212,082
EHEBRES ABHER Profit attributable to owners of CR Double-Crane 1,130,778 1,199,202
JEVERR R R FE (R A Profit attributable to the non-controlling interests 9,376 12,880
FRaF Profit for the year 1,140,154 1,212,082

ifﬂ%ﬁ%%ﬁ)\%fﬁﬁ@%ﬁ Other comprehensive income/(loss)

&=,/ (518) attributable to owners of CR Double-Crane 4,143 (3,110)
3'5?’“52%“?”515 Hihem Other comprehensive income/(loss)

%=,/ (E548) attributable to non-controlling interests 696 (522)
FREMEEWE (518 Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 4,839 (3,632)
EHERES AELE2EWEGEAEEE  Total comprehensive income attributable to

owners of CR Double-Crane 1,134,921 1,196,092
JEERER MmN EIER Total comprehensive income attributable to

non-controlling interests 10,072 12,358
ERNREINELRLE Total comprehensive income for the year 1,144,993 1,208,450
B IR R AR Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 120 6,493
KERFNIREMAPER Net cash inflow from operating activities 1,530,138 1,636,393
KREZHPVIRS ML FEE Net cash outflow from investing activities (470,219) (1,215,314)
MEEEFNIRE ML FEE Net cash outflow from financing activities (434,438) (596,529)
(R A% Exchange difference 77) (30)
WERA S () F58 Net cash inflow/(outflow) 625,404 (175,480)
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36. A EAIFERERAIE D
HEEMBAT (@

36. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(continued)
EH=H CR Sanjiu
2020 2019
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
(e E5)
(Restated)
MENBEE Current assets 12,980,943 12,060,858
ERBNEE Non-current assets 13,170,633 11,830,884
mENAIR Current liabilities (8,668,192) (7,701,990)
EREIEE Non-current liabilities (778,991) (1,589,951)
JEER R R Non-controlling interests (394,409) (355,037)
EH=NBE AREG#R Equity attributable to owners of CR Sanjiu 16,309,984 14,244,764
2020 2019
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
(#E7)
(Restated)
W s Revenue 15,341,518 16,813,748
52 Expenses (13,521,845) (14,398,081)
F R Profit for the year 1,819,673 2,415,667
EB=NEE AEEET) Profit attributable to owners of CR Sanjiu 1,797,129 2,385,448
FEFE R A 2 P A T A Profit attributable to non-controlling interests 22,544 30,219
FREF] Profit for the year 1,819,673 2,415,667
EHZNEAE AEEEM Other comprehensive (loss)/income
2@ (B8 W& attributable to owners of CR Sanjiu (1,589) 6,139
FEREMEE BB R Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (1,589) 6,139
EH-NEEANEEEERE Total comprehensive income attributable to
owners of CR Sanjiu 1,795,540 2,391,587
JEERR R R PR 2 E U a4 Total comprehensive income attributable to
non-controlling interests 22,544 30,219
FRE2EWHLERE Total comprehensive income for the year 1,818,084 2,421,806
B IEERERRE Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 26,733 20,056
RE RPN RAEEE Net cash inflow from operating activities 2,501,918 2,215,662
KREZRHVIRS ML FEE Net cash outflow from investing activities (741,739) (561,445)
mﬁﬁ&%@]ﬁ’] RE& R FEE Net cash outflow from financing activities (1,652,127) (1,000,096)
RDERE Exchange difference (5,771) 1,094
B RAFEE Net cash inflow 102,281 655,215
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36. IEAHEAIEIERERMNEES  36. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH

BEENE AR @) MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
(continued)
ST R CR Jiangzhong Group
2020 2019
BT BT
HKS$'000 HK$'000
MEBEE Current assets 6,458,793 6,306,073
FERBEE Non-current assets 2,961,432 2,195,146
mEas Current liabilities (2,192,381) (2,306,296)
EIEU=RE Non-current liabilities (243,317) (236,155)
JEER R R Non-controlling interests (3,147,230) (2,681,259)
ERIPEERE AEG#ER Equity attributable to owners of CR Jiangzhong
Group 3,837,297 3,277,509
2020 2019
BT T BT T
HK$000 HK$'000
Wi Revenue 2,859,454 2,474,767
X Expenses (2,262,363) (2,014,135)
FEaf Profit for the year 597,091 460,632
EHIPEERBB AR Profit attributable to owners of
CR Jiangzhong Group 273,213 193,438
JEVE R R R FE (R A Profit attributable to non-controlling interests 323,878 267,194
FEWEA Profit for the year 597,091 460,632
ERIPEEER ABGHM Other comprehensive loss attributable to owners of
2HEEE CR Jiangzhong Group (1,355) =
FRHEMEMEEE Other comprehensive loss for the year (1,355) =
EETHEERE AEGEE Total comprehensive income attributable to owners
U 48 %E of CR Jiangzhong Group 271,858 193,438
3'5?::&7% i fE(h 2 E U R AR RE Total comprehensive income attributable to non-
controlling interests 323,878 267,194
FRAEEWEIERE Total comprehensive income for the year 595,736 460,632
B IEERER RS Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 107,611 95,186
K EMNIREMATER Net cash inflow from operating activities 948,384 864,534
REDBIVE SR TR Net cash outflow from investing activities (1,235,972) (895,632)
RMEEHNIRE ML FEE Net cash outflow from financing activities (116,928) (3,071,270)
(R AERE Exchange difference (163) 59
R mHPER Net cash outflow (404,679) (3,102,309)
W BRI FEI7HAE > LB RAE The above disclosures in relation to CR Jiangzhong Group were made
I EENIEERE B WEERTID for the period since the acquisition date of CR Jiangzhong Group as
EE AL disclosed in note 37 to the financial statements.
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36. IEHEAIEIERERMNEES  36. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH

BERBAS @& MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
(continued)
R ER CR Hubei Pharmaceutical

2020 2019

BT T BT T

HKS$'000 HK$'000

TRENEE Current assets 4,521,636 4,299,745

ERFEE Non-current assets 606,150 643,716
mENAE Current liabilities (4,008,657) (3,974,001)
ERFHERE Non-current liabilities (10,211) (8,343)
JEER R R Non-controlling interests (126,693) (106,176)

Equity attributable to owners of CR Hubei

ERNICEEEE AEEER Pharmaceutical 982,225 854,941

2020 2019

BT T BT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

Wik Revenue 6,922,963 7,256,579
HZ Expenses (6,839,717) (7,170,239)

=Spri Profit for the year 83,246 86,340

=ML EEREE A ELRT Profit attributable to owners of CR Hubei

Pharmaceutical 68,446 67,203

JEVERR R R FE (R A Profit attributable to non-controlling interests 14,800 19,137

FRaH Profit for the year 83,246 86,340

ENIEERERRE Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 1,841 16,383
KESEBIMNIRE A (i) /B8 Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities 678,577 (265,510)
KEEHNIRE M S5 Net cash outflow from investing activities (11,930) (6,489)

BEEBNIRS CAH) /RAPEEE  Net cash (outflow)inflow from financing activities (630,997) 241,887
BE&HRA CRd) $48 Net cash inflow/(outflow) 35,650 (30,112)
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36. R EAIFERERRIE D
BEENE AR @)

36. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
(continued)

S TR Be Gk CR Guangdong Pharmaceutical
2020 2019
BT T BT T
HKS$'000 HK$'000
MENBEE Current assets 13,971,736 13,229,589
ERFEE Non-current assets 830,630 773,355
mEAE Current liabilities (12,650,244) (12,283,017)
ElEI) = Non-current liabilities (20,957) (243,827)
JEER R R Non-controlling interests (144,600) (131,129)
EHERBERER ARGER Equity attributable to owners CR Guangdong

Pharmaceutical 1,986,565 1,344,971
2020 2019
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
Wi Revenue 29,168,609 28,907,979
52 Expenses (28,621,601) (28,351,349)
F R Profit for the year 547,008 556,630

EHEREEREE AL Profit attributable to owners of CR Guangdong
Pharmaceutical 525,558 528,216
JESE R R T PG T A Profit attributable to non-controlling interests 21,450 28,414
FEWEA Profit for the year 547,008 556,630
B IFERER RS Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 26,131 24,144
R EBMIRESMA SR Net cash inflow from operating activities 2,077,065 2,554,485
KREEHNIRE M $EE Net cash outflow from investing activities (72,412) (776,411)
MEEHNIRE R P58 Net cash outflow from financing activities (2,018,216) (1,794,196)
REmL 35 Net cash outflow (13,563) (16,122)
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37. ¥%E8%H

BHE
E
(@

—_EEF+"_RA=+—HL#E

ARDEBZLER BFRE
MERG ERFLEZ KT
—NE+—BZ+N\B TEEZ
WEBASE B =ZNEBEEEY
BERMDBRAT (MEHEEE)) &
ET — 0z UGB ESEEERR
FREREI100% R E - BRES
AR1,420,000,0007T (FBE
#51,589,662,0007T) » BIFIREMN
1B38181,365,766,0000 R A R &
BEEERENENBR B
223,896,0007T ° B REE R ZEE R
TECEFE—HBTHEMe

37. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
For the year ended 31 December 2020

@)

Acquisition of Aonuo Pharmaceutical

In view of leveraging its core advantages, enriching brand
and product portfolio and realising strategic objectives, on 28
November 2019, CR Sanjiu, a subsidiary of the Group, entered
into an agreement with Harbin Gloria Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd.
(" Gloria Pharmaceuticals”) to acquire its 100% equity interest
of Aonuo Pharmaceutical held by Gloria Pharmaceuticals.
The total consideration was RMB1,420,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$1,589,662,000), including a cash consideration of
HK$1,365,766,000 and a waiver of the debt owed by Gloria
Pharmaceuticals to Aonuo Pharmaceutical of HK$223,896,000.
The acquisition of Aonuo Pharmaceutical was completed on 2
January 2020.
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37. ¥B5H @)
BE_E-_ZEHF+"_HA=+—HLHE

37. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

E #@)
@ Y RZE (48) @  Acquisition of Aonuo Pharmaceuticalcontinued)
RUEE R e BT H P BEER Fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Aonuo
BENAAEBENT Pharmaceutical as at the date of acquisition are as follows:

UK BB B RER

ZAREBE

Fair value

recognised on

acquisition

AT

HKS$'000

MR ek B (1A 15) Property, plant and equipment (Note 15) 124,662

EREEE iE17) Right-of-use assets (Note 17) 12,630

EEEE W15#£19) Intangible assets (Note 19) 360,473

HhIERSSMEE Other non-current financial assets 115

EIEFRIBE E (B15£31) Deferred tax assets (Note 37) 181

=78 Inventories 37,998

B 5 KR EMEWEIE Trade and other receivables 247,311

B RIBEEBEY) Cash and cash equivalents 69,887
B 5 REMBEMRIE Trade and other payables (121,708)
)=k Contract liabilities (108,567)
I HRIE Tax payable (11,963)
EERIBEE (WaE371) Deferred tax liabilities (Note 37) (57,743)
Hi3Ereas Other non-current liabilities (68)

BARBESENO HR R EELEE Total identifiable net assets at fair value 553,208

W EEXNEE (WZ18) Goodwill on acquisition (Note 18) 1,036,454

1,589,662

PUFE 75 S48 Satisfied by:
HE Cash 1,365,766
BN B B PR (R BE BB TS Waiver of the debt owed by Gloria Pharmaceuticals
due to Aonuo Pharmaceutical 223,896
1,589,662
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37. EFGEH B

BE_ZT_EF+°HA=+—HLHF
E @
(b)  WHEE M AR

RBEE_ZE_ZF+_H=+—
BEEE AEBURERESS
ARM¥I1875EE T HERLN B
2064 87T) WU TERERE
ERIHEATNER AEEINE
ZEWBREIEAEBEAPRET
ETHIGMBENERERN—I5 o

RIBZZFARBNAR EFHIT
EREEIRIRRERRBERA
8 (BIekR 1) BIERSNM1 %R 1 -
TEBMZBIUAAEEFEERE
Bt ABEIRERE - WER
ERIPERFAIPRRAS1%H
Bt WES TR ER R B IERI# o

RIBEZZFLRB=R IERHEX
SEMRKRAERAR (THREL A
BIIREESEYHERERAR
NE O REERERNETELRSE)
HWRREXHRTHNER - Al
EBHEMEE (R BRAR (T#
HEMBRE) GCEENWBAR)
REHHRASTHNERNE LEBR
SHERCEERAERWB AR -

RZIEZEHF+—B=+H %8
BINEEBRAR (A% B/ E
RE) WELUREBEXESRRT
MEF WEEME  AEBRISE
HIREMBEEXBRASEBIIE
fHfE o

37. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

(b)

Acquisition of other subsidiaries and business

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group acquired
the following companies or business which were engaged in
the manufacture and sale of pharmaceutical products at an
aggregate cash consideration of RMB187.5 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$206.4 million). These subsidiaries were acquired
as part of the Group's strategy to expand its market share in the
pharmaceutical industry.

On 8 June 2020, CR Jiangzhong Group acquired an additional
41% equity interest in Jiangxi Jiangzhong Prepared Slices of
Chinese Crude Drugs Co., Ltd.("Jiangzhong Prepared Slices”), a
previous equity investment at fair value through profit or loss of the
Group. After the acquisition, CR Jiangzhong Group held a 51%
equity interest in Jiangzhong Prepared Slices and obtained control
over Jiangzhong Prepared Slices.

On 3 July 2020, the shareholders of Beijing Runheji Biotechnology
Co., Ltd. ("Runheji”, formaly named “Beijing Protgen
Pharmaceutical Co.”, a then joint venture of the Group) revised the
articles of Runheji. As a result, China Resources Biopharmaceutical
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. ("CR Biopharm"), a subsidiary of the Group,
obtained control over Runheji, and Runheji became a subsidiary of
the Group thereafter.

On 30 November 2020, China Resources Dezhou Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Group, acquired the business of
Shandong Hengxu Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.. Upon completion of
the acquisition, the Group obtained control over the business of
Shandong Hengxu Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd..
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37. ZFBaH & 37. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
BE—_E-_EF4+_-_/A=+—HILHE For the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)
E #
b)) EER AY=1 ) (b)  Acquisition of other subsidiaries and business (continueg)
BRZZWEZRENSAEEmS The information for these acquisitions was disclosed on an
WARBBA WEBZEWENER aggregate basis as they were individually immaterial to the Group.
REMARERE - NEWEH = The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
EMBATIREBHORISER subsidiaries and business acquired as at the respective dates of
BENAAEELOT acquisition are as follows:
UL EERFRESD
ZRAREE
Fair value
recognised on
acquisition
BT T
HK$'000
MR B ek B (M13E15) Property, plant and equipment (Note 15) 50,903
EREEE aF17) Right-of-use assets (Note 17) 1,381
EELEE Wfa219) Intangible assets (Note 79) 163,370
=58 Inventories 38,729
85 R EMEWRIE Trade and other receivables 122,474
B RIBEEBEY) Cash and cash equivalents 110,275
B 5 REMBEMRIE Trade and other payables (135,668)
HiIERBAER Other non-current liabilities 4,131)
BHER Contract liabilities (65)
EIERIBEE (Ba#31) Deferred tax liabilities (Note 317) (40,912)
BARBESENA B ERRE Total identifiable net assets at fair value 306,356
JEVERR R R Non-controlling interests (125,269)
W EEXNEE (Wa218) Goodwill on acquisition (Note 18) 26,564
WHERER T Gain on bargain purchase (1,245)
206,406
MTHAEHEE Satisfied by:
Re Cash 108,681
FFABEMIETREISME ENAREEFOIHRENR FH Acquisition-date fair value of the Group's initial
ViaR NI EEE A R EE equity in Jiangzhong Prepared Slices included in
other non-current financial assets 7,992
AR GERENERNAEFNEREN Acquisition-date fair value of the Group's initial
ViaR NI EEE A R EE equity in Runheji included in interests in joint
ventures 89,733
206,406
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37.

EBEH B
BE_Z_ZF+_HA=+—HILE
E #

R 82 R EMEBRIENA A B
B4 7#1369,785,00070 B 5 K EHAhfE
WM AR & 45 88 4 8 1376,349,000
Lo

AEBRELEWERS M AHE,343,000
T ZERFMAE WA AGEED
R HEAMBFS -

AEERBEARERRFEE IR
RESEFMUBNEEaE -EHEEE
RENBECBZSEFE WETHE
MR HiZ AR A A E R PR -

WEELRE ARmBB L ERETE
BREE-DHERTESZEREAMES
1 Bl 7S 60 15 42 UK B 75 B TR A 175 B0 S B ~ U
mBRARKTHER ASECE RIEF
BEEZA D ARZFENELFTEH
A BT EENERSRE A gHEnE
RIS o

ZEWERMEENEERBATRAT
B o

BZEURBZHEERESNUT -

RERE

LRI FERTIA

STAE MBS RIBERI RS £ 48
BUIREMIREFEY)

WHBRYIR R B ER

37. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

The fair value of trade and other receivables as at the date of acquisitions
amounted to HK$369,785,000. The gross contractual amount of trade
and other receivables was HK$376,349,000.

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$1,343,000 for these
acquisitions. These transaction costs have been expensed and are
included in other expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The Group measured the acquired lease liabilities using the present value
of the remaining lease payments at the date of acquisition. The right-of-
use assets were measured at an amount equal to the lease liabilities and
adjusted to reflect the favourable terms of the leases relative to market
terms.

Goodwiill arose in the acquisitions because the cost of the combination
included the benefit of expected synergies, revenue growth, future
market development, the assembled workforce and the control premium
of the acquirees as the acquirees are engaged in various areas relating
to the manufacturing, distribution and retail in the pharmaceutical and
medication industry. These benefits were not recognised separately
from goodwill because they did not meet the recognition criteria for
identifiable intangible assets.

None of the goodwill arising on these acquisitions was expected to be
deductible for tax purpose.

BT T
HK$000
An analysis of the cash flow in respect of these
acquisitions is as follows:
Cash consideration 1,474,447
Prepayment made in prior year (138,502)
Amounts unpaid and included in other payables (90,601)
Cash and cash equivalent received (180,162)
Net cash outflow on acquisitions 1,065,182
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37. #EaH @) 37. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

BE_Z_ZF+_HA=+—HILE
E #

WRES EENBNEBRGERZR
A 81183,963,000c o WEE S EED
FER U A B 1555,399,0007T ©

REWBENR _ ST _FTF—H—H
ERCEEFARDEBERABE
200,458,292,0007s » M AEF 1§ &%
#5,324,779,0007T c ZIE B EHE MR
BAzR RO RBEEER 2 24—
B—HERNBERTAEBTEREES
BIUR 8 R A 2 4 IR A IRME A R R ER
B9FEAl

(E_T-NFE+-A=+—HL%E
E

$“1%§W% NEE BT

BN ZE—-NELtBE=+H
&:ﬁ NEAB+EHALTIRT
ez (EE) BREE2E (NI
FEE CRAEBRIVER E6
ZRETURMDIBEBERBRR
Bz UWBSBRETIEHNARKE
3,099.48 8t (HENAE13,636.5
B8 (MRE) MAXRE LT
EENLEE MM A Rz E
Ry ARBET,040.8FE T (B
RAYHEE1,221 1B B 7T) BRER
SIREBMELNEERRER M
Uiz [o] FE 16) L B A B IRER B9 T ok
BEDSTERNSEREIATITE
ErHEBELA-R_ZE—NEZA
T+ H BT EERBRG R
B IPERmAE BT
PREBS1%RENHBAS JIH
EEA " REEPENABEEN
B BEBFEIREERMAERA
B (DIAEEE ) AR o T hEg2E
B RN LBHREHEXZFALHHNA
B FEREEE HERDHEOTC
BERREREEESR NIE—H
FE+ZRA=+—H AEEBEBT
EEBZEEAELDEEA3.03%
Y BG o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

Included in the profit for the year was HK$183,963,000 attributable to
the additional business generated by the acquirees. Revenue for the year
included HK$555,399,000 generated by the acquirees.

Had the acquisitions been completed on 1 January 2020, the total group
revenue for the year would have been HK$200,458,292,000, and the
profit for the year would have been HK$5,324,779,000. The proforma
information was for illustrative purposes only and was not necessarily an
indication of revenue and results of operations of the Group that actually
would had been achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1
January 2020, nor was it intended to be a projection of future results.

For the year ended 31 December 2019

CR Pharmaceutical Holdings, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a share subscription agreement and a
supplemental subscription agreement on 30 July 2018 and 14
September 2018, respectively, with the then shareholders of
Jiangxi Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical (Group) Co., Ltd. (“Jiangzhong
Group”, currently known as CR Jiangzhong Group) for the
subscription of increased registered share capital of Jiangzhong
Group by way of capital contribution of approximately
RMB3,099.4 million in cash (equivalent to HK$3,636.5 million)
(the "Consideration”). Out of the Consideration, approximately
RMB1,040.8 million (equivalent to HK$1,221.1 million) shall be
treated as an interest-bearing shareholder’s loan to Jiangzhong
Group, save for the amount of repayment of any outstanding
entrusted loans receivable from its associate which shall be
contributed to the reserve capital of Jiangzhong Group. On 22
February 2019, the above share subscription of Jiangzhong Group
was completed and Jiangzhong Group became a 51%-owned
subsidiary of CR Pharmaceutical Holdings. Jiangzhong Group is
a large-scale pharmaceutical enterprise specialised in traditional
Chinese medicine and directly holds equity interest in Jiangzhong
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical”).
Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical is a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange and is principally engaged in the manufacturing,
research and development, distribution of Over-the-Counter
medicines and healthcare products. As at 31 December 2019,
the Group, through Jiangzhong Group, indirectly held a 43.03%
equity interest in Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical.
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37. ¥ a6 @)
(E_E—-hE+_B=+—HL=E
E #
G) W hEE (&)

AREETHBEEKRA BRI
HEN R ABENT :

37. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

(@)  Acquisition of Jiangzhong Group (continueg)
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Jiangzhong
Group as at the date of acquisition are as follows:

UL B RFRERR

ZRAREE

Fair value

recognised on

acquisition

BT T

HK$'000

MR ek B (M13E15) Property, plant and equipment (Note 15) 1,572,641

EREEE (aF17) Right-of-use assets (Note 17) 769,182

\EEEE BfaE19) Intangible assets (Note 79) 1,156,214

REE A B R Interests in associates 286,595

HiJERB)Sr&EE Other non-current financial assets 388,027

IEIEFRIBE E (Ba#31) Deferred tax assets (Note 37) 37,707

Hi3ERB&EE Other non-current assets 1,503,925

=758 Inventories 300,257

B 5 KR EMEWEIE Trade and other receivables 2,716,937

B RIBEEBEY) Cash and cash equivalents 4,875,777
B 5 REMERNRIE Trade and other payables (2,492,543)
GH8E Contract liabilities (221,590)
FFEIRITRENR Interest-bearing bank borrowings (2,373,184)
FEIHRIE Tax payable (33,817)
HiIERBAER Other non-current liabilities (131,708)
JERIBEE (Hfa#31) Deferred tax liabilities (Note 37) (659,439)

BARBETEN A S ELLEE Total identifiable net assets at fair value 7,694,981
JEIERR e R Non-controlling interests (5,998,151)

WEBEEMEE (H/aL18) Goodwill on acquisition (Note 18) 718,487

2,415,317

MTHAEHEE Satisfied by:

B Cash 3,636,486
B LREEEHNRERER A shareholder’s loan to Jiangzhong Group (1,221,169)

2,415,317
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37. e & 37. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

BE_E-h&E+-A=+—HLH=E
E #@)
b) K

REBEE_Z—hAhE+A=1+—
BEEE AEEUREREEH
AR¥101.6EE T HERLN B
M358 WU TERERE
ERIHEATNER AEEINE
ZEWBREIEAEBEAPRET
EHIGDBENEEN—Hre

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

(b)  Acquisition of other subsidiaries and businesses

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group acquired
the following companies or businesses which were engaged
in the manufacture and sale of pharmaceutical products at an
aggregate cash consideration of RMB101.6 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$113.5 million). These subsidiaries were acquired
as part of the Group's strategy to expand its market share in the
pharmaceutical industry.

WUHE TS e

Name of acquirees

MIN=hBEBZERRE

Sichuan Sanjiu Pharmaceutical Trade Co., Ltd.
HICEREXFRAT

Tieling Spring Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
ERERBESRAT

China Resources Huaian Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
EHENEBESRAT

China Resources Luzhou Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
EHRERBESRAT

China Resources Nanchong Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

UgRE B HA FriusiEE= a2t
Percentage of

Date of acquisition interest acquired

—Z-NE+—RB=+4aA 100%

25 November 2019

“2-nEFERAZ+=H 51%

23 May 2019

“E2-NFE=AZ+H 70%

26 March 2019

“E-hF-AZ+—H 70%

21 January 2019

“E-hF-AZ+—H 70%

21 January 2019

BT AU ERI 2T

Business acquired from the following companies
FEHRINEEFR AT

China Resources Chuzhou Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
EHBRRBESRAT

s s B HA

Date of acquisition
ZE—-hEZRZ+N\H
28 February 2019
“Z-hEmMA=+H

China Resources Weifang Yuandong Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 30 April 2019
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37. ¥BaH &
BE_E—-h&E+-A=+—HLH=E

E #@)
b) TN E )
HRZSWEZENEAEREmS

WAREBXR WEMZFWBENEY
REBEERZ - NIWEH > =
EMBAB REFHOEHBIEEK
BENAAEBENT :

37. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

(b)  Acquisition of other subsidiaries and businesses (continued)
The information for these acquisitions was disclosed on an
aggregate basis as they were individually immaterial to the Group.
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
subsidiaries and business acquired as at the respective dates of

acquisition are as follows:

R UR SRR

ZRAREE

Fair value

recognised on

acquisition

BT T

HK$'000

MR ek B (M13E15) Property, plant and equipment (Note 15) 61,279
EREEE aF17) Right-of-use assets (Note 17) 20,517
\EEEE BfaE19) Intangible assets (Note 79) 22,873
EIEFRIBE E (Ba#31) Deferred tax assets (Note 37) 742
HMIEREEE Other non-current assets 28
=758 Inventories 33,818
B 5 KR EMEWEIE Trade and other receivables 97,428
B RIBEEBEY) Cash and cash equivalents 17,335
B 5 REMEARIE Trade and other payables (109,725)
BHER Contract liabilities (585)
HEAR Lease liabilities (2,044)
FFEIRITRENR Interest bearing bank borrowings (25,788)
I HRIE Tax payable (1,897)
EERIBEE (WaE371) Deferred tax liabilities (Note 37) (3.421)
BARBETEN A S ELLEE Total identifiable net assets at fair value 110,560
JEIERR e R Non-controlling interests (22,830)
WEBEEMEE (H/aL18) Goodwill on acquisition (Note 18) 26,746
WHERER T Gain on bargain purchase (1,003)
MIRE4E Satisfied by cash 113,473

REER B REMERHRIEN
NARBEABYE2,814,365,0007T °
B REMERRIBENR SO
A 12,910,928,0007T ©

The fair value of trade and other receivables as at the date
of acquisitions amounted to HK$2,814,365,000. The gross
contractual amount of trade and other receivables was

HK$2,910,928,000.
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37. ¥BaH @&

BE_ZT-NF+-A=+—HILF

E #

(b) WEER MK /E 2\ 5] =)
FEBELEFWEBRZHABIE
3,596,0007T c ZER 5 M 4 B 3
Wt AR E A RMWEMBES -

AEBPYWEARERNGHEEN
MHNREFEFRBENEEERE.
ERREERSNIEEERZEH
& WETHBURMRETISE
RERNEERFRR-

WEEEHE AARBELER
ENEIREE-DERTESS
a8 & R A SRR KET
TR R~ 1 &~ R 2R
THER S ANEE RIS B8
ZH@m AR ZFNNEL TSP
HABMILEENERRE HAE
Sl B D R -

ZEWHEMEENEERBAIR

37. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

)

Acquisition of other subsidiaries and businesses (continuea)

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$3,596,000 for these
acquisitions. These transaction costs have been expensed and are
included in other expenses in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

The Group measured the acquired lease liabilities using the present
value of the remaining lease payments at the date of acquisition.
The right-of-use assets were measured at an amount equal to the
lease liabilities and adjusted to reflect the favourable terms of the
leases relative to market terms.

Goodwill arose in the acquisitions because the cost of the
combination included the benefit of expected synergies, revenue
growth, future market development, the assembled workforce
and the control premium of the acquirees as the acquirees
are engaged in various areas relating to the manufacturing,
distribution and retail in the pharmaceutical and medication
industry. These benefits were not recognised separately from
goodwill because they did not meet the recognition criteria for
identifiable intangible assets.

None of the goodwill arising on these acquisitions was expected to

AIHARR be deductible for tax purpose.
B F
HK$000
MZEREZ R MEZNUT An analysis of the cash flow in respect of these
acquisitions is as follows:
RERIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 4,893,112
BEREB Cash consideration (3,749,959)
IWEBRIRETRAREE Net cash inflow on acquisitions 1,143,153

REB S EENEIIEBRGESE
7 il 75 B #462,625,0007T ©
MEBLDEENFARDZABR
2,752,586,0007T °
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Included in the profit for the year was HK$462,625,000
attributable to the additional business generated by the acquirees.
Revenue for the year included HK$2,752,586,000 generated by
the acquirees.
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37. ¥Ba0% @
(E_E—-hE+_B=+—HL=E
F“Cf;)
®) 4

fEx W%Eﬁ\_v nfﬁ ﬁ =
SR EEFRRREER A B
204,799,251,0007T > M 4 7 iz A
48 2 3B IK5,248,007,0007T © 2% 15 4%
ERHMEHERBZ B R R BRI RE
ERZZ—NE—A—HB=mNE
WF A EE B P IR R 1T O UK A R A

BEE TIRIEARREENT
Ao

37. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

o),

Acquisition of other subsidiaries and businesses (continuea)

Had the acquisitions been completed on 1 January 2019,
the total group revenue for the year would have been
HK$204,799,251,000, and the profit for the year would have
been HK$5,248,007,000. The proforma information was for
illustrative purposes only and was not necessarily an indication
of revenue and results of operations of the Group that actually
would had been achieved had the acquisition been completed on
1 January 2019, nor was it intended to be a projection of future
results.

38. HEMBEAT 38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
gFE-_E-_EF+_H=+—AHILE For the year ended 31 December 2020
E
(@) 2 B FRAE] (L (@  Disposal of Shanghai Jinxiang Latex Products Co.,Ltd. (“Shanghai
) / Jinxiang ")
ﬁf;g_;ﬁfﬁj\g y AEE MBS In August 2020, the Group disposed of a 100% equity interest
B ARMES,156,00070 (FH= R of Shanghai Jinxiang to Shanghai Ruyitang Biotechnology Co.,
HHE75 623,0007T) HE FESE Ltd. at a cash consideration of RMB68,156,000 (equivalent to
Z100%RIETF LERBEEYR HK$75,623,000).
BAERAT
HE B
At the date
of disposal
BT
HK$’000
RERE Cash consideration 75,623
BHEBETRE ! Net assets disposed of:
M~ BRE Rk (BaE15) Property, plant and equipment (Note 75) 63,536
EREEE Wat17) Right of use assets (Note 17) 22,771
B 5 e AEMERIE Trade and other receivables 27,860
HeERREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 263
=78 Inventories 10,174
B 5 RHMENRIE Trade and other payables (85,795)
HHEE Contract liabilities (4,295)
FERIBE G (Wat31) Deferred tax liabilities (Note 37) (1,788)
HiiEmeas Other non-current liabilities (711)
BE (ffz218) Goodwill (Note 18) 14,120
46,135
TUNEBREZEER Settlement allowance for employees (2,929)
PE R sREE Exchange realignment 369
HE—RNBARFME Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 26,928
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38. HEMBAR @@ 38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
BE_E-_ZF+_B=+—HItE For the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)
E #@
b) HHEUFEFXFERERAEERLE (b)  Disposal of Shandong Wuditianlong Technology Co., Ltd.
(Il EEmFEFEE)]) (“Shandong Wudlitianlong ")
RNIE_EF+—F  mEBLUIR In November 2020, the Group disposed of a 91.01% equity
SREBARBE2,664,0007c FEER interest of Shandong Wuditianlong to Zhaorong, Nan at a cash
#H83,126,0007T) HE LEEEX consideration of RMB2,664,000 (equivalent to HK$3,126,000).
BEZ91.01 %R IEF R IKE -
HE B
At the date
of disposal
BT
HKS'000
B2RE Cash consideration 3,126
BHEBETRE: Net assets disposed of:
M~ BRE K& (BaE15) Property, plant and equipment (Note 75) 567
KEYZE Hiat16) Investment properties (Note 16) 515
B 5 R AEMENRIE Trade and other receivables 20
BENIREEHEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,761
B 5 RHEMENFRIE Trade and other payables (75)
JEE TR Non-controlling interests (251)
2,537
PE R R Exchange realignment (25)
HE—FERBABFE Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 564
HEFEWBATNREESRESSE An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in
BYIRRAFESTWNT ¢ respect of the disposal of the above subsidiaries is as follows:
2020
BT T
HKS'000
BERB Cash consideration 78,749
Bl EEE Amount received 78,749
HERESRIAEEEY Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (2,024)
ZNNEBELZEER Settlement allowance for employees (2,929)
HEWBABNRERIREEEBYN Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of
RACERE {0kRRIE the disposal of the subsidiaries, net of tax 73,796
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38. HEMBAE @@ 38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
BE_Z—hhEFE+B=+—HLHE For the year ended 31 December 2019
E
@) HEFI=7 (@  Disposal of Shenzhen Sanjiu
RoE—HE—B AEEUES In January 2019, the Group disposed of a 100% equity interest of
KRB AEY1,116,886,00070 (HHE Shenzhen Sanjiu to Shenzhen Xinshen Hospital Management Co.,
FEEE1,246,835,0007T) HEFE Ltd. at a cash consideration of RMB1,116,886,000 (equivalent to
= N2 100% RS HE T R 31 R B8 Bt HK$1,246,835,000).
BIEAR AT
HEHBH
At the date
of disposal
BT T
HK$'000
BERE Cash consideration 1,246,835
BHEBETRE: Net assets disposed of:
M~ BRE K& (BaE15) Property, plant and equipment (Note 75) 166,987
HiERgEE Other non-current assets 50,060
B 5 R EHMEWRIE Trade and other receivables 1
BENIREHEY Cash and cash equivalents 3,559
B 5 RHMENFRIE Trade and other payables (1,273)
219,334
BEE 5P FEEE Exchange realignment 35,040
HE—XRKHB AR Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 1,062,541
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38. HEMBAE @ 38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
BE_ZT—hhEFE+B=+—HLHE For the year ended 31 December 2019
E #@
b) HERFE (b)  Disposal of Pianzaihuang
R-E—HENR AEBUES In September 2019, the Group disposed of a 51% equity interest
REBARM165,846,80070 (FHER of China Resources Pianzaihuang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
H183,864,0007T) HEEBHR F ("Pianzaihuang”) to Zhangzhou Pianzaihuang Pharmaceutical Co.,
BEEBRAT (TRFHE 51% Ltd. at a cash consideration of RMB165,846,800 (equivalent to
BREFENRFEZERMBERR HK$183,864,000).
ﬁ_‘ o
HE B
At the date
of disposal
BT
HK$'000
B2RE Cash consideration 183,864
BHEBETRE: Net assets disposed of:
M BB Rk (FEE15) Property, plant and equipment (Note 75) 486
EELEE B15419) Intangible assets (Note 79) 16,406
RIERIBE E (B5#31) Deferred tax assets (Note 31) 10,992
F7E Inventories 8,276
B 5 R H AW FRIE Trade and other receivables 26,301
BENIREEHEY Cash and cash equivalents 248,316
B 5 RHEMENFRIE Trade and other payables (36,185)
JEE TR Non-controlling interests (134,550)
140,042
FE R sBEE Exchange realignment (15,068)
HE—XKWBASNRGE Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 28,754
HEFEWBATNRESRESSE An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in
BYIRRAFESTNT ¢ respect of the disposal of the above subsidiaries is as follows:
2019
BT
HK$'000
RERE Cash consideration 1,430,699
Bl EEE Amount received 437,743
HERESRIAEEEY Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (251,875)
HEWBABNRERIREEEBYH Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of
RACERE kR IE the disposal of the subsidiaries, net of tax 185,868
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39. sreRERERMEE 39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS
(a) B ESELNAEEE (@) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
REfF—R
R
iRTEM EBRMES FEfHES FEIRZ S ARFIE HEaR
Amount
duetoan
intermediate
Bank Short-term Bonds Dividend holding Lease
borrowings debentures payable payables company liabilities
BETT BETT BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Z%2E—fF-—H At 1 January 2020 31,065,685 - 7,952,398 101,323 13,215,858 2,247,356
MBERERE() Financing cash flows (i)
RITERFERE Proceeds from bank borrowings 55,085,788 = = = = =
BIERITER Repayment of bank borrowings (53,030,186) = = = = =
Bl—RAEERATEE  Advances from an intermediate holding company = = = = (4,452,397) =
BIERES Repayment of bonds payable s s (2,262,869) = = =
[SINEE Dividend paid - - - (691,076) - -
RARESERIE Proceeds from short-term debentures - 4,499,880 = = = =
BREHRES Repayment of short-term debentures = (4,499,880) = = = =
BAJFHERRERE Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders = = = (709,519) = =
THEEEE Payment of lease liabilities - - = = = (684,778)
BRABAEREN Dividend paid to holders of
SRTIERBARE finandial instruments classified as equity = = = (88,648) = =
FEREEH Non-cash changes
FEfIERTREE Accounts payable factoring 2,585,900 = = = = =
ERBEE Foreign exchange realignment 520,528 - 251,541 = = 55,591
ERAHBRE Final dividend declared - = = 691,076 = =
DETHBEAERN Distributions to holders of
SHIARBA financial instruments dlassified as equity - - - 76,581 = =
MBS RIRTTIETFI S Interest of bond payables and bank borrowings 21,577 = 99,351 = = =
BFERRRERKE Dividend declared to non-controlling shareholders = = = 669,356 = =
WiHE New leases - - - - - 439323
BHTFHRABMNELEE  Covid-19-related rent concessions from lessors - s s = = (18,087)
B MO ESAERR Reassessment and revision of lease terms = = = = = (268,484)
FRBEZHF SEM Accretion of interest recognised during the year - - - - - 94,745
AZZTFE+HTF=+—H At31December 2020 36,249,292 - 6,040,421 49,093 8,763,461 1,865,666
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39. IrERERERMEE @

() MEBEHEENERES @

39.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(@) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

(continued)
REfF—R
R
SRITEM HRES FEfHES FEIRZ S ARFIE HEaR
Amount
duetoan
intermediate
Bank Short-term Bonds Dividend holding Lease
borrowings debentures payable payables company liabilities
BETT BETT BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RIZE-hE—F—H At 1 January 2019 40,664,521 3,423,868 6,847,740 91,303 3,002,493 2,016,387
MBERERE() Financing cash flows (i)
RITERFERE Proceeds from bank borrowings 55,823,978 = = = = =
BEIRITER Repayment of bank borrowings (72,814,336) = = = = =
BH—KTPEZERABREE  Advances from an intermediate holding company - = = = 10,122,062 =
BITESMEIE Proceeds from issuances of bonds = = 1,116,350 = = =
[SINEE Dividend paid - - - (816,986 - -
RARESERIE Proceeds from short-term debentures - 3,349,050 = = = =
BREHRES Repayment of short-term debentures = (6,698,100) = = = =
BAJFHERRERE Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders = - - (1,124,224) - _
TAHREAE Payment of lease liabilities = = = = = (653,954)
FREEH Non-cash changes
WREE B AT (2237) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 37) 2,398,972 - - = = 2,044
EIIRTREE Accounts payable factoring 5,167,717 = = = = =
ERER Foreign exchange translation (216,290) (74,818) (149,640 - 91,303 (44,063)
SRAHERE Final dividend declared = = = 816,986 = =
DT HERERN Distributions to holders of
SRMIARBA finandial instruments classified as equity - - - 11,949 - -
FE(IES RIRITETFI S Interest of bond payables and bank borrowings 0,123 - 137,948 = = =
BRSNS Dividend declared to non-controlling shareholders = = = 1,122,295 = =
HHE New lease - - - - = 814,817
FRHERRF S8 Accretion of interest recognised during the year - = = = = 112,125
RZZ—AE+ZHA=+—H At31December 2019 31,065,685 - 7,952,398 101,323 13,215,858 2,247,356
0] B iElmir e B TE &R HIR 0 The cash flows make up the net amount of proceeds and
TT1E I E(HE SR EREE repayment from bank borrowings and bonds payable in the
BB EE consolidated statement of cash flows.
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maRERERMT @

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) HEZIRE RH4E%E (b) Total cash outflow for leases
HABES X EEERESRBE The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of cash
LI flows is as follows:
2020 2019
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
EREEEHEA Within operating activities 119,900 72,038
EREHEN Within investing activities 180,995 =
TREEHHEER Within financing activities 684,778 653,954
985,673 725,992
40. EJZ:ji,\TE 40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
RBEE_ B _EFERr_B—HE+_A During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group

=t+— EIthEV AEE(G)HEES TR
RBEUEEEZ REMBARIE; K(i)E
RITERETREZBEUAESERE - x2
BAEFEAR FEEEREZFTRURE
BERNEARRRKLORER  Bi%RRE
B RIS AEBHNERAYE F 75 AEN
BEEERR -HRZNESTEREMIRE
WRENEBRRE RRARMEEEER
EREREWEESHEPEN S IRITE N
R AL HEEE KA BT EIR
B BHRERAESR - AEBNRERERAR
HigRZE j“i&eﬁﬁfﬁjﬁuﬁl?’i}%ﬁ'ﬁ
FJERENRSARNT

(i) endorsed certain bills receivable for the settlement of trade and
other payables; and (ii) discounted certain bills receivable to banks
for raising cash. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
Group has transferred the significant risks and rewards relating to
these bills receivable, and the Group's obligations to the corresponding
counterparties were discharged in accordance with the commercial
practice in the PRC. The risk of default in payment of the endorsed and
discounted bills receivable is low because all endorsed and discounted
bills receivable are issued and guaranteed by reputable banks in PRC.
As a result, the relevant assets and liabilities were not recognised in the
consolidated financial statements. The maximum exposure to the Group
that may result from the default of these endorsed and discounted bills
receivable at the end of each reporting period is as follows:

2020 2019

BT T BT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

B REMEMRENES Endorsement of trade and other payables 7,051,120 9,427,242

AMIREENEERS Discounted bills for cash-raising 9,810,628 9,159,477
BAREBESERCAIEEBZ®  Outstanding endorsed and discounted bills

BIFE N ZE % receivable with recourse 16,861,748 18,586,719
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41, I 41. COMMITMENTS
REBMPRRERKRE T B ARAIE The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the
reporting period:
2020 2019
BT BT
HK$000 HK$'000
FUEE LU TS IEETAEREME ¢ Contracted, but not provided for in relation
to the acquisition of:
ME -BEREE BEEEK Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets
FRAEESE and right-of-use assets 824,713 511,599
RHBAR, ME AT Z R Equity interests in subsidiaries/associates 142,579 1,491,444
967,292 2,003,043
42. FARGRAINE 42. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
() EXBEHASRE ()  Significant transactions with related parties
B SRRt E TS The Group entered into the following transactions with related
Gho AEBEFERNERBABUTR parties during the year in addition to transactions detailed
2 elsewhere in these financial statements:
HELE Sales
2020 2019
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEhE Joint ventures 8,279 8,904
EENHVAC! Fellow subsidiaries 426,711 307,297
—XERMABNEHEAE Assodiates of a fellow subsidiary 402,616 404,244
NS Associates 457,688 84,384
FREERE Purchases
2020 2019
BT T BT T
HK$000 HK$'000
aEhXE Joint ventures 40,737 44,827
EEN = VNC! Fellow subsidiaries 156,485 92,246
JEITER S Non-controlling interests 16,715 =
BEAE Associates 182,781 49,563
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42. A H I EE @) 42. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)
() EBEXBAERXZ @@ ()  Significant transactions with related parties (continued)
EfEEE Management fees paid
2020 2019
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
iGN Associates 6,923 5,217
BREAE Fellow subsidiaries 26,111 12,569
HET Lease payments
2020 2019
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
A =U/N= Associates = 7,922
JEVER R R Non-controlling interests 8,979 =
BIRMMEAE Fellow subsidiaries 18,501 26,855
HREE Service fees
2020 2019
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
EENEEPNE] Fellow subsidiaries 33,633 29,252
= lNE Associates 5,934 3,091
JEIER i Non-controlling interests - 179,596
—XERMIBABNEE AT Assodciates of a fellow subsidiary - 54
FIE WA Interest income
2020 2019
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
g NS Associates 143,617 154,117
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42. FAEREIREE (@) 42. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)
() EBEXKBAERXZ @@ ()  Significant transactions with related parties (continued)
FIEFHZ Interest expenses
2020 2019
BETT BT
HK$000 HK$'000
R A E] Intermediate holding companies 97,354 48,629
JEER R Non-controlling interests 230 =
BRMMEAE Fellow subsidiaries 5,549 =
g /NE| Associates 83,681 63,494
R SR B E 5 HERER These transactions are all at the terms agreed between the relevant
fEd ° parties.
Iy EKEAMSLEER (I Significant balances with related parties
ANEEHRB AU TEKRGER The Group had the following significant balances with its related
parties:
JEUS BT 2B Amounts due from related parties
2020 2019
BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
&S RWRIE (Bfzta) Trade receivables (Note a) 460,200 260,473
HAFEWRIE (B752b) Other receivables (Note b) 1,977,136 2,966,279
FEERIE (Hatc) Prepayments (Note ¢) 2,783 3,829
2,440,119 3,230,581
Wista: B 2 EWHIE Note a: Trade receivables
2020 2019
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
B&RBAE Fellow subsidiaries 220,302 41,991
aEhE Joint ventures 407 253
JEIERR S Non-controlling interests 43,577 =
BEAE Associates 41,330 43,365
—XBRMABAGNEZ AT Assodiates of a fellow subsidiary 154,584 174,864
460,200 260,473
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42. RRETSIRER (@) 42. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)
() EKXEAEHER @@ (I)  Significant balances with related parties (continued)
NEREHF  AEFRENEEH The ageing analysis of the Group's trade receivables with related
EARFEUR R B 5 B8 5 FRIB Y BR 5 D parties based on invoice date at the end of each reporting period
s : is as follows:
2020 2019
BEFT BT
HK$000 HK$'000
0Z30H 0 to 30 days 166,390 212,778
31ZE60H 31 to 60 days 79,635 874
61Z290H 61 to 90 days 57,489 560
91&180H 91 to 180 days 118,483 2,075
838180H Over 180 days 38,203 44,186
460,200 260,473
Mizto: BnEriE Note b: Other receivables
2020 2019
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRMEAE Fellow subsidiaries 8,423 2,744
aEhE Joint ventures = 3,643
HEERAE Immediate holding company 17,967 17,967
=GN Associates 1,906,815 2,910,098
—XBERWEABNEHE AT Associates of a fellow subsidiary 113 =
FRREIERS A E] Intermediate holding company 4,420 =
JEFERS R R Non-controlling shareholders 39,398 31,827
1,977,136 2,966,279
O — /NI B B Except for the other receivables due from associates of
1,863,573,454 5t (ZE—HEFE : B HK$1,863,573,454 (2019: HK$2,908,091,750), which bears
#2,908,091,7507T) * #26.09% = interest at the lending rate of 6.09% or interest at 5 basis points
FEARRIT (TREARRT) 2 (2019: between 5.23% to 6.09% or bore interest at 5 basis
HH—FHERM EMALSEE R points) mark up of People’s Bank of China (“PBOC") benchmark
(ZE—NF: #523%%6.09% one-year lending rate, the remaining receivables are unsecured
H—FHERFIEMASEERL) 5t and interest-free. No provisions are made against the receivables
ENEMEWRIBS  ZE TR from related parties as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December
FEWFRIBEBEITHEE KRS o # 2019. The trade and other receivables are expected to be received
ERR 2 _EF+__A=+—H within one year.

RZZ—NF+A=+—HHE
WRARE D BRI R - ERHE S
REMEWRBERRR —FERK
=B
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42. RRERTSIRER (@)

42. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)

() EXEAEHER @@ (I)  Significant balances with related parties (continued)
Wisztc:  FATHE Note c: Prepayments
2020 2019
BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
EEN N EPAE] Fellow subsidiaries 2,665 3,829
&N E] Associates 118 =
2,783 3,829
BiiErg &z Other non-current assets
THEMIERESEEDR  NATEI Included in other non-current assets is an amount due from an
— BB E AT B1867,356,8007T associate of HK$867,356,800 (2019: HK$368,395,500), which
(ZZ—hF : B1368,395,500 bears interest at the lending rate of 5.23% to 6.09% (2019:
7T) » #5.23% F6.09%:TE (& 6.09%).
—NE 1 6.09%) °
JE(T BB 7 B Amounts due to related parties
2020 2019
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI (Hfata) Trade payables (Note a) 95,052 16,019
HAMFE(IFRIE (BztD) Other payables (Note b) 11,916,461 14,084,970
12,011,513 14,100,989
Hizta: B 5 E B Note a: Trade payables
2020 2019
BT T BT T
HK$000 HK$'000
BRMEAE Fellow subsidiaries 29,407 718
HEbE Joint ventures 14,526 6,062
/N Associates 51,119 9,239
95,052 16,019
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42. RRETSIRER (@) 42. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)
() EKXEAEFEER @ (I)  Significant balances with related parties (continued)
REREHR AEFBENREH The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables with related
EARFE(T RE B 5 BB 5 FIB Y BR B5 parties based on invoice date at the end of each reporting period
s : is as follows:
2020 2019
BEFT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
0Z90H 0 to 90 days 94,138 15,238
91&F365H 91 to 365 days 572 567
88365 Over 365 days 342 214
95,052 16,019
Hizth. BT =8 Note b: Other payables
2020 2019
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
JEER Non-controlling interests 671,313 841,255
BERE Associates 87,229 13,551
FRREIERS A E] Intermediate holding company 8,763,461 13,215,858
BRWERE Fellow subsidiaries 2,394,149 2,852
e Joint ventures 309 11,454
11,916,461 14,084,970
f® 7 H T&_ﬁ% m_t_ B A ERA Except for the other payables to an intermediate holding
FIBKOT (—F—LE B company of HK$0 (2019: HK$1,116,350,000, which bore
1'1 16,350,0007T > %A 3£3.92% interest at 3.92%), and another intermediate holding company
st B) K5 — FEE_EF' Faii‘% EQ A E_P% " of HK$8,660,000,000, which bears interest at 45-50 basis points
8,660,000,0007 - &fé%ﬁﬁﬁ@% mark up of HIBOR (2019: HK$12,000,000,000, which bore
ifr BN A4S ES501E &R 5 B i—% interest at 50 basis points mark up of HIBOR), and the other
— & ;;P%'i*m 2,000,009,00071: ) 127 payables to a fellow subsidiary of HK$2,382,005,000 (2019: Nil),
BHIRITE %iﬁ B AL501E % ) which bear interest at 3.92% (2019: Nil), the remaining payables
REMEN —RE R E R BB are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

2,382,005,000 (ZZE—H 4 : ) >
BFE3 2% (ZE—NEF &) &t
ENEMETRIEN  ZETERN
FEREBEIEE - R EREEK

i 32

Ep=
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42. RRERTSIRER (@)

() REEAMPEBFERBRENRZS
/HERR
o AEBEREXEFBERHA
ETRT RIS (5 BUT R B
BR) JUZERG BEFRE
MREM—RIBITEE - BERNZF
BITRZHEE xREEZEAR
EHERIRELESE -

v

(V) ZRABEFKRAMEZEEREMN
SRYFMIT

FEEEASH

42. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)

(I Transactions/balances with other PRC government

controlled entities

In addition, the Group has entered into various transactions,
including deposits placement, borrowings and other general
banking facilities, with certain banks and financial institutions
which are government-related entities in its ordinary course of
business. In view of the natures of those banking transactions,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that separate
disclosure would not be meaningful.

(IV) The remuneration of directors of the Company and

other members of key management was as follows:
Compensation of key management personnel

2020 2019

BT T BT

HK$'000 HK$'000

e RN R TEAL Salaries, allowances and bonuses 15,502 18,953
RIRER]FTBIHERR Retirement benefit scheme contributions 363 277
15,865 19,230

FTEEEBEAENFHFMEERAREE
BEEREAXRRARTHBEERE

ﬁ_':_o

LR EA2()) P I BRI A [R) & MY 1B
RE—RERMBLANBER
BAINHE AR ERANE QT
RE-CUBRELAANEEE R
BE -FERAXTRBRLETRASE
TAAEFT R ENFRBRAER S

» 280 on5s% EREREEERAD

The remuneration of key management personnel is determined
by the management of the Company having regarded to the
performance of individuals and market trends.

The related party transactions in respect of sales to fellow
subsidiaries and associates of a fellow subsidiary, purchase from
certain fellow subsidiaries, management fees, service fees and
interest expenses paid to associates as disclosed in note 42(1) above
also constitute continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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43. BEREIDZERMT A
ELRTAERINES PR 2 RE E

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments

T as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
—EoEE 2020
TREE Financial assets
BAREE
BAREEE STERHEHHA
BEEZFHA REERE  Ht2EREN
ERNEREE ENEHEE tREE dast
Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value
at fair value Financial ~ through other
through profit assetsat  comprehensive
orloss  amortised cost income Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EthERBSREE (iEw) Other non-current financial assets (Note 22)
Kigns Equity investments 602,344 - - 602,344
EtERBEE (12223) Other non-current assets (\ote 23)
RiEEE Long-term receivables = 1,149,894 = 1,149,894
ZET Entrusted loan - 867,357 - 867,357
BEtRESREE Wi2) Other current financial assets (Vote 22)
BEER Financial products 6,914,461 = = 6,914,461
ERENTERENEE Trade and bills receivables - - 27,699,362 27,699,362
B2 REMEWRGIE (1z25) Trade and other receivables (Vote 25) - 63,965,766 - 63,965,766
TEWREM 3008 (Hfat4z) Amounts due from related parties (Note 42) = 2,037,336 = 2,437,336
BEAER Pledged deposits - 6,491,930 - 6,491,930
ReRREEEY Cash and cash equivalents - 11,231,497 - 11,231,497
st Total 7,516,805 86,143,780 27,699,362 121,359,947
ERAaE Financial liabilities
FE IS P S
FTENERaE
Financial
liabilities at

amortised cost

BT T

HKS'000

B 5 REMENTIA Bat27) Trade and other payables (Note 27) 63,378,264
FE{T BB =18 (B aE42) Amounts due to related parties (Note 42) 12,011,513
IRITIER Bank borrowings 36,249,292
HE&E Lease liabilities 1,865,666
FEHES Bonds payable 6,040,421
wast Total 119,545,156
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43. FERE D2 EMT A @

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)
—ZE-hE 2019
EREE Financial assets
BARBERE
}E’MM B E BEEEFEA
BEEFHHA BEENE  Ht2ERED
EnleREE fENEHEE SREE st
Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value
at fair value Financial through other
through profit assets at comprehensive
or loss amortised cost income Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EfIERSEREE (22) Other non-current financial assets (Vote 22)
RERE Equity investments 412,215 = = 412,215
EtERBEE (12223) Other non-current assets (\ote 23)
ZiET Entrusted Loan - 380,452 = 380,452
RERYT Long-term receivables = 976,025 = 976,025
BEtRESREE Wi2) Other current financial assets (Vote 22)
BERHEES Asset-backed securities 532,586 = = 532,586
BHER Financial products 4,946,093 167,780 = 5,113,873
BRRIGERERER Trade and bills receivables - - 20,756,903 20,756,903
B2 REMEWRGIE (1z25) Trade and other receivables (Vote 25) - 60,110,347 = 60,110,347
FEUR RS A 2 (W42 Amounts due from related parties (Note 42) = 3,226,752 S 3,226,752
BEAER Pledged deposits = 4,614,611 = 4,614,611
RERRESEN Cash and cash equivalents = 12,524,016 = 12,524,016
st Total 5,890,894 81,999,983 20,756,903 108,647,780
EREE Financial liabilities
FE IS P S
FTENERaE
Financial

liabilities at

amortised cost

BT T

HK$'000
B 5 REMENTIA Bat27) Trade and other payables (Note 27) 57,471,769
FE{T BB =18 (B aE42) Amounts due to related parties (Note 42) 14,100,989
IRITIER Bank borrowings 31,065,685
HEaE Lease liabilities 2,247,356
FEHES Bonds payable 7,952,398
w5t Total 112,838,197
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BEREK

FEEESMIAZEREERAAEER (B
REEAAANEESEREERN 87

44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably

mr approximate to fair values, are as follows:
IREE RAEE
Carrying amounts Fair values
2020 2019 2020 2019
BlETT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FFAIEREIBENEE Interest-bearing bank
IRITIER borrowings included
in non-current liabilities 792,072 3,579,485 770,491 3,445,900
eI & Bonds payable 1,215,729 5663955 1,112,823 5,508,455
“ast Total 2,007,801 9,243,440 1,883,314 8,954,355

EEENERRAR BHERFEEFEY
BRIFER FTABZ REMBURIE
NERMEE -HURBEMEE ST AE
SREMEMRENEHEE EHRE
HEYNREB S REREBMERTE
MEHXBZREERE TEARZS
TEREHNEE-

MU BEEREE  AEB M HAHE
EEEEMIAERAABEFENEER
BF MBEEEREAEEVHE KRB
ZEEEB -NEBRSBH MBEHMD
MERMTENEBESDHUEEHETE
ANEE2H - LEHNEEVHBEESRZ
Rt

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits, financial assets included in trade and other
receivables, other current financial assets, financial liabilities included in
trade and other payables, short-term debentures, amounts due from/
to related parties and loans to associates approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The Group's finance department headed by the finance manager is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. The finance manager reports
directly to the chief financial officer and the audit committee. At each
reporting date, the finance department analyses the movements in the
values of financial instruments and determines the major inputs applied
in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief
financial officer.
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4. TMTRAZRAREERAM 44, FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

BERER @

TRHEEREBRZAABESABRE (M
FREBNFEHE) XZEANEMNRS
PR EBRMTREZEBA - PESHAREE
R BRI AARBR !

RITERN 2 AEET %A A ELUE
T EERRRRERFERN TANRTH
RPRAIARKRREREAT - R T
SEF+ZA=+—0 > FAEERRITER
WABENRBRFERLEFTEKR - EEE
FEENTREORR  BUEFNQAE
ERALEANESNEET BN RKR
et RRREREME

FFLEHRERENAABEDHRAUIL
BEEDEEDTHEERILRZHHNRR
RHERNERHHHNGERM G &
BEEREFRETE RE - BEERERE
HEEAELERETAR (A7) IREE
HATELERABAECEEREHR (B
MEXEEBAHEMNE RNETERE
A&7 (TEV/EBITDA J) EHEHRE
(MPEX) BH) - BHHRAELERR
BINEREERUBNFEFE - XZ1E
FHRERBRADREFERREMRY
BUEBRRARZEFENFRHESZ R
BRERSERARETIR-IMBEHE
BRIELETREREERER 52U
BEAnBE -EFAGLGLARTEEZ
EEt 2 nEBE WNEEUHERTERAR
REMAnBEEZS REa AR A5
B AR RERRzREEEE.

AEEREFEHRE EIPEAMIET
BITHNEMER) - AEERBEEAEAMU
HRkERNTANDSEREEALIER
REMBEEREGHAZFIRLTREA
BRAREE
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the
amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the
fair values:

The fair values of bank borrowings have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently available for
instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.
The Group's own non-performance risk for bank borrowings as at 31
December 2020 was assessed to be insignificant. The fair value of the
bonds payable is estimated by discounting the expected future cash
flows using an equivalent market interest rate for similar bonds payable
with consideration of the Group’s own non-performance risk.

The fair values of unlisted equity investments have been estimated
using a market-based valuation technique based on assumptions that
are not supported by observable market prices or rates. The valuation
requires the directors to determine comparable public companies
(peers) based on industry, size, leverage and strategy, and calculates an
appropriate price multiple, such as enterprise value to earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation (“EV/EBITDA") multiple
and price to earnings (“P/E”) multiple, for each comparable company
identified. The multiple is calculated by dividing the enterprise value
of the comparable company by an earnings measure. The trading
multiple is then discounted for considerations such as illiquidity and size
differences between the comparable companies based on company-
specific facts and circumstances. The discounted multiple is applied to
the corresponding earnings measure of the unlisted equity investments
to measure the fair value. The directors believe that the estimated fair
values resulting from the valuation technigue, which are recorded in the
consolidated statement of financial position, and the related changes in
fair values, which are recorded in profit or loss, are reasonable, and that
they were the most appropriate values at the end of the reporting period.

The Group invests in unlisted investments, which represent wealth
management products issued by banks in Mainland China. The Group
has estimated the fair value of these unlisted investments by using a
discounted cash flow valuation model based on the market interest rates
of instruments with similar terms and risks.
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4. T TEHZARBERLAM 44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

BEEHR @ FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
RABEERER Fair value hierarchy
TREBAAEESHTENAABEES The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the
SEHR : Group's financial instruments:
BARNBESIEZEE . Assets measured at fair value:
RIE_ZEF+"B=+—H As 31 December 2020
NP BB TN AR EEDE
Fair value measurement using
BAOUBRE  EAFOIRE
R IRAVERE BAYE BAHR
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active Observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
E—) EZR) (EBE=H) it
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRAMBEEEEEEH AL Financial assets at fair value through other
PANENEHEE . comprehensive income:
BRI RN EE Trade and bills receivables = = 27,699,362 27,699,362
BANBEEEEEEH AR Financial assets at fair value through
NEMERE profit or loss:
BHER Financial products - - 6,914,461 6,914,461
RERE Equity investment = S 602,344 602,344
ozt Total - - 35,216,167 35,216,167
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4. T TEHZARBEKRLAR 44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

BEER @ FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
NREEER @) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
A _E—-HE+_A=+—H As 31 December 2019
WUTAIAETNARBENE
Fair value measurement using
EATER EAFIER
ERMENRE PN BAZE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active Observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(E—) () E=H) st
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BETTT BETTT BETTT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRANBEEEEEEH AL Financial assets at fair value through other
PANENEHEE . comprehensive income:
ERRIRS RERER Trade and bills receivables = = 20,756,903 20,756,903
BANBEEEEEEH AR Financial assets at fair value through
NEMERE profit or loss:
BERRRES Asset-hacked securities = = 532,586 532,586
BHER Financial products = = 4,946,093 4,946,093
RERE Equity investment = = 412,215 412,215
i Total = = 26,647,797 26,647,797

BAnBESTENERE Liabilities measured at fair value:
KEBRZZEZZEF+ZA=1T—"HK
T E-hEF+_B=+—HIERFEET
AUAABEFENEHEE-

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value as
at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019.

FRNE—BREREZBRRAEEFEZRM
WEESE TETREERTREEHA
FBEFE=HOBER CE-NF§]) -

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for
both financial assets and financial liabilities (2019: Nil).
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M ERMTEHZARBERAD 44.

EERER @&
BARBENENSERENT

RIE_ZEF+"B=+—H

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:

As at 31 December 2020

UTARETHARBEHE
Fair value measurement using

EXTBR  EATHUER
RETHIRNEE BABE BABE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active Observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
E—R) EZR) (E=H) it
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
IR Bank borrowings - - 770,491 770,491
EfEs Bonds payable - - 1,112,823 1,112,823
st Total - - 1,883,314 1,883,314

A _E—-HE+_A=+—H As at 31 December 2019
WUTAIATETNARBEE
Fair value measurement using

EAAHE  EAfUHBE

EEEMIBHIERE PN (6 BAZE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active Observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(E—R) (E_H) BE=R fast
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
AT BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
IR{TfER Bank borrowings = = 3,445,900 3,445,900
EfEs Bonds payable = = 5,508,455 5,508,455
st Total - - 8,954,355 8,954,355

R HEMNITENIEREBRETE
TE2REERREEEREENEE

RAriB &

The discount for lack of marketability represents the amounts of
premiums and discounts determined by the Group that market
participants would take into account when pricing the investments.
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45,

75 R b B 1 B R R

AEEFTETRIAQESERITE
FEMEF - RERREEEYURE
BRER -ZEZERITANEZENS
FEENEEERES FEEAREES
BURREREZEBIRBESBHME
MEERGE EHEKEEREE -

rEETMTAMEENETEZRBAT
KER INERR - EERBRKRABES
B -EFEFETRZEES AR
RIAABEEINT -

(@) FIEER
FEBRHENTENRESREBE
BEAEERIZTIHNXRFEHRY
BEEBAR-

4 £ [ 89 B0 56 5 15 PR B A e 2
EEBREHHDREER B
ZKO

UTHREBRRNDKREENZSE
BREEEEHYRER - FIEAN
SOEEE (ZE—H5F  S0EED)
MR R EREIREEH AR5

WEBHAEFEROMELA T
[#S0BER > MAAAHEMEER

ZE+"A=+—HIEEENSE
PE A D BR L N A B
2,489,000c (ZE—H&F : B
12,062,0007T) °

EEERR ARABRSTHRAR
T AR BRI R S HIR B R R - B
FREDMLEANARER R EKE

A
oo O
ZIN
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group'’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-bearing
bank borrowings, bonds payable, cash and cash equivalents and pledged
deposits. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to finance
the Group's operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise directly
from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest
rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and
they are summarised below.

(@) Interest rate risk
The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group's long-term debt obligations
with a floating interest rate.

The Group's policy is to manage its interest cost using a mix of
fixed and variable rate debts.

The sensitivity analysis is prepared assuming that those balances
outstanding at the end of the reporting period were outstanding
for the whole year. A 50 basis points (2019: 50 basis points)
increase or decrease which represents the management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates is
used.

If the interest rate on floating rate borrowings had been 50 basis
points higher/lower and all other variables were held constant,
the profit for the year of the Group would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$2,489,000 (2019: HK$12,062,000) for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the exposure
at the end of each reporting period does not reflect the exposure
at the end of each reporting period.
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45, S EREEEEREE
)

(b) HhES R B
UTRAERLSMNESHENERER
EREREBERBSHARNEKRE
B HEHTEIZE4AEBENESZRE
fthEE K FRIE s Hh SR & E - B
/REAIRARE S FIE BEIRRIRITHE
P RERREZEEBY BHKAE
A& TRIE ~ RTTIE R EIE S

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AN
(b)

D POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets and
monetary liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, which are
mainly trade and other receivables, other financial assets, amounts
due from/to related parties, pledged bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other payables, bank borrowings and bonds
payable of the Group, at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

2020
BT T
HK$'000
BE Assets
E7T United States dollars (“USD") 92,221
AR RMB 119,231,370
aEi Liabilities
EIT usD =
AR RMB 119,752,175
2019
BT T
HK$'000
BE Assets
E7T usb 62,104
AR RMB 121,391,228
afE Liabilities
E7T usb 187,247
AR RMB 113,063,473

AEEEEEEBRERMEERR
Bk & RSN U5 L W o 2 2 B A AT 3T
RIS BB A SRS RSN S A B o B B
B B B S AR o

The management of the Group manages the foreign currency
risk by closely monitoring the movements of foreign currency
exchange rates. The Group currently has not entered into any
foreign currency forward contracts to hedge against foreign
currency risk. Management will consider hedging foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.
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45. R REE B RREE 45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
#) AND POLICIES (continued)

(b) SMERE @ (b) Foreign currency risk (continued)
HREDHT Sensitivity analysis
FEBFESAREIHESSE The Group is mainly exposed to fluctuation in RMB.
@ o
TEBETRRBREHR  NEBRKRR The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
BEF (ARNEBBEERABEBENAR reporting period to a reasonably possible change in RMB exchange
ABEBEEE) HARKEXOI A rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's profit
HN&SBEEs FrEEMmEEE T before tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and
) NBRE - liabilities).
ZEISE 2020
BEEAREER FRAR A EA
L7/ (FK) 18m,/ G
Increase
Increase/ /(decrease)
(decrease) in HKD/ in profit
RMB rate before tax
BETT
% HK$'000
HEEEAREEZE If the Hong Kong dollar weakens against the RMB 5% (26,040)
HEE L AREAE If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens against the RMB (5%) 26,040
—E—hF 2019
HBERARBERX PRA AR
L/ (FR) gm,/ ()
Increase
Increase/ /(decrease)
(decrease) in HKD/ in profit
RMB rate before tax
BT
% HK$'000
HEEEARERE If the Hong Kong dollar weakens against the RMB 5% 416,388
HEET AREAE If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens against the RMB (5%) (416,388)
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45, S EREEEEREE
)

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(0 EERME () Creditrisk
AEBEHNAREETRENE= The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
HETR G NEBNBELAFRBE parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
BEUCEEHETRENERYA trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
MIBERAZEFE -ILI AEH In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
B IEA B IR basis and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant. For
BB KU EREEET) transactions that are not denominated in the functional currency
EEERBHEETZRZME » RT& of the relevant operating unit, the Group does not offer credit
SESERTERAME AEF terms without the specific approval of the Head of Credit Control.
TEHLETIEER-
RA ] o A R Maximum exposure and year-end staging
TEHINR+-B=+—HERX The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
EENEERR (EEREAHPE exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which
Kl BIEBARNERANRE A is mainly based on past due information unless other information
AEESEMER) RN EEES is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
KIS E Rk & A O AR RS EE classification as at 31 December.
Bloe
RIEZEF+ZR=+—H As at 31 December 2020
1288
RHEERE S REIEERE
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
F—RRE B PR B=PEER Gk Pz ast
Simplified
Stage1 Stage2 Stage3 Approach Total
BT BT T BT BT BT
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HitERgEE" Other non-current assets* 2,017,251 - - - 2,017,251
HiRghemEE: Other current financial assets* - - - 27,699,362 27,699,362
B RAMENE Trade and other receivables
(Hyaz25) ** (Note 25) ** 5,570,605 - - 60,320,373 65,890,978
FE LS BB 5 7R IE Due from related parties* 1,977,136 - - 460,200 2,437,336
BIERED Pledged deposits 6,491,930 - = - 6491930
ReRRE2EEY Cash and cash equivalents 11,231,497 - - - 11,231,497
4zt Total 27,288,419 - - 88479935 115,768,354
China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited Annual Report 2020 291




AR B BRI
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

“E2TFF+"HA=+—H 31 December 2020

45. R REE B RREE 45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
#) AND POLICIES (continued)

(0 1EERK®# (¢) Credit risk (continued)
RAM R FFR IR (B Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)
RIE—hAE+=ZB=+—H As at December 2019
12188
HHEERE LHTRIEERE
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
SR FIEE  EZBE @tRE #ast
Simplified
Stage1 Stage2 Stage3 Approach Total
BT T BT AT AT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HitJEmaEEr Other non-current assets* 1,356,477 = = - 1356477
HitUreEmEE Other current financial assets* 167,780 - - 20756903 20,924,683

B 5% REMMBEUEIE (1/2225)**  Trade and other receivables (Vote 25) ** 6,150,906 - - 54951110 61,102,016
FEUS BETES 7w OB Due from related parties* 2,966,279 - = 260473 3,226,752
BIRFEN Pledged deposits 4,614,611 - = - 4614611
ReRRE2EEY Cash and cash equivalents 12,524,016 = = - 12,524,016
4Bt Total 27,780,069 - - 75968486 103,748,555
d FRE R EEEFEIL S AE S e For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified
FEW BT = » B G E approach for impairment, information based on the provision
I BRF B 5 R M 7225 matrix is disclosed in Note 25 to the financial statements.
> A BEREMENESIEN L E **  The credit quality of the financial assets included in trade and
ENEEESF I EEMNENE other receivables is considered to be “normal” when there is no
ALK 5 B EL R B A NG 6 information indlicating that the financial assets had a significant
WA TIEE) - TR i EER increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit
EEREHE 70T 7 RAR) © quality of the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
also monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants, if any.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are at floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from the interest rate at the end
of the reporting period.

KGR
EEHE  BEREER 10 1526 UL ReRelE A
Weighted Tota\

average  Repayable on Within 1102 Over  undiscounted Camying
Interest rate demand 1year years 2 years cash flows amounts
BT BT aer BEFR BT BT
% HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000

“STZEFTATT-H 31 December 2020
BENEMENTE Trade and other payables - - 63378264 - - 63378264 63378264
RAEE ARG Amounts due to related parties - - 10m513 - - M5B 1201153
fgaf Lease labiltes - - 709,959 475,286 1,206,936 2,392,181 1,865,666
Wt Bank borrowings 34 154461 35852415 805,512 450 36816908 36,4992
EfiE% Bonds payable 410 - 4,943,797 1,205,879 - 6,149,676 6,040,421
154461 116,895948 2,486,677 121145 120748562 119,545,156

“E-NEFZA=F-H 31 December 2019
B RAMENTE Trade and other payables S - 57471769 = - STATITEY 57471769
EAERATE Amounts due to related parties = - 14100989 = - 14100989 14,100,989
=t Leaselabiltes - - 614,389 513,183 1,825,628 2,953,200 2,47,3%
BT Bank borrowings 429 1990861 2685063 1877077 1800387 3251890 31,065,685
EfiES Bonds payable 410 - 507652 4,645,004 1,132,998 8,285,654 7,952,398
1990861 101,545,434 7,035,264 479013 115330572 112838197
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(d)

(e)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included
in the “repayable on demand” time band in the above maturity
analysis. As at 31 December 2020, the aggregate carrying amount
of these bank borrowings was approximately HK$ 154,461,000
(2019: HK$1,990,861,000). Taking into account the Group's
financial position, the directors of the Company do not believe that
it is probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary right
to demand immediate repayment. The directors of the Company
believe that such bank borrowings of the Group will be repaid
after the end of reporting period in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the bank borrowing agreements.

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balances.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts, which
includes bank borrowings (Note 29), bonds payable (Note
30) and interest-bearing amounts due to related parties (Note
42), respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital, retained earnings and other reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure on a
periodic basis. As part of this review, the management considers
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the management, the
Group will balance its overall structure through the payment of
dividends and new shares issues as well as the issue of new debts
or the repayment of existing debts.
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(e) Capital risk management (continued)
The gearing ratios at the end of the reporting periods were as

follows:

2020 2019

BT T BT

HK$°000 HK$'000

R—EFERZIRITER Bank borrowings within one year 35,457,220 27,486,200
R—ERZENES Bonds payable within one year 4,824,692 2,288,443
R—EBZIRITER Bank borrowings more than one year 792,072 3,579,485
N—EBZENES Bonds payable more than one year 1,215,729 5,663,955
FTEBFE R A FIB Interest-bearing amounts due to related parties 11,042,005 13,116,350
B IRENIESEEY) Less: Cash and cash equivalents (11,231,497) (12,524,016)
FaEr Net debt* 42,100,221 39,610,417
KarET Total equity 80,029,444 69,581,821
BEAREEEE Gearing ratio** 52.61% 56.93%

*%

EEEERITENADEE ENE
FHREER 518 BN R 7 R
R KB EEY-

B A E I A BB
B

* Kk
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Net debt equals to total bank borrowings, total bonds
payable and interest-bearing amounts due to related parties
less cash and cash equivalents.

The gearing ratio is calculated by dividing net debt by total
equity.
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46.

47.

REHIRSEIE
TEC—F—-RB+_H EHeasaE
HEREEXLEESABLE (BREH)
(TEHBEEXEREES ) TERER
Ttz o RiEzhE EHEEEER
EES DA ENERTERERANE
BRAB (TRERHE]) 1931.25% % E=#
RENBEEXRERECBERBHE
REAGHAEHEENE—HER I
PREAG LRE-MENBEEELRE
ESHERERAENE—RER EH
BEEENESESARUEIEENE
BAZE AL EHLBEEIFERRY
BE70%MKREo

EMNELREEE

ETHRSHFEDEMHE UTSEM
FEM2INREE L —FEHERBLER
EERVERT B ()5t ARMBRARFE
W AR B 1#5636,181,0007T ; (i) B & AY
AR BRI D B 1E636,181,0007T ; (iii) R K
BREFHRBE D ENAETE37,252,000
7T FERE B DL N B 566,980,000
7T 5 (iv) B 5 B H M FE A RIE R D B
37,252,000tk EftiIEmE & &R A
#%566,980,000 7T °
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46. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

47.

On 12 January 2021, CR Double Crane signed the Voting Rights
Entrustment Agreement (“the Agreement”) with China Resources
Pharmaceutical Industrial Investment Fund LLP (“CR Pharmaceutical
Fund”). Pursuant to the Agreement, CR Pharmaceutical Fund entrusted
the voting rights of 31.25% of Dongying Tiandong Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd.("Tiandong Pharmaceutical”) to CR Double Crane and CR
Pharmaceutical Fund should reach a consensus with CR Double Crane
before the shareholder’s meeting of Tiandong Pharmaceutical, and vote
accordingly at the shareholder’s meeting. If CR Pharmaceutical Fund and
CR Double Crane fail to reach a consensus about the voting matters, CR
Pharmaceutical Fund agreed that the opinion of CR Double Crane shall
prevail. Accordingly, CR Double Crane holds an aggregate 70% of voting
rights of Tiandong Pharmaceutical.

RECLASSIFICATION OF COMPARATIVE
AMOUNTS

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform with
the current year’s presentation and disclosures. The amendments
of corresponding comparative amounts for the prior year includes:
(i) decrease in interest income included in other income by
HK$636,181,000; (ii) decrease in finance costs, net, by HK$636,181,000;
(iii) increase in defined benefit obligations by HK$37,252,000 in current
portion and HK$566,980,000 in non-current portion; (iv) decrease in
trade and other payables by HK$37,252,000 and in other non-current
liabilities by HK$566,980,000.
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48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

the end of the reporting period is as follows:

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use asset

Investments in subsidiaries
Due from subsidiaries

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Other receivables

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Amounts due from the immediate holding
company

Cash and bank balances

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade payables and other payables

Amounts due to the intermediate holding company
Bank borrowings

Lease liability

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Lease liability

NET ASSETS

EQUITY
Share capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

signed on its behalf by:

Han Yuewei

EF

Director

Chief Financial Officer
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2020
BT
HK$'000

1,542
11,863
19,486,254
14,788,854

34,288,513

3,084
7,192,287

17,967
16,076
7,229,414

5,070
8,668,409
4,530,000

4,857

13,208,336
(5,978,922)
28,309,591

6,865
28,302,726

27,241,289
1,061,437

28,302,726

Weng Jingwen

EEMFE

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at

2019
AT T
HK$'000

2,172
1,291
19,486,254
14,375,454

33,865,171

874
7,829,642

17,967
93,462
7,941,945

2,522
12,010,200
1,312,500
1,341

13,326,563
(5,384,618)
28,480,553

28,480,553

27,241,289
1,239,264

28,480,553

The Company's statement of financial position was approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2021 and is
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48. ZNABEBFEAR R @) 48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)
et - Note:
KRG EIEZEAT . A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:
BE {1 RE=EF #ast
Translation Retained
reserve earnings Total
BT BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZ—h&—HB—H At 1 January 2019 120,041 951,208 1,071,249
EREH Profit for the year = 985,001 985,001
FEREF R E S iREE Total profit and comprehensive income
for the year - 985,001 985,001
BT N\FERPRE 2018 final dividend declared - (816,986) (816,986)
N _E—-NEFE+B=+—H At 31 December 2019 120,041 1,119,223 1,239,264
R-E-T&E—A—A At 1 January 2020 120,041 1,119,223 1,239,264
[CIFERR 1D Repurchase shares = (9,523) (9,523)
FRaF) Profit for the year - 522,772 522,772
FRaF REENmEEE Total profit and comprehensive income
for the year 120,041 1,632,472 1,752,513
BIRZE—NFRAKE 2019 final dividend declared = (691,076) (691,076)
RIZ2ZTE2F+"F=+—H At 31 December 2020 120,041 941,396 1,061,437
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RS EE 19 MBI H R OIEE
EFERNTEERBIUIFERITESBRIN
SREEAS (BIREKE BIEKE
FEBETERESIEBENAL EFE
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BAS) UERBEMBEMENHAER
CEEERRRERAEEFZENEM
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49. SHARE BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the Company on 12
December 2017 (the “Share Option Scheme”), the purpose of the Share
Option Scheme is to effectively retain and attract exceptional talents
through a further optimised remuneration structure, align the interests
of the employees and Shareholders, and effectively motivate both the
management team and key employees, thereby fostering the long-
term development of the Company and maximising the interests of the
Shareholders.

There are 199 incentive targets under the Share Option Scheme, who are
the Directors (excluding non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors), senior management (including general managers,
deputy general managers, heads of the finance department and those
personnel with such functions, board secretaries and other senior
management pursuant to the Articles of Association), and other key
employees whose management and technical skills may have a direct
impact on the results of operation and strategic development of the
Group.

The total number of new Shares that may be issued upon exercise
of the share options pursuant to the Share Option Scheme and all
other schemes of the Company (if any) shall not, in aggregate, exceed
628,450,646 Shares, representing 10% of the Company’s total issued
shares as at the date on which the resolution approving the Share Option
Scheme is passed at the extraordinary general meeting. The total number
of new Shares that may be issued in relation to the first grant of the
share options to the incentive targets under the Share Option Scheme
shall not exceed 1% of the Company’s total issued Shares. The limit
on the number of securities which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and other schemes (if any) shall not exceed 30% of the
relevant class of securities of the Company in issue from time to time, and
no share option may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other schemes of the Company if this will result in this limit being
exceeded.
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49.

50.

SHARE BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

The exercise price of the share options under the Share Option Scheme
shall be determined by the Board, but shall not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of the Shares on the grant date (which must be a
trading day) as stated on the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet;
and (ji) the average closing price of the Shares for the five (5) trading days
immediately preceding the grant date as stated on the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet on the grant date. The Share Option Scheme shall
be valid for ten years from its effective date, unless otherwise terminated
pursuant to the terms therein.

No share option was granted under the Share Option Scheme during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
board of directors on 26 March 2021.
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